
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
APRIL 4, 2005 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

April 4, 2005 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Marvin Walker – Faith Apostolic 
Church.  Cub Scout Pack 1706, Den 4 and 5, from Martell Elementary School will 
assist the Mayor in leading the Pledge of Allegiance. 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Rezoning Application - Northeast Corner of Livernois and Maple Road, Section 27 
– B-1 to H-S (Z-700) – April 4, 2005 1 

C-2 Street Vacation Application (SV-182) – A Section of Alley Located South of Chopin 
and North of Maple, Section 27 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

D-1 No Postponed Items 2 



CONSENT AGENDA: 2 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 2 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 3 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 3 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: 3 

a) Cultural Diversity Month – April 9, 2005 – May 7, 2005........................................ 3 

E-4  Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2004 3 

E-5  Resolution Authorizing Request for Reimbursement:  Oakland County West Nile 
Virus Fund 3 

E-6  Traffic Committee Recommendations – February 16, 2005 4 

E-7 Traffic Committee Recommendations – March 16, 2005 4 

E-8  SBC Dedicated Internet Service 5 

E-9  Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Water Main Easement and a Regrading 
and Temporary Construction Permit for the Troy Court Water Main Project 
#01.502.5 – Section 34 5 

E-10  Final Street Vacation Application (SV-173) – A Portion of Hanover Street, from 
Leetonia Street Extending North Between Lots 85 and 86 of McCormick and 
Lawrence Little Farms Subdivision 5, North of Wattles Road and East of Livernois, 
Section 15 5 

E-11 Application for New SDD and SDM Liquor Licenses for Red Wagon Shoppe 6 

E-12  Application to Transfer Ownership of a B-Hotel Liquor License – Marriott 
International, Inc. (Troy Marriott) 7 

E-13  Application to Transfer Ownership of a Class C Liquor License – TENT Restaurant 
Operations, Inc. (Bailey’s Bub and Grille) 8 

E-14  Request for Acceptance of Two (2) Temporary Construction Permits for the Troy 
Court Water Main Project #01.502.5 – Section 34 9 



E-15  Application to Transfer Class C Liquor License to Bank of America, N.A. 9 

E-16  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Liquid Calcium Chloride
 10 

E-17  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidder 
Meeting Specifications – Fertilization Services at Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake 
Golf Courses 10 

E-18  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Four (4) 64,000 GVW 
Tandem Axle Dump Trucks 10 

E-19  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew – Automobile, Light Truck, 
Farm, and Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 11 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 11 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 11 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority; Economic Development Corporation; b) City Council 
Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Board of Zoning Appeals; 
Cable Advisory Committee; Charter Revision Committee; Historic District 
Commission; Library Board; Personnel Board 12 

F-2 Blood Draw Procedure – Beaumont Hospital and Alliance Mobile Health 19 

F-3 2005 Magic of Fall - Troy Daze Festival Schedule - Fees 19 

F-4 Designation of Limited Public Forums 19 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 20 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 20 

a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1998 Kirkton – April 18, 2005.............................. 20 
b) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1102 Boyd – April 18, 2005................................. 20 
c) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6771 Westaway – April 18, 2005 ........................ 20 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 20 

a) Islamic Association of Michigan.......................................................................... 20 



COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 20 

H-1  Mayor Schilling’s Request for List of Churches in Troy and a List of Languages 
Spoken in Troy 20 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 21 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 21 

REPORTS: 21 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 21 

a) Troy Historic Commission/Final – October 26, 2004 .......................................... 21 
b) Troy Historic Study Committee/Final – November 4, 2004................................. 21 
c) Troy Historic Study Committee/Final – November 30, 2004............................... 21 
d) Troy Historic District Study Committee/Final – January 4, 2005......................... 21 
e) Troy Historic Commission/Final – January 25, 2005 .......................................... 21 
f) Troy Historic Study Committee/Final – February 1, 2005 ................................... 21 
g) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – February 14, 2005....................................... 21 
h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – February 15, 2005 .......................................... 21 
i) Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – February 15, 2005........................... 21 
j) Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Draft – March 1, 2005................. 21 
k) Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Final – March 1, 2005................. 21 
l) Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – March 1, 2005 ................................. 21 
m) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – March 2, 2005 ..................................... 21 
n) Planning Commission Regular Meeting/Draft – March 8, 2005 .......................... 21 
o) Planning Commission Regular Meeting/Final – March 8, 2005 .......................... 21 
p) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – March 14, 2005 ........................................... 21 
q) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – March 15, 2005............................................... 21 

J-2 Department Reports: 21 

a) Council Member Dave Lambert’s Report on the National League of Cities 
Conference......................................................................................................... 21 

b) Councilmember Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report for NLC 
Congressional Cities Conference ....................................................................... 21 

c) Annual Library Survey of Users .......................................................................... 21 
d) First Quarter 2005 Development Report............................................................. 21 
e) Permits Issued During the Month of February 2005 ........................................... 21 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 21 

a) Letter to Cindy Stewart from Mary Beth Halushka of the Troy Board of 
Education............................................................................................................ 21 

b) Letter Thanking Police Officer Milt Stansbury for a Recent Ride Along.............. 21 
c) Letter Thanking Police Officer Patrick Dyjewski for Providing Assistance to 

Broken Down Motorist and Motorist Needing Medical Attention ......................... 21 



d) Letter Thanking Police Officer LaForest for Assisting in Apprehending a Retail 
Fraud Suspect .................................................................................................... 21 

e) Letter Thanking Police Officer Craig Fitzpatrick and Police Officer Frank 
Nastasi for Providing Assistance to a Stranded Motorist .................................... 21 

f) Letter From Brad Byarski Thanking Jennifer Lawson for Offering Input and 
Information Regarding Maple Forest .................................................................. 21 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 21 

a) Resolution from the Oakland County Board of Commissioners in Support of 
the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program ............................. 21 

J-5  Calendar 22 

J-6  Options/Ramifications for Proposed I-75/Crooks/Long Lake Interchange 
Improvement Project 22 

J-7  Golf, Inc. Article 22 

J-8  Report on Liquor Compliance Inspections 22 

J-9  Load Restrictions Report and Communication 22 

J-10  Report Regarding Feasibility of a Minor League Baseball Stadium at Donald Flynn 
Park 22 

J-11  State of Michigan Ash Tree Removal Contract 22 

J-12  DPW Recycling Center Closure 22 

J-13  Letter from Julie A. Wendt, Director, Licensing Division of the Liquor Control 
Commission 22 

J-14 Law Day 2005 22 

STUDY ITEMS: 22 

K-1  No Study Items Submitted 22 



PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 22 

CLOSED SESSION: 22 

L-1 Closed Session 22 

RECESSED 23 

RECONVENED 23 

ADJOURNMENT 23 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 23 

Monday, April 18, 2005 Regular City Council........................................................ 23 
Monday, April 25, 2005: 6:30 PM Special/Study/Budget City Council................... 23 
Monday, April 25, 2005 Regular City Council........................................................ 23 
Monday, May 02, 2005: 6:30 PM Special/Study/Budget City Council ................... 23 
Saturday, May 7, 2005: 9:00 AM Special/Study/Budget City Council.................... 23 
Monday, May 9, 2005 Regular City Council .......................................................... 23 
Tuesday, May 10, 2005: 7:30 PM Special/Study City Council............................... 23 
Monday, May 16, 2005 Regular City Council ........................................................ 23 
Monday, May 23, 2005 Regular City Council ........................................................ 23 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Marvin Walker – Faith 
Apostolic Church.  Cub Scout Pack 1706, Den 4 and 5, from Martell Elementary School 
will assist the Mayor in leading the Pledge of Allegiance. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Rezoning Application - Northeast Corner of Livernois and Maple Road, Section 27 
– B-1 to H-S (Z-700) – April 4, 2005 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the northeast corner of Livernois 
Road and Maple Road, Section 27, being 15,900 square feet in size, is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Street Vacation Application (SV-182) – A Section of Alley Located South of Chopin 

and North of Maple, Section 27 
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, A request has been received for the vacation of a portion of a section of alley that 
is shown in the attached drawing entitled Alley Vacation & Easement Sketch, and further 
described as follows: 
 

A portion of a section of alley that is 18 feet wide by approximately 240.54 feet, within the 
Addison Heights Subdivision, as recorded in Liber 33, page 28 of Oakland County Plats, 
abutting Lots 78 through 90 and Lot 549, Section 27. 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council approved an authorizing resolution for the street vacation request 
on June 16, 2003, contingent upon an easement for continued use of full alley and until such 
time development of property directs recording of easement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council concurs in the 
recommendations of City Management and APPROVES the final vacation request expressly 
reserving, saving and retaining therefrom an easement granting it and its designated licensees 
the right to construct, operate, maintain, repair, and/or replace over the entire right of way being 
vacated, any water mains, sanitary or storm sewer systems or other public utilities including 
ingress and egress. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 21, 2005 at 7:30 PM, the 
Special Meeting of March 28, 2005 at 7:00 PM, and the Regular Meeting of March 28, 2005 at 
7:30 PM be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:   
a) Cultural Diversity Month – April 9, 2005 – May 7, 2005 
 
E-4  Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2004 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary to furnish certain road information to the State of Michigan for the 
purpose of obtaining funds under Act 51, P.A. 1951, as amended. 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy hereby accepts the following non-platted streets: Tanner, 
Peacock, Quill Creek, Dominique, Wyandotte and Colleen. 
 
RESOLVED, That said streets are located within the City of Troy; right-of-way is under the 
control of the City of Troy; said streets are public streets and are for public street purposes and 
were open to the public prior to December 31, 2004; and said streets are ACCEPTED into the 
City of Troy local street system. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy hereby DECERTIFIES the following street:  
River Bend effective on December 31, 2004. 
 
E-5  Resolution Authorizing Request for Reimbursement:  Oakland County West Nile 

Virus Fund 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council for the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, hereby 
AUTHORIZES the City of Troy’s Park’s and Recreation Department, to seek reimbursement in 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

the amount of $30,057.91 from the Oakland County’s West Nile Virus Fund for expenditures 
incurred while instituting proactive public health measures to reduce the population of infected 
mosquitoes in the environment. 
 
E-6  Traffic Committee Recommendations – February 16, 2005 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
(a) Yield Signs on Millburn at Brinston and on Millburn at Prescott 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #_________ be ISSUED for installation of YIELD signs 
on Millburn at Brinston and on Millburn at Prescott. 
 
(b) No Stopping, Standing, Parking Signs on South Side of Timberview Between 

Livernois and the Timberview/Millstone Intersection 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #_________ be ISSUED for installation of NO 
STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING signs on the south side of Timberview between Livernois 
and the Timberview/Millstone intersection. 
 
(c) Installation of No Parking Zone Signs on the East Side of Millstone 50 Feet North 

and on the East Side of Timberview 50 Feet to the South of the 
Timberview/Millstone Intersection 

 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #_________ be ISSUED for installation of NO 
PARKING ZONE signs on the east side of Millstone 50 feet north and on the east side of 
Timberview 50 feet to the south of the Timberview/Millstone intersection. 
 
(d) Installation of a Stop Sign on Westbound Timberview at the Timberview/Millstone 

Intersection 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #__________ be ISSUED for installation of a STOP 
sign on westbound Timberview at the Timberview/Millstone intersection. 
 
E-7 Traffic Committee Recommendations – March 16, 2005 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
 
(a) No Changes at Cypress and Randall 
 
RESOLVED, That no changes be made at Cypress and Randall. 
 
(b) Installation of Signs in the Circle Drive in the South Parking Lot at Susick 

Elementary School 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order 2005-03-________ be ISSUED for installation of signs 
indicating NO STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING EXCEPT FOR MORNING DROP-OFF 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

TIMES in the circle drive in the north parking lot and installing signs indicating NO STOPPING, 
STANDING, PARKING—BUS LOADING/UNLOADING ONLY in the circle drive in the south 
parking lot at Susick Elementary School. 
 
(c) Installation of No Stopping, Standing, Parking Signs Along the East Curb and on 

the Two Adjacent Islands of the Library Parking Lot Driveway 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order 2005-03-________ be ISSUED for installation of NO 
STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING signs along the east curb and on the two adjacent islands 
of the library parking lot driveway. 
 
E-8  SBC Dedicated Internet Service 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That a new 3-year contract be EXECUTED with SBC for Dedicated Internet 
Access at an estimated cost of $1,224.00 per month is hereby APPROVED. 
 
E-9  Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Water Main Easement and a Regrading 

and Temporary Construction Permit for the Troy Court Water Main Project 
#01.502.5 – Section 34 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That Permanent Watermain Easement and Temporary Regrading and 
Construction Permit, are hereby ACCEPTED, and payment for both documents in the amount 
of $3,500.00, plus recording costs, is APPROVED, for the construction, operation, maintenance 
and repair of the Troy Court Water Main improvement project; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Watermain Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, and copy of both 
Easement and permit shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-10  Final Street Vacation Application (SV-173) – A Portion of Hanover Street, from 

Leetonia Street Extending North Between Lots 85 and 86 of McCormick and 
Lawrence Little Farms Subdivision 5, North of Wattles Road and East of Livernois, 
Section 15 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
WHEREAS, A request has been received for the vacation of a portion of the 50-foot-wide platted but 
unopened Hanover Street right-of-way, extending north 217.05 feet from Leetonia Street (platted 
Loraine Avenue), and abutting lots 85 and 86 of McCormick and Lawrence Little Farms Subdivision 
5, Section 15 (Liber 20, page 30 of Oakland County Plats). 
 
WHEREAS, The portion of Hanover Street to be vacated is described as: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

 
A portion of the 50-foot-wide platted but unopened Hanover Street right-of-way, 
extending north 217.05 feet from Leetonia Street (platted Loraine Avenue), and 
abutting lots 85 and 86 of McCormick and Lawrence Little Farms Subdivision, 
Section 15 (Liber 20, page 30 of Oakland County Plats). 

 
WHEREAS, The 20-foot wide Public Right-of-Way for Public Utilities and Public Walkway to be 
retained from the Hanover Street Vacation, is shown in the attached Street Vacation & Right-
Of-Way Sketch” and is described as: 
 

Part of Vacated Hanover Street as platted in “McCormick and Lawrence Little 
Farms”, Liber 20, Page 30, of Oakland County, Michigan records.  Commencing 
at the southwest corner of Lot 86 of said “McCormick and Lawrence Little Farms”; 
thence North 89 degrees 58 minutes 00 seconds West, along the south line of 
said lot extended west, 15.00 feet to the point of beginning; thence continuing 
North 89 degrees 58 minutes 00 seconds West 20.00 feet; thence North 00 
degrees 30 minutes 00 seconds West, parallel with the west line of said lot 86, 
217.05 feet to the north line of said lot extended west; thence South 89 degrees 
58 minutes 00 seconds East 20.00 feet; thence South 00 degrees 30 minutes 00 
seconds East, 217.05 feet to the point of beginning.  Containing 4,341 square feet 
or 0.097 acres more or less.  

 
WHEREAS, The properties which shall benefit from this requested vacation include Lot 85 of 
McCormick and Lawrence Little Farms Subdivision 5, Section 15  (City of Troy Tax Parcel 20-
15-352-050 and Lot 86 of McCormick and Lawrence Little Farms Subdivision 5, Section 15 
(City of Troy Tax Parcel 20-15-377-043). 
 
WHEREAS, City Council approved an authorizing resolution on July 22, 2002, which stated that 
final street vacation shall be granted after the following actions: 
 
1. Receipt of the above noted right-of-way and/or easement conveyances from the owners 

of the applicable lots. 
 
2. Determination by the City Engineer of the nature and extent of easements to be retained 

over the subject street right-of-way, based in part on input or responses from the 
applicable utility companies. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That final action is APPROVED expressly saving and 
retaining a 20-foot wide public right of way for public utilities and public walkway as described. 
 
E-11 Application for New SDD and SDM Liquor Licenses for Red Wagon Shoppe 
 
(a) New Licenses 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That the request from LUV SUN, Inc., for a new SDD license and a new SDM 
license, located at 1613 Livernois Rd., Troy, Michigan 48083, in Oakland County [MLCC REQ 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

ID# 276917/276918] be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL.  It is the consensus of this legislative 
body that the application be recommended “above all others” for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with LUV SUN, Inc., for a new SDD license and a new SDM license, 
located at 1613 Livernois Rd., Troy, Michigan 48083, in Oakland County [MLCC REQ ID# 
276917/276918], and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the document, 
a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-12  Application to Transfer Ownership of a B-Hotel Liquor License – Marriott 

International, Inc. (Troy Marriott) 
 
(a) License Transfer 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That the request from MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL, INC. & WHP HOTEL 
OWNER-2A, L.L.C. (A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY), formerly known as Mar-
Ty, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), licensees of a 2004 B-Hotel licensed 
business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, 8 Bars and Official Permit (food), located at 200 W. 
Big Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan, Oakland County, to transfer all membership interest in WHP 
Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, 
L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), wherein Marty-Mez, L.L.C. is dropped as sole 
member through the transfer of 100% of the General and Limited Partnership interests in PA 
Troy Hospitality Investors, L.P. to WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., and the simultaneous 
dissolution of PA Troy Hospitality Invertors, L.P., and its wholly owner subsidiary Mar-Ty Mezz, 
L.L.C., thereby resulting in WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., being the sole member in WHP Hotel 
Owner-2A, L.L.C., be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL. 
 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application be recommended “above all 
others” for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL, INC. & WHP HOTEL OWNER-
2A, L.L.C. (A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. 
(A Delaware Limited Liability Company), licensees of a 2004 B-Hotel licensed business with 
Dance-Entertainment Permit, 8 Bars and Official Permit (food), located at 200 W. Big Beaver 
Rd., Troy, Michigan, Oakland County, to transfer all membership interest in WHP Hotel Owner-
2A, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A 
Delaware Limited Liability Company), wherein Marty-Mez, L.L.C. is dropped as sole member 
through the transfer of 100% of the General and Limited Partnership interests in PA Troy 
Hospitality Investors, L.P. to WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., and the simultaneous dissolution of 
PA Troy Hospitality Invertors, L.P., and its wholly owner subsidiary Mar-Ty Mezz, L.L.C., 
thereby resulting in WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., being the sole member in WHP Hotel 
Owner-2A, L.L.C., and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the 
document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-13  Application to Transfer Ownership of a Class C Liquor License – TENT Restaurant 

Operations, Inc. (Bailey’s Bub and Grille) 
 
(a) License Transfer 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from TENT Restaurant Operations, Inc., to transfer ownership of 
a 2004 Class C licensed business, with Official Permit (food), and Sunday Sales, located at 
1965 W. Maple Rd., Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County, from Fox & Hound of Michigan, 
Inc., be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL.  It is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application be recommended “above all others” for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with TENT Restaurant Operations, Inc., to transfer ownership of a 
2004 Class C licensed business, with Official Permit (food), and Sunday Sales, located at 1965 
W. Maple Rd., Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County, from Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc., 
and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

E-14  Request for Acceptance of Two (2) Temporary Construction Permits for the Troy 
Court Water Main Project #01.502.5 – Section 34 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That the One (1) Temporary Construction Easement from property owner W & H 
Real Estate, LLC (2/3 interest) &, Robert & Carol Hewitt (1/3 interest), having Sidwell #88-20-
34-152-013, with a consideration of $500.00 and the 1 Temporary Construction Easement from 
Troy Court, LLC, having Sidwell #88-20-34-152-018, with a consideration of $500.00, are 
hereby ACCEPTED, and payment of the stated consideration is APPROVED, for the 
construction, operation, maintenance and repair of the Troy Court Water Main improvement 
project; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT, A copy of each shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-15  Application to Transfer Class C Liquor License to Bank of America, N.A. 
 
(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That the request from BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., to transfer ownership of a 2004 
12 Months Resort Class C licensed business, located at 5460 Corporate, Troy, Michigan 
48098, in Oakland County, from Cooker Restaurant Corporation, issued under MCL 
436.1531(2): minimum seating: 100  [MLCC REQ ID# 267215], be CONSIDERED for 
APPROVAL. 
 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application be recommended “above all 
others” for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., to transfer ownership of a 2004 12 
Months Resort Class C licensed business, located at 5460 Corporate, Troy, Michigan 48098, in 
Oakland County, from Cooker Restaurant Corporation, issued under MCL 436.1531(2): 
minimum seating: 100  [MLCC REQ ID# 267215], and the Mayor and City Clerk are 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-16  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Liquid Calcium 

Chloride 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide one-year requirements of Liquid Calcium Chloride with 
an option to renew for one additional year is hereby AWARDED to the low total bidder, 
Michigan Chloride Sales, Inc., of St. Louis, MI, at an estimated total cost of $49,120.00, which 
includes $500.00 for the “additional insured endorsement” clause, at unit prices contained in the 
bid tabulation opened March 16, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractors submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements. 
 
E-17  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidder 

Meeting Specifications – Fertilization Services at Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake 
Golf Courses 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish all materials, equipment, and labor for one-year 
requirements of Fertilization Services at Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses with an 
option to renew for an additional year is hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting 
specifications, Turf Grass, Inc. of South Lyon, MI, for an estimated total cost of $34,140.00, at 
unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation opened March 15, 2005, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission 
of properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
contract requirements. 
 
E-18  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Four (4) 64,000 GVW 

Tandem Axle Dump Trucks 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase four (4) 64,000 GVW Tandem-Axle Dump Trucks is 
hereby AWARDED to the low total bidders, Bi-State Sterling Truck Center of Toledo, OH and 
Monroe Truck Equipment of Flint, MI for an estimated total cost of $327,588.00 and $190,748.00 
respectfully, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 1, 2005, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

 
E-19  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew – Automobile, Light Truck, 

Farm, and Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04-  
 
WHEREAS, On May 6, 2002, three-year contracts with the option to renew for three additional 
years to provide automobile, light truck, farm, and construction equipment replacement parts were 
awarded to the lowest acceptable bidders meeting specifications, Kirk’s Automotive, Terminal 
Supply, Jack Doheny Supply Company, DTS Fluid Power, LLC (previously Rubber Materials), and 
Shults Equipment, Inc. (Resolution #2002-05-288-E10). 
 
WHEREAS, All the above named vendors have agreed to exercise the three-year option to renew 
the contracts under the same price discount structure, terms, and conditions. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the options to renew the contracts are hereby 
EXERCISED with Kirk’s Automotive, Terminal Supply, Jack Doheny Supply Company, DTS Fluid 
Power, LLC (previously Rubber Materials), and Shults Equipment, Inc. to provide automobile, light 
truck, farm, and construction equipment replacement parts under the same pricing structure, terms, 
and conditions as the original contracts expiring May 6, 2008. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority; Economic Development Corporation; b) City Council 
Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Board of Zoning Appeals; 
Cable Advisory Committee; Charter Revision Committee; Historic District 
Commission; Library Board; Personnel Board 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council.  Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing).  Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR with 
COUNCIL APPROVAL to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Mayor, Council Approval (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Cotsonika, Arthur 04/30/06 
Goss, Laurence R. (Seeks reappointment) 04/30/05 
Lee, Katerine M. 04/30/05 
Lenivov, Victor 04/30/07 
Swartz, Robert D. 04/30/05 
Ullmann, Lon M. 04/30/06 
Wilberding, Bruce J. 04/30/07 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Baptista, Michael 05/21/03-05/2005 06/02/03 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

Burke, Matthew 10/20/04-10/2005 11/08/04 
DeBacker, Deborah 05/20/02-05/2004 06/03/02 
Dziurman, Theodore 06/10/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
Hyun, Yul Woong (Jeff) 09/26/03-09/2005 10/06/03 
Joseph, Luke 03/10/03-03/2005 03/17/03 
Keisling, Laurence 04/29/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 

Silver, Neil S. 08/11/00-06/20/01-06/09//03-
05/2005 08/21/00-07/09/01-06/16/03 

Smits, Beatrice G. 12/02/03-12/2005 12/15/03 
 
 
Economic Development Corporation 
Mayor, Council Approval (9)– 6 years 
 
 Term expires 04-30-2011 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Bluhm, Kenneth 04/30/06 
Gigliotti, Robert S. 04/30/08 
Licari, Leger (Nino) – City Assessor 04/30/10 
Parker, Michael 04/30/07 
Hoef, Paul V. 04/30/09 
Knight, Barbara 04/30/09 
Salgat, Charles 04/30/10 
Sharp, John 04/30/09 
Smith, Douglas – Real Estate & Development Director 04/30/05 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Berar, James 04/30/07 
Black, Burdette L. Jr. 04/30/07 
Dixon, Merrill W. (Sr Rep for Parks & Rec Board) 04/30/06 
Hoag,Marie 04/30/06 
Noce, Pauline Y. 04/30/07 
Ogg, David S. 04/30/05 
Rhoads, Josephine 04/30/05 
Thompson, JoAnn 04/30/06 
Weisgerber, William (Does not seek reappointment) 04/30/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Buchanan, Cynthia 06/07/00 06/07/00 
Burt, Susan 09/24/01 10/01/01 
Connor, Kathleen Ann 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Freliga, Mary E. 11/25/02-11/2004 12/02/02 
Freliga, Victor P. 04/19/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Lang, Victoria 06/16/03-06/2005 07/07/03 
Pietron, Dorothy A. 12/21/98-07/10/01 07/23/01 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Sastry, Shiva Shakara K. 07/20/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Schafer, Donald E. 06/08/04-06/2006 06/21/04 
Solarte, Remedios 09/15/04 09/20/04 
Wheeler, Nancy 03/108/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Courtney, Kenneth L. April 30, 2007 
Fejes, Christopher April 30, 2006 
Gies, Marcia April 30, 2007 
Maxwell, Mark April 30, 2005 
Hutson, Michael April 30, 2006 
Kovacs, Matthew R. April 30, 2005 
Wright, Wayne C. (Planning Comm Rep) December 31, 2005 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

Drake-Batts, Lynn (Planning Comm Alt. Rep) December 31, 2005 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Almassian, Carolyn 04/22/02-04/2004 05/06/02 
Anderson, David C. 12/06/01-06/16/03-05/2005 12/17/01-07/07/03 
Baptista, Michael 05/21/03-05/2005 06/02/03 
Bordas, Dougla M. 08/19/99  
Dziurmanh, Theodore 06/10/03-05/2005 06/16/01 
Godlewski, W.S. 07/01/03-07/2005 07/07/03 
Hall, Patrick C. 06/16/03-052005 07/07/03 
Hanna, Atef A. 10/28/02-10/2004 11/04/02 
Howe, Peter Thomas 03/12/03-03/2005 03/17/03 
Joseph, Luke 03/10/03-03/2005 03/17/03 
Keisling, Laurence G. 04/29/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Lakin, David 01/13/04-01/2006 02/02/04 
Minnick, Richard D. II 04/29/02-07/18/03-07/2005 05/06/02-08/04/03 
Noce, Robert Wilson 11/16/00-07/11/03-07/2005 11/20/00-07/21/03 
Ogg, David 02/09/99-06/09/03-05/2005 04/23/01-06/16/03 
Peard, James R. 11/25/03-06/09/03-05/2005 12/02/02-06/16/03 
Powers, Brian M. 10/15/02-10/2004 10/21/02 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shah, Jayshree 01/12/04-04/23/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Smits, Beatrice G. 12/02/03-12/2005  
Strat, Thomas 02/16/02-09/2004 09/23/02 
Wright, Wayne C. 01/07/99-06/18/03-06/2005  
Yousef, Gary 11/24/03-11/2005 01/05/04 
 
Cable Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term expires 02-28-2008 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Bixby, Jerry L 02-28-06 
Butt, Shazad 11-30-05 
Hughes, Richard 02-28-06 
Marinos, Penny 02-28-07 
Manzon, Alan 09-30-06 
Lin, Fan (Student) 07-01-05 
Voigt, W Kent 02-28-07 
Wehrung, Bryan H 02-28-05 
  
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Godlewski, W S 12/28/01-07/01/03- 01/07/02- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

07/2005 07/07/03 
Kuschinsky, Dick 10/11/01-06/19/03 

06/2005 
11/05/01 

Payne, Timothy P 02/25/04-02/2006 03/08/04 
Powers, Brian M 10/15/02-10/2004 10/21/02 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Solomon, Mark R 01/21/05 02/07/05 
Victor, Robert 06/03/03-06/2005 02/02/04 
Wattles, Brian J 07/10/01 07/23/01 
Weisgerber, William 07/14/03-07/2005 07/21/03 
Wheeler, Nancy 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Charter Revision Committee  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Barno, Lillian April 30, 2006 
Bliss, Daniel H. April 30, 2006 
Bloom, Jerry E. April 30, 2007 
Kanoza, Shirley April 30, 2007 
Noce, Robert April 30, 2006 
Solomon, Mark R. April 30, 2005 
Wilsher, Cynthia A. April 30, 2005 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Almassian, Carolyn 04/22/02-04/2004 05/06/02 
Baughman, Deborah L. 06/18/01-06/09/03-05/2005 07/09/01-06/16/03 
Courtney, Kenneth 03/12/04-03/2006 03/15/04 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Schepke, Gordon 03/22/05 04/04/05 
Silver, Neil S. 06/09/03-05/2005 06/16/03 

Weisgerber, William 04/23/01-07/14/03-03/07/05-
07/2007 04/23/01-07/21/03 

Wheeler, Nancy 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 

Ziegenfelder, Peter F. 12/07/00-06/11/01-06/11/03-
05/2005 12/18/00-07/09/01-06/16/03 

  
Historic District Commission One member must be an architect. 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years Two members-Historical Society recommendations. 
 One member – Historical Commission recommendation. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 17 - 

  Term expires 03-01-08 
 

(Historical Commission) Term expires 03-01-08 
 

(Historical Society) Term expires 03-01-08 
 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Marjorie A. Biglin 03/01/07 
Wilson Deane Blythe (Does not seek reappointment) 03/01/05 
Barbara Chambers (Historical Commission) 03/01/05 
Robert Hudson 05/15/06 
Paul C. Lin (Architect) 05/15/06 
Ann Partlan (Historical Society) 03/01/05 
Muriel Rounds 05/15/06 
Vilin Zhang (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED  APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Kerry S. Krivoshein 08/12/99-06/14/01-05/2003 07/09/01 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03-08/18/03 
Nancy Wheeler 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Library Board 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 years 
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Allen, Joanne C. April 30, 2005 
Andreoff, Lauren (Student) July 01, 2005 
Chen, Cheng (Mr) (Student) July 01, 2005 
Griffen, Brian April 30, 2006 
Gregory, Lynne R. April 30, 2007 
Wheeler, Nancy D. April 30, 2007 
Zembrzuski, Audre April 30, 2005 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Blythe, Wilson Deane 03/06/02 03/18/02 
Brady, Michael 04/30/03  
Freliga, Mary E. 11/25/02-11/2004 12/02/02 
Gauri, Kul B. 08/26/99-07/03/03-07/2005  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 18 - 

Hashmi, Amin 08/22/02-08/2004  
Mellen, Dick 05/02/03-05/2005 05/05/03 
Nelson, Albert T. Jr. 03/16/99  
O’Brien, Michael 07/28/03-07/2005 08/04/03 
Powers, Brian M. 10/15/02-10/2004 10/21/02 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Sastry, Shiva Shankara K. 07/20/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Shah, Jayshree 08/28/01-01/12/04-01/2006 09/17/01-02/02/04 
Shah, Oniell 08/07/02 09/23/02 
Shepich, Patricia A. 07/22/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Shiner, Mary E. 11/28/01 12/09/01 
Smits, Beatrice G. 12/02/03-12/2005 12/15/03 
Solarte, Remedios A. 09/15/04 09/20/04 
Solomon,  Mark R. 02/05/99-06/16/03-05/2005 07/07/03 
Uitto, Renee 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on File   
 
Personnel Board 
Appointed by  Council (5) - 3 years 
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008  
 
 Term Expires April 30, 2008 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Baughman, Deborah L. April 30, 2005 
Nelson, Albert T. Jr. April 30, 2006 
Patrick, Stephen Jr. April 30, 2006 
Tschirhart, Ronald L. (Seeks reappointment) April 30, 2005 
Vanderbrink, James E. April 30, 2006 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Bluthe, Wilson Deane 03/06/02 03/18/02 
Calice,  Mark A. 06/10/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
Freliga, Victor P. 11/28/04-11/2006 12/06/04 
Hall, Patrick C. 06/16/03-05/2005 07/07/03 
Howrylak, Frank J. 06/11/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
Huber, Laurie G. 06/18/01-05/2003 07/09/01 
Pritzloff,  Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shah, Jayshree 04/23/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Uitto, Renee 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
Ziegenfelder, Peter F. 12/07/00-06/11/01-06/11/03-05/2005 12/18/90-07/09/01-06/16/03 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 19 - 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Blood Draw Procedure – Beaumont Hospital and Alliance Mobile Health 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement between the City of Troy and Alliance Mobile Health is 
hereby APPROVED, the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the document, 
and a copy is to be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting.  
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement between the City of Troy and William Beaumont Hospital is 
hereby APPROVED, the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the document, 
and a copy is to be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 2005 Magic of Fall - Troy Daze Festival Schedule - Fees 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Daze/Magic of Fall schedule and fees are hereby APPROVED as 
requested by the Troy Daze Advisory Committee and a copy shall be ATTACHED to and made 
a part of the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Designation of Limited Public Forums 
 
a)  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, City Council directed City Management to select an area on City property to be a 
designated limited public forum (Resolution #2005-03-115). 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 20 - 

WHEREAS, City Management selected a limited public forum area to be in the parking lot north 
of the Community Center. 
 
WHEREAS, City Management has proposed rules and procedures to govern this designated 
limited public forum, which is also in accordance with Resolution #2005-03-115. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the rules and procedures governing the limited 
public forum area as recommended by City Management and attached hereto are hereby 
APPROVED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
b) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Veterans Plaza (or  
                                        ) as the designated limited public forum area, and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the rules and procedures governing the limited public 
forum area as recommended by City Management and attached hereto are hereby 
APPROVED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1998 Kirkton – April 18, 2005 
b) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1102 Boyd – April 18, 2005 
c) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6771 Westaway – April 18, 2005 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Islamic Association of Michigan 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  Mayor Schilling’s Request for List of Churches in Troy and a List of Languages 

Spoken in Troy 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 21 - 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Troy Historic Commission/Final – October 26, 2004 
b) Troy Historic Study Committee/Final – November 4, 2004 
c) Troy Historic Study Committee/Final – November 30, 2004 
d) Troy Historic District Study Committee/Final – January 4, 2005  
e) Troy Historic Commission/Final – January 25, 2005 
f) Troy Historic Study Committee/Final – February 1, 2005   
g) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – February 14, 2005  
h) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – February 15, 2005 
i) Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – February 15, 2005 
j) Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Draft – March 1, 2005   
k) Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Final – March 1, 2005 
l) Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – March 1, 2005  
m) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – March 2, 2005 
n) Planning Commission Regular Meeting/Draft – March 8, 2005  
o) Planning Commission Regular Meeting/Final – March 8, 2005 
p) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – March 14, 2005 
q) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – March 15, 2005 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Council Member Dave Lambert’s Report on the National League of Cities Conference 
b) Councilmember Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report for NLC Congressional Cities 

Conference 
c) Annual Library Survey of Users 
d) First Quarter 2005 Development Report 
e) Permits Issued During the Month of February 2005 
  
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter to Cindy Stewart from Mary Beth Halushka of the Troy Board of Education 
b) Letter Thanking Police Officer Milt Stansbury for a Recent Ride Along 
c) Letter Thanking Police Officer Patrick Dyjewski for Providing Assistance to Broken Down 

Motorist and Motorist Needing Medical Attention 
d) Letter Thanking Police Officer LaForest for Assisting in Apprehending a Retail Fraud 

Suspect 
e) Letter Thanking Police Officer Craig Fitzpatrick and Police Officer Frank Nastasi for 

Providing Assistance to a Stranded Motorist 
f) Letter From Brad Byarski Thanking Jennifer Lawson for Offering Input and Information 

Regarding Maple Forest   
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   

a) Resolution from the Oakland County Board of Commissioners in Support of the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 22 - 

J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Options/Ramifications for Proposed I-75/Crooks/Long Lake Interchange 

Improvement Project 
 
J-7  Golf, Inc. Article 
 
J-8  Report on Liquor Compliance Inspections 
 
J-9  Load Restrictions Report and Communication 
 
J-10  Report Regarding Feasibility of a Minor League Baseball Stadium at Donald Flynn 

Park  
 
J-11  State of Michigan Ash Tree Removal Contract 
 
J-12  DPW Recycling Center Closure 
 
J-13  Letter from Julie A. Wendt, Director, Licensing Division of the Liquor Control 

Commission 
 
J-14 Law Day 2005 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session 
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA April 4, 2005 
 

- 23 - 

Resolution #2005-04- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (a), Personnel Evaluations of Troy City Manager John Szerlag and 
Troy City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, April 18, 2005 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, April 25, 2005: 6:30 PM .........................Special/Study/Budget City Council 
Monday, April 25, 2005 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, May 02, 2005: 6:30 PM .........................Special/Study/Budget City Council 
Saturday, May 7, 2005: 9:00 AM..........................Special/Study/Budget City Council 
Monday, May 9, 2005................................................................ Regular City Council 
Tuesday, May 10, 2005: 7:30 PM .................................... Special/Study City Council 
Monday, May 16, 2005.............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, May 23, 2005.............................................................. Regular City Council 

 



 1

March 24, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
  
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – REZONING APPLICATION PUBLIC HEARING 

– Northeast corner of Livernois and Maple Road, Section 27 – B-1 
to H-S (Z-700) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application is compatible with surrounding land uses and zoning districts and 
is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan, which classifies the corner as Non-
Center Commercial.  The Planning Commission recommended approval of the 
rezoning application at the March 8, 2005 Regular Meeting.  City Management 
concurs with the Planning Commission and recommends approval of the 
rezoning application.  
 
It must be noted that the site plan indicated that the proposed development 
requires a number of variances, including front and rear yard building setbacks, 
canopy setbacks, and possibly island and canopy support setbacks.  The 
application requires non-use variances from the Board of Zoning Appeals prior to 
receiving Preliminary Site Plan Approval.  
 
The size of the property limits its potential for redevelopment.  Service stations 
are one of the least demanding uses permitted in H-S in terms of land area.  The 
subject property exceeds the minimum site area standard of 15,000 square feet 
for service stations.  Redevelopment of the existing service station is proposed.  
This corner location is an appropriate location for a service station.  However, 
prudent site planning suggests that consolidation of adjacent properties is 
desirable.  A larger site would allow for the development of a service station that 
can meet the Zoning Ordinance requirements.   
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner of the property is Sankaran Balakrishnan of V3M Associates, LLC.  
The applicant is Michael Kozlowski of Caeruleum Environmental Design. 
 

morrellca
Text Box
C-01



 2

Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the northeast corner of Livernois and Maple Roads, in 
Section 27. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 15,900 square feet in area.  
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is currently used as a Clark gas station. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
B-1 Local Business. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
H-S Highway Service. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to redevelop the property by adding a convenience 
store and adding a canopy over the gasoline pumps. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Retail. 
 
South: Retail. 
 
East: Retail and One Family Residential. 
 
West: Vacant and Office. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: B-1 Local Business. 
 
South: B-2 Community Business. 
 
East: R-1E One Family Residential and B-1 Local Business. 
 
West: O-1 Low Rise Office and B-3 General Business. 
 



 3

ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 

 
Retail establishments to service the needs of the highway traveler including 
such facilities as:  drug stores, convenience food stores, gift shops, and 
restaurants other than those of the drive-in or open front store type. 

 
Bus or transit passenger stations, taxicab offices and dispatching centers, 
and emergency vehicle or ambulance facilities.  Sleeping accommodations 
may be provided in conjunction with ambulance facilities. 

 
 Parking garages and off-street parking areas. 
 
 New and used automobile salesroom, showroom or office. 
 
 Sales, showrooms, and incidental repairs of recreational vehicles. 
 

Banks, savings and loan associations, and credit unions which may consist 
solely of drive-up facilities. 

 
 Public utility buildings and sub-stations. 
 

Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted 
uses. 
 

 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
  
Drive-up windows or service facilities, as an accessory to restaurants 
permitted within this district. 

 
Drive-up service facilities, as accessory to principal permitted uses within H-
S districts, apart from restaurants. 

 
Outside seating of twenty (20) seats or less for restaurants, or other food 
service establishments. 

 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 

Automobile service stations for the sale of engine fuels, oil, and minor 
accessories only, and where no repair work is done, other than incidental 
service, but not including, steam cleaning, undercoating, vehicle body repair, 
painting, tire recapping, engine rebuilding, auto dismantling, upholstering, 



 4

auto glass work and other such activities whose external effects could 
adversely extend beyond the property lines.  

 
Auto washes where engine fuels are sold as a significant part of the 
operation.   

 
Auto washes, not including the sale of engine fuels, when the entire 
operation is completely enclosed within a building or structure. 

 
Uses, other than those specified in Section 23.20.06, wherein drive-up 
service facilities are the sole use of the property. 

 
 Business in the character of a drive-in restaurant. 
 
 Motel or hotel. 
 

Outdoor sales space for exclusive sale or lease of new or second hand 
automobiles, trucks, mobile homes, trailers, or recreational vehicles. 

 
Automobile repair garages, provided all activities are conducted within a 
completely enclosed building.   

 
Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or 
other food service establishments. 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts both Livernois and Maple Roads.  The abutting alley to the east 
is in the process of being vacated.  The alley provides vehicular access to the 
parking area north of the building to the east.   
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other 
utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features 
located on the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Non-Center Commercial.  
The Non-Center Commercial designation has a Primary Correlation with the B-3 
General Business Zoning District and a Secondary Correlation with the H-S 
Highway Service Zoning District.  The rezoning application is therefore consistent 
with the City of Troy Future Land Use Plan. 



 5

Compliance with Location Standards 
The Location Standards for the H-S District in Article 23.40.01 of the Zoning 
Ordinance provides the following: 
 
 The H-S (Highway Service) District may be applied when the application of 

such a classification is consistent with the intent of the Master Land Use plan 
and policies related thereto, or with other land use policies of the City of Troy, 
and therefore, on a limited basis, may involve the following types of areas: 

  
 23.40.02 Areas indicated on the Master Land Use Plan for non-center 

commercial use. 
 
 23.40.03 Areas within broader areas generally designated for Light 

Industrial use, where the City has established, through 
rezoning, areas to provide commercial and service uses for the 
surrounding Light Industrial area. 

 
The application is consistent with the Location Standards for the H-S District. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Letter from applicant dated February 8, 2005. 
3. Minutes from March 8, 2005 Planning Commission meeting. 

 
 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 700) 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 700 CLARK SEC 27\CC Public Hearing 04 04 05.doc 
 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM B-1 TO H-S 



E MAPLE

M
A

IN

W MAPLE

CHOPIN

M
A

S
TIN

VERMONT

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

FORTHTON BIRCHWOOD

CLOVERIDGE

H
A

R
TS

H
O

R
N

B
E

E
C

H
 LA

N
E

S
H

E
P

H
E

R
D

S

±0 200 400 600100
Feet

REZONING REQUEST
FROM B-1 TO H-S

REZONING REQUEST
EXISTING CLARK STATION
FROM B-1 TO H-S
NE CORNER LIVERNOIS & MAPLE
SEC.  27  (Z-700) 









PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 700) – Existing Clark Gas 
Station, Northeast corner of Livernois and Maple Road (1602 Livernois), Section 
27 – From B-1 to H-S 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant noted that the site plan indicated that the 
proposed development would require a number of non-use variances from the 
Board of Zoning Appeals prior to receiving Preliminary Site Plan Approval.  He 
said prudent site planning suggests that consolidation of adjacent properties 
would be desirable, but the Planning Department cannot require the applicant to 
do so.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the Planning 
Department to approve the rezoning application.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked how the City could vacate the alleyway to the east if the 
vacation places the building to the east in non-compliance because of the loss of 
parking. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the vacation would dedicate access to insure that the property 
to the east would have access to the parking area to the north of the building.  He 
noted there is no indication on the site plan that the petitioner intends to utilize 
any of the alleyway for the gas station operation. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that one of the conditions when City Council adopted an 
authorizing resolution to vacate the alleyway was that there would be an 
easement of access retained.   
 
The petitioner, Mike Kozlowski of Caeruleum Environmental Design, 5603 
Telegraph Road, Dearborn Heights, was present.  Mr. Kozlowski said the site is 
just above the minimum size for a service station, and it is recognized that a 
number of variances would be required as well as utility and cross access 
easement challenges.  Mr. Kozlowski said he is prepared to address those items 
with site plan approval  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-03-034 
 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the northeast corner of 
Maple Road and Livernois Avenue, within Section 27, being approximately 
15,800 square feet in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 700 CLARK SEC 27\03-08-05 PC Minutes Excerpt_Draft.doc 
 
 



 1

March 28, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Doug Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
Pat Petitto, Senior Right-of-Way Representative 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 

 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM - PUBLIC HEARING - STREET VACATION 

APPLICATION (SV-182) – A section of alley located south of 
Chopin and north of Maple, Section 27 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Management recommends approval of the vacation request, and that the 
City retains an easement along the entire length of the parcel for utilities and 
access of the off street parking area.  A resolution was prepared, that reserves 
the easement and vacates the alley.   
 
At their June 16, 2003 meeting, City Council approved an authorizing resolution 
of the street vacation request, contingent upon an easement for continued use of 
full alley and until such time development of property directs recording of 
easement. 
 
The commercial business abutting the alley to the east does not have an on-site 
parking area.  A conversation with an employee of this business indicates that 
employees park in a two-space parking area west of the alley.  Access to this 
parking area is from the alley.  There is no room on the parcel for visitor parking.  
The parking area for the residence abutting the alley to the east uses the alley for 
parking access.  Vacation of the alley would eliminate access to off-street parking 
areas. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of applicant(s): 
Maple Road Properties, L.L.C. 
 
Location of property owned by applicant(s): 
The applicant owns 26 Chopin and 35 Maple, which abut the alley to the east.  

morrellca
Text Box
C-02



 2

Length and width of right-of-way: 
The section of alley proposed to be vacated is approximately 18 feet wide by 
240.54 feet long, between Chopin and Maple. 
 
Current use of adjacent parcels: 
North: Commercial and single family residential uses.  
 
South:  Subway restaurant. 
 
East: Commercial and single family residential uses.  
 
West: Commercial.  
 
Zoning classification of adjacent parcels: 
North: B-1 Local Business and R-1E One Family Residential.   
 
South: B-2 Community Business. 
 
East: B-1 Local Business and R-1E One Family Residential.   
 
West:  B-1 Local Business. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Reason for street vacation (as stated on the Street/Alley Vacation Application): 
The application states that it is required “to acquire unused alley for 
development”. 
 
Impact on access to existing lots or buildings (including emergency service 
vehicles):  
The existing building to the east of the alley needs the alley to access their off-
street parking area.   
 
Existing utilities located within the right-of-way: 
There are no City sewer, storm or water easements located within the right-of-
way. 
 
Future need for easements within the right-of-way: 
The City does not have a need for easements within the right-of-way.  There may 
be utilities other than City utilities that require easement retention. 



 3

Proposed ownership of vacated street/alley: 
The eastern 9 feet of the alley would revert to the applicant, who owns both 
abutting lots east of the alley.  The western 9 feet would revert to the abutting lot 
owners west of the alley. 
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The area is designated on the Future Land Use Plan as Non-Center Commercial. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Resolution from June 16, 2003 City Council meeting. 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SV 182 
 
 
G:\STREET VACATION\SV 182 Alley btwn Chopin & Maple Sec 27\Final Alley Vacation 03 21 05.doc 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 















CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 21, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, March 21, 2005, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Pro Tem Beltramini called the Meeting to order at 7:32 PM. 

Pastor Jim Loller – First Baptist Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the 
Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling (Absent) 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield (Absent) 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine  

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Mayor Schilling and Council Member Broomfield 
 
Resolution #2005-03-122 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Mayor Schilling’s absence at the Regular City Council and Closed Session 
meetings of March 21, 2005 is EXCUSED due to illness and that Council Member Broomfield’s 
absence at the Regular City Council and Closed Session meetings of March 21, 2005 is 
EXCUSED due to being out of the county. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) Presentation by Dr. Janet Jopke of Troy School District – Millage Renewal  
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1  No Public Hearings 
 

morrellca
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 21, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2005-03-123 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item E-8 which shall be considered after Consent Agenda (E) 
items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2005-03-123-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 7, 2005 at 7:30 PM be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Proposed 
 
E-4  Standard Purchasing Resolution 9:  Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Membership Renewals Over $10,000.00 – 2004-05 Michigan Municipal 
League Membership Renewal 

 
Resolution #2005-03-123-E-4  
 
RESOLVED, That approval is GRANTED to pay the 2004/05 Michigan Municipal League 
membership fee covering the time period of May 1, 2005 through April 30, 2006 in the amount 
of $12,709.00. 
 
E-5  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award - Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Printing/Distribution of Water & Sewer Bills 
 
Resolution #2005-03-123-E-5  
 
RESOLVED, That a one (1) year contract to provide Laser Printing and Distribution of the City 
of Troy Water and Sewer Bills, with an option to renew for three (3) additional one (1) year 
periods is hereby AWARDED to the lowest acceptable bidder meeting specifications, 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 21, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

Automated Computer Methods, Inc. of McHenry, IL, for an estimated cost of $11,616.00 per 
year, plus the actual cost of first class postage, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened March 2, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting, with a contract expiration of April 30, 2006. 
 
E-6  Acceptance of Four (4) Permanent Storm Drain/Sewer Easements for the 

Louis/Troy Street Rear Yard Drain Project – Section 22 
 
Resolution #2005-03-123-E-6  
 
RESOLVED, That the four (4) Permanent Easements from property owners Rahul Alawani and 
Smita Khedkar, having Sidwell #88-20-22-352-019; Shailesh A. and Manisha S. Patel, having 
Sidwell #88-20-22-352-020; Feng Qing and Xiu Yan, having Sidwell #88-20-22-352-021; and 
Amy Tang, having Sidwell #88-20-22-352-024, are hereby ACCEPTED for the construction, 
operation, maintenance and repair of storm drain/sewer; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7  Private Agreement for Northfield & Wattles Property Splits – Project No. 04.942.3 
 
Resolution #2005-03-123-E-7  
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Michael Agnetti, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of sanitary sewer, water main, storm sewer and soil erosion on the site and in the 
adjacent right-of-way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidders - 

Ammunition 
 
Resolution #2005-03-123-E-9  
 
RESOLVED, That one (1) year contacts to furnish requirements of ammunition with an option to 
renew for one (1) additional year, are hereby AWARDED to the lowest acceptable bidders, TJ 
Conevera’s, Inc. of Rockford, IL and Michigan Ammo Co, Inc. of Ecorse, MI, for an estimated 
annual cost of $21,125.00 and $49,000.00 respectively, at unit prices contained in the bid 
tabulation opened on February 16, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-10  Acceptance of One (1) Permanent Water Main Easement and One (1) Temporary 

Construction Permit for the Troy Court Water Main Project #01.502.5 – Section 34 
 
Resolution #2005-03-123-E-10  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 21, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

RESOLVED, That the One (1) Permanent Water Main Easement from property owner R.A.G., 
INC., having Sidwell #88-20-34-154-027, with a consideration of $700.00 and the one (1) 
Temporary Construction Easement from Metro Realty Holding, having Sidwell #88-20-34-152-
025, with a consideration of $500.00, are hereby ACCEPTED, and payment of the stated 
consideration is APPROVED, for the construction, operation, maintenance and repair of the 
Troy Court Water Main improvement project; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-11  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Initial Issue Police Uniforms and Equipment  
 
Resolution #2005-03-123-E-11  
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to supply two-year requirements of initial issue police uniforms 
and equipment for newly hired Police Department uniformed employees, with an option to 
renew for two (2) one (1) year periods is hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting 
specifications, Metropolitan Uniform Company, 438 Macomb St., Detroit, MI  48226-2383 at an 
estimated total cost of $1,620.00 per employee, at unit prices contained on the attached bid 
tabulation dated February 25, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is estimated at ten (10) new officers each year; 
however, the number may increase or decrease depending upon the need for additional 
employees. 
 
E-12  Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland 

County 
 
Resolution #2005-03-123-E-12  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council hereby AUTHORIZES renewal of the City of Troy's 
membership in the Traffic Improvement Association, at a cost to the City of $26,500.00.  Funds 
are available in the 2003-2004 Traffic Engineering budget, Account No. 446.7958. 
 
E-13  Troy Racquet Club Rates 
 
Resolution #2005-03-123-E-13  
 
RESOLVED, That the 2005-2006 rates for membership and court time for Troy Racquet Club 
are hereby APPROVED as stated in the report from the Parks and Recreation Department 
dated March 7, 2005; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to and made a part of the original 
Minutes of this meeting.   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 21, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
 
E-8  Summer Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County 

(R.C.O.C.) 
 
Resolution #2005-03-124  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Summer Maintenance Agreement between the Board of County Road 
Commissioners of the County of Oakland and the City of Troy, which becomes effective on April 
1, 2005, with payment by the Road Commission for Oakland County to the City of Troy in the 
amount of $34,389.01, is hereby APPROVED, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED 
TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: None; b) City 
Council Appointments: None 

 
F-2 Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Landscape 

Maintenance Services 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, On April 8, 2002, a three-year contract with an option to renew for two (2) 
additional one-year periods to provide upgraded landscape maintenance services for the Troy 
Civic Center and Downtown Development Authority was awarded to Torre & Bruglio, the 
highest scoring bidder as a result of a best value process (Resolution #2002-04-213); and 
 
WHEREAS, Torre & Bruglio has agreed to exercise the first of two (2)  one (1) year options to 
renew under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the 2004 season. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby 
EXERCISED with Torre & Bruglio to provide upgraded landscape maintenance services for an 
estimated cost of $209,014.00, at unit prices contained on the tabulation opened January 25, 
2002, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  In addition, 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 21, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

approval is GRANTED to purchase annual flowers for the medians on Big Beaver from I-75 to 
Rochester Road and on Rochester Road medians adjoining Big Beaver Road for an estimated 
cost of $29,764.00.   
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-03-125 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by removing the appropriation for the planting 
of flowers along the entire Big Beaver Corridor and DIRECT City Administration to send a 
proposal for the planting of annuals out for bid. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
No: Lambert, Stine, Beltramini  
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution 
 
Resolution #2005-03-126 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, On April 8, 2002, a three-year contract with an option to renew for two (2) 
additional one-year periods to provide upgraded landscape maintenance services for the Troy 
Civic Center and Downtown Development Authority was awarded to Torre & Bruglio, the 
highest scoring bidder as a result of a best value process (Resolution #2002-04-213); and 
 
WHEREAS, Torre & Bruglio has agreed to exercise the first of two (2) one (1) year options to 
renew under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the 2004 season. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby 
EXERCISED with Torre & Bruglio to provide upgraded landscape maintenance services for an 
estimated cost of $209,014.00, at unit prices contained on the tabulation opened January 25, 
2002, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  In addition, 
approval is GRANTED to purchase annual flowers for the medians on Big Beaver from I-75 to 
Rochester Road and on Rochester Road medians adjoining Big Beaver Road for an estimated 
cost of $29,764.00.   
 
Yes: Stine, Beltramini, Lambert    
No: Eisenbacher, Howrylak 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 21, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

F-3 Bid Waiver – Resale Merchandise for Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf 
Courses 

 
Resolution #2005-03-127 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, The golf division of the Parks and Recreation department has expanded their 
operation to include the pro shop at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course; and 
 
WHEREAS, The golf division stocks merchandise for resale at both Sanctuary Lake and Sylvan 
Glen golf courses; and 
 
WHEREAS, The manufacturers of golf products have agreed to sell the City merchandise for 
resale at wholesale prices. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED 
and contracts to purchase merchandise for resale directly from the manufacturers at wholesale 
prices is hereby APPROVED to Titleist, Footjoy and Nike Golf, not to exceed $20,000.00 per 
manufacturer per fiscal year. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  
 
F-4 Resolution Opposing Elimination of the Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) Program 
 
Resolution #2005-03-128 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program was enacted and 
signed into law by President Gerald Ford as the centerpiece of the Housing and Community 
Development Act of 1974; and 
 
WHEREAS, The CDBG program has as its primary objective "…the development of viable 
urban communities, by providing decent housing, a suitable living environment and expanding 
economic opportunities, principally for persons of low and moderate income"; and 
 
WHEREAS, The CDBG program has considerable flexibility to allow communities to carry out 
activities that are tailored to their unique affordable housing, public service and neighborhood 
revitalization needs; and 
 
WHEREAS, Throughout its 30-year history, the CDBG program has developed a strong 
partnership among the federal, state and local governments, business and the non-profit sector 
which carries out activities that improve the lives and neighborhoods of low and moderate 
income families; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 21, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

WHEREAS, This community receives a formula share of CDBG funds through the Oakland 
County, Michigan urban county CDBG program and our residents participate in the Oakland 
County CDBG Home Improvement and Housing Counseling programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, This community uses annual CDBG funds in the amount of $199,253.00 to benefit 
our low and moderate income residents by funding installation of storm drains and catch basins 
to relieve localized flooding, pay street improvement special assessments, pay critical special 
assessments to install sanitary sewers upon failure of their septic systems, and assist low and 
moderate income senior citizen and disabled homeowners each year with their yard 
maintenance and snow and ice removal.  
 
WHEREAS, President Bush has proposed the elimination of the CDBG program in his fiscal 
year 2006 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Should such a proposal be enacted, it would severely diminish our community's 
capacity to address the necessary housing and public service needs of our low and moderate 
income residents and to revitalize our neighborhoods, public facilities and infrastructures for 
their benefit. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy hereby calls on the Congress to 
PRESERVE the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program within the Department 
of Housing and Urban Development and provide a FY2006 funding of at least $4.7 billion 
overall, with no less than $4.35 billion in formula funding. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That copies of this resolution be CONVEYED to the appropriate 
elected and appointed officials of the Federal, State and Local governments and national 
organizations. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  
 
F-5 Bid Waiver – One-Year Requirements of Asphalt Paving Materials for the Public 

Works Department 
 
Resolution #2005-03-129 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, The Public Works department of the City of Troy routinely performs seasonal street 
maintenance activities on local and major roads; and 
 
WHEREAS, The suppliers of the hot asphalt material for road repairs need to be within close 
proximity of Troy city limits; and 
 
WHEREAS, Only two known suppliers meet the criteria for plant location in order for material to 
be usable according to Michigan Department of State Highway Standards. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 21, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED 
and one-year contracts to purchase asphalt paving materials from Ajax Materials Corporation of 
Rochester Hills as primary supplier of hot asphalt, and Barrett Paving Materials Inc. of Troy for 
Item 6.) Tack Coat, at unit prices as detailed in Appendix I; a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City is AUTHORIZED to use reciprocity between Ajax 
Materials and Barrett Paving in the event of a plant closing, inability to meet delivery times or 
supply material as specified. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  
 
F-6 Approval of Purchase Agreement for Right-of-Way for Big Beaver Road 

Improvements – Rochester to Dequindre Project No. 01.105.5 – TBB Associates, 
L.L.C. Sidwell #88-20-25-229-028 

 
Resolution #2005-03-130 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase between TBB Associates, L.L.C., and the City of 
Troy, having Sidwell #88-20-25-229-028 for the acquisition of right-of-way from the property at 
2966 East Big Beaver Road, is hereby APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That authorization is hereby GRANTED to purchase the right-of-
way in the Agreement referenced above in the amount of $15,000.00, plus closing costs. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  
 
F-7 Increases to Building Permit Fees 
 
Resolution #2005-03-131 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the revisions to the permit fee schedule, as indicated in the attached 
memorandum are hereby ADOPTED; said fee revisions shall apply to permit applications 
submitted after May 1, 2005. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 21, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

F-8 Appointment of a Temporary One-Time Voting Delegate - SEMCOG Meeting  
 
Resolution #2005-03-132 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That David Lambert is hereby DESIGNATED as a temporary one-time voting 
delegate and Doug Smith is hereby DESIGNATED as a temporary one-time voting alternate 
delegate for the City of Troy to serve on the Southeast Michigan Council of Governments 
(SEMCOG) General Assembly with terms ending on April, 1, 2005, at which time the 
designation of delegate and alternate will return to Robin Beltramini and Mark Miller 
respectively. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  
 
F-9 Approval of Purchase Agreement for Acquisition of Property Adjacent to Historic 

Green – Danny E. Lee and Diane M. Lee – Sidwell #88-20-16-478-026 
 
Resolution #2005-03-133 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, The Board of Directors of the Troy Historical Society at a special meeting held 
March 17, 2005 approved the following resolution: 
 
  Be it resolved, That the Troy Historical Society agrees to pay for the 
  acquisition by the City of Troy of the property adjacent to the Historic  
  Green identified as Danny E. Lee and Diane M. Lee #88-20-16-478-026 

 for $290,000.00.  The Historical Society agrees to: 
 

a)  Reimburse the City of Troy for a deposit of $43,500.00 (15%)  
 upon receipt of an invoice. 
 

b)  In ten months or upon completion of the closing, whichever  
 comes later, The Troy Historical Society will reimburse the  
 City of Troy $150,000.00 for the purchase of the property. 
 

c)   The remaining balance of $96,500.00 will be paid to the City of Troy upon 
mutual agreement between the City of Troy and the Troy Historical Society. 
 

WHEREAS, The $96,500.00 will be appropriated from the Barn Fund and it is the intent of the 
Troy Historical Society to reimburse the Barn Fund for the remaining balance of $96,500.00 
within a five-year period. 
 
WHEREAS, This property will be utilized for the expansion of the Historic Green; and 
 
WHEREAS, The closing will occur on or before January 15, 2006. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 21, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

WHEREAS, The land and house will become the property of the City of Troy. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase between Danny E. 
Lee and Diane M. Lee, and the City of Troy, having Sidwell #88-20-16-478-026 for the 
acquisition of their property at 109 Lange, is hereby APPROVED in the amount of $290,000.00, 
plus closing costs. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:57 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:11 PM. 
 
 
F-10 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Process Award – Audit Services 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy desires to utilize the services of a new auditor 
after fourteen years with Doeren Mayhew. 
 
RESOLVED, That a three (3) year contract to provide audit services for years 2005, 2006 and 
2007 with an option to renew for three (3) additional years is hereby AWARDED to the 
Rehmann Group as a result of the Best Value process at an estimated cost of $63,820.00, as 
outlined in the tabulation opened February 4, 2005; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Lambert   
 
RESOLVED, That Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Process Award – Audit 
Services be POSTPONED until the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, April 
4, 2005. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Proposed Postponement Resolution 
 
Resolution #2005-03-134 
Moved by Howrylak 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 21, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to Postpone be AMENDED by STRIKING “April 4, 2005” and 
INSERTING “April 18, 2005”. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone as Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-03-135 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Lambert   
 
RESOLVED, That Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Process Award – Audit 
Services be POSTPONED until the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, April 
18, 2005. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield 
 
F-11 Labor Attorney Fees and Agreement 
 
Resolution #2005-03-136 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, Craig Lange, Roumell, Lange and Cholack has provided the City of Troy with 
excellent outside labor counsel for many years and has requested a rate increase from $145.00 
to $155.00 per hour; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Attorney has determined that the rate charged by Lange & Cholack is 
reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, It is the determination of the City Manager and City Council of the City of Troy that 
no benefit would result to the City to solicit sealed proposals;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Agreement for Labor Council Services, and 
rate charge of $155.00 per hour requested by Craig Lange, Roumell, Lange & Cholack, is 
hereby APPROVED effective March 1, 2005. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 21, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

F-12 Amendments to Addendum to Sanctuary Lake Agreement 
 
Resolution #2005-03-137 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the amendments to Addendum to 
Sanctuary Lake Agreement as submitted by the City Attorney.  
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Northeast Corner of Livernois and Maple Road, Section 27 – B-1 to H-S (Z-700) – April 

4, 2005 
Noted and Filed 

 
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Designation of Limited Public Forums 

Noted and Filed 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  Authorization for Mayor to Attend National League of Cities 2005 – Congress of 

Cities Program Committee 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business, Article 15 I. 
 
Resolution #2005-03-138 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Lambert   
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 
Order of Business, Article 15-I. Council Comments and AUTHORIZE City Council to discuss 
and take action on agenda item, “Authorization for Mayor to Attend National League of Cities 
2005 – Congress of Cities Program Committee.” 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 21, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

 
Vote on Resolution to Authorize Mayor to Attend National League of Cities 2005 – 
Congress of Cities Program Committee 
 
Resolution #2005-03-139 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor is AUTHORIZED to attend the National League of Cities 2005 
Congress of Cities Program Committee meeting in Charlotte, North Carolina on April 15 and 16, 
2005 in accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Traffic Committee/Final – November 17, 2004 
b) Parks & Recreation Advisory Board/Final – January 13, 2005  
c) Traffic Committee/Final – January 19, 2005 
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – February 2, 2005 
e) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – February 2, 2005 
f) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – February 3, 2005 
g) Library Board/Final – February 4, 2005  
h) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – February 9, 2005 
i) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – February 15, 2005   
j) Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Draft – February 22, 2005  
k) Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Final – February 22, 2005 
l) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – March 3, 2005 
m) Library Board/Draft – March 10, 2005 
n) Parks & Recreation Advisory Board/Draft – March 10, 2005 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Monthly Financial Report – February 28, 2005 

Noted and Filed  
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter from Terence B. Desmond to Sergeant James Clark Commending the Troy Police 

Department 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
a) Proposed Resolution from Royal Oak Re: Request for MDOT to Consider Further 

Reconfigurations of I-75 Ramp at Eleven Mile Road 
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 21, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

J-5  Calendar 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-6  DDA Financing, Letter from the Department of Treasury to Victor Lenivov 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-7  Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Action 

Noted and Filed 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session 
 
Resolution #2005-02-140 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e), COBASYS, LLC. V. City of Troy – Pending Litigation. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling, Broomfield  
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:58 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 10:29 PM. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:30 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Robin E. Beltramini, Mayor Pro Tem 
  

 
 Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 

City Clerk 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 28, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, March 28, 2005, at the Fire and 
Police Training Facility, 4850 John R-Troy, Michigan 48085. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting 
to order at 7:00 PM. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine  

1. Consideration of the National Day of Prayer 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy hereby GRANTS the request by Lori Wagner, National Day 
of Prayer Coordinator, to use the Veteran’s Plaza and/or the area on the lawn in front of City 
Hall for the purpose of holding a National Day of Prayer from 12:00 PM until 1:00 PM on 
Thursday, May 5, 2005. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Council Rules  #16 – Members of the Public & Visitors 
 
Resolution #2005-03-141 
Moved by Stine    
Seconded by Beltramini    
 
RESOLVED, That Council Rules #16, Members of the Public & Visitors, be SUSPENDED and 
that Public Comment be reduced from five minutes to two minutes at the request of the Chair 
and by majority vote of City Council members elect. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Schilling   
 
RESOLVED, That “Consideration of National Day of Prayer” be POSTPONED until the Regular 
City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, April 4, 2005. 
 

morrellca
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 28, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Postponement  
 
Resolution #2005-03-142 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to Postpone be AMENDED by STRIKING “POSTPONED until 
the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, April 4, 2005’ and INSERTING 
“TABLED for three (3) hours”. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine  
No: Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-03-143 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Schilling   
 
RESOLVED, That Consideration of National Day of Prayer be TABLED for three (3) hours. 
 
Yes:  Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Schilling  
No: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 7:42 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 10:46 PM 
 
Resolution to Amend by Substitution 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING it in its entirety and the following 
INSERTED, “RESOLVED, That the City of Troy AUTHORIZES the National Day of Prayer Task 
Force to hold a National Day of Prayer-Christian observance from 11:00 AM to 1:00 PM and 
that the Interfaith Group shall CONDUCT a one (1) hour prayer service open to all faith 
communities on Thursday, May 5, 2005 at the designated location.” 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Proposed Substitute Resolution - #1 
 
Resolution #2005-03-144 
Moved by Broomfield    
Seconded by Stine     



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 28, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

RESOLVED, That the Resolution to Amend by Substitution be AMENDED by STRIKING “11:00 
AM to 1:00 PM” and INSERTING, “12:00 PM to 1:00 PM“ and further AMENDED by STRIKING 
“one (1) hour “ and INSERTING, “from 11:00 AM to 12:00 PM” after “service”. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Substituted Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-03-145 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy AUTHORIZES the National Day of Prayer Task Force to 
hold a National Day of Prayer-Christian observance from 12:00 PM to 1:00 PM and that the 
Interfaith Group shall CONDUCT a service from 11:00 AM to 12:00 PM open to all faith 
communities on Thursday, May 5, 2005 at the designated location. 
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
No: Howrylak, Lambert  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Substituted Resolution 
 
Resolution #2005-03-146 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to Amend Substituted Resolution be AMENDED by 
INSERTING, “in 2005” BEFORE “the City of Troy AUTHORIZES” and further AMENDED by 
STRIKING, “open to all faith communities at the designated location” and INSERTING, at 
Veteran’s Plaza”. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Substituted Resolution as Amended  
 
Resolution #2005-03-147 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That in 2005, the City of Troy AUTHORIZES the National Day of Prayer Task 
Force to hold a National Day of Prayer-Christian observance from 12:00 PM to 1:00 PM and 
that the Interfaith Group shall CONDUCT a service from 11:00 AM to 12:00 PM on Thursday, 
May 5, 2005 at Veteran’s Plaza. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 28, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 11:50 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
  

 
 Barbara A. Holmes, CMC 

Deputy City Clerk 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft March 28, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, March 28, 2005, at the Fire and 
Police Training Facility, 4850 John R–Troy, Michigan 48085. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting 
to order at 7:40 PM. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine  

 

Mayor Schilling ADJOURNED the meeting at 7:44 PM as there was no business to conduct. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
  

 
 Laura A. Fitzpatrick 

Assistant to the City Manager 
 

morrellca
Text Box
E-02



PROCLAMATION  
CULTURAL DIVERSITY MONTH 

APRIL 9 – MAY 7, 2005 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy is proud of the numerous cultures and faiths woven through the rich fabric of 
our City; and 
 
WHEREAS, The strength of our nation and our City is in our diversity as much as our unity and all people, 
no matter what our heritage, customs or native language, can benefit and learn from one another; and   
 
WHEREAS, Our community is blessed with a diverse population speaking a total of 83 different languages 
and celebrating their spirituality at 58 Places of Worship; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy’s Ethnic Issues Advisory Board was created in 2003 with a mission to 
promote an environment enriched by harmonious relationships and open communication within our 
multicultural community through education and cultural exchange; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Ethnic Issues Advisory Board will promote awareness and acceptance of diversity in our 
community and work to embrace our rich and varied cultural community through programs, workshops, 
networking resources, dialogues and other efforts; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Sights & Sounds series has provided citizens the opportunity to learn and explore the 
cultures of their neighbors and friends promoting a greater understanding and appreciation of our 
differences and similarities and on April 9 the Ethnic Issues Advisory Board will sponsor Sights and 
Sounds of the World at the Troy Community Center from 12 – 4 p.m.; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Community Coalition sponsors an annual Faith Community Prayer Breakfast on 
Friday, May 6TH at St. Nicholas Social Hall and encourages all residents to attend this nondenominational 
event to bring together all people of different backgrounds and affiliations; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That April 9 – May 7, 2005 is hereby proclaimed as Cultural 
Diversity Month in the City of Troy. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy urges all citizens to observe this week by joining 
members of all cultures and faiths to celebrate and enhance the understanding and appreciation for the 
diversity of our citizens. 
 
Signed this 4th day of April 2005 

 

morrellca
Text Box
E-03a



morrellca
Text Box
E-04



 
  March 18, 2005 
 
 
To:               John Szerlag, City Manager  
 
 
From:           Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject:   Resolution Authorizing Request for Reimbursement: Oakland County West 

Nile Virus Fund.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Parks and Recreation Department recommends the City Council approve the request 
to seek reimbursement in the amount of $30,057.91 from Oakland County’s West Nile 
Virus Fund for expenditures incurred while instituting proactive public health measures to 
reduce the population of infected mosquitoes in the environment.   
 
BACKGROUND 
The County of Oakland has designated funds for the creation of a West Nile Virus Fund to 
be distributed to assist cities in reducing the population of infected mosquitoes in the 
environment.  
 
The portion of the annual West Nile Virus fund appropriation available upon proper 
application to each Oakland County City has been established by a formula based on total 
population (75%) and total square miles (25%).  Based on this formula, the City of Troy is 
eligible for $30,057.91. 
 
The request for reimbursement of eligible expenses must be accompanied by a resolution 
adopted by the City’s legislative board or council authorizing the reimbursement request.  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Ron Hynd, Landscape Analyst 

morrellca
Text Box
E-05



morrellca
Text Box
E-06



























morrellca
Text Box
E-07





















































March 28, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:      John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager / Finance and Administration 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 

        
SUBJECT:     Agenda Item – SBC Dedicated Internet Service 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management recommends executing a new contract with SBC for dedicated 
Internet service. The monthly fee would be $1,224.00 per month for a term of 3 years.  
This will reduce our current monthly fee from $1,748.00 per month, resulting in a 
savings of $524.00 per month or $6,288.00 annually.   
 
BACKGROUND 
The City currently utilizes SBC for Internet access via (2) T1 communication lines.  This 
facilitates Internet access for City employees, and also offers access to the City’s 
website and Parks and Recreation program registration.  Recently the City signed a 
new State of Michigan based contract for all local service, intra-lata, line and circuit 
charges with SBC.   As a result, SBC has also offered to reduce our current monthly 
dedicated Internet service fees from $1,748.00 to $1,224.00, although this does not fall 
under State of Michigan pricing.  A survey of two other providers that are available 
through Micta (competitively bid) contracts confirms that this pricing is competitive.   
 
Vendor Monthly Pricing (3-years for 2-T1s or 3.0m bps) 
Qwest $1,504  (plus $50 installation) 
Merit MichNet $1,430  (includes 1,210 for Internet plus 220 for SBC T1 service) 

plus installation 
SBC $1,224 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
Oakland County has an ambitious program to go wireless by 2006.  The intent is for 
every business and resident in the County to have free basic level wireless Internet 
access.  Even though Troy could participate in this project, it does not impact the need 
for dedicated Internet services to City Hall to host the City’s website, allow on-line 
registration of Parks and Recreation programs, and serve as a backup system for the 
County as part of the E-Team initiative.  Free or reduced cost wireless Internet access 
would be beneficial for field personnel to communicate back to the City network, and will 
be evaluated for this purpose as it becomes available. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are budgeted in the Information Technology account #258.7802.070.  

morrellca
Text Box
E-08



March 29, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM – Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Water 

main Easement and a Regrading and Temporary Construction 
Permit for the Troy Court Water Main Project #01.502.5–Section 34 

 
 
In connection with the Troy Court water main improvement project affecting 
properties located on Elmwood Street and Troy Court in Section 34, the Real 
Estate and Development Department has received a Permanent Water main 
Easement and a Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit from the 
property owner of a vacant parcel having Sidwell #88-20-34-154-019. 
 

OWNER ADDRESS SIDWELL # EASEMENT TYPE CONSIDERATION
Reliant Management 
Corporation 

vacant Troy Court 88-20-34-154-019 Permanent $3,000.00 

Reliant Management 
Corporation 

vacant Troy Court 88-20-34-154-019 Temporary $500.00 

 
In order for the Water Department to proceed with the Troy Court water main 
improvement project, we recommend that City Council accept the attached 
easement and permit and authorize the payment of the agreed amount as 
shown. 
 
Funds are available in the Water Fund. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 
 

morrellca
Text Box
E-09



TROY COURT WATERMAIN 
PROJECT #01.502.5 

 

 

Vacant Parcel Troy Court 
Sidwell #88-20-34-154-019 















  

March 28, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 

Pat Petitto, Senior Right-of-Way Representative 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 

 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM - FINAL STREET VACATION APPLICATION (SV-

173) – A portion of Hanover Street, from Leetonia Street extending 
north between lots 85 and 86 of McCormick & Lawrence Little 
Farms Subdivision 5, north of Wattles Road and east of Livernois, 
Section 15 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Council approved an authorizing resolution for the street vacation on July 22, 
2002, which stated that final action on the street vacation request shall be taken 
by the City Council, after the following actions: 
 

1. Receipt of the above noted right-of-way and/or easement conveyances 
from the owners of the applicable lots. 

2. Determination by the City Engineer of the nature and extent of 
easements to be retained over the subject street right-of-way, based in 
part on input or responses from the applicable utility companies. 

 
The City Engineer has reviewed the request and recommends reserving a 20-
foot wide public utility, drainage and walkway easement, being 10 feet on either 
side of the centerline of the above-referenced Hanover Street proposed to be 
vacated. 
 
City Management recommends approval of the final street vacation request 
subject to the reservation of a 20-foot wide right-of-way for public utilities and 
public walkway. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of applicant(s): 
Kathy and Robert Niedzwiecki and the Judson Center. 
  
Location of property owned by applicant(s): 
The applicants own the lots abutting Hanover Street on both sides.  The 
Niedzwiecki’s own lot 85 to the west and the Judson Center owns lot 86 (179 
Leetonia) to the east.  

morrellca
Text Box
E-10



  

Length and width of right-of-way: 
The section of Hanover Street proposed to be vacated is 50 feet wide and    
217.05 feet in length.  This portion of the Hanover Street right-of-way is 
unimproved.   
 
Current use of adjacent parcels: 
Hanover Street runs through a single family residential neighborhood.  Lot 85 to 
the west is a vacant lot.  The Judson Center, a group home facility offering 
residential programs for children, sits on lot 86 to the west (179 Leetonia Street). 
 
Zoning classification of adjacent parcels:  
The entire neighborhood is zoned R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Reason for street vacation (as stated on the Street/Alley Vacation Application): 
The application states that it is required for: “New construction Lot #85 and 
maintenance needed”. 
 
Impact on existing traffic patterns within the area: 
The Hanover Street right-of-way (platted Hudson Avenue) extends between 
Wattles Avenue and Randall Drive.  However, only the portion between Wattles 
Avenue and Crestfield Avenue is paved.  Presently the unpaved portions of 
Hanover Street are not utilized by vehicular traffic.   
 
Impact on access to existing lots or buildings (including emergency service 
vehicles):  
The unimproved section of Hanover Street does not provide vehicular access to 
any existing lots and does not impact access for emergency service vehicles.  
 
Existing utilities located within the right-of-way: 
There are no utilities located within this portion of the Hanover Street right-of-
way.  
 
Future need for easements within the right-of-way: 
Randall Drive is a signed bike route as indicated on the City of Troy Bike Route 
map.  The Hanover Street right-of-way extends from Wattles Road north to 
Randall Drive.  At Randall Drive, a 12 foot wide public walkway extends north 
between lot 232 (243 Randall Drive) and lot 233 (259 Randall Drive) to the 
Leonard Elementary School property.  There is an 8 foot wide paved path located 
within this easement, which runs from the sidewalk north to the edge of the 
school property.   
 
There is presently a sidewalk within the Hanover Street right-of-way, between 
Crestfield Avenue and Leetonia Avenue, approximately 365 feet in length.  There 
is also a section of sidewalk which runs south from Randall Drive toward Evaline 
Avenue, for a distance of approximately 112 feet.  The unimproved section of 



  

Hanover Street between Leetonia and Randall represents a gap in a 1,400 linear 
foot sidewalk system between Wattles Road and the school property.    
 
A bike path or sidewalk along the entire length of the Hanover Street right-of-way 
would provide a direct non-motorized connection from Wattles Road to the 
Leonard Elementary School property.  If the sidewalk were to be extended from 
the property line to the school, the link would improve safety and convenience for 
students walking to school from this neighborhood and from Wattles Road.  
Future completion of this project would be consistent with the intent of the City of 
Troy Transportation Plan. 
 
Proposed ownership of vacated street/alley: 
A future sidewalk would be placed in the center of a 20’ wide public walkway, to 
be located in the center of what is now the 50’ right-of-way.  The city will retain 
ownership of the walkway.  Each property owner will receive half of the lot, less 
the 10’ on each side of the center of the parcel which will be used for the public 
walkway. 
  
Future Land Use Designation: 
The entire neighborhood including the lots abutting the right-of-way are 
designated on the Future Land Use plan as Low Density Residential. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Letter to Planning Director from Civil Engineer, dated October 23, 

2003. 
3. City Council Authorizing resolution, dated July 22, 2002. 

 
 
 
cc: Kathy and Robert Niedzwiecki (petitioner) 
 The Judson Center (petitioner) 
 File/ SV 173 
 
 

 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
 
G:\STREET VACATION\SV 173 Hanover Street Sec 15\CC Final Street Vacation 03 21 05.doc 
 















 
 

March 22, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:   Mr. John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles Craft, Chief of Police 

Gary Mayer, Police Captain 
Thomas Gordon, Police Sergeant 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Application for new SDD and SDM licenses for Red Wagon Shoppe 
  
 
 
LUV SUN, INC., requests a new Specially Designated Distributor license, located at 1613 
Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, to be held in conjunction with proposed new 
Specially Designated Merchant license. 
 
LUV SUN, INC., requests a new Specially Designated Merchant license, located at 1613 
Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County.    
 
 
Present to answer questions from the committee was the owner, Larry Farida.  Mr. Farida 
explained that he wants to move his business, the Wine Cellar, which is currently located on the 
Clawson side of Maple, into Troy.  He will be moving into the former TCF Bank on the northwest 
corner of Maple and Livernois.  The former site of the store will become a Tim Horton’s coffee 
shop.  Mr. Farida also plans to change the name of the store to the “Red Wagon Shoppe”, and 
he will use the former banks vault as a temperature controlled room for his higher-priced wines. 
     
There are no disqualifying factors in Mr. Farida’s background, and the police department has no 
objection to this request.   
 
 
 
 
TJG/tjg 

morrellca
Text Box
E-11











LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, March 14, 
2005 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Chairman 
Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    James R. Peard 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Carolyn Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
   
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of February 14, 2005 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-004 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the February 14, 2005 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1.     MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL, INC. & WHP HOTEL OWNER-2A, L.L.C. (A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY), formerly known as Mar-Ty, 
L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), licensees of a 2004 B-Hotel 
licensed business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, 8 Bars and Official Permit 
(food), located at 200 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan, Oakland County, 
requests to transfer all membership interest in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A 
Delaware Limited Liability Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A 

Page 1 of 5 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

Delaware Limited Liability Company), wherein Marty-Mez, L.L.C. is dropped as 
sole member through the transfer of 100% of the General and Limited 
Partnership interests in PA Troy Hospitality Investors, L.P. to WHP Mezz 
Borrower 2, L.L.C., and the simultaneous dissolution of PA Troy Hospitality 
Invertors, L.P., and its wholly owner subsidiary Mar-Ty Mezz, L.L.C., thereby 
resulting in WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., being the sole member in WHP Hotel 
Owner-2A, L.L.C.   [MLCC REQ ID# 190498]  “Paper” change in ownership only 

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Brian Andrew, attorney for WHP 
Hotel Owner. 
 
Mr. Andrew stated that this paperwork transfer is to add Marriott International as a 
licensee of WHP Hotel Owner, a large hotel holding company.   
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-005 
Moved by Bennett 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL, INC. & WHP HOTEL OWNER-2A, 
L.L.C. (A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY), formerly known as Mar-Ty, 
L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), licensees of a 2004 B-Hotel licensed 
business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, 8 Bars and Official Permit (food), located at 
200 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan, Oakland County, be allowed to transfer all 
membership interest in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability 
Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), 
wherein Marty-Mez, L.L.C. is dropped as sole member through the transfer of 100% of 
the General and Limited Partnership interests in PA Troy Hospitality Investors, L.P. to 
WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., and the simultaneous dissolution of PA Troy Hospitality 
Invertors, L.P., and its wholly owner subsidiary Mar-Ty Mezz, L.L.C., thereby resulting in 
WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., being the sole member in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. 
[MLCC REQ ID# 190498].  
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2.   LUV SUN, INC., requests a new Specially Designated Distributor license, located 

at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, to be held in conjunction 
with proposed new Specially Designated Merchant license.   [MLCC REQ ID# 
276918]  Red Wagon Shoppe 

 
         LUV SUN, INC., requests a new Specially Designated Merchant license, located 

at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County.   [MLCC REQ ID# 276917]  

Page 2 of 5 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

Present to answer questions from the Committee was Larry Farida.   
 
Before this agenda item was heard, Committee Chairperson, Max Ehlert, stated that he 
and Mr. Farida had a business relationship.  Thus, Mr. Ehlert elected to abstain from 
voting on this agenda item. 
 
Mr. Farida explained to the Committee that he owns the Wine Cellar in Clawson and 
intends to move his business across Maple Road into Troy (the former TCF Bank 
location).  He plans to request a variance to expand the building.  He will utilize the 
former bank vault as a temperature controlled room for his higher-priced wines. 
 
Sgt. Gordon stated that the City inspections had not yet been completed. 
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-006 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that LUV SUN, INC. be granted a new Specially Designated Distributor 
license, located at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, to be held in 
conjunction with proposed new Specially Designated Merchant license, subject to the 
approval of City inspections.  [MLCC REQ ID# 276918]. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Abstain: Ehlert 
Absent: None 
 
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-007 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Larry Farida. 
 
RESOLVED, that LUV SUN, INC. be granted a new Specially Designated Merchant 
license, located at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, subject to the 
approval of City inspections.   [MLCC REQ ID# 276917]. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Abstain: Ehlert 
Absent: None 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 5 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

3. TENT RESTAURANT OPERATIONS, INC., requests to transfer ownership of a 
2004 Class C license business, with Official Permit (food), and Sunday Sales, 
located at 1965 W. Maple Rd., Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County, from 
Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc.   “Paper” change for Bailey’s Pub and Grille 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was John Carlin, attorney for Fox & 
Hound of Michigan. 
 
Mr. Carlin explained to the Committee that this request was merely a paper transfer of 
ownership shares.   There will no be change in name or management.  
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-008 
Moved by Godlewski 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that TENT RESTAURANT OPERATIONS, INC., be allowed to transfer 
ownership of a 2004 Class C license business, with Official Permit (food), and Sunday 
Sales, located at 1965 W. Maple Rd., Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County, from 
Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc.  
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
4. BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., requests to transfer ownership of 2004 12 Months 

Resort Class C licensed business, located at 5460 Corporate, Troy, Michigan 
48098, in Oakland County, from Cooker Restaurant Corporation, issued under 
MCL 436.1531(2): minimum seating: 100.   [MLCC REQ ID# 267215]  Result of 
bankruptcy of Cooker’s restaurant 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was John Carlin, attorney for 
Cooker’s. 
 
This transfer will put Cooker’s liquor license in escrow.  Bank of America will then be 
able to sell the license in Oakland County at any location other than 5460 Corporate 
Drive.   
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-009 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Peard 
 
RESOLVED, that BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., be allowed to transfer ownership of 2004 
12 Months Resort Class C licensed business, located at 5460 Corporate, Troy, 
Michigan 48098, in Oakland County, from Cooker Restaurant Corporation, issued under 

Page 4 of 5 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

MCL 436.1531(2): minimum seating: 100.   [MLCC REQ ID# 267215] 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 

 
Sgt. Gordon stated that there were nine sale-to-minor violations on March 3 & 4, 2005.  
The following establishments received the violations: 
 

• Café Sushi   1933 West Maple Road 
• Champps Americana 301 West Big Beaver Road 
• Ashoka Indian Cuisine 3642 Rochester Road 
• Portabella Restaurant 2801 West Big Beaver Road 
• Mon Jin Lau   1515 East Maple Road 
• Maggiano’s   2089 West Big Beaver Road 
• Jumbo Buffet   1555 East Maple Road 
• Mayur Indian Cuisine 5113 Rochester Road 
• Corradi’s Sports Bar 1090 Rochester Road 
 

 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 

Page 5 of 5 



Liquor Control Commission 14
(3) "Professional account" means an account established for a person by a class C licensee or
tavern licensee whose major business is the sale of food, by which the licensee extends credit
to the person for not more than 30 days.
(4) "Residence" means the premises in which a person resides permanently.
(5) "Retailer" means a person licensed by the commission who sells to the consumer in
accordance with rules promulgated by the commission.
(6) "Sacramental wine" means wine containing not more than 24% of alcohol by volume which
is used for sacramental purposes.
(7) "Sale" includes the exchange, barter, traffic, furnishing, or giving away of alcoholic liquor. In
the case of a sale in which a shipment or delivery of alcoholic liquor is made by a common or
other carrier, the sale of the alcoholic liquor is considered to be made in the county within which
the delivery of the alcoholic liquor is made by that carrier to the consignee or his or her agent or
employee, and venue for the prosecution for that sale may be in the county or city where the
seller resides or from which the shipment is made or at the place of delivery.
(8) "School" includes buildings used for school purposes to provide instruction to children in
grades kindergarten through 12, when that instruction is provided by a public, private,
denominational, or parochial school, except those buildings used primarily for adult education or
college extension courses. School does not include a proprietary trade or occupational school.
(9) "Small wine maker" means a wine maker manufacturing or bottling not more than 50,000
gallons of wine in 1 calendar year.
(10) "Special license" means a contract between the commission and the special licensee
granting authority to that licensee to sell beer, wine, mixed spirit drink, or spirits. The license
shall be granted only to such persons and such organization and for such period of time as the
commission shall determine so long as the person or organization is able to demonstrate an
existence separate from an affiliated umbrella organization. If such an existence is
demonstrated, the commission shall not deny a special license solely by the applicant's
affiliation with an organization that is also eligible for a special license.
(11) "Specially designated distributor" means a person engaged in an established business
licensed by the commission to distribute spirits and mixed spirit drink in the original package for
the commission for consumption off the premises.
(12) "Specially designated merchant" means a person to whom the commission grants a
license to sell beer or wine, or both, at retail for consumption off the licensed premises.
(13) "Spirits" means a beverage that contains alcohol obtained by distillation, mixed with
potable water or other substances, or both, in solution, and includes wine containing an
alcoholic content of more than 21% by volume, except sacramental wine and mixed spirit drink.
(14) "State liquor store" means a store established by the commission under this act for the
sale of spirits in the original package for consumption off the premises.
(15) "Supplier of spirits" means a vendor of spirits, a manufacturer of spirits, or a primary
source of supply.
History: 1998, Act 58, Imd. Eff. Apr. 14, 1998.

436.1113 Definitions; T to W.
Sec. 113. (1) "Tavern" means any place licensed to sell at retail beer and wine for consumption
on the premises only.
(2) "Vehicle" means any means of transportation by land, by water, or by air.
(3) "Vendor" means a person licensed by the commission to sell alcoholic liquor.
(4) "Vendor of spirits" means a person selling spirits to the commission.

George Zielinski



Liquor Control Commission  13 
(3) "Professional account" means an account established for a person by a class C licensee or 
tavern licensee whose major business is the sale of food, by which the licensee extends credit 
to the person for not more than 30 days. 
(4) "Residence" means the premises in which a person resides permanently. 
(5) "Retailer" means a person licensed by the commission who sells to the consumer in 
accordance with rules promulgated by the commission. 
(6) "Sacramental wine" means wine containing not more than 24% of alcohol by volume which is 
used for sacramental purposes. 
(7) "Sale" includes the exchange, barter, traffic, furnishing, or giving away of alcoholic liquor. In 
the case of a sale in which a shipment or delivery of alcoholic liquor is made by a common or 
other carrier, the sale of the alcoholic liquor is considered to be made in the county within which 
the delivery of the alcoholic liquor is made by that carrier to the consignee or his or her agent or 
employee, and venue for the prosecution for that sale may be in the county or city where the 
seller resides or from which the shipment is made or at the place of delivery. 
(8) "School" includes buildings used for school purposes to provide instruction to children in 
grades kindergarten through 12, when that instruction is provided by a public, private, 
denominational, or parochial school, except those buildings used primarily for adult education or 
college extension courses. School does not include a proprietary trade or occupational school. 
(9) "Small wine maker" means a wine maker manufacturing or bottling not more than 50,000 
gallons of wine in 1 calendar year. 
(10) "Special license" means a contract between the commission and the special licensee 
granting authority to that licensee to sell beer, wine, mixed spirit drink, or spirits. The license shall 
be granted only to such persons and such organization and for such period of time as the 
commission shall determine so long as the person or organization is able to demonstrate an 
existence separate from an affiliated umbrella organization. If such an existence is 
demonstrated, the commission shall not deny a special license solely by the applicant's affiliation 
with an organization that is also eligible for a special license. 
(11) "Specially designated distributor" means a person engaged in an established business 
licensed by the commission to distribute spirits and mixed spirit drink in the original package for 
the commission for consumption off the premises. 
(12) "Specially designated merchant" means a person to whom the commission grants a license 
to sell beer or wine, or both, at retail for consumption off the licensed premises. 
(13) "Spirits" means a beverage that contains alcohol obtained by distillation, mixed with potable 
water or other substances, or both, in solution, and includes wine containing an alcoholic content 
of more than 21% by volume, except sacramental wine and mixed spirit drink. 
(14) "State liquor store" means a store established by the commission under this act for the sale 
of spirits in the original package for consumption off the premises. 
(15) "Supplier of spirits" means a vendor of spirits, a manufacturer of spirits, or a primary source 
of supply. 
History: 1998, Act 58, Imd. Eff. Apr. 14, 1998.  
 
436.1113 Definitions; T to W.  
Sec. 113. (1) "Tavern" means any place licensed to sell at retail beer and wine for consumption 
on the premises only. 
(2) "Vehicle" means any means of transportation by land, by water, or by air. 
(3) "Vendor" means a person licensed by the commission to sell alcoholic liquor. 
(4) "Vendor of spirits" means a person selling spirits to the commission. 



 
 

March 24, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:   Mr. John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles Craft, Chief of Police 

Gary Mayer, Police Captain 
Thomas Gordon, Police Sergeant 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Application to Transfer Ownership of a B-Hotel Liquor License - 
 Marriott International, Inc. (Troy Marriott) 
  
 
 
MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL, INC. & WHP HOTEL OWNER-2A, L.L.C. (A DELAWARE 
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited 
Liability Company), licensees of a 2004 B-Hotel licensed business with Dance-Entertainment 
Permit, 8 Bars and Official Permit (food), located at 200 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan, 
Oakland County, requests to transfer all membership interest in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A 
Delaware Limited Liability Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited 
Liability Company), wherein Marty-Mez, L.L.C. is dropped as sole member through the transfer 
of 100% of the General and Limited Partnership interests in PA Troy Hospitality Investors, L.P. 
to WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., and the simultaneous dissolution of PA Troy Hospitality 
Invertors, L.P., and its wholly owner subsidiary Mar-Ty Mezz, L.L.C., thereby resulting in WHP 
Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., being the sole member in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. 
 
The operators of the Troy Marriott hotel, WHP Hotel Owner, have requested to add Marriott 
International as a licensee.  The attorney representing the corporation, Brian Andrew, attended 
the March meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee and explained that this request is a “paper 
transfer” as there will be no change in who actually owns and operates the hotel.  There will be 
no change in personnel or operations as a result of this transfer. 
  
This is the next step in a series of corporate restructurings that require that the ownership 
information on the liquor license be updated. 
 
The police department has no objection to this request.  
 
 
 
 
TJG/tjg 

morrellca
Text Box
E-12









LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, March 14, 
2005 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Chairman 
Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    James R. Peard 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Carolyn Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
   
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of February 14, 2005 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-004 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the February 14, 2005 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1.     MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL, INC. & WHP HOTEL OWNER-2A, L.L.C. (A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY), formerly known as Mar-Ty, 
L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), licensees of a 2004 B-Hotel 
licensed business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, 8 Bars and Official Permit 
(food), located at 200 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan, Oakland County, 
requests to transfer all membership interest in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A 
Delaware Limited Liability Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A 

Page 1 of 5 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

Delaware Limited Liability Company), wherein Marty-Mez, L.L.C. is dropped as 
sole member through the transfer of 100% of the General and Limited 
Partnership interests in PA Troy Hospitality Investors, L.P. to WHP Mezz 
Borrower 2, L.L.C., and the simultaneous dissolution of PA Troy Hospitality 
Invertors, L.P., and its wholly owner subsidiary Mar-Ty Mezz, L.L.C., thereby 
resulting in WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., being the sole member in WHP Hotel 
Owner-2A, L.L.C.   [MLCC REQ ID# 190498]  “Paper” change in ownership only 

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Brian Andrew, attorney for WHP 
Hotel Owner. 
 
Mr. Andrew stated that this paperwork transfer is to add Marriott International as a 
licensee of WHP Hotel Owner, a large hotel holding company.   
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-005 
Moved by Bennett 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL, INC. & WHP HOTEL OWNER-2A, 
L.L.C. (A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY), formerly known as Mar-Ty, 
L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), licensees of a 2004 B-Hotel licensed 
business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, 8 Bars and Official Permit (food), located at 
200 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan, Oakland County, be allowed to transfer all 
membership interest in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability 
Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), 
wherein Marty-Mez, L.L.C. is dropped as sole member through the transfer of 100% of 
the General and Limited Partnership interests in PA Troy Hospitality Investors, L.P. to 
WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., and the simultaneous dissolution of PA Troy Hospitality 
Invertors, L.P., and its wholly owner subsidiary Mar-Ty Mezz, L.L.C., thereby resulting in 
WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., being the sole member in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. 
[MLCC REQ ID# 190498].  
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2.   LUV SUN, INC., requests a new Specially Designated Distributor license, located 

at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, to be held in conjunction 
with proposed new Specially Designated Merchant license.   [MLCC REQ ID# 
276918]  Red Wagon Shoppe 

 
         LUV SUN, INC., requests a new Specially Designated Merchant license, located 

at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County.   [MLCC REQ ID# 276917]  

Page 2 of 5 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

Present to answer questions from the Committee was Larry Farida.   
 
Before this agenda item was heard, Committee Chairperson, Max Ehlert, stated that he 
and Mr. Farida had a business relationship.  Thus, Mr. Ehlert elected to abstain from 
voting on this agenda item. 
 
Mr. Farida explained to the Committee that he owns the Wine Cellar in Clawson and 
intends to move his business across Maple Road into Troy (the former TCF Bank 
location).  He plans to request a variance to expand the building.  He will utilize the 
former bank vault as a temperature controlled room for his higher-priced wines. 
 
Sgt. Gordon stated that the City inspections had not yet been completed. 
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-006 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that LUV SUN, INC. be granted a new Specially Designated Distributor 
license, located at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, to be held in 
conjunction with proposed new Specially Designated Merchant license, subject to the 
approval of City inspections.  [MLCC REQ ID# 276918]. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Abstain: Ehlert 
Absent: None 
 
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-007 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Larry Farida. 
 
RESOLVED, that LUV SUN, INC. be granted a new Specially Designated Merchant 
license, located at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, subject to the 
approval of City inspections.   [MLCC REQ ID# 276917]. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Abstain: Ehlert 
Absent: None 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 5 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

3. TENT RESTAURANT OPERATIONS, INC., requests to transfer ownership of a 
2004 Class C license business, with Official Permit (food), and Sunday Sales, 
located at 1965 W. Maple Rd., Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County, from 
Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc.   “Paper” change for Bailey’s Pub and Grille 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was John Carlin, attorney for Fox & 
Hound of Michigan. 
 
Mr. Carlin explained to the Committee that this request was merely a paper transfer of 
ownership shares.   There will no be change in name or management.  
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-008 
Moved by Godlewski 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that TENT RESTAURANT OPERATIONS, INC., be allowed to transfer 
ownership of a 2004 Class C license business, with Official Permit (food), and Sunday 
Sales, located at 1965 W. Maple Rd., Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County, from 
Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc.  
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
4. BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., requests to transfer ownership of 2004 12 Months 

Resort Class C licensed business, located at 5460 Corporate, Troy, Michigan 
48098, in Oakland County, from Cooker Restaurant Corporation, issued under 
MCL 436.1531(2): minimum seating: 100.   [MLCC REQ ID# 267215]  Result of 
bankruptcy of Cooker’s restaurant 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was John Carlin, attorney for 
Cooker’s. 
 
This transfer will put Cooker’s liquor license in escrow.  Bank of America will then be 
able to sell the license in Oakland County at any location other than 5460 Corporate 
Drive.   
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-009 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Peard 
 
RESOLVED, that BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., be allowed to transfer ownership of 2004 
12 Months Resort Class C licensed business, located at 5460 Corporate, Troy, 
Michigan 48098, in Oakland County, from Cooker Restaurant Corporation, issued under 

Page 4 of 5 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

MCL 436.1531(2): minimum seating: 100.   [MLCC REQ ID# 267215] 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 

 
Sgt. Gordon stated that there were nine sale-to-minor violations on March 3 & 4, 2005.  
The following establishments received the violations: 
 

• Café Sushi   1933 West Maple Road 
• Champps Americana 301 West Big Beaver Road 
• Ashoka Indian Cuisine 3642 Rochester Road 
• Portabella Restaurant 2801 West Big Beaver Road 
• Mon Jin Lau   1515 East Maple Road 
• Maggiano’s   2089 West Big Beaver Road 
• Jumbo Buffet   1555 East Maple Road 
• Mayur Indian Cuisine 5113 Rochester Road 
• Corradi’s Sports Bar 1090 Rochester Road 
 

 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 

Page 5 of 5 



 
 

March 24, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:   Mr. John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles Craft, Chief of Police 

Gary Mayer, Police Captain 
Thomas Gordon, Police Sergeant 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Application to Transfer Ownership of a Class C Liquor License - 
 TENT Restaurant Operations, Inc. (Bailey’s Pub & Grille) 
  
 
 
TENT RESTAURANT OPERATIONS, INC., requests to transfer ownership of a 2004 Class C 
licensed business, with Official Permit (food), and Sunday Sales, located at 1965 W. Maple Rd., 
Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County, from Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc. 
 
This request is a “paper transfer”.  The current licensee, Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc. is being 
merged into TENT Restaurant Operations, Inc.  Both companies have the exact same 
ownership (TENT Finance, Inc., is the sole shareholder of both and TENT Finanace, Inc. is 
wholly owned by Total Entertainment Restaurant Corp., a publicly traded corporation).  For each 
of the three Bailey’s Pub and Grille restaurants in Michigan, the same merger transfer 
application will be filed. 
 
The Michigan Liquor Control Commission has waived the police investigation, as there is no real 
change in ownership (the new licensee is a wholly owned subsidiary of the current licensee).  
However, a resolution is still required from Council, as this is required by statute in any license 
“transfer”. 
 
The attorney for TENT Restaurant Operations, Inc., John Carlin, attended the March meeting of 
the Liquor Advisory Committee and explained the process to the committee members.  The 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission has confirmed that they do not want a local police 
department investigation, but that they do require a resolution from Council. 
 
The police department has no objection to this request.  
 
 
 
 
TJG/tjg 

morrellca
Text Box
E-13















LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, March 14, 
2005 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Chairman 
Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    James R. Peard 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Carolyn Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
   
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of February 14, 2005 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-004 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the February 14, 2005 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1.     MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL, INC. & WHP HOTEL OWNER-2A, L.L.C. (A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY), formerly known as Mar-Ty, 
L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), licensees of a 2004 B-Hotel 
licensed business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, 8 Bars and Official Permit 
(food), located at 200 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan, Oakland County, 
requests to transfer all membership interest in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A 
Delaware Limited Liability Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A 

Page 1 of 5 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

Delaware Limited Liability Company), wherein Marty-Mez, L.L.C. is dropped as 
sole member through the transfer of 100% of the General and Limited 
Partnership interests in PA Troy Hospitality Investors, L.P. to WHP Mezz 
Borrower 2, L.L.C., and the simultaneous dissolution of PA Troy Hospitality 
Invertors, L.P., and its wholly owner subsidiary Mar-Ty Mezz, L.L.C., thereby 
resulting in WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., being the sole member in WHP Hotel 
Owner-2A, L.L.C.   [MLCC REQ ID# 190498]  “Paper” change in ownership only 

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Brian Andrew, attorney for WHP 
Hotel Owner. 
 
Mr. Andrew stated that this paperwork transfer is to add Marriott International as a 
licensee of WHP Hotel Owner, a large hotel holding company.   
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-005 
Moved by Bennett 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL, INC. & WHP HOTEL OWNER-2A, 
L.L.C. (A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY), formerly known as Mar-Ty, 
L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), licensees of a 2004 B-Hotel licensed 
business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, 8 Bars and Official Permit (food), located at 
200 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan, Oakland County, be allowed to transfer all 
membership interest in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability 
Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), 
wherein Marty-Mez, L.L.C. is dropped as sole member through the transfer of 100% of 
the General and Limited Partnership interests in PA Troy Hospitality Investors, L.P. to 
WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., and the simultaneous dissolution of PA Troy Hospitality 
Invertors, L.P., and its wholly owner subsidiary Mar-Ty Mezz, L.L.C., thereby resulting in 
WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., being the sole member in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. 
[MLCC REQ ID# 190498].  
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2.   LUV SUN, INC., requests a new Specially Designated Distributor license, located 

at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, to be held in conjunction 
with proposed new Specially Designated Merchant license.   [MLCC REQ ID# 
276918]  Red Wagon Shoppe 

 
         LUV SUN, INC., requests a new Specially Designated Merchant license, located 

at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County.   [MLCC REQ ID# 276917]  

Page 2 of 5 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

Present to answer questions from the Committee was Larry Farida.   
 
Before this agenda item was heard, Committee Chairperson, Max Ehlert, stated that he 
and Mr. Farida had a business relationship.  Thus, Mr. Ehlert elected to abstain from 
voting on this agenda item. 
 
Mr. Farida explained to the Committee that he owns the Wine Cellar in Clawson and 
intends to move his business across Maple Road into Troy (the former TCF Bank 
location).  He plans to request a variance to expand the building.  He will utilize the 
former bank vault as a temperature controlled room for his higher-priced wines. 
 
Sgt. Gordon stated that the City inspections had not yet been completed. 
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-006 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that LUV SUN, INC. be granted a new Specially Designated Distributor 
license, located at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, to be held in 
conjunction with proposed new Specially Designated Merchant license, subject to the 
approval of City inspections.  [MLCC REQ ID# 276918]. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Abstain: Ehlert 
Absent: None 
 
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-007 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Larry Farida. 
 
RESOLVED, that LUV SUN, INC. be granted a new Specially Designated Merchant 
license, located at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, subject to the 
approval of City inspections.   [MLCC REQ ID# 276917]. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Abstain: Ehlert 
Absent: None 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 5 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

3. TENT RESTAURANT OPERATIONS, INC., requests to transfer ownership of a 
2004 Class C license business, with Official Permit (food), and Sunday Sales, 
located at 1965 W. Maple Rd., Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County, from 
Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc.   “Paper” change for Bailey’s Pub and Grille 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was John Carlin, attorney for Fox & 
Hound of Michigan. 
 
Mr. Carlin explained to the Committee that this request was merely a paper transfer of 
ownership shares.   There will no be change in name or management.  
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-008 
Moved by Godlewski 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that TENT RESTAURANT OPERATIONS, INC., be allowed to transfer 
ownership of a 2004 Class C license business, with Official Permit (food), and Sunday 
Sales, located at 1965 W. Maple Rd., Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County, from 
Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc.  
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
4. BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., requests to transfer ownership of 2004 12 Months 

Resort Class C licensed business, located at 5460 Corporate, Troy, Michigan 
48098, in Oakland County, from Cooker Restaurant Corporation, issued under 
MCL 436.1531(2): minimum seating: 100.   [MLCC REQ ID# 267215]  Result of 
bankruptcy of Cooker’s restaurant 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was John Carlin, attorney for 
Cooker’s. 
 
This transfer will put Cooker’s liquor license in escrow.  Bank of America will then be 
able to sell the license in Oakland County at any location other than 5460 Corporate 
Drive.   
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-009 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Peard 
 
RESOLVED, that BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., be allowed to transfer ownership of 2004 
12 Months Resort Class C licensed business, located at 5460 Corporate, Troy, 
Michigan 48098, in Oakland County, from Cooker Restaurant Corporation, issued under 

Page 4 of 5 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

MCL 436.1531(2): minimum seating: 100.   [MLCC REQ ID# 267215] 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 

 
Sgt. Gordon stated that there were nine sale-to-minor violations on March 3 & 4, 2005.  
The following establishments received the violations: 
 

• Café Sushi   1933 West Maple Road 
• Champps Americana 301 West Big Beaver Road 
• Ashoka Indian Cuisine 3642 Rochester Road 
• Portabella Restaurant 2801 West Big Beaver Road 
• Mon Jin Lau   1515 East Maple Road 
• Maggiano’s   2089 West Big Beaver Road 
• Jumbo Buffet   1555 East Maple Road 
• Mayur Indian Cuisine 5113 Rochester Road 
• Corradi’s Sports Bar 1090 Rochester Road 
 

 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 

Page 5 of 5 



 
 
March 21, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM - REQUEST FOR ACCEPTANCE of 2 Temporary 

Construction Permits for the Troy Court Water Main Project 
#01.502.5 – Section 34 

 
 
In connection with the Troy Court Water Main improvement project affecting 
properties located on Elmwood Street and Troy Court in Section 34, the Real 
Estate and Development Department has received two Temporary Construction 
Permits from the following property owners: 
 

      OWNER      ADDRESS      SIDWELL # 
 
EASEMENT TYPE 

  
CONSIDERATION

1 
W & H Real 
Estate & Hewitt   1005 Troy Court    88-20-34-152-013

      Temporary   $500.00 

2  Troy Court LLC   1000 Troy Court    88-20-34-152-018      Temporary   $500.00 
 
In order for the Water Department to proceed with the Troy Court water main 
improvement project, we recommend that City Council accept the attached 
easements and authorize the payment of the agreed amount as shown. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Dennis C. Stephens, Right of Way Representative 

morrellca
Text Box
E-14



 
 

TROY COURT WATER MAIN 
 
 

 

SUBJECT SUBJECT 

 
 















 
 

March 24, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:   Mr. John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles Craft, Chief of Police 

Gary Mayer, Police Captain 
Thomas Gordon, Police Sergeant 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Application to transfer Class C liquor license to Bank of America, 

N.A. 
  
 
BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., requests to transfer ownership of 2004 12 Months Resort Class C 
licensed business, located at 5460 Corporate, Troy, Michigan 48098, in Oakland County, from 
Cooker Restaurant Corporation, issued under MCL 436.1531(2): minimum seating: 100.   
[MLCC REQ ID# 267215]    Result of bankruptcy of Cooker’s restaurant 
 
 
Present to answer questions from the committee was attorney John Carlin.  He explained that 
the liquor license for the former Cooker’s restaurant is in escrow, and that this transfer will allow 
Bank of America, a creditor, to sell the license at any location in Oakland County, other than 
5460 Corporate.  A new Red Robin restaurant, with its own liquor license, has taken over the 
site of the former Cooker’s restaurant. 
 
The police department has no objection to this request.   
 
 
 
 
TJG/tjg 

morrellca
Text Box
E-15







LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, March 14, 
2005 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Chairman 
Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    James R. Peard 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Carolyn Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
   
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of February 14, 2005 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-004 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the February 14, 2005 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1.     MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL, INC. & WHP HOTEL OWNER-2A, L.L.C. (A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY), formerly known as Mar-Ty, 
L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), licensees of a 2004 B-Hotel 
licensed business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, 8 Bars and Official Permit 
(food), located at 200 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan, Oakland County, 
requests to transfer all membership interest in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A 
Delaware Limited Liability Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A 

Page 1 of 5 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

Delaware Limited Liability Company), wherein Marty-Mez, L.L.C. is dropped as 
sole member through the transfer of 100% of the General and Limited 
Partnership interests in PA Troy Hospitality Investors, L.P. to WHP Mezz 
Borrower 2, L.L.C., and the simultaneous dissolution of PA Troy Hospitality 
Invertors, L.P., and its wholly owner subsidiary Mar-Ty Mezz, L.L.C., thereby 
resulting in WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., being the sole member in WHP Hotel 
Owner-2A, L.L.C.   [MLCC REQ ID# 190498]  “Paper” change in ownership only 

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Brian Andrew, attorney for WHP 
Hotel Owner. 
 
Mr. Andrew stated that this paperwork transfer is to add Marriott International as a 
licensee of WHP Hotel Owner, a large hotel holding company.   
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-005 
Moved by Bennett 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL, INC. & WHP HOTEL OWNER-2A, 
L.L.C. (A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY), formerly known as Mar-Ty, 
L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), licensees of a 2004 B-Hotel licensed 
business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, 8 Bars and Official Permit (food), located at 
200 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan, Oakland County, be allowed to transfer all 
membership interest in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability 
Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), 
wherein Marty-Mez, L.L.C. is dropped as sole member through the transfer of 100% of 
the General and Limited Partnership interests in PA Troy Hospitality Investors, L.P. to 
WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., and the simultaneous dissolution of PA Troy Hospitality 
Invertors, L.P., and its wholly owner subsidiary Mar-Ty Mezz, L.L.C., thereby resulting in 
WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., being the sole member in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. 
[MLCC REQ ID# 190498].  
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2.   LUV SUN, INC., requests a new Specially Designated Distributor license, located 

at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, to be held in conjunction 
with proposed new Specially Designated Merchant license.   [MLCC REQ ID# 
276918]  Red Wagon Shoppe 

 
         LUV SUN, INC., requests a new Specially Designated Merchant license, located 

at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County.   [MLCC REQ ID# 276917]  

Page 2 of 5 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

Present to answer questions from the Committee was Larry Farida.   
 
Before this agenda item was heard, Committee Chairperson, Max Ehlert, stated that he 
and Mr. Farida had a business relationship.  Thus, Mr. Ehlert elected to abstain from 
voting on this agenda item. 
 
Mr. Farida explained to the Committee that he owns the Wine Cellar in Clawson and 
intends to move his business across Maple Road into Troy (the former TCF Bank 
location).  He plans to request a variance to expand the building.  He will utilize the 
former bank vault as a temperature controlled room for his higher-priced wines. 
 
Sgt. Gordon stated that the City inspections had not yet been completed. 
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-006 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that LUV SUN, INC. be granted a new Specially Designated Distributor 
license, located at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, to be held in 
conjunction with proposed new Specially Designated Merchant license, subject to the 
approval of City inspections.  [MLCC REQ ID# 276918]. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Abstain: Ehlert 
Absent: None 
 
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-007 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Larry Farida. 
 
RESOLVED, that LUV SUN, INC. be granted a new Specially Designated Merchant 
license, located at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, subject to the 
approval of City inspections.   [MLCC REQ ID# 276917]. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Abstain: Ehlert 
Absent: None 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 5 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

3. TENT RESTAURANT OPERATIONS, INC., requests to transfer ownership of a 
2004 Class C license business, with Official Permit (food), and Sunday Sales, 
located at 1965 W. Maple Rd., Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County, from 
Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc.   “Paper” change for Bailey’s Pub and Grille 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was John Carlin, attorney for Fox & 
Hound of Michigan. 
 
Mr. Carlin explained to the Committee that this request was merely a paper transfer of 
ownership shares.   There will no be change in name or management.  
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-008 
Moved by Godlewski 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that TENT RESTAURANT OPERATIONS, INC., be allowed to transfer 
ownership of a 2004 Class C license business, with Official Permit (food), and Sunday 
Sales, located at 1965 W. Maple Rd., Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County, from 
Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc.  
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
4. BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., requests to transfer ownership of 2004 12 Months 

Resort Class C licensed business, located at 5460 Corporate, Troy, Michigan 
48098, in Oakland County, from Cooker Restaurant Corporation, issued under 
MCL 436.1531(2): minimum seating: 100.   [MLCC REQ ID# 267215]  Result of 
bankruptcy of Cooker’s restaurant 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was John Carlin, attorney for 
Cooker’s. 
 
This transfer will put Cooker’s liquor license in escrow.  Bank of America will then be 
able to sell the license in Oakland County at any location other than 5460 Corporate 
Drive.   
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-009 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Peard 
 
RESOLVED, that BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., be allowed to transfer ownership of 2004 
12 Months Resort Class C licensed business, located at 5460 Corporate, Troy, 
Michigan 48098, in Oakland County, from Cooker Restaurant Corporation, issued under 

Page 4 of 5 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

MCL 436.1531(2): minimum seating: 100.   [MLCC REQ ID# 267215] 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 

 
Sgt. Gordon stated that there were nine sale-to-minor violations on March 3 & 4, 2005.  
The following establishments received the violations: 
 

• Café Sushi   1933 West Maple Road 
• Champps Americana 301 West Big Beaver Road 
• Ashoka Indian Cuisine 3642 Rochester Road 
• Portabella Restaurant 2801 West Big Beaver Road 
• Mon Jin Lau   1515 East Maple Road 
• Maggiano’s   2089 West Big Beaver Road 
• Jumbo Buffet   1555 East Maple Road 
• Mayur Indian Cuisine 5113 Rochester Road 
• Corradi’s Sports Bar 1090 Rochester Road 
 

 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 

Page 5 of 5 



March 29, 2005 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low 

Bidder – Liquid Calcium Chloride 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On March 16, 2005, proposals were opened to furnish one-year requirements of 
Liquid Calcium Chloride with an option to renew for one additional year.  After 
reviewing these proposals, City management recommends awarding the contract 
to the low total bidder, Michigan Chloride Sales, Inc., of St. Louis, MI, at an 
estimated total cost of $49,120.00, which includes $500.00 for the additional 
insured endorsement clause, as specified.  A 1% discount is allowed if invoices 
are paid within ten (10) days. 
 
SUMMARY  
OPTION A 
Estimated         Price/ 
Quantity (Gallons)  Description     Gallon 
84,000 gallons               Bidder to deliver and apply up to 18,000 
    gallons in one day as requested by the 
    City for dust control.  Minimum 6,000 gallons       $.48 
OPTION B 
Estimated         Price/ 
Quantity (Gallons)  Description     Gallon 
20,000 gallons   Bidder will deliver to storage tank located 
    at 4693 Rochester Rd., Troy, shipments of 
    no less than 2,000 gallons as requested by  
    the City for ice control.        $.415 
 
    Cost for Additional Insurance Language  $500.00 
   
    Estimated Grand Total           $49,120.00 
 
The award was made on a low total bid basis because the savings of $.01/gallon 
for Option B from South Huron Industrial Inc. for an estimated $200.00 would be 
eliminated when the $500.00 cost for insurance is added to the bid price. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for these materials are available through the following Streets and Drains 
operating budgets: Local Surface Maintenance – Gravel, #481.7782; Local Snow 
& Ice Control, #498.7782; Major Snow & Ice Control, #478.7782; and County 
Snow & Ice Control, #502.7782. 
 
69 Vendors Notified via the MITN System 
  2 Bid Responses Rec’d 
  2 No Bids: (1) Company indicated the job was too large. 

(1) Company does not handle the product specified. 
 

Prepared by:  Emily Frontera, Administrative Aide 

morrellca
Text Box
E-16



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-03
Opening Date -- 3-16-05 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 3/28/05 LIQUID CALCIUM CHLORIDE

VENDOR NAME: *  MICHIGAN CHLORIDE SOUTH HURON
SALES INC INDUSTRIAL INC

EST PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION GALLON GALLON

OPTION A:
84,000 Bidder to deliver and apply up to 18,000 0.480$                  0.520$                     
GALS   gallons in one day, as requested by the

  City for dust control. Minimum 6,000 gal

OPTION B:
20,000 Bidder will deliver to storage tank located at 0.4150$                0.405$                     
GALS   4693 Rochester Rd., Troy, shipments of

  no less than 2,000 gallons, as requested
  by the City for ice control.

PLUS: COST OF INSURANCE 500.00$                500.00$                   

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST: * 49,120.00$           52,280.00$              

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hours 8-5PM (WINTER) 7-6PM
24HRS (SUMMER)

24Hr Phone Number (989)681-5181 (734)891-6157

INSURANCE: Can Meet
Cannot Meet XX XX

DELIVERY DATE:
1% 10 DAYS 1% 10 DAYS

TERMS: NET 30 DAYS NET 30 

EXCEPTIONS: 2005 DISCOUNT LOADS DELIVERED AND SPRAYED IN
PERIODS 2500 GALLON SPRAY TRUCK WILL BE AT

A PRICE OF $.56 PER GALLON

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:    Y or N YES YES

NO BIDS: PROPOSAL - One-Year Requirements of Liquid Calcium Chloride
 Cargill Inc with an Option to Renew for One Additional Year
 Colman-Wolf Supply Co

* DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER
ATTEST:
 Charlene McComb
 Emily Frontera _____________________________
 Tom Rosewarne Jeanette Bennett
 Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:\ ITB-COT 05-03 Liquid Calcium Chloride

As Specified









March 29, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item- Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award - 
  Lowest Acceptable Bidder Meeting Specifications 
  Fertilization Services at Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On March 15, 2005, bid proposals were opened to furnish one-year requirements 
of fertilization services to Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses with an 
option to renew one (1) additional year.  After reviewing these proposals, City 
management recommends awarding the contract to the lowest acceptable bidder 
meeting specifications, Turf Grass, Inc. PO Box 667, South Lyon, MI 48178, for 
an estimated total cost of $34,140.00, at unit prices contained in the attached bid 
tabulation. 
 
The award is contingent upon contractor submission of proper insurance 
certificates, and all specified requirements.   
 
PROPOSALS/ 
Estimated  
Quantity  
 

 
 
DESCRIPTION: 

PRICING: 
Cost per 
Acre per  
Application 
2005 

 
 
TOTAL COST: 
 

Sylvan Glen- 
50 Acres Total 
(Two 25 acres) 
Applications 
 

For Golf Course Fairways- 
Two (2) Applications of  
22-2-19 with 86% Polyon and 
80% Polymer Coated 
Potassium with Small Mini 
Prills   
i.e. greens particle size 

 
$ 218.85 

 
$ 10,942.50 

Sanctuary Lake- 
106 Acres Total 
(Two 53 acres) 
Applications 

For Golf Course Fairways and 
Roughs- Two (2) Applications 
of 22-2-19 with 86% Polyon 
and 80% Polymer Coated 
Potassium with Small Mini 
Prills  
i.e. greens particle size 

 
$ 218.85 

 
$ 23,198.10 

 
 
 
 

1 of 2 

morrellca
Text Box
E-17



To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award- Fertilizer Application Services Sylvan Glen and Sanctuary 

Lake Golf Courses 
 
 
EXPLANATION OF BIDS NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS 
A total of three (3) bids were received of which two (2), Owen Tree Service, Inc. 
and Land Works Landscapes, Inc., did not meet specifications for the following 
reasons: 

• Both companies bid alternate fertilizers that upon analysis did not meet 
specifications. Fertilizers bid have less controlled release of nutrients 
requiring more applications throughout the season at considerable 
additional cost. 

• Bid stated fertilizer must be provided in bulk form to save on labor costs.  
The application equipment to be used by both companies is totally 
inadequate for the acreage under this contract because the hopper 
capacity is unable to handle the 1000 pounds of bulk fertilizer material. 

 
BUDGET 
Funds for these services are available in the Sylvan Glen Golf Course Contract 
Grounds Maintenance Account #785.7802.050 and Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 
Contract Grounds Maintenance Account #885.7802.050.     
 
 
140 Vendors Notified via MITN System 
    3 Bid Responses Received 
    2 Bids did not meet specifications 
    1 No Bid:  Company is not interested at this time because of liability issues. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Danny T. McDonald, Superintendent of Greens   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-08
Opening Date -- 3/15/05 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 1
Date Prepared -- 3/29/05 FERTILIZATION SERVICES

VENDOR NAME: * TURFGRASS INC

Estimated PRICE
Quantity         Description Cost per Acre

156 Acres        For two (2) Golf Courses for the 2005
       (2) Two Applications per year 218.85$          
    --  53 acres for Sanctuary Lake
    --  25 acres for Sylvan Glen

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST: * 34,140.60$     

SITE INSPECTION:
Visited the site Y or N Yes
Date of site visit Many Times

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hrs of Operations 8-5pm
24 Phone No. (248)640-3379

INSURANCE: Can meet XX
Cannot Meet
But Offer

ALTERNATE INSURANCE: BLANK
Can obtain Coverage
Currently have 
Do not carry

BIDDERS QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N Yes

TERMS NET 30

WARRANTY AS STATED

EXCEPTIONS NONE

ADDENDUM 1: Attached Yes

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes
DMS:
 Land Works Landscapes, Inc ($168.50/acre/application) - Owen Tree Service, Inc ($150.00/acre/application)
   Reason:  Fertilizers not as specified; application equipment inadequate to handle amount of acreage

NO BIDS: PROPOSAL:
 Troy Clogg Landscape Assoc                 One Year Requirements of Fertilization Services at Sylvan Glen and 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses with an Option to Renew for an Additional Year
ATTEST:
 Aileen Bittner * DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER
 Danny McDonald
 Kevin Grubb _______________________________
 Jeanette Bennett Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director
G/:ITB-COT 05-08 Fertilization Services











  March 28, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidders – 

Four (4) 64,000 GVW Tandem Axle Dump Trucks  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Bid proposals were opened March 1, 2005, to furnish four- (4) 64,000 GVW Tandem Axle 
Dump Trucks.  City management recommends a contract be awarded to the low total 
bidders, Bi-State Sterling Truck Center of Toledo, OH and Monroe Truck Equipment of 
Flint, MI for an estimated combined total cost of $518,336.00, at prices as detailed on the 
attached bid tabulation.  
 
SUMMARY 
The bid was awarded on a low total basis to the truck chassis and dump body companies 
in order to lower the cost on the cab and chassis, and expedite truck completion. In the 
event the truck chassis and or body company fails to meet the completion schedule; a 
penalty will be imposed of one-tenth of 1% per working day beyond the mandatory delivery 
date, per truck/body.  
 
The new units will replace the four (4) 1990 Auto-Car Tandem Axle dump trucks due to 
come out of service.  The dump bodies and cabs on the old units have rusted through from 
salt and wear and tear; the drivelines and suspension will require extensive repairs. These 
four pieces of equipment are used year round for street maintenance and snow removal.  
 
The new Tandem-Axles have Sterling cabs and chassis, Model LT9513 with Stainless 
Steel 10-yard dump bodies and salt spreaders, 12-foot front snowplows and 10-foot 
underbody scrapers.  The trucks are also equipped with 75-gallon calcium chloride auto 
pre-wet systems. In addition to the standard Sterling warranty, Caterpillar warranties the 
diesel engine for seven (7) years or 100,000 miles and Williams Detroit Allison, the 
automatic transmission for five (5) years or unlimited miles against failure or malfunction. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for this equipment are currently available in the Vehicle Fleet Maintenance 
Capital Account #565.7981.    
 
71 Vendors Notified on the MITN System 
  7 Bidders; 17 Bid Responses Rec’d 
   
 
Prepared by:  Samuel P. Lamerato, Superintendent of Motor Pool 
 
 

 

morrellca
Text Box
E-18



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-61
Opening Date -- 3-01-05 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 9
Date Prepared -- 3/17/05 FOUR (4) DUMP TRUCKS

VENDOR NAME: *

QTY DESCRIPTION EACH TOTAL EACH TOTAL
PROPOSAL:

4 - TANDEM AXLE DUMP TRUCKS, 2005 MODEL
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

FOUR - CHASSIS: 81,897$         327,588$       83,669$         334,676$        
Quoting On: LT9500 LT9500
Manufacturered by: STERLING STERLING

# of Days to Delivery Completed Chassis 70-90 160 DAYS ARO

FOUR - DUMP BODIES: 47,687$         190,748$       47,687$         190,748$        
Quoting On: MONROE ATTACHED TO BID

Manufacturered by: CRYSTEEL/MONROE MONROE

COMBINED TOTAL COST: * 518,336$       525,424$       

ATTACHMENTS ON ABOVE ITEM    (Y-Yes, N-No) YES YES

CONTACT INFORMATION:       Hrs of Operations 7-6 7:30-11
          Phone Number (419)410-3936 (313)849-0800

LOCATION: FLINT DEARBORN
No. of Miles from Troy 50 20

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX
Cannot meet

DELIVERY SCHEDULE:

CHASSIS - TERMS: NET 30
BODY - TERMS: NET 30 BLANK

CHASSIS WARRANTY
BODY WARRANTY: 5 YR BODY; 1 YR EVERYTHINIG ELSE BLANK

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed   - Y or N
Chassis Manufacturer YES YES
Body Manufacturer YES NO

* DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDERS
ATTEST:
Charlene McComb ____________________________
Samuel Lamerato Jeanette Bennett
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:/ITB-COT 04-61FOUR TANDEM AXLE  DUMP TRUCKS

AS SPECIFIED

BI-STATE STERLING

BLANK

WOLVERINE TRUCK

BLANK

AS SPECIFIED

TRUCK CENTER SALES INC



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-61
Opening Date -- 3-01-05 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 9
Date Prepared -- 3/17/05 FOUR (4) DUMP TRUCKS

VENDOR NAME:

QTY DESCRIPTION EACH TOTAL EACH TOTAL
PROPOSAL:

4 - TANDEM AXLE DUMP TRUCKS, 2005 MODEL
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

FOUR - CHASSIS: 80,496$          321,984$        80,496$         321,984$        
Quoting On: LT9513 LT9513
Manufacturered by: STERLING STERLING

# of Days to Delivery Completed Chassis MIDDLE OF JULY MIDDLE OF JULY

FOUR - DUMP BODIES: 54,564$          218,256$        54,599$         218,396$        
Quoting On: GALION 650U

Manufacturered by: NBC GALION

COMBINED TOTAL COST: 540,240$       540,380$       

ATTACHMENTS ON ABOVE ITEM    (Y-Yes, N-No) YES YES

CONTACT INFORMATION:       Hrs of Operations 7-11PM 7-11PM
          Phone Number (734)591-1234 (734)591-1234

LOCATION: LIVONIA LIVONIA
No. of Miles from Troy 40 40

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX
Cannot meet

DELIVERY SCHEDULE:

CHASSIS - TERMS: NET 15 DAYS NET 15 DAYS
BODY - TERMS: NET 30 NET 15 DAYS

CHASSIS WARRANTY
BODY WARRANTY: ONE YEAR P/L ONE YEAR

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed   - Y or N
Chassis Manufacturer YES YES
Body Manufacturer YES YES

G:/ITB-COT 04-61FOUR TANDEM AXLE  DUMP TRUCKS

AS SPECIFIED

MOTOR CITY TRUCKS

BLANK

MOTOR CITY TRUCKS

$+2,000 TO PAINT DUMP BODIES

AS SPECIFIED



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-61
Opening Date -- 3-01-05 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 9
Date Prepared -- 3/17/05 FOUR (4) DUMP TRUCKS

VENDOR NAME:

QTY DESCRIPTION EACH TOTAL EACH TOTAL
PROPOSAL:

4 - TANDEM AXLE DUMP TRUCKS, 2005 MODEL
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

FOUR - CHASSIS: 81,897$          327,588$        83,669$         334,676$        
Quoting On: LT9500 LT9500
Manufacturered by: STERLING STERLING

# of Days to Delivery Completed Chassis 70-90 160 DAYS ARO

FOUR - DUMP BODIES: 53,950$          215,800$        53,950$         215,800$        
Quoting On: CANNON EQUIPMENT ATTACHED TO BID

Manufacturered by: WARREN/WAUSAU CANNON

COMBINED TOTAL COST: 543,388$       550,476$       

ATTACHMENTS ON ABOVE ITEM    (Y-Yes, N-No) YES YES

CONTACT INFORMATION:       Hrs of Operations 7-6PM 7:30-11PM
          Phone Number (419)410-3936 (313)849-0800

LOCATION: TOLEDO OHIO DEARBORN
No. of Miles from Troy 72 20

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX
Cannot meet

DELIVERY SCHEDULE:

CHASSIS - TERMS: NET 10 DAYS NET 30
BODY - TERMS: BLANK N30

CHASSIS WARRANTY
BODY WARRANTY: BLANK

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed   - Y or N
Chassis Manufacturer YES YES
Body Manufacturer NO NO

G:/ITB-COT 04-61FOUR TANDEM AXLE  DUMP TRUCKS

AS SPECIFIED

BI STATE STERLING

BLANK

WOLVERINE TRUCK SALES INC

BLANK

AS SPECIFIED

TRUCK CENTER



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-61
Opening Date -- 3-01-05 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 9
Date Prepared -- 3/17/05 FOUR (4) DUMP TRUCKS

VENDOR NAME:

QTY DESCRIPTION EACH TOTAL EACH TOTAL
PROPOSAL:

4 - TANDEM AXLE DUMP TRUCKS, 2005 MODEL
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

FOUR - CHASSIS: 83,669$          334,676$        83,669$         334,676$        
Quoting On: LT9500 LT9500
Manufacturered by: STERLING STERLING

# of Days to Delivery Completed Chassis 160 DAYS ARO 160 DAYS ARO

FOUR - DUMP BODIES: 54,564$          218,256$        54,599$         218,396$        
Quoting On: ATTACHED TO BID ATTACHED TO BID

Manufacturered by: NBC SHULTZ

COMBINED TOTAL COST: 552,932$       553,072$       

ATTACHMENTS ON ABOVE ITEM    (Y-Yes, N-No) YES YES

CONTACT INFORMATION:       Hrs of Operations 7:30-11PM 7:30-11PM
          Phone Number (313)849-0800 (313)849-0800

LOCATION: DEARBORN MI DEARBORN
No. of Miles from Troy 20 20

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX
Cannot meet

DELIVERY SCHEDULE:

CHASSIS - TERMS: NET 30 NET 30
BODY - TERMS: NET 30 NET 30 DAYS

CHASSIS WARRANTY
BODY WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed   - Y or N
Chassis Manufacturer YES YES
Body Manufacturer YES NO

G:/ITB-COT 04-61FOUR TANDEM AXLE  DUMP TRUCKS

AS SPECIFIED

WOLVERINE TRUCK SALES INC

BLANK

WOLVERINE TRUCK SALES INC

BLANK

AS SPECIFIED

ONE YEAR PARTS/LABOR ONE YEAR MATERIALS & LABOR



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-61
Opening Date -- 3-01-05 BID TABULATION Pg 5 of 9
Date Prepared -- 3/17/05 FOUR (4) DUMP TRUCKS

VENDOR NAME:

QTY DESCRIPTION EACH TOTAL EACH TOTAL
PROPOSAL:

4 - TANDEM AXLE DUMP TRUCKS, 2005 MODEL
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

FOUR - CHASSIS: 81,897$          327,588$        83,669$         334,676$        
Quoting On: LT9500 LT9500
Manufacturered by: STERLING STERLING

# of Days to Delivery Completed Chassis 70-90 160 DAYS ARO

FOUR - DUMP BODIES: 58,003$          232,012$        64,754$         259,016$        
Quoting On: KALIDA TRUCK ATTACHED TO BID

Manufacturered by: GALION/ROOT KNAPHEIDE

COMBINED TOTAL COST: 559,600$       593,692$       

ATTACHMENTS ON ABOVE ITEM    (Y-Yes, N-No) YES YES

CONTACT INFORMATION:       Hrs of Operations 7-6PM 7:30-11PM
          Phone Number (419)410-3936 (313)849-0800

LOCATION: TOLEDO OH DEARBORN
No. of Miles from Troy 72 20

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX
Cannot meet

DELIVERY SCHEDULE:

CHASSIS - TERMS: NET 10 DAYS NET 30
BODY - TERMS: NET 30 NET 30 DAYS

CHASSIS WARRANTY
BODY WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed   - Y or N
Chassis Manufacturer YES YES
Body Manufacturer YES NO

G:/ITB-COT 04-61FOUR TANDEM AXLE  DUMP TRUCKS

AS SPECIFIED

BI STATE STERLING

NONE

WOLVERINE TRUCK SALES INC

BLANK

AS SPECIFIED

TRUCK CENTER

ONE YEAR BLANK



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-61
Opening Date -- 3-01-05 BID TABULATION Pg 6 of 9
Date Prepared -- 3/17/05 FOUR (4) DUMP TRUCKS

VENDOR NAME:

QTY DESCRIPTION EACH TOTAL EACH TOTAL
PROPOSAL:

4 - TANDEM AXLE DUMP TRUCKS, 2005 MODEL
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

FOUR - CHASSIS: 86,411$          345,644$        93,300$         373,200$        
Quoting On: INT'L 7600 6X4 UHD 64200
Manufacturered by: INT'L VOLVO

# of Days to Delivery Completed Chassis 60 ESTIMATED LISTED IN EXCEPTIONS

FOUR - DUMP BODIES: 54,564$          218,256$        47,687$         190,748$        
Quoting On: NBC MONROE

Manufacturered by: HEIL / HENKE / FLINK CRYSTEEL/MONROE

COMBINED TOTAL COST: 563,900$       563,948$       

ATTACHMENTS ON ABOVE ITEM    (Y-Yes, N-No) YES YES

CONTACT INFORMATION:       Hrs of Operations 6-6 7-6PM
          Phone Number (810)234-5686 (800)-52 VOLVO

LOCATION: FLINT - 50 LIVONIA
No. of Miles from Troy WARREN - 22 34

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX
Cannot meet

DELIVERY SCHEDULE:

CHASSIS - TERMS: NET 30 DAYS 15 DAYS AFTER
BODY - TERMS: NET 30 BLANK

CHASSIS WARRANTY
BODY WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed   - Y or N
Chassis Manufacturer YES YES
Body Manufacturer YES NO

G:/ITB-COT 04-61FOUR TANDEM AXLE  DUMP TRUCKS

AS SPECIFIED

C&S MOTORS

STEERING COLUMN, ETC

VIP TRUCK CENTER

BLANK

AS SPECIFIED

ONE YEAR P/L BLANK



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-61
Opening Date -- 3-01-05 BID TABULATION Pg 7 of 9
Date Prepared -- 3/17/05 FOUR (4) DUMP TRUCKS

VENDOR NAME:

QTY DESCRIPTION EACH TOTAL EACH TOTAL
PROPOSAL:

4 - TANDEM AXLE DUMP TRUCKS, 2005 MODEL
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

FOUR - CHASSIS: 80,496$          321,984$        93,300$         373,200$        
Quoting On: LT9513 UHD 64200
Manufacturered by: STERLING VOLVO

# of Days to Delivery Completed Chassis MIDDLE OF JULY LISTED IN EXCEPTIONS

FOUR - DUMP BODIES: 64,754$          259,016$        54,599$         218,396$        
Quoting On: SHULTZ

Manufacturered by: KNAPHEIDE GALLON

COMBINED TOTAL COST: 581,000$       591,596$       

ATTACHMENTS ON ABOVE ITEM    (Y-Yes, N-No) YES

CONTACT INFORMATION:       Hrs of Operations 7-6PM
          Phone Number (800)-52 VOLVO

LOCATION: LIVONIA
No. of Miles from Troy 34

INSURANCE: Can meet XX
Cannot meet

DELIVERY SCHEDULE:

CHASSIS - TERMS: 15 DAYS AFTER
BODY - TERMS: BLANK

CHASSIS WARRANTY
BODY WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed   - Y or N
Chassis Manufacturer YES
Body Manufacturer NO

G:/ITB-COT 04-61FOUR TANDEM AXLE  DUMP TRUCKS

AS SPECIFIED

MOTOR CITY TRUCKS VIP TRUCK CENTER

BLANK

AS SPECIFIED

BLANK



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-61
Opening Date -- 3-01-05 BID TABULATION Pg 8 of 9
Date Prepared -- 3/17/05 FOUR (4) DUMP TRUCKS

VENDOR NAME:

QTY DESCRIPTION EACH TOTAL EACH TOTAL
PROPOSAL:

4 - TANDEM AXLE DUMP TRUCKS, 2005 MODEL
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

FOUR - CHASSIS: 86,411$          345,644$        93,300$         373,200$        
Quoting On: INT'L 7600 6X4 UHD 64B200
Manufacturered by: INTER'L VOLVO

# of Days to Delivery Completed Chassis 60 DAYS ESTIMATED LISTED IN EXCEPTIONS

FOUR - DUMP BODIES: 64,754$          259,016$        64,754$         259,016$        
Quoting On: GALION KNAPHEIDE

Manufacturered by: TENICO GALLON

COMBINED TOTAL COST: 604,660$       632,216$       

ATTACHMENTS ON ABOVE ITEM    (Y-Yes, N-No) YES YES

CONTACT INFORMATION:       Hrs of Operations 6-6 7-6PM
          Phone Number (810)234-5686 (800)-52 VOLVO

LOCATION: FLINT - 50 LIVONIA
No. of Miles from Troy WARREN -22 34

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX
Cannot meet

DELIVERY SCHEDULE:

CHASSIS - TERMS: NET 30 DAYS 15 DAYS AFTER
BODY - TERMS: BLANK BLANK

CHASSIS WARRANTY
BODY WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed   - Y or N
Chassis Manufacturer YES YES
Body Manufacturer NO NO

G:/ITB-COT 04-61FOUR TANDEM AXLE  DUMP TRUCKS

AS SPECIFIED

C&S MOTORS INC

STEERLING COLUMN ETC

VIP TRUCK CENTER

BLANK

AS SPECIFIED

BLANK BLANK



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-61
Opening Date -- 3-01-05 BID TABULATION Pg 9  of 9
Date Prepared -- 3/17/05 FOUR (4) DUMP TRUCKS

VENDOR NAME:

QTY DESCRIPTION EACH TOTAL
PROPOSAL:

4 - TANDEM AXLE DUMP TRUCKS, 2005 MODEL
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS

FOUR - CHASSIS: 103,194$        412,776$        
Quoting On: T-800
Manufacturered by: KENWORTH

# of Days to Delivery Completed Chassis 14-15 WEEKS

FOUR - DUMP BODIES: -$                
Quoting On:
Manufacturered by:

COMBINED TOTAL COST: N/A

ATTACHMENTS ON ABOVE ITEM    (Y-Yes, N-No) YES

CONTACT INFORMATION:       Hrs of Operations 7-6PM
          Phone Number (248)214-8806

LOCATION: DEARBORN
No. of Miles from Troy 25

INSURANCE: Can meet XX
Cannot meet

DELIVERY SCHEDULE:

CHASSIS - TERMS: NET 15 DAYS
BODY - TERMS:

CHASSIS WARRANTY
BODY WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed   - Y or N
Chassis Manufacturer YES
Body Manufacturer NO

G:/ITB-COT 04-61FOUR TANDEM AXLE  DUMP TRUCKS

AS SPECIFIED

D&H KENWORTH

BLANK

AS SPECIFIED









  March 28, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Option to Renew – 
  Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On May 6, 2002, Troy City Council approved three-year contracts to purchase automobile, light truck, 
farm, and construction equipment replacement parts with an option to renew for an additional three-year 
period to the lowest acceptable primary and secondary bidders meeting specifications, Kirk’s Automotive 
Inc., Terminal Supply, Jack Doheny Supply Company, DTS Fluid Power LLC (previously Rubber 
Materials), and Shults Equipment Inc. (Council Resolution #2002-05-288-E-10). 
 
City management recommends approval of the three-year renewal option of the contracts for automobile, 
light truck, farm, and construction equipment replacement parts with Kirk’s Automotive, Terminal Supply, 
Jack Doheny Supply, DTS Fluid Power LLC (previously Rubber Materials), and Shults Equipment.  All 
price discounts, terms, and conditions will remain the same for the additional three-year period expiring 
May 2008. 
 
SUMMARY 
Kirk’s Automotive, Terminal Supply, Jack Doheny Supply, DTS Fluid Power LLC (previously Rubber 
Materials), and Shults Equipment have offered to renew their contracts under the same pricing structure, 
terms, and conditions as the original contract agreement.   
 

KIRK’S AUTOMOTIVE  
     GE Light Bulbs  Catalog/Price Sheet NAPA-LMP 20% Discount – Secondary 

Supplier 
     Signal Stat Lights Catalog/Price Sheet NAPA-LIT 15% Discount – Secondary Supplier 
     NAPA Filters Catalog/Price Sheet NAPA-FIL 50% Discount 
     Hydraulic Fittings/Hose Catalog/Price Sheet NAPAWH-MT 25% Discount 
TERMINAL SUPPLY  
     GE Light Bulbs Discount NET 
     Signal Stat Lights Discount NET 
JACK DOHENY SUPPLY  
     VACTOR Parts Catalog/Price Sheet VACTOR OEM 2001 
DTS FLUID POWER (previously RUBBER MATERIALS) 
     Imperial Eastman Hydraulic Fittings/Hose Catalog/Price Sheet Trade PL4400 & PL4300-ADP 30% Discount 
SHULTS EQUIPMENT  
     Root Snow Plow Parts Shults Price Sheet 
     Swenson Spreader Parts Shults Price Sheet 

MARKET SURVEY 
The Purchasing Department deemed an additional market survey not necessary, as the one from 2004 
forecasted raw materials to increase substantially over the next few years, and to date they have. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the Motor Equipment Pool Operating Budget. 
 
Prepared by:  Samuel P. Lamerato, Superintendent of Motor Pool 

morrellca
Text Box
E-19















April 30, 2002 
 
 
TO:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  William Need, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Low Acceptable Bidders –  

Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, And Construction Equipment Replacement 
Parts With An Option To Renew For An Additional Three Years 

 
RECOMMENDATION:
 
We have received bid proposals from automobile and truck part suppliers to furnish three-
year requirements of repair parts for the Motor Equipment Pool.  All part bids must meet or 
exceed original equipment manufacturer’s specifications. 
 
Bid proposals were opened March 13, 2002.  The bid proposals were analyzed by comparing 
our cost on specific parts as opposed to just considering the discount, since each supplier 
has a different catalog and price sheet.  After researching individual vendors, cross 
referencing part numbers for like value and quality, including actual site visits, personal 
contacts, reviewing inventory and budgetary limitations, the following recommendations are 
being made to the low bidders meeting specifications in each category as follows: 
 
       VENDOR                     PRODUCT LINE  DISCOUNT 
    
Terminal Supply  Lights Bulbs   Net 
Kirk’s Automotive  Lights Bulbs    List –20% secondary vendor 
Terminal Supply  Signal Stat Lights  Net 
Kirk’s Automotive  Signal Stat Lights   List –15% secondary vendor 
Kirk’s Automotive  Filters    List –50% 
Kirk’s Automotive  Hydraulic Fittings/Hose NAPAWH-MI –25% 
Rubber Materials  Hydraulic Fittings/Hose Trade –30% secondary vendor 
Shults Equipment  Root Plow Parts  Computerized Price Sheet 
Shults Equipment  Swenson Spreader   Computerized Price Sheet 
Jack Doheny Supplies Vactor Parts   Manufacturer’s Price Sheet 
 
Bids from Bill Fox Chevrolet, Motor City Truck Sales, and Joint Clutch & Gear were 
unawardable for GE Light Bulbs, Signal Stat Lights, and Fram Filters because of incomplete 
product lines and/or complete catalogs and price sheets were not provided for the items as 
specified. 
 
 
 
 

1 of 3 



 
Page 2 of 3 
 
To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
Re:  Bid Award – Automotive, Light Truck, Farm and Construction Equipment Replacement 
        Parts 
 
 
EXPLANATION OF BIDS NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS 
 
The following vendors did not meet specifications for the listed product line, for the reasons 
indicated: 
 
PRODUCT LINE   VENDOR    DMS JUSTIFICATION
 
Briggs & Stratton Parts  Kirk’s Automotive   No catalog 
 
Brake Parts Heavy Duty  Kirk’s Automotive   No price sheet 
     Motor City Truck Sales  No catalog or price sheet 
 
Caterpillar Engine Parts  Motor City Truck Sales  No catalog or price sheet 
 
Cummins Parts   Motor City Truck Sales  No catalog or price sheet 
 
Detroit Diesel Parts  Motor City Truck Sales  No catalog or price sheet 
 
Ford Parts    Kirk’s Automotive   No catalog 
     Motor City Truck Sales  No catalog or price sheet 
 
Ford Heavy Duty Parts  Kirk’s Automotive   No catalog 
     Motor City Truck Sales  No catalog or price sheet 
 
GMC Heavy Duty Parts  Kirk’s Automotive   No catalog 
 
John Deere Mower Parts  Kirk’s Automotive   No catalog 
 
Monroe Plow Parts  Kirk’s Automotive   Catalog does not include 

Monroe parts/no price 
sheet 

 
Root Plow Parts Kirk’s Automotive   Catalog does not include  
      Root parts/no price sheet 
 
Sterling Truck Heavy  Kirk’s Automotive   No catalog or price sheet 
Duty Parts    Motor City Truck Sales  No catalog or price sheet 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 
To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
Re:  Bid Award – Automotive, Light Truck, Farm and Construction Equipment 
        Replacement Parts 
 
 
Radiators    Kirk’s Automotive   No catalog or price sheet 
     B&L Detroit Radiator  No catalog or price sheet 
     Four Seasons Radiator  No catalog or price sheet 
     Motor City Truck Sales  No catalog or price sheet 
 
No bids were received for the following product lines:  Badger parts, Case parts, Dodge 
parts, E.J. Ward parts, Galion parts, JCB parts and John Deere.  We will rebid these 
items, as well as the listed product lines where no bidder met the City’s specifications.  
Revisions will be made to the bid to include a pre-bid meeting and the use of web sites for 
parts and price catalogs. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the Motor Pool Equipment and Operating Budget. 
 
 
 
 
51 Bids Sent 
15 Bid Responses Rec’d 
  3 No Bids 
  1 Late Bid 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:   Samuel P. Lamerato, Superintendent of Motor Pool 

 Kathy Denby, Inventory Control Assistant, Motor Pool 



Opening Date -- 3-13-02 BID TABULATION SBP 01-49
Date Prepared -- 4/29/02 AUTO PARTS
VENDOR NAME GE Light Part Nu. SIGNAL Part Nu. FRAM Part Nu. BADGER Briggs & Brake Parts CASE CATERPILLAR CUMMINS DET. DODGE E.J.

STAT filters Stratton Heavy Duty ENGINE PARTS DIESEL WARD
KIRKS AUTOMOTIVE INC. $18.11 NAPA-LMP $177.17 NAPA-LIT $56.06 NAPA-FIL NAPA -10% NAPA -10%

20% 15% 50% DMS DMS

B & L DETROIT RADIATOR
BILL FOX CHEVROLET ($2.77) DMS ($19.80) DMS

INCOMPLETE 30% INCOMPLETE 40%

METROPOLITAN DIESEL SUPPLY $89.67 20%

FOUR SEASONS RADIATOR
MOTOR CITY TRUCK SALES ($15.90) DMS ($61.69) DMS ($84.47) DMS FLEET C +20% C +20% C +20%

COMPUTER FLEET % COMPUTER FLEET % COMPUTER C+20% COMPUTER COMPUTER COMPUTER COMPUTER
INCOMPLETE DMS DMS DMS DMS

TERMINAL SUPPLY $14.82 NET $173.41 NET

JACK DOHENY SUPPLY NO BID NO BID NO BID
RUBBER MATERIALS CORP.
JOINT CLUTCH & GEAR SERV. ($13.91) DMS ($96.85) DMS

LIST 50% LIST 50%

INCOMPLETE

SHULTS EQUIPMENT INC.

NO BIDS:
  Sterling Heights Dodge
  Allied Incorporated
  Applied Industrial Technologies

BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDERS
ATTEST:
Sam Lamerato PROPOSAL -- Furnish Three(3) Year Requirements of Vehicle Replacement Parts with an
Ceilia Brukwinski Option to Renew for an Additional Three(3) Years
Linda Bockstanz

Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

Page 1 of 3



Opening Date -- 3-13-02 BID TABULATION SBP 01-49
Date Prepared -- 4/29/02 AUTO PARTS

FORD FORD GALION GMC IMP EASTM JCB JOHN J/D MONROE ROOT STERLING SWENSON VACTOR RADIATORS EXTEND NO
H/D H/DUTY H FIT/HOSE DEERE MOWER PLOW PLOW H/D SPREAD. TRI-CTY TRI-CTY

FPSP +25% FPSP +25% P6  +25% NAPAWH -25% NAPA SME -10% NAPA-PPW +10% NAPA-PPW +10% SHAT  +25% NAPA MD  -10% YES
DMS DMS DMS DMS DMS DMS DMS DMS

DMS YES
YES

YES

DMS BLANK
FLEET FLEET FLEET FLEET YES

COMPUTER COMPUTER COMPUTER COMPUTER
DMS DMS DMS DMS

YES

OEM    0% YES
D-L3     -30% NO

YES

SHULTS  0% SHULTS  0% YES

BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDERS

Page 2 of 3



Opening Date -- 3-13-02 BID TABULATION SBP 01-49
Date Prepared -- 4/29/02 AUTO PARTS
DELIVERY DELIVERY MINIMUM MINIMUM PHONE FAX NAME TERMS WARRANTY EXCEPTIONS

STOCK EMER. SHIPMENT SHIP=0 NUMBER NUMBER
3 HOURS 2 HOURS 0 0 313-933-7030 313-933-7073 ROBERT E. KIRKMAN NET 30 MANUFACTURES BLANK

BLANK BLANK 0 0 586-757-6530 587-757-0931 WILLIAM J. SMITH NET 30 BLANK BLANK  - NO CATALOGS
1 HOUR BLANK 0 0 248-651-7000 248-651-2053 WILLAIM BLONDIN 3 YRS 12 MONTHS LISTED IN BID

(NO CATALOGS)

24 HOURS 12 HOURS $20.00 0 313-272-6370 313-272-9280 TODD WINTERINGHAM NET 30 FACTORY BLANK  - NO CATALOGS

BLANK BLANK 0 0 248-585-6484 BLANK RAY COOPER NET 30 6 MO/ 2 YR BLANK - NO CATALOGS
1 DAY 1 DAY $20.00 0 734-591-1234 734-591-4213 RON WIDMER BLANK 1 YR ON PARTS LISTED IN BID

(NO CATALOGS)

SAME DAY SAME DAY 0 0 248-362-0790 248-362-0824 JOE DEBRINCAT NET 30 MANUFACTURER BLANK - YES CATALOGS

24 - 48 HRS 24 HR OR LESS $25.00 0 248-349-0904 248-349-2774 DAVID M. BALOGH NET 30 90 DAYS BLANK - YES CATALOG
24 HRS 24 HRS $25.00 0 248-585-9500 248-585-0855 EDWARD G. HERRICK SR. NET 30 BLANK BLANK - YES CATALOGS
24 HRS BLANK 0 0 734-641-7575 734-641-7599 KEN CANTERBURY NET 30 MANUFACTURER BLANK - NO CATALOGS

EXCEPTIONS EXCEPTIONS EXCEPTIONS 0 800-292-9297 989-875-2922 PAT VERNON NET 10 1 YEAR (YES CATALOGS)
PLUS FREIGHT FOR SHIPPED PARTS.
UPS PARTS REC'D W/I 24 HOURS.
NO FREIGHT FOR DELIVERED PARTS.
DELIVERED PARTS S/B REC'D
  W/I 7-10 DAYS.

Page 3 of 3









TO: Members of Troy City Council   
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
DATE: March 2, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Blood Draw Procedure-Beaumont Hospital & Alliance Mobile Health  
 

 
 
 The City of Troy Administration has worked with Troy Beaumont Hospital and Alliance 
Mobile Health on an innovative project that provides a more efficient way of securing blood samples 
of suspected drunk drivers.  Generally, the City obtains the level of intoxication through the 
DataMaster breathalyzer test, which is performed at the station, and has several measures to 
insure its accuracy.  However, the statute allows for persons to request a blood sample as well.  
Currently, when a blood test is requested, and also in those cases where a breathalyzer test is not 
a viable option, the suspect is transported to a hospital for the procedure.  The test could not be 
performed at the station, since the state statute requires the blood draw to be under the supervision 
of a licensed physician and in a medical environment.   
 

Several months ago, the Troy Police Department initiated conversations with Troy 
Beaumont Hospital and Alliance Mobile Health.  The focus of these discussions was to find a more 
efficient alternative that would meet the statutory requirements and preserve the evidence for 
prosecution.  Alliance Mobile Health indicated their willingness to perform blood draws in their 
ambulances.  The blood samples are then forwarded to the State of Michigan for analysis, which is 
what is currently being done with blood draws that occur at the hospital.  Since the blood draws are 
required to be under the direction of a licensed physician, Troy Beaumont Hospital has agreed to 
work with the City and Alliance on this project.  The parties have collectively prepared a Blood Draw 
Protocol, which details the process for the Alliance EMT.  First and foremost, the EMT is required to 
establish communication immediately with a Troy Beaumont physician, who will provide guidance 
and supervision for the procedure.  The Blood Draw Protocol also lists certain health conditions and 
other factors that would require a suspect to be transported to the hospital for the procedure. 

 
To the best of our knowledge and belief, Troy would be the first jurisdiction to implement 

such a procedure.  The target date for implementation is April 16, 2005, which allows for the 
necessary training of the physicians, EMTs, and the police officers.  Troy Beaumont Hospital and 
Alliance Mobile Health have already approved the project, and have executed the attached 
Agreements.  We recommend that City Council approve the Agreements.   

 
If you have any questions concerning the above, please let me know.            

morrellca
Text Box
F-02















 
March 1, 2005 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance 

Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item:  2005 Magic of Fall/Troy Daze Festival Schedule/Fees 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends City Council approve the requests of the Troy Daze Advisory 
Committee for the 2005 Magic of Fall/Troy Daze Festival schedule and fees.   
 
Background 
Attached please find correspondence from Bob Berk, Troy Daze Chairman and Jim 
Cyrulewski, Festival Committee Chairman outlining details of the festival to be held 
September 15 - 18, 2005.  The Troy Daze Advisory Committee is in the planning 
process for the 2005 Troy Daze festival.   
 
Fees 
Each year the Troy Daze Advisory Committee evaluates the fees for the festival and 
makes adjustments based on expenses.  For 2005, the committee recommends 
increasing fees in the following categories: 
 
Parking 
Booths Food Vendor, Business in/outside tent, Community Group 

in/outside tent 
5k race  Early and late registration 
Magic Cauldron  Game tickets  
 
Details regarding the increases are included in the attached memo. 
 
Schedule 
The attached schedule shows no changes for the 2005 festival. However, the 
committee is considering some reductions due to budget constraints. 
 
Budget/Operating Revenues and Expenditures 
The projected year-end operating budget for Troy Daze: 
 Revenues     $ 162,620  

Expenditures           175,585 
 
The proposed 2005-2006 operating budget: 
 Revenues     $ 157,100 
 Expenditures        175,675 

morrellca
Text Box
F-03



 
In 2004, the City contributed approximately $68,000 to the festival. The 2005 budget will 
reflect no more than $51,000 cost to the City. The 2004-05 projected year end budget 
does not include police, fire and community affairs wages and benefits, or banner costs 
estimated at $35,000. The proposed budget for 05-06 includes wages for these 
departments but not benefits estimated at $6500. The revenues include the $10,000 
cash contribution the City makes to the budget. 
 
The committee has made considerable decreases to budget expenses while including 
expenses that had not been included in the past(PD, FD,CA wages). Anticipated 
changes to the festival include reduction or elimination of Senior Sensation and 
reduction in the parade route. It is anticipated that even with the changes, decrease in 
expenses and the proposed fee increases the festival will continue its history of fall 
magic in Troy. 
 
 
 



















 
 

March 30, 2005 
 
 
 

TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Designation of Limited Public Forums 
    (Revised from March 21, 2005 Green Memo) 
 
 
 
At the March 7, 2005 Council meeting, Council directed City staff to select a site as a 
place for public gathering and develop proposed language for governing these 
gatherings.  City Management has selected a portion of the parking lot northwest of the 
Community Center site that has frontage on Town Center Drive as the place for public 
gathering; same parking lot where the skateboard park is.  Please know that these 
public gatherings would not be approved by City Council, as requests would be 
channeled to the Parks and Recreation Department.  This is because the limited public 
forum is available to all parties on equal terms. 
 
I believe it’s important to distinguish the public forum area from ceremonies held on 
Veterans Plaza which are sponsored in whole or in part by the City of Troy, i.e. 
Veterans Day, Memorial Day, Police Memorial Day, holiday lighting.  Of course, these 
events along with any other event sponsored in whole or in part by the City would 
continue to be held on the Veterans Plaza. 
 
Attached are more comprehensive memoranda from staff covering this topic.   
 
As you know, Council speaks through its resolutions.  And the current resolution 
indicates that management selects a site for a limited public forum.  However, from your 
table discussions on March 21, 2005 and then again at the special meeting of March 28, 
2005, there’s a possibility that Council may wish to select the public forum site when this 
matter comes before you on April 4, 2005.  Given this possibility, I’ve drafted two 
resolutions for your consideration.  Resolution A is structured to conform with your 
existing directive.  This means that selection of the parking lot northwest of the 
Community Center as the area for a “limited public forum” is a given and Council is 
being asked to approve management’s recommended policy for governing public 
gatherings.  In Resolution B, the limited public forum area is not a given, and Council 
would need to designate the limited public forum area in Veterans Plaza or some other 
location. 
 
 

morrellca
Text Box
F-04



The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
Designation of Limited Public Forums (Revised from March 21, 2005 Green 
Memo) 
March 30, 2005 
Page Two 
 
 
 
For ease in reviewing this matter, I’m resubmitting copies of emails previously sent to 
you which have salience to the limited public forum discussion. 
 
As always, please feel free to contact me should you have any questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JS/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2005\04.04.05 – Designation of Limited Public Forums 
 
c: Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

Lori G. Bluhm, City Attorney 
 Laura Fitzpatrick, Acting Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Carolyn Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
 John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 Joe Malla, Chairman, Troy Veterans Committee 
 Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Cynthia Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 



TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Carolyn F. Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: March 30, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: National Day of Prayer 
 

 
 
 

This memorandum addresses the issue of site selection for the City’s proposed limited 
public forum on its property, for use by private entities for expressive purposes. 
 
It is important to first note that “the First Amendment does not guarantee access to 
property simply because it is owned or controlled by the government.”  U.S. Postal Serv. 
v Council of Greenburgh Civic Assn’s, 453 US 114, 129, 101 S.Ct. 2676, 69 L.Ed.2d 517 
(1981).  A government facility not committed to public communicative activity may 
regulate speech by the general public so long as the regulation is reasonable, and not 
based upon opposition to a particular viewpoint, because the government “may legally 
preserve the property under its control for the use to which it is dedicated.”  Id. at 131, 
quoting Lamb’s Chapel v Ctr. Moriches Union Free Sch. Dist., 508 US 384, 390, 113 
S.Ct. 2141, 124 L.Ed.2d 352 (1993).  Simply allowing access to government property 
does not transform it into a public forum.  Greer v Spock, 424 US 828, 836, 96 S.Ct. 
1211, 1216, 47 L.Ed. 505, 513 (1976).  Nor are the “mere physical characteristics of the 
property” dispositive of this question.  US v Kokinda, 497 US 720, 727, 110 S.Ct. 3115, 
3120, 111 L.Ed.2d 571 (1990). 
 
Courts have historically characterized government property such as parks, streets, and 
sidewalks as “traditional public forums”.  Perry Educ. Assn. v Perry Local Educators’ 
Assn, 460 US 37, 45, 103 S.Ct. 948, 954-55, 74 L.Ed.2d 794, 804.  These venues have 
historically been considered completely open to the public, “constitute…a necessary 
conduit in the daily affairs of a locality’s citizens” (Kokinda, supra, 497 US at 727) or 
“traditionally serve as a place for free public assembly and communication of thoughts by 
private citizens” (Greer, supra, 424 US at 838).     
 
Under these criteria, it does not appear that the Veterans’ Memorial Plaza (the “Plaza”) 
at Troy City Hall would constitute a traditional public forum.  The Plaza is not a park, nor 
has it ever been deemed or designated as completely open to the public at all times and 
under all circumstances.  Nor can it be reasonably compared to a street or other 
thoroughfare where citizens could freely assemble and communicate concerning any 
variety of topics.  To the contrary, the Veterans’ Memorial Plaza was created by the City, 
in conjunction with its Veterans’ Committee, “in honor of all the men and women who 
have served our country” (Resolution of August 20, 2001, Troy City Council) and has 
been centrally used for observances related to Veterans’ Day, and other activities 
honoring the contributions and sacrifices of military veterans, in keeping with the purpose 
for its origin. 
 



Furthermore, the past practice of allowing some intermittent speech activities on the 
Veterans’ Memorial Plaza does not by itself transform it into a public forum, whether 
traditional or limited.  As the US Supreme Court held in Cornelius v NAACP Legal 
Defense & Educational Fund, Inc., a government “does not create a public forum 
by…permitting limited discourse, but only by intentionally opening a non-traditional forum 
for public discourse” of a general nature.  473 US 788, 802, 105 S.Ct. 3439, 87 L.Ed.2d 
567 (1985).    
 
The proposed creation of a limited public forum in the vicinity of the City’s Community 
Center would constitute such an “intentional opening of a non-traditional forum for public 
discourse.” In contrast to a traditional public forum, such as parks, streets, or sidewalks, 
which would exist irrespective of governmental intent, the City may opt to create a limited 
public forum on its property for purposes of expressive activity.  Arkansas Educational 
Television Comm. v Forbes, 523 US 666, 678, 118 S.Ct. 1633, 140 L.Ed.2d 875 (1998).   
As this action would be at the City’s option, there is no requirement that any particular 
area be so designated. 
  
We would be pleased to respond to any questions. 

 



March 30, 2005 
 
 

 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 

Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
   Carol Anderson, Director of Parks and Recreation  
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning  
   Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Designated Limited Public Forum (Revised from Green Memo 

contained in the 3/21/05 Agenda) 
 
 
Assignment 
 
Per Resolution #2005-03-115 at the March 7, 2005 meeting, City Staff has prepared this 
report to select a site as a place for public gatherings and to propose language for 
governing public gatherings.  In legal terms, this type of space is referred to as a “limited 
public forum.” 
 
A Limited Public Forum on Civic Center Grounds 
 
In accordance with City Council resolution, City Staff has identified a public forum area in 
the parking lot north of the Community Center (in which the skate park is located).  The 
site has ample parking, easy access, and good visibility.  We recommend that this limited 
public forum be available to all parties on equal terms and be subject to rules and 
procedures similar to those that govern park shelter use (see below and attached). 
 
Park Shelters 
 
It is worth noting that there are park shelters located in our City parks that serve as 
gathering spaces for groups.  These shelters are available May 1st through October 1st.  
Reservations are made through the Parks and Recreation Department and are approved 
administratively on a first come-first serve basis.    Community service groups, church 
groups and family groups have utilized these shelters for gatherings.  As long as the group 
requesting a shelter is a Troy non-profit group, there is no requirement that the 75% 
residency requirement be met.  Note that all six shelters are available on May 5, 2005, the 
date of the National Day of Prayer event request. 
 
Veterans Plaza 
 
City Administration recommends adopting rules for Veterans Plaza, which permit only City-
sponsored or City co-sponsored events.  These events include, but are not limited to: 



Police Memorial Service, Veterans’ Day Memorial Service, Memorial Day Service, and the 
Holiday Tree Lighting.   
 
Limiting the events that take place at the Troy Veterans Plaza accomplishes three things: 
 

1. Prevents the appearance of the City endorsing an event, which it is not endorsing 
(i.e., a KKK assembly displayed in a newspaper photo in front of Troy City Hall). 

2. Ensures that the Veterans Plaza is reserved for desired purposes (i.e., A 
designation as a limited public forum where all uses are on a first-come, first serve 
basis would mean that the Plaza could be used by anti-war demonstrators on 
Veterans’ Day.).   

3. Minimizes disruption to business activities at City Hall:  A limited use of the 
Veterans Plaza ensures that front step access to City Hall is unimpeded, there is 
ample parking for City Hall visitors and noise and interruption is kept to a minimum. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

























 
 
DATE:   March 29, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   1998 Kirkton 
 
 
 
 
On February14, 2005, information was sent to William Hiner that identified restrictions 
related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of that 
information, he was advised that the Ford dump truck parked on the property did not 
comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  He was given the 
option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Mr. Hiner has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a 
public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has 
been scheduled for your meeting of April 18, 2005. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

morrellca
Text Box
G-01a



 



 



 



 



 



 



 
 
DATE:   March 29, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   1102 Boyd 
 
 
 
 
On March 16, 2005, information was sent to Nicholas Ianos that identified restrictions 
related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of that 
information, he was advised that the Dodge dump truck and wood chipper parked on 
the property did not comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  
He was given the option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the 
Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Ms. Irene Ianos has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests 
that a public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing 
has been scheduled for your meeting of April 18, 2005. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

morrellca
Text Box
G-01b



 



 



 



 
 



 
 
DATE:   March 29, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   6771 Westaway 
 
 
 
 
On February 22, 2005, information was sent to Henry Rowe that identified restrictions 
related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of that 
information, he was advised that the Ford cube van parked on the property did not 
comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  He was given the 
option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Mr. Rowe has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a 
public hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has 
been scheduled for your meeting of April 18, 2005. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

morrellca
Text Box
G-01c



 



 



 



 



TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John Lamerato, Asst. City Manager/Finance & Admin.  

Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
   
SUBJECT:  AGENDA ITEM  – Islamic Association of Michigan  
 
DATE:   March 30, 2005 
 
 
We have received a request from the Islamic Association of Michigan asking for City 
Council to mandate Comcast to place UHF TV Channel 33 on our basic cable lineup 
for Troy subscribers. 
 
The letter from Salah Aljahimc, President of the Islamic Association, stated that UHF 
TV-33 is currently included in the Comcast basic cable tier in Detroit and Highland 
Park.  This is not exactly accurate information according to Olivia Visperas, Comcast 
Area Director for Corporate Affairs (see attached memo).  Information received by 
calling UHF TV-33 is that they are a low power station owned by R. J. Watkins airing 
on Comcast in Detroit and Hamtramck and on Charter Communications in Highland 
Park.   
 
Please note, UHF TV-33 is not an “Islamic station.”  It is a small low power 
commercial station in Detroit that sells time slots and use of production facilities to a 
wide range of clients. All programs must comply with FCC rules and regulations.  The 
majority of programs currently airing on TV-33 deal with religion, politics or local 
entertainment.  The channel has been in existence for approximately 10 years. 
 
Initial conversations with both UHF TV-33 and Comcast indicate that UHF TV-33 isn’t 
equipped with enough power to cablecast to wider audiences, including Troy. 
 
For your information, WideOpenWest now offers the first English language TV 
channel targeting American Muslims in Southeast Michigan.  The channel, Bridges 
TV, focuses on featuring American Muslim lifestyle and culture. It will show 
newscasts, cartoons, family-friendly sitcoms and movies about Muslim life. The 
network is the first of its kind in English targeting more than seven million Muslims in 
the United States, one of the fastest-growing demographics in the nation. 
 
If Council would like us to look further into this matter please advise us and we will 
talk further with our contacts at Comcast.  
  
 
CS  

morrellca
Text Box
G-02a







 

Cindy – I received the copy of what looks like a form letter sent to the Troy City Council from the 
Islamic Association of Michigan.  I was able to get some information that is in conflict to what is written 
here.  First, we do not service the city of Highland Park, that service area is covered by Charter 
Communications.  Secondly, the Islamic Association is currently paying for part-time carriage on 
leased access by Comcast in city of Detroit, it is not being carried on the actual Comcast basic 
channel lineup – in fact, no contract has been signed.  Third, while it is true that the city of Hamtramck 
has passed a resolution to carry this particular channel, there is no agreement by Comcast for carriage 
at this point, and extensive negotiations would have to take place before that ever became a reality.  
Comcast officials in Detroit have met with representatives from the Islamic Association of Michigan 
and will continue to do so.  We have asked for a development outline from them, which would have to 
include their penetration forecasts and address their poor signal issues (which they have said would 
be cleared up in six months) before any request for carriage could be considered, and also, the 
potential addition of a new channel would need to involve discussions with our corporate programming 
office.  At this time, we will keep the dialogue open and will wait for them to report back to us.   
  
For your additional information, when we receive requests for carriage of a new channel, many factors 
are taken into consideration, including: 

   FCC regulations, such as requirements to carry all local broadcast channels 
   Requirements by local broadcasters to carry their affiliated cable networks 
   The number of access channels required by local government 
   Customer satisfaction with networks carried in other systems 
   Customer satisfaction with similar networks 
   Importance of the network to our diverse community 
   Level of interest across a percentage of our customer base 
   Per-subscriber programming fees charged by the network versus the value added to the line-

up 
  
I hope this information will assist you in the formulation of a response by the Troy City Council to the 
Islamic Association of Michigan regarding their channel carriage request. 
  
Please let me know if you have additional questions. 
  
Olivia J. Visperas 
Area Director, Corporate Affairs 
Comcast - Detroit East 
36250 Van Dyke  
Sterling Heights, MI 48312 
586.883.7042 
586.883.7117 fax 
  
  
 

 



morrellca
Text Box
H-01













1 

TROY HISTORIC COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL OCTOBER 26, 2004 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic Commission was held Tuesday, October 26, 
2004 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. Rosemary Kornacki called the meeting to 
order at 7:40 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Terry Navratil 
   Kevin Lindsey 
   Roger Kaniarz 
  Brian Wattles 
  Vera Milz 
  Ed Bortner 
  Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 
  Ramya Gopal, Student Representative 
 
 ABSENT: Rosemary Kornacki 
 
 
Resolution #HDC-2004-10-001 
Moved by Kaniarz  
Seconded by Bortner 
 
RESOLVED, That absences Kornacki be approved 
Yes: 6 Navratil, Lindsey, Kaniarz, Bortner, Wattles, and Milz 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDC-2004-10-002 
Moved by Navratil   
Seconded by Lindsey 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of September 28, 2004 be approved  
Yes: 6 Navratil, Lindsey, Kaniarz, Bortner, Wattles, and Milz 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

    
OLD BUSINESS 

 
A. Capital Projects  

Church and Parsonage  
Gerry Yurk is finishing final punch list items. 
 
Other Capital Projects: 
Accessibility Ramps 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01a



2 

The ramps are finished and inspected. They cannot be used until we put cold 
patch approaches or install the paver pathways. 
 
Paver Pathways 
The paver pathway project for the church, parsonage and town hall + Caswell 
and Poppleton ramp approaches is out to bid. The paths will be installed in the 
spring. 
 
Slate Roof Repairs (main building) 
We will have a slate roof consultant complete the specifications for this project 
that includes: 

1. Replacing corroded flashings 
2. Repairing/ replacing any damaged slate 
3. Installing snow guards 
4. Installing new gutters and downspouts 

The completed specs will go out for bid this winter so the contractors can be 
slated to begin work in the spring. Loraine will find an appropriate roof consultant 
using resources of the MHPN and architects with historic restoration credentials. 
 
Masonry repairs to main building 
 Mark Stimac will complete specifications for repairs to the following: 

1. Corroded angle irons and lintels 
2. Retaining wall and handicap ramp 
3. Brick piers, front steps and railings 

The completed specs will go out for bid this winter so the contractors can 
be slated to begin work in the spring. 
 

Temporary repairs to the railings and repair/replacement of the wooden pillars 
and porch elements will be completed this fall by building operations. 
 
Poppleton furnace 
A new furnace is beginning installed in the Poppleton School crawl space this 
week. 
 

B. Programs 
See Attendance Reports 
 

C. Interns 
All work on the cemetery project was completed satisfactorily 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
A. Grants 

NEH Grant 
Loraine has filed a grant application to the National Endowment for the 
Humanities. The grant requests $30,900 for steel shelving, museum quality 
storage cabinets, dollies and rolling ladders to furnish the church basement and 
parsonage and improve storage in the archive. The salaries of Bill Boardman, 



3 

Kathrin Jaeger, Loraine Campbell and Building Operations personnel to 
assemble the units and consulting services for Dr. Phil Mason provide the 50% in 
kind match. If awarded, the funds will be available July 1. 
 
MAP 
Loraine will apply for a grant to fund a Museum Assessment through the 
American Association of Museums. MAPs are excellent programs for self 
assessment and assessment from other museum professionals. They help 
museums frame strategic master plans and are an important step in the process 
of accreditation.  

 
B. Troy Historical Society Liaison Report 

Heritage Campaign 
Arcadia Book- 
We have received one advance copy of the book. Order coupons are inserted in 
this cycle of water bills. The Heritage Campaign Committee is ordering 1,400 
books to fill anticipated orders. 

 
C. New Acquisitions: 

See attached reports. 
 

D. Staff 
Debra Newby was hired to replace Karen Koch she began work on October 19. 
The new staff seems enthusiastic and has been warmly received by current staff 
members. 

 
The Troy Historic Commission Meeting was adjourned at 8:55 p.m.  The next regular 
meeting will be held Tuesday, November 25, 2004 at 7:30 p.m. at the Troy Museum & 
Historic Village.  
 

 
 
Brian Wattles 
Acting Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC STUDY COMMITTEE – FINAL NOVEMBER 4, 2004 
 
This Meeting of the Troy Historic Study Committee was held Thursday, November 4, 
2004 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was called to order at 7:40 
P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Kevin Lindsey 
   Marjorie Biglin 
   Paul Lin 
  Bob Miller 
  Linda Rivetto 
   Charlene Harris 
 
  ABSENT: Kinda Hupman 
    
  STAFF: Loraine Campbell 
 
Resolution #HDC-2004-11-001 
Moved by Rivetto  
Seconded by Harris 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Hupman be excused. 
Yes: 6 Lindsey, Biglin, Lin, Miller, Rivetto, and Harris 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDC-2004-11-002 
Moved by Miller  
Seconded by Harris 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the October 5, 2004 meeting be approved 
Yes: 6 Lindsey, Biglin, Lin, Miller, Rivetto, and Harris  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Request to de-list 2356 E. Long Lake Rd 
Kevin Lindsey presented a letter from Brian Conway of the Department of History 
Arts and Letters that stated the preliminary report to de-list 2356 E. Long Lake 
did not provide sufficient information to serve as a legal basis for eliminating the 
district. The letter requested that the report be amended to contain: 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01b



2 

a. Provide information from the original study report and show where it is 
deficient. Include data on the relationship of the house (or lack of 
relationship) with Thomas Gibson 

b. Provide an account of the alterations, an assessment of their significance 
in terms of the original style and architecture, and when they occurred. 

c. Describe how the Study Committee used defective procedures when 
establishing the district. 

The Millers stated they could verify window replacements were completed in 
1985, and that the stated historic significance of the windows was due to 
improper installation rather than historic use of the windows.  
 
The plat map showing the misidentification of the house site as the Thomas 
Gibson land can be provided. 
 
The Millers will obtain data from the County Clerk regarding date of construction 
of the house. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
The hearing regarding de-listing of 2356 E. Long Lake Road was called to order 
at 8:20 p.m.  No other objections to delisting the property were presented.  
 

Resolution #HDC-2004-11-003 
Moved by Lin  
Seconded by Biglin 
 
RESOLVED, That the preliminary report including the additions requested by the 
Department of History Arts and Libraries be approved 
Yes: 6 Lindsey, Biglin, Lin, Miller, Rivetto, and Harris  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

The hearing was adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 
 

B. 46 E. Square Lake Road 
Linda Rivetto stated that it is obvious that further action on this or other 
properties is hampered by the lack of documentation by the original Study 
Committee. She asked if Dorothy Scott and Tammy Renshaw can be contacted 
to see if they still provide copies of old records.  Loraine will follow through on 
these calls. 
 

C. 5875 Livernois 
A reply to W. E. Davis was edited and will be sent by Kevin Lindsey.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Potential Historic Districts 



3 

Discussion was deferred. 
 
The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 8:45 p.m.  The next 
regular meeting will be held Tuesday, November 20, 2004 at 7:30 p.m. at the Troy 
Museum & Historic Village. 

 
 
                  
Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC STUDY COMMITTEE – FINAL NOVEMBER 30, 2004 
 
This Meeting of the Troy Historic Study Committee was held Thursday, November 20, 
2004 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village as a part of the regular Historic District 
Commission meeting. The meeting was called to order at 7:40 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Kevin Lindsey 
   Marjorie Biglin 
   Paul Lin 
  Bob Miller 
  Linda Rivetto 
   Charlene Harris 
   Kinda Hupman 
    
  STAFF: Loraine Campbell 
 
Resolution #HDC-2004-11-001 
Moved by Miller  
Seconded by Harris 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the November 4, 2004 meeting be approved 
Yes: 7 Lindsey, Biglin, Lin, Miller, Rivetto, Harris, and Hupman  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Request to de-list 2356 E. Long Lake Rd 
The Millers will provide construction of the house that show that the historic 
significance of the structure, as reported in the original study committee research 
is invalid. The report will then be refiled with the Department of History Arts and 
Libraries. 
 

B. 46 E. Square Lake Road 
The letter to Wm. Davis will be edited and mailed 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
A. Review of other Historic Districts 

Inaccuracies in the records for 2356 E. Long Lake Road confirm the need to 
evaluate the records for all designated resources in the city.  It is necessary to 
verify existing information and provide missing documentation. This will be a 
significant challenge for the committee.  Loraine will try to contact Dorothy Scott 
about obtaining her copies of records to assist in this process. 

B. Potential Historic Districts 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01c



2 

The committee discussed the Troy Farm site at South Blvd. and Beach Rd. that 
is part of the Lloyd A. Stage Nature Center. The barns on the property probably 
date to 1860 and 1890.  The farm site is one of the few remaining in the city. 
Loraine will discuss with Allan Motzny provisions in the ordinance for designating 
resources owned by the city.  

 
 
The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 8:15 p.m.  The next 
regular meeting will be held Tuesday, January 4, 2005 at 7:30 p.m. at the Troy Museum 
& Historic Village. 

 
 
                  
Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE – FINAL JANUARY 4, 2005 
 
This Meeting of the Troy Historic Study Committee was held Tuesday January 4, 2005 
at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was called to order at 7:35 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Kevin Lindsey 
  Bob Miller 
  Linda Rivetto 
   Charlene Harris 
   Kinda Hupman 
 
  ABSENT: Marjorie Biglin 
   Paul Lin 
    
  STAFF: Loraine Campbell 
 
Resolution #HDC-2005-01-001 
Moved by Miller  
Seconded by Rivetto 
 
RESOLVED, That the absences of Biglin and Lin be excused 
Yes: 5 Lindsey, Miller, Rivetto, Harris, and Hupman  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDC-2005-01-002 
Moved by Miller  
Seconded by Rivetto 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the November 30, 2004 meeting be approved as 
amended 
Yes: 5 Lindsey, Miller, Rivetto, Harris, and Hupman  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Request to de-list 2356 E. Long Lake Rd 
The final report is still being completed. 
 

B. 46 E. Square Lake Road 
no report 
 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01d



2 

NEW BUSINESS 
A. Review of other Historic Districts 

The committee began to discuss procedures for completing new surveys. Loraine 
will see if copies of the book, How Old Is This House are available for the 
committee members. 
 

B. Potential Historic Districts 
No report. 

 
 
The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 9:30 p.m.  The next 
regular meeting will be held Tuesday, February 1, 2005 at 7:30 p.m. at the Troy 
Museum & Historic Village. 

 
 
                  
Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL JANUARY 25, 2005 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic Commission was held Tuesday, January 25, 
2005 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. Rosemary Kornacki called the meeting to 
order at 7:40 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Rosemary Kornacki 
  Terry Navratil 
   Kevin Lindsey 
   Roger Kaniarz 
  Brian Wattles 
  Vera Milz 
  Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 
  Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
 ABSENT: Ed Bortner 
  Ramya Gopal, Student Representative 
 
 
Resolution #HDC-2005-01-001 
Moved by Navratil  
Seconded by Wattles 
 
RESOLVED, That absences of Bortner and Gopal be approved 
Yes: 6 Kornacki, Navratil, Lindsey, Kaniarz, Wattles, and Milz 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDC-2005-01-002 
Moved by Lindsey  
Seconded by Kaniarz 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of October 26, 2004 be approved as amended  
Yes: 6  Kornacki, Navratil, Lindsey, Kaniarz, Wattles, and Milz 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

    
OLD BUSINESS 

 
A. Capital Projects  

Paver Pathways 
Six bids ranging from $76,928 to $50, 289 were received for the paver project. 
The bid by Mueller’s Sunrise Nursery for $50,289.38 was approved by City 
Council. The work will commence when the weather permits in Spring 2005.  

 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01e



2 

Slate Roof Repairs (main building) 
Loraine, Brian Stoutenburg and Brian Murphy met with Eugene Hopkins, an 
architect from the Smith Group regarding proposed repairs to the slate roof on 
the main museum building.  Following a visual inspection, Mr. Hopkins said the 
roof appears in remarkably good condition for its 87 years of service. However, it 
is apparent some repairs need to be completed to keep it in good repair. A closer 
inspection conducted in the rafters will reveal the need for further repairs. Three 
qualified firms were asked to submit quotes to write the specifications. Gerald 
Yurk Associates had the low bid ($4,480.00) They have begun work on the 
project and will complete the interior and exterior inspections on January 26, 
2005. The goal is retain a qualified contractor and complete repairs by June 30. 
 
Masonry repairs to main building 
Mark Stimac retrieved construction drawings for the old accessibility ramp. He is 
developing specifications for the masonry, ramp, steps and brick piers repairs 

 
Building operations completed temporary repairs to the railings and repair/ 
replacement of the wooden pillars and porch elements. 
 
Troy Farm- Small Barn 
The smaller of the two barns at the Farm Site of the Lloyd A. Stage Nature 
Center is now unstable. See attached report provided by barn consultant, Steven 
Stier. While the barn is administered through the Parks and Recreation 
Department, it is an historic structure dating to the Civil War Era. It is also 
possible that some of the timbers or sills might be used in a barn restoration 
project at the Museum. Therefore, the City will consider stabilizing the structure 
for 3-5 years, rather than razing it. Stabilization specifications have been written 
by Steven Stier and are under reviewed by Mark Stimac.  Mr. Stier indicated that 
stabilization costs may be equivalent to demolition costs. 
 

B. Programs 
See Attendance Reports.  
School group attendance was down slightly in the fall, however public program 
and walk-in attendance increased significantly. 

 
Hanging of the Greens record high attendance and was very well received. 

 
Spring public program copy was submitted to Troy Today. It includes an 
improved Pioneer Green Thumbs Program and two workshops hosted by the 
Historic District Commission/ 
 
Staff is planning a concert series as part of the 2005 anniversary celebration. Tim 
McGee submitted grants to the Michigan Humanities Council for funds to offset 
costs for six concerts. 
 
The date for Heritage Day was shifted to city’s birthday weekend, June 18-19. 
 



3 

C. Interns 
Dan Fodale, an English major from Oakland University will edit the compiled 
research on Solomon Caswell completed by a prior intern. The Museum Guild 
will publish the Caswell biography and transcription of his memoirs in 2005. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
A. Grants 

The grant application to fund a Museum Assessment through the American 
Association of Museums was completed and mailed November 22, 2004.  
Loraine recommended that the assessment team include Rosemary Kornacki 
and Terry Navratil. The Museum will be notified of rewards in April. 
 

Resolution #HDC-2005-01-003 
Moved by Lindsey  
Seconded by Kaniarz 
 
RESOLVED, That Kornacki and Lindsey serve on the Assessment Team if the 
MAP grant is funded  
Yes: 6  Kornacki, Navratil, Lindsey, Kaniarz, Wattles, and Milz 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

B. HDC Nominee 
Dean Blythe will not accept reappointment to the Historic District Commission. 

 
C. Rearrangement of the Wagon Shop 

The Commission reviewed recommendations presented by Roger Kaniarz and 
the blacksmiths to rearrange the interior of the shop to allow visitors to pass 
through the shop exiting by the back door. This arrangement would provide them 
a better view of the forge and relieve the bottleneck that occurs in the front of the 
building during special events. Loraine commented that these changes might be 
incorporated this summer or when capital repairs are completed on the building. 

 
D. Troy Historical Society Liaison Report 

Heritage Campaign 
Arcadia Book- Book sales have been excellent. The Society has sold or 
commissioned all but 100 of the 1360 books they purchased. The book is in its 
second printing. The Society plans to place another order of 400 books. 

 
Hand and Eye Show- The November event netted just over $20,000 

 
Appraisal Fair- Scheduled April 30. This is planned to be a second annual 
fundraising event. 

 



4 

Barnard Home- On January 24, City Council approved the gift of Harriet 
Barnard’s home to the city following conditions in the attached document. 

 
E. New Acquisitions: 

See attached reports. 
 

F. Meeting schedule for 2005 
The Commission discussed reducing their number of meetings to five per year. 
Additional meeting could be scheduled if properly posted following the 
requirements of Section 4 of the Open Meetings Act, (MCLA 15.261 et seq.) 
 

Resolution #HDC-2005-01-004 
Moved by Wattles  
Seconded by Navratil 
 
RESOLVED, That the Historical Commission hold regular meetings on the fourth 
Tuesday of January, March, June, September and October and that additional 
meetings be scheduled, if necessary following the requirements of Section 4 of 
the Open Meetings Act (MCL 15.261 et seq.) 
Yes: 6  Kornacki, Navratil, Lindsey, Kaniarz, Wattles, and Milz 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Troy Historic Commission Meeting was adjourned at 9:35 p.m.  The next regular 
meeting will be held Tuesday, March 22, 2005 at 7:30 p.m. at the Troy Museum & 
Historic Village.  
 

 
                  
Rosemary Kornacki 
Co- Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC STUDY COMMITTEE – FINAL FEBRUARY 1, 2005 
 
This Meeting of the Troy Historic Study Committee was held Tuesday February 1, 2005 
at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was called to order at 7:40 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Kevin Lindsey 
  Bob Miller 
  Linda Rivetto 
   Charlene Harris 
   Kinda Hupman 
   Marjorie Biglin 
   Paul Lin 
    
  STAFF: Loraine Campbell 
 
 
Resolution #HDC-2005-02-001 
Moved by Hupman  
Seconded by Harris 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the January 4, 2005  meeting be approved  
Yes: 7 Lindsey, Miller, Rivetto, Harris, Hupman, Biglin and Lin 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Request to de-list 2356 E. Long Lake Rd 
The final report was reviewed and approved by the Commission. 
 

Resolution #HDC-2005-02-002 
Moved by Lin  
Seconded by Rivetto 
 
RESOLVED, That the final report to de-list 2356 E. Square Lake Road be 
submitted to the Department of History Arts and Letters  
Yes: 6 Lindsey, Rivetto, Harris, Hupman, Biglin and Lin 
No: 0 
Abstain: 1Miller 

 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

B. 46 E. Square Lake Road 
No Report 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01f



2 

C. 5875 Livernois 
The Commission reviewed the revised letter to homeowner William Davis that 
outlined the requirements of Chapter 13 and reassured him that designation does 
not mandate that he complete repairs that will cause him a financial hardship. It 
also outlined the benefits of historic designation. 
 

 Resolution #HDC-2005-02-003 
Moved by Miller  
Seconded by Rivetto 
 
RESOLVED, That the revised letter to William Davis owner of 5875 Livernois is 
approved and shall be mailed. 
Yes: 7 Lindsey, Rivetto, Harris, Hupman, Biglin, Miller and Lin 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

D. Survey of Existing Structures 
Members were each provided with a copy of  How Old Is This House. Loraine 
reported that Dorothy Scott was contacted and said she has no files related to 
the original survey work. They discussed a workflow for completing new 
inventories. The March meeting will be dedicated to an expanded discussion of 
this topic. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Application for Certified Local Government and role of the Study 
Committee 
The committee reviewed and commented on and made constructive edits to the 
application, specifically the portions related to the role of the Study Committee 

 
 
The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 9:45 p.m.  The next 
regular meeting will be held Tuesday, March 1, 2005 at 7:30 p.m. at the Troy Museum & 
Historic Village. 

 
 
                  
Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                  February 14, 2005 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, February 14, 
2005 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Committee 
member Henry K. Allemon called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    James R. Peard 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Patrick C. Hall 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Ehlert and Hall 
 
Resolution #LC2005-02-001 
Moved by Peard 
Seconded by Bennett 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Ehlert and Hall at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of February 14, 2005 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5  
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Hall 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of December 13, 2004 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2005-02-002 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the December 13, 2004 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01g



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                  February 14, 2005 
 

Page 2 of 2 

 
Yes:  5  
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Hall 
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1.   LNT WEST, INC., requests a new SDM license to be located at 790 E. Big 

Beaver Rd., Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County.  [MLCC REQ ID# 276831]     
Linens n’ Things 

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Kelly Allen and Laura Peters of 
Adkison, Need & Allen law firm. 
 
Linens n’ Things is a nationwide department store chain specializing in household items. 
 In an attempt to offer their customers a “one-stop shopping” opportunity, they are 
requesting a SDM license which will allow them to sell beer and wine for off-premise 
consumption.  The stores will also be increasing their specialty food inventory to include 
items that would normally be included in a gift basket.  They will train all employees 
through the TIPS program and will update their cash registers to include a machine that 
will require the driver’s license of the customer be swiped before the alcohol purchase 
can be completed.  There are currently five stores in Michigan where the SDM license 
has been requested. 
 
Resolution #LC2005-02-003 
Moved by Peard 
Seconded by Bennett 
 
RESOLVED, that LNT WEST, INC., be granted a new SDM license to be located at 790 
E. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County.  [MLCC REQ ID# 276831]      
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Hall 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                  February 14, 2005 
 

Page 3 of 3 

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:27 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Henry W. Allemon 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

The Chairman, Matthew Kovacs, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, February 15, 2005 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Marcia Gies 
   Michael Hutson 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JANUARY 18, 2005 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of January 18, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Fejes, Gies, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Courtney 
Abstain: 1 – Wright 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED  
 
ITEM #2 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  NINO SALVAGGIO INVESTMENT CO. OF 
TROY, 6835 ROCHESTER ROAD, for relief of the Ordinance to maintain a 6’ high 
landscaped berm in lieu of the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the south 
and west sides of the property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board to provide a landscaped berm in place of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall 
required along the south property line and the west boundary line.  This relief has been 
granted on a yearly basis since 1995.  This item last appeared before this Board at the 
February 2002 meeting and was granted a three-year renewal at that time.  This 
renewal was granted based on the fact that the property to the west was approved for 
the development of a 50 plus townhouse community and the approval of a site plan for 
new development on the south.   The development to the west has commenced and is 
about 20% occupied.  The previously approved development to the south has not 
commenced.  Other than that, the conditions remain the same and we have no 
complaints or objections on file. 
 
 

 1

morrellca
Text Box
J-01h



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kirk Taylor, President of Nino Salvaggio’s was present.  Mr. Taylor stated that there 
is a 50’ E-P Zone next to the developed property on the west side and would like to see 
a permanent variance be granted on that side.  On the south side of the property, the 
development that was proposed did not include the property that the kennel is on and 
this property is landlocked, which would prevent further development in this area.  Mr. 
Taylor asked if this variance could also be made a permanent variance. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the development on the west side was complete, although 
occupancy was not complete.  Mr. Taylor said that was correct. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
MOVED, to grant a three-year (3) renewal to Nino Salvaggio Investment Co. of Troy, 
6835 Rochester Road, relief of the Ordinance to maintain a 6’ high landscaped berm in 
lieu of the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the south and west sides of 
the property.  Further, that when this variance comes up for renewal in 2008, that a new 
public hearing be scheduled to consider making this a permanent variance. 
 

• In 2008, occupancy should be complete in the developments surrounding this 
property. 

• A new public hearing will determine if these variances can be made permanent. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT RENEWAL OF VARIANCE FOR THREE (3) YEARS CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  TIM JUDY, 2352 LANERGAN, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a family room addition on the rear of his home, which will result 
in a 40’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum rear yard 
setback in R-1B Zoning. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a family room addition on the rear of his home, which will result in a proposed 40’ rear 
yard setback.  Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in R-1B 
Zoning. 
 
Mr. Judy was present and stated that he and his wife have five children and basically 
they have run out of room.  They have looked into the possibility of moving, and 
although they have looked at approximately 45 homes they have found that new 
construction is too expensive, and homes that are affordable would put them in the 
same situation they are in now.  They would like to keep their children in the same 
schools.  Mr. Judy also said that they feel this is the best location for the addition as the 
house is set backwards on the lot and if they went off of the family room and kitchen 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
area the setback would be reduced even more.  Mr. Judy said that they had considered 
putting the addition on the back of the garage, however, with seven people in the home, 
they would like to retain the option of adding another garage at some later date.  In 
addition, they would like to put a basement under this addition. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they had discontinued looking at other houses.  Mr. Judy said that 
his sister-in-law is a realtor and she sends them regular e-mails showing what is 
available.  Mr. Judy indicated that when he finds something that is affordable there is no 
difference in the size of the homes, and new construction is not affordable. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Tim Judy, 2352 Lanergan, relief of the Ordinance to construct a family 
room addition on the rear of his home, which will result in a 40’ rear yard setback where 
Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in R-1B Zoning. 
 

• Irregular shape of lot creates a hardship. 
• Variance would not be contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – INTERPRETATION REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. GEORGE REED & MR. 
THOMAS KRENT, 3129 ALPINE, regarding the issuance of a building permit to 
construct a garage at 3129 Alpine. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are appealing the issuance of a building permit 
to construct a garage a 3129 Alpine.  In support of that appeal they are requesting 
interpretation of Sections 1.30.00, 2.30.00, 2.50.02, 4.20.01, 4.20.03, 4.20.65, 4.20.71, 
4.20.139, 10.10.00, 3.40.03 and 40.57.02 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance as they apply to 
that structure.  The permit for this structure was issued in 2003 because the structure 
was found to be in compliance with the requirements of the Troy Zoning Ordinance.  We 
have included all information provided by the applicants in support of their request 
however, without any specific information on the basis for their appeal of these sections, 
we are unable to provide a response at this time. 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs expressed concern about the lack of information provided by the petitioner 
and asked if additional information had been received.  Mr. Stimac explained that the 
petitioner had delivered a disc that contains numerous pictures and a reference to other 
sections, however, nothing else was received.  Mr. Stimac also indicated that Mr. 
Kingsepp would probably use this disc as well as others during his presentation. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that the petitioners are asking the Board to interpret a number of 
sections of the Ordinance but they have not provided any information as to how they 
have interpreted these sections of the Ordinance and what result they would like to see.  
Mr. Kovacs also stated that Mr. Piscopo has not been able to see any of the petitioner’s 
evidence and City Staff has not been able to prepare a rebuttal for the objections to the 
interpretation of these sections and asked if any other Board members had a problem 
with this item. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he is not sure exactly what the Board is dealing with.  Mr. 
Courtney also said that he had looked at the building and did not like it either, but was 
not sure if this building was put up according to the Ordinance which section of the 
Ordinance it would violate. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he personally would like to see more data and how the petitioner 
feels that this structure does not meet the requirements of the Ordinance.   
 
Mr. John Kingsepp, representing the petitioners was present.  Mr. Kingsepp said that he 
had informed the Assistant City Attorney that he would be providing by disc and laptop 
the background for this petition, but not his argument and she agreed that this would be 
fine.  Mr. Kingsepp said that they are objecting to the Building Official’s decision to issue 
a Building Permit for this structure.  Mr. Kingsepp said that he planned to show a 
presentation with simulations regarding this structure.  Mr. Kovacs said that he is 
concerned because the property owner in this case does not have any idea what would 
be presented tonight.  Mr. Kingsepp said that the property owner is not the applicant, 
the real interested party is the City and their interpretation.  Mr. Kingsepp also said that 
if the owner of the property came forward and said he did not have enough information 
regarding this petition, the matter could be postponed until he felt he had enough 
information; however, Mr. Kingsepp was not aware of anything in the Ordinance that 
states he had to supply the owner with this information.    
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he is looking for an interpretation of these issues and is concerned 
that the homeowner does not have any knowledge of this hearing.  Mr. Kovacs then 
said that even though Mr. Kingsepp said this issue doesn’t involve the homeowner, 
ultimately the structure is the homeowner’s and he would be affected.  Mr. Kingsepp 
said that he would not predict the outcome of this hearing and would suggest that if any 
member of this body feels the homeowner should present their case, he would be 
willing to postpone this request until another meeting.   Mr. Kovacs said that he just 
wants to make sure that this Board is fair to everyone. 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Motzny said that the Board has the discretion  to postpone this matter if they feel 
additional information is needed, however, he would suggest that the Board listen to the 
presentation and make a decision after this presentation. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if this Board was being asked to provide an interpretation of the 
various sections of the Ordinance that were used to grant this Building Permit.  Mr. 
Motzny said that this question would be better directed to the petitioner, although, Mr. 
Motzny said that he understands the petitioners believe the Building Permit was issued 
incorrectly based on their interpretation of the Ordinance.  Mr. Maxwell then asked if this 
Board had the power to rescind this Building Permit.  Mr. Motzny said that it was within 
this Board’s power to determine that the Building Official made a decision to issue a 
Building Permit that was in violation of the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that officially the Board does not have the power to rescind the permit.  
The Board does have the power to find that the permit was issued contrary to the 
provisions of the Zoning Ordinance.  On that finding, it is the Building Official’s 
responsibility to enforce this decision and take whatever steps are necessary to make 
sure that this building would comply with the Ordinance.  Mr. Motzny said that this 
interpretation was correct. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that the booklet he was given did not define any of the sections the 
petitioners mentioned.  Mr. Kingsepp stated that the information was on a disc, but Mr. 
Courtney said that he did not have the ability to look at a disc.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the petitioner stated that he does not have to show any of his 
material to the homeowner and Mr. Kovacs asked for an interpretation on this statement 
by City staff.  Mr. Motzny said that there is no requirement under the Ordinance that the 
petitioner provide any of his information to the homeowner, as long as the petitioner’s 
information is provided to members of the Board. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that this Building Permit was issued in the summer of 2003 and the 
building is complete.  Ordinance 43.55.00 states that “….any person or entity affected 
by the decision of Director of Building and Zoning may appear at the hearing in person 
or by a representative …..” and in Mr. Hutson’s opinion means that this appearance 
would be done at the time the permit is issued and not after completion of the 
construction.  Mr. Hutson also said that perhaps this item should be presented in Circuit 
Court.  Mr. Kingsepp said that this was a good observation, but that he has to go 
through the administrative process as suggested by case law.  The appeal taken under 
the City’s Ordinances and under the State Enabling Act allows him to go to Circuit 
Court.  Mr. Kingsepp also said that according to the Ordinance there was no hearing on 
this matter, the Building Permit was issued and the residents were not aware of what 
was going up until it was already in the process of being done.  The residents 
approached City Council as they felt this was the proper procedure and since no 
occupancy permit has been issued, the residents have the right to object.  Mr. Hutson  

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
also said that they should have come to the Board of Zoning Appeals first.  Mr. 
Kingsepp said that this was not true as it should have been the owner of the property 
who would have had to appear before this Board. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he wished Mr. Kingsepp to make his presentation and said they 
may not open it up to a Public Hearing.  Mr. Kovacs also said that he did not want to 
hear anything regarding the debris in the yard and some of the other things in the yard 
of this property.  Mr. Kovacs said that this would not be a complaint fest and further 
stated that anyone that speaks on this item would have to limit their comments only to 
the structure itself. 
 
Mr. Kingsepp said that he had spoken to their clients and told them that they should be 
very succinct and very pointed regarding the issue itself, which is the size of the 
structure.  Mr. Kingsepp also said that the site is depicted in the CD Rom.  Mr. Kovacs 
said that he did not want this to be a catfight between neighbors and Mr. Kingsepp 
agreed with this statement. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he felt that any type of commercial activity at this site would also 
be relevant to this hearing.  Mr. Kovacs said that this would be considered more a use 
violation and is not based on the structure.   Mr. Maxwell said that he thinks this issue 
would be relevant to this hearing.  Mr. Courtney also said that there are a number of 
people who do believe he is using this as a commercial site, but does not believe that is 
something this Board can address.  Mr. Kovacs also said that it is up to the Building 
Department to make sure he is in compliance with the code. 
 
Mr. Kingsepp said that in the presentation there is a demonstration simulating the size 
of the structure and what it could be used for as to the interior.  The purpose of that has 
a direct connection to the definitions in the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Kovacs cautioned the Board as to what they are to understand and what they are 
here to interpret. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if there were some recommendations made to change the 
Ordinance to not allow this size structure to be built in a residential area.  Mr. Stimac 
said that there are Public Hearings that have been conducted in front of the Planning 
Commission proposing revisions to the Zoning Ordinance relating  to the size of 
accessory buildings both attached and detached.  Those Public Hearings were held and 
a recommendation was made to City Council as a result, City Council referred it back to 
the Planning Commission for further study on specific items, which was held on 
February 7, 2005.  Mr. Stimac said that he thought the new recommendations would be 
going back to City Council in March. 
 
Mr. Wright said that at the Planning Commission meeting of February 7th, the item was 
postponed as the Planning Commission is committed to the maximum height of 8’ for a  

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
garage door height, which was questioned by Council.  There was a difference between 
the recommendations of the Planning Commission and City staff’s recommendations 
and Mr. Wright said that they were quite sure they would be able to bring this before 
Council some time in March. 
 
Mr. John Kingsepp began his presentation and said that this a very unusual request.  
This locale consists of single-family residences and 3129 Alpine is the residence that 
has the 6000 square foot attached garage that is in question.  Mr. Kingsepp also said 
that he thought a proposed development of condominiums on the corner had been 
approved and was also a single-family multiple development.  This area is geared 
toward single-family living.  The application applied for in July 2003, contains reference 
to an addition and a 6000 square foot attached garage.  Mr. Kingsepp stated that this is 
the applicant’s description of what that structure was going to be.  The Building 
Department stated that this structure would have to meet all codes and inspections.  
The Building Permit spoke in the context of a garage.  This word is defined in the 
Zoning Code.  The applicant forwarded a supplemental explanation August 6, 2003, 
using the adoptive word garage so that he may park his equipment and/or his 
commercial vehicle.  This is what the applicant’s intention was.   
 
The locale of the particular structure shows storage in one area, materials in another 
area, storage beside the building, and no indication of a single commercial vehicle.  Mr. 
Kingsepp said that he did not know if the structure was being constructed to store that, 
but he did not construe that to mean equipment necessary for the business that is being 
constructed from this site.  Mr. Kingsepp showed pictures depicting the height of this 
structure as compared to people and the adjoining property.  There are two (2) doors on 
the garage, one a pedestrian door, about 8’ tall, and the other door is 14’ high.  In most 
communities the height of a garage is 14’, in this case the door is 14’ high.  Mr. 
Kingsepp showed pictures taken in the inside with a number of vehicles inside and also 
shows what appears to be an appliance being stored inside.  The area around this 
home is serene, quaint and unencumbered by large buildings.  It includes garages that 
are attached to the house that are the same roof height, and have the same 
architectural flow. The City Assessor reviewed this area and stated that it has some of 
the largest attached garages in the community.   
 
Mr. Kingsepp said that the structure in question is manufactured by Star Building 
Products, which manufacturers warehouses, airplane hangers, shopping centers and 
industrial buildings.  This company does not manufacture garages that one would deem 
appropriate to a residential district.  Mr. Kingsepp went on to say that these are 
commercial structures.  In this particular structure, 6,000 square feet, two 18-wheelers 
as well as twenty-two (22) full-size pickup trucks would fit inside.  The structure itself is 
3.78 times larger than the main residence on the site, which is a single-family residence.  
Mr. Kingsepp had pictures of similar buildings in Troy, which are in Light Industrial 
Zoning Districts, not Residential Zoning but had a similar appearance to the garage in 
question.  Statement of applicant indicated an attached garage, and Mr. Kingsepp said  

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
this is not an attached garage, but a commercial sized building that can accommodate 
equipment and certainly more than one commercial vehicle.   
 
The opportunity now exists for this type of construction to be attached to other homes in 
Troy as long as the lot size can accommodate it.  This is the result of this type of 
intrusion.  Mr. Kingsepp also said that he cannot determine anywhere in the City Code 
that this is what the City wants.    
 
Mr. Kingsepp showed pictures of attached garages and pointed out the relationship of 
the size of the attached garages as compared to the homes.  Mr. Kingsepp pointed out 
the compatibility between these garages and the homes they are attached to.   
 
Mr. Kingsepp pointed out the size of this structure compared to other structures in this 
area.  Mr. Kingsepp also said that he thought the interpretation of the Ordinance in this 
case might have been misconstrued.   
 
Section 01.30.00 – Greater Restrictions.  Mr. Kingsepp paraphrased this Section to say 
that greater restrictions being imposed where applicable. 
 
Section 04.20.01 – Accessory Building.  Something subordinate and use of that which is 
incidental to the main building.  Mr. Kingsepp said that in his opinion a 6000 square foot 
attached commercial garage is not a subordinate building to the single-family residence 
at 3129 Alpine. 
 
Section 04.20.03 – Accessory Use.    Use is subordinate to the main use.  This is a 
single-family residence to which is attached a mammoth structure. 
 
Section 04.20.39 – Dwelling Unit.  A residential structure designed for the occupancy of 
one family. 
 
Section 04.20.71 – Home Occupation. …. within the walls of the dwelling unit, not 
visible or noticeable in any matter or form outside the walls of the dwelling and 
accessory structures.  Mr. Kingsepp said that he believes the home occupation in this 
case is an office located within the home, and does not believe that a office located in 
the home requires the 6,000 square foot structure. 
 
Section 10.10.00 - Intent .  R-1A through R-1E are to be most restricted of the 
Residential areas as to use.  To promote the area, to keep the consistency – not to 
create extraordinary large attachments. 
 
Section 40.55.00 – Accessory Buildings and Structures.  Mr. Kingsepp feels that this 
clarifies home occupation as they must be compatible with a residential parcel and 
compatible with the surrounding area,  maintain the residential character of area and 
avoid the reduction of property values.  Building devoted primarily to home occupation  

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
and business, which in this case is an office.  Secondary and clearly incidental to the 
principal building on the parcel of land. 
 
Mr. Kingsepp went on to look at the definitions of certain terms in the Ordinance.  
Garage – A building of not less than 180 square feet designed for the periodic parking 
or storage of one or more private motor vehicles.  Garage is also defined as an 
accessory building for parking or storage of not more than the number of vehicles as 
may be required in connection of the permitted use of the principal structure.  Mr. 
Kingsepp queried the Board as to whether this definition was ambiguous.  Mr. Kingsepp 
went on to define other terms used such as attached, connected, garage, incidental 
from the dictionary, etc.   
 
Mr. Kingsepp went on to say that he used our Code to demonstrate that there are 
sections of the Code that clearly describe and define this particular structure.  The 
interpretation that you have is quite clear based on the Code.  The appeals are made by 
any person or entity affected by a decision of the Director of Building and Zoning.   
 
Mr. Kingsepp went on to say that a significant section of the Code is Section 43.75.00, 
Interpretation.    “The Board has the power to interpret that a use or combination of uses 
of land and structures be permitted if the provisions of this Chapter are not precise 
enough to determine the legality of the use or the combination of uses”.  The residents 
of this community have the right to rely on the experience training, and background of 
the administration to interpret the Ordinances that exist to their benefit.  They have the 
right to rely upon the plain and ordinary meaning of those Ordinances.  Mr. Kingsepp 
said that they had tried to show that the Ordinances are clear and plain an 
unambiguous given the description of the owner of 3129 Alpine as to what he intended 
to construct.  Mr. Kingsepp said that the key phrase was 6,000 square foot attached 
garage.  Mr. Kingsepp also said that he felt it was up to the Building Official to deny this 
request and tell the petitioner to come before the Board of Zoning Appeals.  At that time 
this Board would have known exactly what he was proposing and could have placed 
conditions on this request.  Mr. Kingsepp said that the residents had to come before this 
Board instead.  Once the door is closed, Mr. Kingsepp questioned how the Ordinance 
would be enforced as to the use of this building.  Mr. Kingsepp also said that the 
wording in the Ordinance should have been used to make sure this building was a 
“garage”, a “subordinate building”. 
 
Mr. Kingsepp further stated that the City Assessor went out and filed a report with City 
Council indicating that the property values in this area would be depreciating because of 
the size of this structure.  The Assistant City Attorney, when asked if the City could 
expend public funds to abate the hideous appearance of this structure, used the term 
“garage” and concluded because it was a private garage, public funds could not be 
used.    Members of the City Council exclaiming that this is a commercial structure and 
as long as there is no legislation that prohibits this, this type of structure could be in 
every other residential district. 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kingsepp also said that this is a situation that interpretation of the Ordinance is not 
reconciled with the terms of the Ordinance.  If the Board determines that the Building 
Permit was issued and if it is found that the interpretation of the Ordinance was incorrect 
the Board can declare.  The owner of the property can then make an appeal and if the  
Court sustains the decision of this Board, he would have no claim against the City.  Mr. 
Kingsepp said that he believes the interpretation does not reconcile with the definitions 
of the Ordinance.  Mr. Kingsepp also said that the public has the right to rely on the 
clear, unambiguous meanings of the Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked Mr. Kingsepp to comment on the structural attachment of this so-
called attached garage.  Mr. Kingsepp said that he was unable to comment.  Mr. 
Maxwell asked if this was a stand-alone building that would remain if the house were 
removed.  Mr. Kingsepp said he used the words that the applicant used at the time he 
applied for the Building Permit.  If it is not covered by the Ordinance, the owner should 
have come before this Board.  Mr. Kingsepp also said that he did not know how to 
define it.  Mr. Maxwell said that this Board may have to be interpret the definition as to 
structurally attached. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked Mr. Kingsepp’s if it was part of his testimony that this was not an 
attached garage.  Mr. Kingsepp stated that he thought it was an attached garage. 
  
Mr. Courtney said that if he interprets each section to mean exactly what they say, what 
would Mr. Kingsepp want from him.  Mr. Kingsepp said that if you believe any of the 
sections he provided and if he believes that the definitions in the Ordinance are clear, 
he wants the Board to determine that the Building Permit was issued improperly 
because it did not meet the interpretations within the Ordinance as they arose from a 
description from the applicant as to what he wanted to do.  Mr. Kingsepp does not 
believe that there is anything in the Ordinance with the definitions used that would allow 
for a 6,000 square foot structure.  Mr. Courtney asked what would give him the right to 
determine that the Building Official made an error in issuing a Building Permit.  Mr. 
Kingsepp that the Board has the right to interpret the wording in the Ordinance.  Mr. 
Kingsepp also said that the members of the Board should ask administration to show 
how the permit was issued based on the wording in the Ordinance.  Mr. Courtney said 
that he feels that each section means exactly what it says.  Mr. Kingsepp said that not 
all situations could be covered in the original Ordinance and therefore Boards were 
created to allow for these variances. 
 
Mr. Wright said that in talking about attached garages, his has a 30’ common wall.  Mr. 
Wright also said that he believes the structure in question is totally independent, and the 
homeowner just happened to put it next to the house.  Mr. Kingsepp said that if this is 
one of the interpretations that has to be made under the existing Ordinance now, it is 
better made until legislation comes into play by an application of this body, and not by 
an interpretation by the Building Department that the residents in the community have 
difficulty understanding and interpreting. 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kingsepp said that as a matter of disclosure, Mr. Kingsepp and Mr. Hutson are very 
good friends and as a matter of fact are godparents to each other’s children.  Mr.  
Kingsepp and Mr. Hutson both said it would not affect any matters brought forth at this 
time.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the Board has heard evidence by the petitioner that the Building 
Department had issued a permit for a structure that did not meet the requirements of the 
Ordinance.  Mr. Kovacs asked Mr. Stimac if he wanted to prepare something in rebuttal 
as to why this permit was issued.  Mr. Stimac stated that the permit was issued for this 
structure as it did comply with the Zoning Ordinance.  Having the opportunity to hear Mr. 
Kingsepp’s presentation, now providing additional information would require some time 
to put together a response.  In addition to the information provided in the application for 
appeal, Mr. Kingsepp has also drawn on other parts of the Ordinance that were not 
identified earlier so the Building Department would like the time and opportunity to reply.  
Mr. Stimac also said that after hearing Mr. Kingsepp’s presentation, he still did not 
believe there was anything presented that proved that this structure did not comply with 
the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Kovacs also asked that if there had been any type of similar situation and if there 
had been any legal precedents set regarding an interpretation of the Ordinance.  Mr. 
Motzny said that there is no legal precedent exactly on point, but there are cases where 
the Court has decided the issue of whether a BZA has properly interpreted the decision 
of a Building Official and each case is different.  There are cases out there, but not 
exactly the same. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that this was a good presentation but asked if Mr. Kingsepp could 
summarize in writing his arguments and points in the working of the Ordinance.  Mr. 
Kingsepp said that would not be a problem.  Mr. Hutson also asked if there is a burden 
of proof standard for a BZA such as by the preponderance of the evidence clear and 
convincing.  Mr. Kingsepp said that there is case law that says on interpretation it is not 
clear and convincing, it is by the preponderance of evidence but Mr. Kingsepp also said 
that he believes that case law is somewhat weak on interpretation.  Mr. Kingsepp also 
said that he would try to furnish some authority. 
 
Mr. Motzny also said that there is very little case law on what the actual burden of proof 
is, but as with any decision this Board makes he would say that if it rules in favor of the 
applicant or denies the applicant, this Board’s decision must be based on competent 
,substantial, and material evidence on the record. 
 
Ms. Gies asked if there was a maximum size for garages.  Mr. Stimac said that there is 
no minimum size for a garage and it is his opinion that there currently is no language in 
the Ordinance that establishes the maximum size of a garage other than the setbacks 
on the property and the lot coverage on the property.  There are also height restrictions 
that are in regards to an attached garage.  With regards to a detached garage, the  

 11



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Zoning Ordinance states that a detached accessory structure cannot exceed ½ the 
ground floor area of the main building or 600 square feet whichever is greater.  Further 
it provides that all of those buildings have to be in the rear yard and cannot take up  
more than 25% of the required rear yard.  Ms. Gies asked if this structure had met all of 
those requirements.  Mr. Stimac said this structure was reviewed as an attached garage 
and it did meet all setback requirements in the R-1B Zoning District and was not more 
than 30% of the lot coverage.  Ms. Gies asked if an attached garage had a maximum 
size allowance.  Mr. Stimac stated that in his opinion there was no language in the 
Zoning Ordinance that restricts the size of an attached garage. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he believes the petitioner’s case is that based upon his 
interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance there is a maximum size allowed for an attached 
garage, and the petitioner wants the Board to also determine what that maximum size is 
for an attached garage.  Mr. Kovacs apologized to the members in the audience for the 
length of the meeting, but also stated he wants to make sure they are totally fair to all 
parties concerned.  Mr. Kovacs said that he would like to give Mr. Stimac time to reply 
to this presentation and in his opinion he would like to give the property owner the 
opportunity to also hear this presentation.  Mr. Courtney said that the property owner 
should be notified about these proceedings.  Mr. Stimac said that the property owner at 
3129 Alpine was notified about this hearing.  Mr. Stimac also said that he did not believe 
this Board could compel the property owner to attend a hearing.  Due to the fact that 
there were a large number of people in the audience, Mr. Stimac asked that the Public 
Hearing be opened, which would allow him to get all of the facts and then come back 
with an appropriate response. 
 
Mr. Kovacs opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Ms. Betty Reed of 3147 Alpine was present.  Ms. Reed stated that she lives right next 
door and would like to see this Board right a wrong that was done by the Building 
Department.  After objections from neighbors the City Council ordered City 
management to negotiate with Mr. Piscopo, however negotiations broke down because 
Mr. Piscopo’s demands were too unreasonable.  One of Mr. Piscopo’s demands was 
that City lease a commercial building for him to park his vehicle in.  Both residents and 
non-residents believe that this is a commercial building and not a garage.  This includes 
Mayor Schilling and Councilwoman Stine have stated publicly that they believe this is a 
commercial building in a residential area.  Mr. Licari, the City Assessor, in a letter to the 
City Manager has stated that this garage has the potential to affect the value of the 
neighboring homes by as much as 10% and possibly more.  Realtors have advised 
residents that it could reduce the number of potential buyers interested in homes in this 
neighborhood by as much as 90%.    The homes are the only financial security for the 
future and to allow the City of Troy to take away part of the value of our homes is 
unbelievable and unacceptable.  Should the City allow one person in the neighborhood 
to decrease property values of most of the surrounding neighbors.  If this building 
remains it will not only decrease property values but will also affect the quality of living.   

 12



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
The harmony and integrity of the neighborhood has been destroyed by the City’s 
blunder.  What is the purpose of having Ordinance’s if they are not interpreted properly?   
 
Mr. George Reed, 3147 Alpine was present.  Mr. Reed stated that he and his wife as 
well as other neighbors have been told by realtors that property values could drop as 
much as 25% because of the monster garage.  Mr. Reed also said that it would be more 
difficult for them to sell their homes.  One realtor had told Mr. Reed that this structure 
gives the area a commercial appearance and homes in close proximity to commercial 
areas sell for less than homes that are in residential areas.  It is a certainty that buyers 
given a choice would prefer to live in a strictly residential area rather than a commercial 
area.  A second realtor informed Mr. Reed that it would be harder to sell a home in this 
area to a family looking for a clean quiet area.  The properties in this area would more 
likely be sold to an investor looking for rental property or a homeowner looking for 
properties that would sell under market value.  Buyers are looking for homes that are 
strictly residential not with business properties located next door.  Three other realtors 
that live on Alpine have also concurred with these statements.  Mr. Reed again pointed 
out that Mr. Licari reinforces these statements by saying that this structure could affect 
the value of the homes in this area by 10% or more.  Mr. Licari also said that this 
situation does not exist anywhere else in Troy.  Never in the past has the construction of 
a garage caused so much attention including at least 15 news articles and television 
reports.   Mr. Reed stated that this structure is a concern not only to the residents of this 
area, but is also a concern to residents in other areas of Troy.  Most of the residents of 
Troy are aware of the monster garage and are interested in the outcome of this hearing.  
Many neighbors have experienced disgust and anguish with City staff regarding this 
structure.   
 
Jeanne Stine, 1915 Boulan was present.  Ms. Stine said that she was not going to 
address the points in the Ordinance as she felt that Mr. Kingsepp had done an excellent 
job.  Ms. Stine said that the entrance to this sub has not become an invitation to blight 
as the first thing you see is the wall of corrugated steel.  As you proceed further into the 
sub, which contains only five streets, you will find seven (7) sites that have commercial 
vehicles.  Underlying theme seems to be that if the garage is OK, why not other related 
items and this area has become a dumping ground.  Ms. Stine invited Mr. Szerlag to 
come and look at what was going on and his first comment was “… this is Appalachia”.  
Ms. Stine said that she is addressing this Board not as a member of Council but as a 
resident of this subdivision and is speaking regarding the concerns of the neighbors.  
Ms. Stine said this is a very close-knit group and they all watch out for each other.  Ms. 
Stine said that the construction of this industrial warehouse is very devastating to the 
people in this subdivision.  A neighbor so impacted by the construction of a garage next 
door, so as to suffer severe emotional distress, lack of enjoyment of their own back 
yard, depreciation of property value and disinheritance of Troy’s quality of life. At least 
three members of City Council stated that nothing like this could happen in Troy and a 
mistake had been made.  The Rivards who lived next door at 3109 Alpine for twelve 
years enjoyed their homestead and neighborhood until this monster garage was put up.   

 13



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Think of waking up to the pall of corrugated steel 150’ deep along your side yard.  It is 
inconceivable.  The fact that the Rivard family no longer suffers the pain of the 
warehouse next door makes no difference to the rest of the neighborhood except for the  
fact that they have lost a good neighbor.  The garage remains an embarrassment to the 
subdivision and the entire community.  It is her understanding that this Board has some 
power and discretion to make this right.  Ms. Gies asked Ms. Stine since she was 
involved right when the project started, why the City did not come out at the beginning.  
Ms. Stine said that she thought Mr. Szerlag thought it would be stopped, but when it 
was brought up at the next Council meeting, it was made known to Council and those in 
the audience that according to Mr. Stimac the Ordinance had been followed and Mr. 
Szerlag stated that there had been no mistake made. 
 
Steven Japar, 4518 Whisper Way was present.  Mr. Japar commended the petitioner on 
his presentation as he thought it was excellent and feels that something should be done 
about this situation.  Mr. Japar said that he thinks it should be pretty clear that if 
someone was going to put up a 6,000 square foot building on residential property, that 
there would be some impact to the surrounding property.  Mr. Japar also said that he 
wondered why the Building Department would allow this to proceed knowing what kind 
of impact it would have and why there was not a procedure in place that would not have 
allowed this permit to be awarded.  Secondly, Mr. Japar, said that regarding Ms. Reed’s 
statement about negotiations between the City and owner of the property, it points out 
very clearly what the intentions of the owner of the property were when he asked them 
to lease a commercial building for his use. 
 
Walenda Green, 6811 Livernois was present.  Ms. Green stated that she lives on the 
north end of Troy and works with contractors every day.  Ms. Green stated that this is 
definitely not an attached garage, but an attached commercial building.  Ms. Green 
watched this structure go up from the very beginning and there is no way that it can be 
construed as an attached garage.  People on the north end of Troy also believe this 
building is an eyesore and are concerned that a similar structure could show up on this 
side of Troy.  Ms. Green stated that she could up a large building on her property but 
would not do that because of the impact to her neighbors.  Ms. Green also said that she 
did not believe this structure could be considered attached as there is only a small area 
that attaches the structure to the home.  Ms. Green said she does not believe this is a 
normal attached garage.  Anywhere outside of the City people consider this a monster 
garage.  Ms. Green also said since he does not have an occupancy permit, she did not 
believe that anything should be able to be stored in the structure.  Mr. Kovacs said that 
the Board is not there to make a judgment on that issue, but Ms. Green could file a 
complaint with City staff during normal business hours.  Ms. Green said that the Mayor 
and City Manager stated in the newspaper on Sunday that they would like to keep Troy 
a premier City and they are becoming a premier City.  Ms. Green also said that a 
mistake had been made and it is time to fess up to that mistake.  This should have 
never been allowed.  The Mayor states that first they must protect the integrity of the 
neighborhood and this eyesore does not protect the neighborhood. 

 14



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Eugene West, 3205 Alpine was present.  Mr. West said that he is a car collector and 
has a detached garage and it is a garage.  There is no way that a commercial building  
in a residential neighborhood can be construed as a garage.  The Building Department 
made a mistake and now the residents are expected to live with that mistake.  Mr. West 
said that living in Troy he never expected to be screwed over by the City and in allowing 
this commercial building to be built on the property has cost him money in the value of 
his home.  This is not a garage.     
 
Peter Bamford, 3244 Alpine was present.  Mr. Bamford said that he is a realtor that in 
his professional opinion the property values have diminished with this structure in the 
area.  Mr. Bamford also pointed out that one of the Ordinances that was brought up 
indicates that if a structure is put up on the property, should be such that it does not 
diminish the value of the property and this structure does that. 
 
Dennis Rivard, 2774 Portage Trail was present.  Mr. Rivard said that he formerly lived at 
3109 Alpine and the garage was put up 10’ from his property line and moved because 
of this structure.  Mr. Rivard said that a project like this should have gone through the 
variance process and would like the Board to consider whether they would have 
approved this for a variance.  If not, Mr. Rivard believes a permit never should have 
been issued.  Mr. Rivard said that Section 40.57.04 states that an attached garage can 
be no larger than 50% of the square footage of the home.  Mr. Rivard said that this is 
the definition of an accessory building.  Mr. Kovacs said that Section 40.57.04 covers a 
detached structure.  Mr. Rivard said that a garage is an accessory building and should 
adhere to the definition of an accessory building.  Mr. Rivard also said that Section 
40.57.02 that says when an accessory structure is structurally attached to a main 
building, should be subject to or conform to all regulations to this chapter applicable to 
the main building.  Mr. Rivard said that this is where the differences definitely come in 
and makes no sense, because a garage is still a garage.  The City Tax Code does not 
comply with the interpretation of this Ordinance.  When you sell your home, you do not 
consider the square footage of the garage and this is the other reason Mr. Rivard feels 
that this building should be considered an accessory structure.  Mr. Rivard said that 
there is a difference between a garage and a house.  Mr. Rivard also agreed with Mr. 
Hutson that if they had been notified that this structure was going up they would have 
approached the City much sooner but there is no obligation to notify surrounding 
property owners.  Mr. Rivard said he knew Mr. Piscopo was going to put up a large 
garage, but he had no idea it would be this large and as soon as they saw the first 
girders going up they immediately approached the neighbor and the City.  Mr. Maxwell 
asked what Mr. Rivard’s definition of an attached garage was.  Mr. Rivard stated that he 
knows his garage shares a common wall with the living room and if they would have 
stayed on Alpine they would have converted the garage to a family room.  Mr. Rivard 
said that he believes this structure has a common doorway but is not sure if there is a 
common wall. 
 
 

 15



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that when he was putting up his shed he had to have his neighbors 
sign a notification form and wondered why this property owner did not have to do the 
same.  Mr. Stimac said that the Zoning Ordinance provides for notification of 50% of the  
property owners for the construction of a shed.  Mr. Stimac also said that there is 
nothing in the Ordinance or Building Code that requires neighbor notification of 
construction of building garages. 
 
Michael Bartnik, 3842 Burkoff was present and stated that he wanted to echo the 
sentiments of the other people that had spoken.  Mr. Bartnik stated that this structure 
did not just affect the residents in the immediate area, but all of the residents of Troy.   
Mr. Bartnik also said that he is concerned about the enforcement of this issue, if this 
Board decides in favor of the petitioner.  Mr. Bartnik believes the structure should be 
torn down, the property graded and then the property owner should come before this 
Board for a variance.   
 
Zak Abuzaid, 3128 Alpine was present.  Mr. Abuzaid said that he lives across the street 
from 3129 Alpine and had been approached by Mr. Piscopo and asked if he would have 
a problem with the construction of an oversized garage.  He did not give Mr. Abuzaid 
any of the details of the construction.  Mr. Abuzaid said that he does have a problem 
with this garage and would like the Board to look into it. 
 
MaryAnn Bernardi was present and stated that although she does not live in this area, 
she believes a grave injustice has been done.  Ms. Bernardi said that she is intensely 
concerned on how residential concerns are handled in this City.  Ms. Bernardi believes 
that everyone needs to come to each other’s aid when we need help and these 
residents need help.  Regarding the intent of the Ordinance, Ms. Bernardi said that Mr. 
Kingsepp made an impenetrable argument that what was intended to be put on this site 
was a garage, but what is on the site is not a garage by definition and a multitude of 
Ordinances.  Ms. Bernardi agrees that the conclusion must be to state that a Building 
Permit was issued in error.  Ms. Bernardi said that she did look at this garage on Alpine, 
and said that the first thought that came into her mind was where did professional 
judgment come in here, because there would be such an impact to the area to put this 
type of structure up because it is such a grotesque piece of property.  Ms. Bernardi 
compared the fact that this application was not questioned.  City Staff members are 
professionals and Ms. Bernardi believes they are duty bound to question and determine 
what is in the best interests of the City.  All cities are financially strapped, including Troy, 
and Ms. Bernardi believes that we are using tax dollars in Court and have been losing 
case after case and there are still sixteen (16) cases pending.  Mr. Kingsepp said that if 
you were to find that the Building Permit was issued erroneously, which Ms. Bernardi 
believes is the case, the Court could not then come back to the City, which would be 
advantageous as it would not be a waste of tax dollars that are needed so desperately 
in other areas.  Ms. Bernardi also said that to find that this Building Permit was issued in 
error would be the right thing for this Board to do. 
  

 16



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Patricia Ullman was present.  Ms. Ullman said that she lives on Willow Grove and came 
tonight to support the residents on Alpine.  In 1991 Ms. Ullman built a detached building 
and wanted to put a cupola on it, but was unable to do so because she was told it would  
be intrusive to the Golf Trail residents, and also exceeded the height requirements.   
Ms. Ullman did not see how anyone would not think this commercial building will be less 
intrusive.  Ms. Ullman went on to say that this building is not an attached garage but a 
commercial building.  Ms. Ullman husband was a truck driver and she knows what a 
commercial building looks like and this is definitely a commercial building. 
 
Tom Krent, 3184 Alpine was present.  Mr. Krent stated that he had brought in a petition 
with one hundred and nine (109) signatures on it objecting to this monster garage.  This 
petition was presented to City Council.  Mr. Krent said that the Zoning Ordinance is 
open to interpretation.  Mr. Szerlag stated at the July 12th meeting of City Council that 
this City is structured to have the Director of Building & Zoning work in conjunction with 
the Planning Director to make interpretations of the Zoning Ordinance and arrive at 
decisions.  Mr.  Krent said that he did not believe these decisions did not utilize the 
sections of the Ordinance, which would have denied the issuance of this Building 
Permit.  By issuing this permit they have allowed this industrial style structure to be built 
in a residential neighborhood.  There are many sections in the Ordinance that should 
have prevented this building from going up.  Mr. Krent said that he was going to 
concentrate on the section of the Ordinance that deals with Home Occupation.  
Definition of Home Occupation states that “occupation shall not be visible or noticeable 
in any form from outside the walls of the dwelling and accessory structure”.  The 
structure itself is in the “form” of an industrial building and is very noticeable and visible 
from the outside.  This structure is associated with structures generally found in areas of 
Troy that are zoned M-1 (Light Industrial).  Intent of the Home Occupation Section are to 
insure compatibility of the subject residential parcel with the surrounding residential 
area; to maintain the residential character of the area and to avoid reduction of property 
values.   The structure at 3129 Alpine fails not just one of these conditions but all of the 
conditions listed in this section.  This structure is not compatible with the residential 
character of this area, it does not maintain the residential character of the area and it 
will cause a reduction of property values.  In addition to the reduction of property values 
near 3129 Alpine this structure has tainted the subdivision.  Although the Home 
Occupation section as well as many other sections of the Ordinance could have 
prevented this structure from being constructed in a residential area, our City officials 
chose to issue a Building Permit.  Mr. Krent showed pictures of this garage to 
Department Heads in Bloomfield Hills and Birmingham.  Both official stated that they 
would not have allowed this structure to go up in a residential neighborhood and the 
head of the Building Department in Birmingham called this structure an abomination.     
The Official in Bloomfield Hills stated that even if it fit in with the Ordinances, he would 
not have allowed it to be constructed and the owner would have to sue the City to 
construct this type of building.  The City Officials in Troy chose to have this structure put 
up in a residential area, which has had devastating effects including severe emotional 
stress as well as substantial financial cost.  The Rivard family has moved out of Troy  

 17



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
because they were so disgusted with City Officials in allowing this structure to be built.  
In conclusion, the City Officials did not use good judgment when interpreting the Zoning 
Ordinance and in particular the Home Occupation Ordinance. 
Emma Burry, 3224 Alpine was present.  Ms. Burry said that she has lived in this area for 
56 years.  Ms. Burry thanked all of the people who came to speak on this issue that do 
not live in this subdivision. Ms. Burry has always taken great pride in living in Troy and 
her friends from surrounding communities cannot understand what kind of Building 
Department we have to allow this structure to go up.  Ms. Burry asked the Board if they 
would want this structure to go up next to their property.  Ms. Burry said no matter 
where you live, you would not want this structure next to your property. 
 
Lon Ullman on Willow Grove was present.  Mr. Ullman said that one of the reasons you 
live in Communities is for protection and for Community values.  The function of the 
Ordinance is to preserve those community values.  Mr. Ullman feels that this individual 
has exploited loopholes in the Ordinance.  Mr. Ullman also said that he thinks that our 
staff is more inclined to proceed with proven things and everyone makes bad calls.  Mr. 
Ullman feels that this structure is the result of a bad call.  However, Mr. Ullman said that 
he thinks what needs to be done here is to say that perhaps “we didn’t use our best 
judgment” and proceed from there.  Mr. Ullman said that citizens depend on 
government to protect them and does not believe this was done.  This Board needs to 
be responsible to the community as a whole and the values and to rectify a situation 
that is obviously out of control.  Mr. Ullman said that he is a residential builder and 
started building attached garages with wood studs 35 years ago.  Structural steel is not 
considered to be residential material.  Mr. Ullman does not believe this could be 
considered to be any type of residential structure.  Mr. Ullman went on to say that the 
height of the garage door, which is 14’, is to accommodate very high loads.  Mr. Piscopo 
is a plumbing contractor and his uncle told Mr. Ullman that Mr. Piscopo removes 
material from inside of buildings.  Mr. Ullman said that he could have put up a similar 
structure and would have been able to fit a commercial vehicle inside.  Mr. Ullman 
further stated that if there is a problem with the Ordinance then it is time to go back and 
look at the Ordinances.  Mr. Ullman also said that we have to find a way so that these 
professionals are not put into a corner where they say this individual meets all the 
requirements, therefore we must approve this.  A point is needed where a professional 
does not have their hands tied.  Mr. Ullman said that the Board needs to give this 
careful consideration and to help the people that are involved. 
 
Ana Carry Barr, 3165 Alpine was present and stated that she lives two doors away from 
this monstrosity abomination and wants to add her voice for an appeal.  She would also 
like to see a human admission that a mistake was made.  Ms. Barr also said that she 
feels that these residents have been stolen from and if this building is allowed to remain 
the way it is or allowed to be put in operation in some way that is deceitful and is based 
on a lie and facilitated by a mistake, then the mistake must be admitted and they can go 
on from there.  Ms. Barr further stated that because this area is rural, she does not 
believe there are looser methods of dealing with the planning. 

 18



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Walter Weldon, 1535 Banmoor was present and stated that his home had built in 1947 
and studies history.  Mr. Weldon read the book Troy Corners, the history of Troy and  
there are a number of homes in his neighborhood that have attached two-car garages.  
Over the years several homes have undergone changes, but they still fit in with the 
character of the area.  If people want to build a garage, they should build it to fit in with 
everything else in the area.  Mr. Weldon said that we should be preserving history and 
this garage should not be in a residential area.  Everything should be natural and this 
structure is out of place and looks terrible.   
 
Shirley Jordan, 3268 Alpine stated that this addition is five to six times bigger than the 
original house, and although he tore down a lot of the existing house, he did leave a 
couple of the existing walls, and wants to know if this gives him a tax advantage.  Ms. 
Jordan believes it did.  She also said that they have 200 condominiums coming in at the 
end of the street and the lots had been re-zoned and everything is a done deal.  Ms. 
Jordan wanted to know if the residents would be notified of the construction going up in 
this area.  Mr. Kovacs said that this Board has nothing to do with re-zoning and she 
would have to contact the Planning Commission.   Mr. Kovacs said that the only reason 
they would come before this Board was if they required a variance for setback 
requirements.  Mr. Wright stated that this proposed project has not come before the 
Planning Commission for approval at this time.  There was an informational meeting last 
Tuesday night, however, it conflicted with the meeting of the Planning Commission and 
therefore members of the Planning Commission were not able to attend.  Mr. Wright 
said that she should stay in contact with the Planning Director, Mark Miller, 248-524-
3364, in order to keep on top of this situation.  Ms. Jordan went on to say that she feels  
that she is getting beat up on.  Mr. Wright said that they are trying to be fair.  Ms. Jordan 
went on to say that this structure is a screw machine shop and definitely not a garage.   
 
Mr. Abuzaid came up again and stated that the owner of the house does not live at this 
location and would like the Board to also look at this issue. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that it is his recommendation to postpone this issue until the meeting of 
March 15, 2005 as he would like to hear Mr. Stimac’s rebuttal to this presentation.  Mr. 
Kovacs also said that there is a differing opinion in the interpretation of these 
Ordinances and at that time he would also like to give Mr. Kingsepp the opportunity 
once again to give his input.  Mr. Kovacs further stated that when they go to review this 
issue it should be structure to make a motion on each section and the motion should 
indicate whether they agree or disagree with the interpretation and the reasons why.   
 
Mr. Courtney said that he thinks it is a little early to decide how they would handle it as it 
may be decided that the Board does not need to look at each section.  Mr. Courtney 
also agreed that this issue should be postponed to the meeting of March 15, 2005.  Mr. 
Courtney also said that he would like a written report from Mr. Kingsepp regarding the  

 19



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
reasons for this petition.  Mr. Kingsepp said that he did not believe this would be a 
problem and he also said that Mr. Motzny and himself may be able to help by guided by  
a proposed resolution by the City and a proposed resolution by Mr. Kingsepp.  Mr. 
Courtney said he thought it would be very helpful.   
 
At this time Mr. Kovacs asked if they needed a motion to next month’s meeting to hear 
the feedback from the Building Department and also asked if the Public Hearing would 
need to be re-opened next month.  Mr. Stimac said that so far this evening the Public 
Hearing was closed, and if Mr. Kovacs wanted to hear additional testimony he would 
have to re-open the Public Hearing at the next meeting.  Mr. Stimac also said that it 
would be possible for Mr. Kovacs to adjourn the Public Hearing until the next meeting.   
 
Mr. Wright said that the question of Home Occupation, Section 40.20.71 comes to mind 
and basically states that the definition says …an occupation that takes place inside the 
walls of a dwelling unit by a resident thereof having no employees that are not 
themselves residents.  That occupation shall not be visible or noticeable in any manner 
or form from outside the dwelling unit.”  Mr. Wright believes that this structure violates 
all of that and back in September of 2000, the Building Department called the subject’s 
wife regarding vehicles on the property and she stated that some of them belonged to 
the family and the other vehicles were employees that were picking up material that 
related to her husband’s business.  Mr. Wright said that this is a violation of our 
Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that he believes the same way Mr. Wright does.  Mr. Fejes went on to 
say that regardless of what he hears back from the City, he does not feel this is an 
attached garage but is clear to him that it is against the law.  There is clear evidence 
that it is not a garage.  Mr. Fejes said that he would be ready to make a motion at this 
point and asked for a clear picture of what type of motion would be required.  
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the question before the Board this evening is whether or not the 
structure on this property complies with the Ordinance.  If the Board finds that it does 
comply we go on, if the Board finds that it does not comply with the Ordinance we would 
write a violation notice and enforce the Ordinance as this Board has determined.  If it is 
required that the structure come down in order to comply then that so shall be ordered, 
or if it is required that the structure come down in size then that so shall be ordered.  
This Board does not have the authority to issue or revoke a permit, but does have the 
authority to interpret what does and does not comply with the Ordinance. The authority 
to enforce the Ordinance is Building Department’s  to carry out. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that this is the reason he would like the Board to go through each 
section and state exactly whether they feel that this structure is in violation or not.  Mr. 
Fejes said that there is enough here tonight that this is wrong and this gentleman built a 
warehouse and Mr. Fejes does not believe there is anything else to hear.  Mr. Hutson 
said that what the Board needs to hear is an analysis of all the Ordinances and how  

 20



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
they intertwine and whether or not it has been taken into account that in fact there’s fact 
that supports any decision reliably.  Mr. Hutson said that he did not feel a decision could  
be made on a gut reaction.  Mr. Fejes stated that his application stated “garage”.  Mr. 
Fejes also said that if you read from the Ordinance you can park a vehicle or lawn 
equipment that is what is normally put into a garage.  Mr. Hutson said that it may come 
to that but he would like to hear all the facts.  Mr. Fejes stated that he would be willing to 
wait until next month, but he could make a decision today. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he is not worried about future litigation, but what has to be taken 
into consideration that any of the decisions by the Board have to have a clear 
foundation.  We can’t just say that is an ugly garage, but Mr. Kovacs feels in his opinion 
that the Board needs to go in section by section and determine if this structure complies 
with each section.  If this is not done Mr. Kovacs does not believe it would have any 
legal standing. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that this is one method of find a basis in fact and determining 
evidence.  A decision is based on facts, this is also an interpretative thing and also the 
spirit, and intent of the Ordinance needs to be taken into consideration.  Mr. Kovacs 
said that City staff granted the Building Permit because they feel that this structure did 
meet the requirements of the Ordinance, and in order to make a decision, Mr. Kovacs 
wants to hear why City staff came to this conclusion.  Mr. Maxwell agreed with Mr. 
Kovacs and said that he also feels the general intent relating to the general welfare of 
the community also has to be taken into consideration. 
 
Ms. Gies said that she understands that there is a problem here and asked how the 
Ordinance could be changed, if this Board determines that all the requirements of the 
Ordinance had been met.  Ms. Gies asked who is responsible for correcting the 
Ordinances so that this problem never comes up again.  Mr. Stimac explained that City 
Council has directed the Planning Commission to review this matter and propose 
revisions to the Ordinance to address those concerns.  The Planning Commission has 
proposed a series of revisions to the Ordinance that they feel will address those 
concerns.  They have gone through one set of Public Hearings and hopefully will be 
appearing before City Council for adoption in the near future.  The Board of Zoning 
Appeals may offer their opinions but ultimately it is City Council and the Planning 
Commission to have those hearings.  Ms. Gies asked if Mr. Stimac was going to offer a 
resolution to correct the problem.  Mr. Stimac said that there has been a lot of 
information provided this evening and ultimately he needs to digest it and provide a 
summary.  Mr. Stimac said that the only thing he would ask is that in reviewing each 
individual sections, and reviewing the structure, the Ordinance, intent and everything 
else, he would ask that if it found not to comply he needs to know what has to happen to 
it in order to comply; e.g. if 6,000 square feet is too big, how big is appropriate.  If there 
is a decision to overturn his decision that is the decision that we will have to enforce – 
this structure does not comply you must change it in order to comply.  Mr. Stimac asked 
for assistance from the Board in determining the level of compliance. 

 21



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                       FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Wright said that on the issue of Zoning Ordinance revisions, the Planning 
Commission did send some revisions to City Council some months ago, and one of the 
revisions was the maximum door height of 8’.  The standard of most of the garage doors 
in the City is 7’.  This garage door is 14’ high.  Not all of Council agreed with the door 
height as well as some of the other restrictions and sent it back to the Planning 
Commission.  By a majority vote, the Planning Commission stuck with the 8’ height 
requirement.  Some members of City staff are opposed to that so they were going to 
present two versions to City Council, however the Planning Commission said they want 
the decision to be unanimous so that they did not come back to the Board of Zoning 
Appeals for a variance.  Mr. Wright stated that the Planning Commission is waiting for 
City staff to come back to them with the reasons they do not wish to see the 8’ height. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to postpone the interpretation request of Mr. & Mrs. George Reed & Mr. 
Thomas Krent, 3129 Alpine, regarding the issuance of a building permit to construct the 
garage at 3129 Alpine. 
 

• To allow City Staff to prepare an answer to the presentation by Mr. Kingsepp. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Gies, Hutson 
Nays:  1 – Fejes 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF MARCH 15, 
2005 
 
Mr. Kovacs thanked the people from coming out to speak on this item and also for 
showing respect to the homeowner. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 10:22 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Matthew Kovacs – Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak – Recording Secretary 
 

 22



TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – FINAL February 15, 2005 
 

Call to Order 
The regular meeting was called to order at 7:14 p.m. in Conference Room D at Troy City Hall. 
 
Roll Call 

Present: Hailu Robele    Jeff Hyun    
Amin Hashmi    Padma Kuppa 
Oniell Shah    Flora Tan 

  Charles Yuan   Cindy Stewart, City Liaison   
 

  Absent: Anju Brodbine   Tom Kaszubski 
    Kara Huang, Student Rep    

        
   
Approval of Minutes 
Minutes from January 4, 2005 - Motion by Yuan, second by Tan. Approved unanimously. 

 
 
 
New Business 
 

A. Sights & Sounds of the World 
a. Saturday, April 9, 2005 from 12-4 pm 

Countries to be involved - Egypt, Serbia, India, Philippines, Korea (Heehyul Moon), 
China (Kids dancing, martial arts), Pakistan 
 
Fax info to Italy (Tina Silverio), Germany (Carpathia Club - Adam Nedel), Middle 
East (Mayada), American Polish Cultural Center(Katarzyna) 
 
Each country will be allotted 20 minutes for entertainment (12:10 – 12:30, 12:35 -
12:55, 1 - 1:20, 1:25 - 1:45, 1:50 - 2:10,  2:15 - 2:35, 2:40 - 3, 3:05 - 3:25, 3:30 -
3:50).  Mehendi (henna) will be offered. 
  
Program info needed by April 1- will include sponsor/entertainment. 
 

b. More involvement from ethnic communities 
Highest population of Asian Indians in Michigan are in Troy.  All of EIA should 
recruit other members of their cultures to join various nonprofit organizations and 
City committees within the community.  Example Prayer Breakfast, Community 
Coalition, EthniCity,Troy Daze, Beaver Tales, etc. 

 
Tan - In other cultures, volunteerism is not as popular it is here in US. Language 
barriers are also a problem.   
 
Kuppa - we should still make efforts to recruit other people to help our community 
as well as sponsors from diverse companies and corporations. 

 
Old Business 
 

A. Resource List 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01i



TROY ETHNCI ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – FINAL February 15, 2005 
 
 
 

  

a. Email to members (pdf) send any updates to Cindy, these are being added to all new 
resident packets. Add a date to front page. 

 
B. Troy Daze 

Amin will go to EthniCity meetings (Padma will email date) 
 
We need to work hard to ensure success with EthniCity. Troy Daze Committee is okay with 
EIA recruiting ethnic demonstrators for EthniCity tent.  Example: Rangoli, using chop sticks, 
Martial Arts.  EIA members also man their booth (in costume preferred) 

 
C. Diversity Month – April 6 – May 6, 2005 

a. Prayer Breakfast May 6 
Email Erik schuette@webasto.com and cc Oniell re: Prayer Breakfast (he is from 
Buddhist temple).  EIA should make an effort to attend and bring friends and colleagues 

b. Time to send letters to churches, businesses, schools related to Diversity Month events. 
Include Arvin Meritor, Delphi, Standard Federal, International Academy, others 

c. Submit proclamation to Council  
d. Flora find article on Diversity Week in Canton 
e. April 9 Sights & Sounds of the World will be the kick off for Diversity Month and end with 

the Prayer Breakfast on May 6 
f. Padma will contact high schools; Flora - Hamilton Elementary and Oniell – Wattles 

Elementary related to any events on Diversity. 
g. Revise letter, last year’s proclamation, statistics, recent articles.  

 
D. Law Brochure 

a. On hold 
b. Check company that translates brochures re: sponsorships 
c. Email board brochure again 

 
 
Motion by Kuppa, second by Shah to adjourn - Meeting adjourned at 8:30 pm   
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Padma Kuppa, EIA Board Vice-Chairman 

 
 

_______________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on March 1, 2005, in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Gary Chamberlain 
Fazal Khan Mark J. Vleck 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-025 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Chamberlain and Vleck are excused from attendance 
at this meeting for personal reasons.  
 
Yes: Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Drake-Batts 
Absent:  Chamberlain, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

3. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported that the February 16, 2005 Downtown Development Authority 
meeting was cancelled. 
 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01j



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the following items. 
 
(1) ZOTA 209, Veterinary Clinics, approved by City Council at their February 28, 

2005 meeting. 
(2) ZOTA 210, Protest Petitions, approved by City Council at their February 28, 

2005 meeting. 
(3) Deadline for Requests for Proposal (RFP’s) for the Big Beaver Corridor Study is 

March 4, 2005 at 2:00 p.m.  Interviews are scheduled on March 9, 2005 for the 
five finalists.  Representatives of the Downtown Development Authority, 
Planning Commission, City Council and City staff will conduct the interviews.   

(4) City Management suggested a Joint Planning Commission and City Council 
meeting on Monday, March 28, 2005 to discuss ZOTA 215.  The Planning 
Commission is receptive to the meeting.  

(5) ZOTA 216, Commercial Uses in M-1 District – Consensus to go forward with this 
matter. 

(6) ZOTA 201, Industrial Arts or Dance Schools in M-1 District – Consensus to go 
forward with this matter.  

 
Discussed briefly were ZOTA 214, Group Daycare Homes in R-1 District, and 
Special Land Use in relation to industrial zoning.   
 
 

5. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-A) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Articles 40.55.00 – 40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions and 
Provisions 
 
Garage Door Height 
Chair Strat introduced a concept in which the garage door height would not be 
specifically limited but instead would be controlled by the permitted height of the 
structure.  The height, mass and habitable space above the structure would be 
considered in lieu of a specific height limitation for garage doors.  The height of an 
attached accessory building without habitable living space would be limited to a 
specific limit, for example, 14 feet.  Chair Strat distributed illustrations to demonstrate 
the concept.  He said any refinements to the concept could be made in the future; i.e., 
pitch of the roof, limitation on the number of doors facing the street, definition of 
habitable space.  Chair Strat indicated that City Management is receptive to the 
concept.   
 
Foot Print Ratio 
The percentage of the first floor living space was discussed in relation to the foot print 
ratio of an accessory structure.  Mr. Savidant presented a short slide show of existing 
garages that were at least 125% of the first floor living area of the residence.  After a 
brief discussion, the members agreed to recommend 75% of the first floor living 
space.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Chair Strat opened the floor to the public. 
 
Dick Minnick of 28 Millstone Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Minnick said the 75% 
foot print ratio is a reasonable compromise.  He said the concept introduced by the 
Chair appears to be a reasonable approach to the garage door height issue, but he 
questioned the concept in relation to the roof pitch of a house.  Mr. Minnick also 
questioned the method of measuring an accessory structure; i.e., external 
dimensions.   
 
A brief discussion followed with respect to the technical measurement of an 
accessory structure.  It was determined that the industry standard for 
measurements would be incorporated in the Zoning Ordinance definition.   
 
Mr. Savidant reported the 75% foot print ratio would create 150 non-conforming 
accessory structures.  
 
 

6. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 4) – Proposed The Monarch Tower Homes 
and Villas Condominium, 209 units, 11,166 S.F. retail space and structured parking, 
North side of Big Beaver Road between Alpine and McClure, Section 20 – O-1 (Low 
Rise Office), P-1 (Vehicular Parking) and R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts  
 
Mr. Savidant provided an overview of the proposed PUD application.  Mr. Savidant 
asked that the members address specifically the issues of (1) compatibility/transition 
between Villas and existing residential lots to the north; (2) traffic comparison between 
proposed project and office development; and (3) public benefit of the project.   
 
Discussion followed on:   
• Public benefits/amenities beyond tax revenue 

o Pedestrian crosswalk on Big Beaver 
o Additional landscaping; i.e., along McClure and Alpine 
o Preservation of natural vegetation / use of impervious materials / storm water 

management 
o Exterior lighting 

• Shadow affect on ground level homes 
• Distance/proximity to existing residential; i.e., side yard requirements 
• Traffic impact; i.e., comparison of office and proposed development 
• Parking in front of the building; i.e., depression of parking 
• Live / work mixed-use concept 
• Dog park (PUD residents only) 
• Open space on podium level (accessible to PUD residents) 
• Feedback from other communities with similar developments 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Jennifer Mooney, Ed Connell and Bob Dudick of Joseph Freed and Associates were 
present.   
 
Ms. Mooney provided a brief review of input received from neighbors.  It appears 
there is general support of the project.  Ms. Mooney said neighbors seem to favor 
the proposed residential/mixed use over an office complex.  She said concerns 
have been expressed on the building height and the shadow affect.  Ms. Mooney 
said they are working very hard to address the neighborhood concerns.   
 
Ms. Mooney reviewed the traffic report provided in their submission.  The report 
indicates a negligible difference in traffic impact from the proposed development and 
additional improvements to Big Beaver would not be warranted. 
 
Ms. Mooney reported they have met with the Road Commission to discuss 
pedestrian access across Big Beaver, and they expect a formal response from the 
Road Commission that will be shared upon its receipt.  Ms. Mooney said they 
contacted the FAA but, to date, they have not received any response.   
 
The Planning Department will consult with the petitioner and the Planning Consultant 
to determine the next review of this item.   
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 9:12 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:21 p.m. 
 

___________ 
 
 

7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-C) – Article 43.74.00, Article 
40.65.02 and Article 44.00.00, pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals 
 
Mr. Savidant reported a Public Hearing has been scheduled on the proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendment at the March 8, 2005 Regular Meeting.   
 
 

8. REVIEW OF MARCH 8, 2005 REGULAR MEETING 
 
Mr. Savidant provided a review of the March 8, 2005 agenda items.   
 
Mr. Schultz disclosed a former business relationship with the petitioner of Site Plan 
672 (Tepel Brothers Printing). 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Dick Minnick of 28 Millstone Drive, Troy, addressed (1) the roof heights of 
accessory structures as relates to the concept discussed tonight and (2) the 
measurement standards.  
 
Chair Strat said he would like to review the information and plans that Mr. Minnick 
provided him as relates to the garage door height concept introduced tonight.   
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Chair Strat explained the PowerPoint text on hybrid zoning ordinances and the rewriting of 
zoning ordinances relates to the Washington, D.C. audiotapes that are in the Planning 
Department’s library.   
 
Mr. Littman commented on the sensitivity of the microphones during the videotaping of 
meetings.   
 
Mr. Schultz commented on the progress made on the accessory structure issue and the 
proposed PUD project.   
 
Mr. Wright said his garage is legal unless it is decided to go below 50% or lower than a 7-
foot high garage door.   
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:26 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\03-01-05 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on March 1, 2005, in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Gary Chamberlain 
Fazal Khan Mark J. Vleck 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-025 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Chamberlain and Vleck are excused from attendance 
at this meeting for personal reasons.  
 
Yes: Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Drake-Batts 
Absent:  Chamberlain, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

3. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported that the February 16, 2005 Downtown Development Authority 
meeting was cancelled. 
 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01k



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the following items. 
 
(1) ZOTA 209, Veterinary Clinics, approved by City Council at their February 28, 

2005 meeting. 
(2) ZOTA 210, Protest Petitions, approved by City Council at their February 28, 

2005 meeting. 
(3) Deadline for Requests for Proposal (RFP’s) for the Big Beaver Corridor Study is 

March 4, 2005 at 2:00 p.m.  Interviews are scheduled on March 9, 2005 for the 
five finalists.  Representatives of the Downtown Development Authority, 
Planning Commission, City Council and City staff will conduct the interviews.   

(4) City Management suggested a Joint Planning Commission and City Council 
meeting on Monday, March 28, 2005 to discuss ZOTA 215.  The Planning 
Commission is receptive to the meeting.  

(5) ZOTA 216, Commercial Uses in M-1 District – Consensus to go forward with this 
matter. 

(6) ZOTA 201, Industrial Arts or Dance Schools in M-1 District – Consensus to go 
forward with this matter.  

 
Discussed briefly were ZOTA 214, Group Daycare Homes in R-1 District, and 
Special Land Use in relation to industrial zoning.   
 
 

5. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-A) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Articles 40.55.00 – 40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions and 
Provisions 
 
Garage Door Height 
Chair Strat introduced a concept in which the garage door height would not be 
specifically limited but instead would be controlled by the permitted height of the 
structure.  The height, mass and habitable space above the structure would be 
considered in lieu of a specific height limitation for garage doors.  The height of an 
attached accessory building without habitable living space would be limited to a 
specific limit, for example, 14 feet.  Chair Strat distributed illustrations to demonstrate 
the concept.  He said any refinements to the concept could be made in the future; i.e., 
pitch of the roof, limitation on the number of doors facing the street, definition of 
habitable space.  Chair Strat indicated that City Management is receptive to the 
concept.   
 
Foot Print Ratio 
The percentage of the first floor living space was discussed in relation to the foot print 
ratio of an accessory structure.  Mr. Savidant presented a short slide show of existing 
garages that were at least 125% of the first floor living area of the residence.  After a 
brief discussion, the members agreed to recommend 75% of the first floor living 
space.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Chair Strat opened the floor to the public. 
 
Dick Minnick of 28 Millstone Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Minnick said the 75% 
foot print ratio is a reasonable compromise.  He said the concept introduced by the 
Chair appears to be a reasonable approach to the garage door height issue, but he 
questioned the concept in relation to the roof pitch of a house.  Mr. Minnick also 
questioned the method of measuring an accessory structure; i.e., external 
dimensions.   
 
A brief discussion followed with respect to the technical measurement of an 
accessory structure.  It was determined that the industry standard for 
measurements would be incorporated in the Zoning Ordinance definition.   
 
Mr. Savidant reported the 75% foot print ratio would create 150 non-conforming 
accessory structures.  
 
 

6. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 4) – Proposed The Monarch Tower Homes 
and Villas Condominium, 209 units, 11,166 S.F. retail space and structured parking, 
North side of Big Beaver Road between Alpine and McClure, Section 20 – O-1 (Low 
Rise Office), P-1 (Vehicular Parking) and R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts  
 
Mr. Savidant provided an overview of the proposed PUD application.  Mr. Savidant 
asked that the members address specifically the issues of (1) compatibility/transition 
between Villas and existing residential lots to the north; (2) traffic comparison between 
proposed project and office development; and (3) public benefit of the project.   
 
Discussion followed on:   
• Public benefits/amenities beyond tax revenue 

o Pedestrian crosswalk on Big Beaver 
o Additional landscaping; i.e., along McClure and Alpine 
o Preservation of natural vegetation / use of impervious materials / storm water 

management 
o Exterior lighting 

• Shadow affect on ground level homes 
• Distance/proximity to existing residential; i.e., side yard requirements 
• Traffic impact; i.e., comparison of office and proposed development 
• Parking in front of the building; i.e., depression of parking 
• Live / work mixed-use concept 
• Dog park (PUD residents only) 
• Open space on podium level (accessible to PUD residents) 
• Feedback from other communities with similar developments 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Jennifer Mooney, Ed Connell and Bob Dudick of Joseph Freed and Associates were 
present.   
 
Ms. Mooney provided a brief review of input received from neighbors.  It appears 
there is general support of the project.  Ms. Mooney said neighbors seem to favor 
the proposed residential/mixed use over an office complex.  She said concerns 
have been expressed on the building height and the shadow affect.  Ms. Mooney 
said they are working very hard to address the neighborhood concerns.   
 
Ms. Mooney reviewed the traffic report provided in their submission.  The report 
indicates a negligible difference in traffic impact from the proposed development and 
additional improvements to Big Beaver would not be warranted. 
 
Ms. Mooney reported they have met with the Road Commission to discuss 
pedestrian access across Big Beaver, and they expect a formal response from the 
Road Commission that will be shared upon its receipt.  Ms. Mooney said they 
contacted the FAA but, to date, they have not received any response.   
 
The Planning Department will consult with the petitioner and the Planning Consultant 
to determine the next review of this item.   
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 9:12 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:21 p.m. 
 

___________ 
 
 

7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-C) – Article 43.74.00, Article 
40.65.02 and Article 44.00.00, pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals 
 
Mr. Savidant reported a Public Hearing has been scheduled on the proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendment at the March 8, 2005 Regular Meeting.   
 
 

8. REVIEW OF MARCH 8, 2005 REGULAR MEETING 
 
Mr. Savidant provided a review of the March 8, 2005 agenda items.   
 
Mr. Schultz disclosed a former business relationship with the petitioner of Site Plan 
672 (Tepel Brothers Printing). 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL MARCH 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Dick Minnick of 28 Millstone Drive, Troy, addressed (1) the roof heights of 
accessory structures as relates to the concept discussed tonight and (2) the 
measurement standards.  
 
Chair Strat said he would like to review the information and plans that Mr. Minnick 
provided him as relates to the garage door height concept introduced tonight.   
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Chair Strat explained the PowerPoint text on hybrid zoning ordinances and the rewriting of 
zoning ordinances relates to the Washington, D.C. audiotapes that are in the Planning 
Department’s library.   
 
Mr. Littman commented on the sensitivity of the microphones during the videotaping of 
meetings.   
 
Mr. Schultz commented on the progress made on the accessory structure issue and the 
proposed PUD project.   
 
Mr. Wright said his garage is legal unless it is decided to go below 50% or lower than a 7-
foot high garage door.   
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:26 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\03-01-05 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 



TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT March 1, 2005 
 

Call to Order 
The regular meeting was called to order at 7:10 p.m. in Conference Room D at Troy City Hall. 
 
Roll Call 

Present: Hailu Robele    Jeff Hyun    
Amin Hashmi    Padma Kuppa 
Flora Tan    Anju Brodbine 

  Charles Yuan   Cindy Stewart, City Liaison   
  Tom Kaszubski   Kara Huang, Student Rep 
  Oniell Shah   

  
   
Approval of Minutes 
Minutes from February 15, 2005 - Motion by Kuppa, second by Yuan. Approved unanimously. 

 
Correspondence 
 

“Troy explores new revenues” by Shaun Lewis, Detroit News, February 13, 2005 
Article was slanted very negatively about life in Troy. Padma encourages everyone to be 
sure and push the positives in our community (services, schools). 

 
New Business 
 

A. Museum Brochure 
a. Loraine Campbell: Request to EIA - Brochure text needs to be translated into a number 

of more commonly spoken languages. She is requesting help from the EIA for 
assistance. This will enable visitors to the Museum to be able to learn about all we have 
to offer.  Cindy has text and is able to email to members. Charles has a contact to do 
Chinese translation. 

 
 

B. Sights & Sounds of the World – April 9, 2005 
Egypt, China, India, Serbia, Pakistan, Germany, Italy, The Middle East, Poland, Korea, 
Philippines, Russia 
 
Call to confirm: Germany – Oniell, Italy – Anju, Russia – Amin, Poland – Padma 
Remind contacts to bring flags and flagpole. People dress in costume. Will get 2 tables per 
country and 20 minutes each for entertainment. 
 
List on program other events related to Diversity Month 

i. May 3 – Athens Ethnic Fair 
ii. May 6 – Prayer Breakfast 
iii. Send Cindy info related to performances for program 

 
C. Spring Break in Troy 

a. Program sponsored by Troy Community Coalition, Troy School District, Troy Parks and 
Recreation, Troy Youth Assistance, Troy Police Department, Troy Families for Safe 
Homes, Boys and Girls Club of Troy, Athens Safe Rides, Troy Public Library, Big 

morrellca
Text Box
F-01l



TROY ETHNCI ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT March 1, 2005 
 
 
 

  

Beaver United Methodist Church – groups to keep kids safe.  March 28 - April 2 for high 
school students  - spread the word throughout the community. 

 
D. National Day of Prayer 

a. Padma sent request to Lori Wagner re: taking part in this year’s program. Lori said 
she’d get back to Padma next week. 

 
 

Old Business 
 
 

A. Diversity Month – April 8 - May 7 
a. Redo proclamation.  Send Letter to all principals via Tim McAvoy.  Email flyer to Jack 

Christianson.  Include flyer for Sights & Sounds World Bazaar – October 22, 2005 
 

B. Resource List 
a. Send updates to Cindy Stewart 

 
C. Troy Daze EthniCity 

a. Discussion next meeting.  Amin will attend EthniCity meeting, Thursday, March 10 at 8 
pm at Community Center (2nd Thursday of each month) 

 
D. Law brochures 

a. Email file to EIA 
 
Motion by Kuppa, second by Shah to adjourn - Meeting adjourned at 8:26 pm   
 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Tom Kaszubski, EIA Board Chairman 

 
 

_______________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 

 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MARCH 2, 2005 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M. on Wednesday, March 2, 2005 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Bill Nelson 
   Tim Richnak 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mitch Grusnick, Building Department Residential Plan Analyst 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF FEBRUARY 2, 2005 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of February 2, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  DAVID HABOIAN, OF KOJAIAN MANAGEMENT 
CORPORATION, 755 W. BIG BEAVER, for relief of Chapter 78 to place an 800 square 
foot special event wall sign for a 30-day period. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to place an 
800 square foot special event wall sign for a 30-day period.  The banner, proposed to 
be located on the wall at the top of the building, announces the 100th anniversary of the 
Society of Automotive Engineers whose offices are located in the building.  The size of 
the special event sign is not limited by the ordinance, however, Chapter 78, Section 
14.02 limits the placement time of special event signs to seven (7) consecutive days 
within any twelve-month period. 
 
Mr. David Haboian of Kojaian Management, Mr. Jack Pokrzywa and Ms. Ila Lee of the 
Society of Automotive Engineers were present.  Mr. Haboian explained that the SAE is 
one of their largest tenants and occupy one and one-half floors of the Top of Troy 
building.  Mr. Haboian said that Kojaian Management fully supports this request and as 
the landlord would love to help them display their 100th anniversary.  The SAE is holding 
a conference from April 4th through the 11th and this would be an opportunity to make 
people aware of this organization. 
 
Mr. Jack Pokrzywa said that they have been in this community for a number of years 
and are the only automotive society in the area.  They have a number of activities  

 1

morrellca
Text Box
J-01m



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MARCH 2, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
planned for this week including competitions, classes and conferences at the San 
Marino Club.  They want people to know that that are 100 years old and this would also 
be a way for them to attract new members and students. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what the specific dates would be.  Mr. Pokrzywa said they would like 
to display this banner both before and after the dates of the conference.  Mr. Haboian 
said that they would like the banner up for the month of April. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there were any other instances where a banner was put out for a 
longer period of time.  Mr. Grusnick stated that he was aware of Oakland Mall receiving 
a variance to display a banner for a longer period of time. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant David Haboian, of Kojaian Management Corporation, 755 W. Big 
Beaver, relief of Chapter 78 to place an 800 square foot special event wall sign for a 30-
day period. 
 

• Banner will be displayed for the month of April. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  J & E HOME IMPROVEMENTS, 1264 CHAUCER 
DR., for relief of the 2003 Michigan Residential Code to finish a basement into habitable 
space, which will result in a ceiling height of 6’-10”, where 7’ is required. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the 2003 Michigan 
Residential Code to finish the basement at 1264 Chaucer.  Section R305.1 of the 2003 
Michigan Residential Code, requires a 7’ minimum ceiling height in habitable spaces 
including finished basements.  The distance from the basement floor to the bottom of 
the floor joists above is 7’–0”.  The plan submitted indicates a new dropped ceiling to be 
installed with a 6’-10” ceiling height. 
 
 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                                MARCH 2, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. David Shipley of J & E Home Improvements and Jim Murdock of 1264 Chaucer 
were present.  Mr. Shipley explained that this is an Owens Corning product and 
although the manufacturer recommends that the ceiling has a drop of 3”, they plan to 
raise it to 2”, the end result being that the ceiling would result with a 6’-10” ceiling 
height. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked what the relation between dry wall and asthma was.  Mr. Shipley said 
that there are arguments for and against this correlation.  He went on to say that he 
thinks it is because the dry wall is porous and can result in creating mold.  The Owens 
Corning ceiling has a substance that will help to resist mold. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what the ceiling height would be at the bottom of the stairs.  Mr. 
Shipley said that they plan to elevate the ceiling at the bottom of the stairs to meet code. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant J & E Home Improvements, 1264 Chaucer Dr., relief of the 2003 
Michigan Residential Code to finish a basement into habitable space, which will result in 
a ceiling height of 6’-10” where 7’ is required. 
 

• General ceiling height will be 6’-10”. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:43 A.M. 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 

 3



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:30 p.m. on March 8, 2005, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-026 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Drake-Batts is excused from attendance at this meeting 
for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Mr. Vleck requested that the February 22, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes reflect 
in more detail the discussion on agenda item #5, ZOTA 215-A, relating to Accessory 
Buildings.   
 
There was discussion relating to the detail of minutes required for a study meeting, the 
archive system in place for meeting videotapes (CD/DVD), and whether meeting 
videotapes are or should be maintained as a permanent record.   
 
Mr. Miller informed the members there is no requirement to maintain a recording of the 
meeting after the minutes are approved.   

morrellca
Text Box
J-01n



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-03-027 
Moved by:  Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the February 22, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
published. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck voted no because he would like to see a proposal go forward to the City 
Council with respect to maintaining a videotape archive as part of the permanent 
record.   
 
Mr. Waller questioned why it should be an action by City Council as opposed to the 
Planning Commission.   
 
Mr. Miller said the City Clerk is responsible for keeping the official records.  He said 
the Planning Department maintains a library of Planning Commission meeting 
videotapes (CD/DVD) but the recordings are not considered official records.  
 
Mr. Schultz said the issue of whether videotapes of all Board and Commission 
meetings are maintained as a permanent record should be addressed by the City 
Clerk’s office, not by this body.   
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

TABLED ITEMS 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 695) – Proposed Becker Overflow 

Parking Area, South side of Henrietta, East of Rochester Road, Section 27 – From R-
1E to P-1 
 
Mr. Miller reported that a request was made by the petitioner to postpone the item to 
the April 12, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting.  He explained the 
petitioner is considering applying for a conditional rezoning of the property, and 
would like additional time to complete a corresponding site plan.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
Chair Strat announced the Public Hearing would remain open. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-028 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Public Hearing for the rezoning request for the Proposed 
Becker Overflow Parking Area, located on the south side of Henrietta and east of 
Rochester Road, Section 27, from R-1E to P-1, be tabled to the April 12, 2005 
Regular Meeting.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

5. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Oak Forest Site 
Condominium, 76 units/lots proposed, South side of Square Lake Road, West side 
of John R, Section 11 – R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
Oak Forest Condominium project.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation 
of the Planning Department to approve the application with five conditions:  (1) 
submission of required landscape information; (2) appropriate MDEQ permits; (3) 
appropriate permits to complete Fetterly Drain improvements; (4) clarification of 
ownership of proposed open space that includes the proposed wetlands mitigation 
areas; and (5) change the designation of the easement shown on the plan to a 
public walkway.  
 
There was a brief discussion on the stub streets.  Mr. Miller confirmed that there are 
3 stub streets, as discussed at previous study meetings.   
 
The petitioner, Dale Garrett of Ladd’s Inc., 5877 Livernois, Troy, was present.  Mr. 
Garrett confirmed that the revised plan shows the stub streets, as previously 
discussed, and the pathway.  He said he would be happy to answer any questions 
on the revised plan.   
 
Mr. Waller asked the petitioner if he received the interdepartmental review 
comments incorporated in the Planning Department report.   
 
Mr. Garrett responded in the affirmative.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Miller reviewed the comments made by the City Engineer in his memorandum 
dated January 20, 2005.  The memorandum outlined that, in his opinion, the 
preliminary plan is sufficient and feasible to be constructed and that the storm water 
detention basin is sufficient and would improve the drainage for the general area.  
The City Engineer’s memorandum indicated that many details of the project would 
be determined during the engineering design phase.  
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Lon Ullman of 5621 Willow Grove, Troy, was present.  Mr. Ullman submitted a letter 
from the Oakland County Drain Commission that cites in regard to the Fetterly Drain 
that any kind of improvements would need adjacent property owners’ permission to 
enclose the drain even if the drain is within the easement.  Difficulty could arise since 
the easement is an open channel and the requirements were that if the drain would be 
improved, it would have to be widened outside of the easement.  Mr. Ullman 
introduced documentation that relates to a floodplain application signed by the 
Engineering Department dated April 1998, and a letter from the MDEQ dated 2001.  
The documentation indicates that the floodplain map revisions by the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency may have bearing on the development of the area.   
 
Chair Strat asked Mr. Ullman to submit the documentation to the Planning 
Department, who in turn would provide it to the Engineering Department for review.  
Chair Strat indicated that tonight’s recommendation to City Council would be based on 
the information provided to the Commission to date.   
 
Mr. Ullman outlined a letter he prepared and submitted to the members.  The letter 
relates to the concern of water and its displacement onto neighboring properties and 
to the grading plan; specifically the amount of fill dirt, floodplain level, west side 
detention pond, culvert restrictions of the Fetterly Drain and sewers.  Mr. Ullman 
realizes the Engineering Department would review these items and asked that the 
review be conducted prior to the proposed plan going for final review.   
 
Pam Brubaker of 5775 John R, Troy, was present.  Ms. Brubaker said her property 
shares 500 feet of property line with the proposed development, and noted her 
driveway runs along the property line.  She said the former owner filled in a small 
portion of the lot behind the pole barn adjacent to her driveway.  Ms. Brubaker said 
that flooding has occurred ever since.  She cited flooding problems from the last 
snowmelt to June or July and said their driveway is almost completely under water in 
the spring and fall.  Ms. Brubaker expressed her concerns with the inability to use her 
driveway and the flooding as a result of a small fill-in.  She questioned the potential 
problems that could occur after development of a big project.  Ms. Brubaker 
referenced a recently constructed home on 4.5 acres on the other side of her property 
that apparently has water problems because they have pumped water out of their 
basement onto her property.  Again, she questioned what impact a larger 
development might have on the neighboring properties.  Ms. Brubaker asked the 
Planning Commission who is liable for the increased water run-off on adjacent 
properties.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Chair Strat replied that the members could not answer the question of liability.  He said 
staff or the Legal Department could answer the question.  
 
Mr. Chamberlain said the ordinances are written as such that there is to be no excess 
water coming off of this property.  If the development is done right, there should not be 
any water coming off of this property onto her property.   
 
Mr. Miller indicated that the Engineering Department would handle any water 
concerns.   
 
Don Edmunds, President of Golf Trail Homeowners Association, of 1304 Player Drive, 
Troy, was present.  Mr. Edmunds specifically addressed agenda item #6 relating to 
the proposed Oak Forest South Site Condominium, and read a communication 
prepared on behalf of the residents of Golf Trail subdivision.  A copy of the 
communication is attached and made a part of the minutes.   
 
Mr. Waller asked Mr. Edmunds if the Golf Trail Homeowners Association would be 
willing to share the expense of paving Willow Grove. 
 
Mr. Edmunds responded in the negative.   
 
Mr. Waller asked Mr. Edmunds if he felt it would be appropriate to restrict access to a 
public street, a street that is paid for by the citizens of the City for the benefit of the 
City.   
 
Mr. Edmunds responded that the residents are not objecting to interconnectivity.  He 
said the homeowners association has a long history of promoting interconnectivity, but 
there is an essential difference with this development.  Should Willow Grove not be 
paved, Golf Trail subdivision residents would bear the additional traffic.  Mr. Edmunds 
said it is understood that the City pays an additional 40% premium for maintaining 
gravel streets and all taxpayers pay for those additional costs.  Mr. Edmunds said the 
sooner Willow Grove is paved, the better for everyone.   
 
Mr. Waller asked Mr. Edmunds if there was any particular traffic improvement created 
to allow new residents of Golf Trail subdivision access into the subdivision when it was 
under development.   
 
Mr. Edmunds answered in the negative.  He noted that Hilmore has since been paved. 
 
Dorene Randall of 5348 Abington, Troy, was present.  Ms. Randall, a thirty-year 
resident of Troy, wanted to let the members know how much the subject property is 
used to educate the kids of Troy.  The property encompasses endangered plants, 
turtles and a herd of deer.  The kids go to the area to learn, do school reports, and 
write books.  Ms. Randall said the property is such a valuable piece of property for 
educational purposes.  She asked if there was any possibility of entering into a 
partnership with a land conservatory, or to buy out the developer.  Ms. Randall offered 
to collect money for the City of Troy.  She would like to see the property remain 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

undeveloped as a legacy to the City.  Ms. Randall said to call her if the members 
would like a citywide collection.   
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Chair Strat announced tonight’s recommendation would be based on the 
information provided to the members in their meeting packet.  He said any 
additional documentation submitted tonight would be collected by the Planning 
Department and reviewed by appropriate departments.   
 
Mr. Schultz reviewed some of the issues brought to their attention (i.e., final grade, 
elevation, floodplains, capacity of sewers, prior filling causing flooding, liability of 
run-off water) that would be appropriately handled by the Engineering Department.  
He asked for confirmation from a legal standpoint that the job of the Planning 
Commission is to review the site plan and move it forward to the MDEQ and final 
engineering should the plan meet all ordinance requirements.   
 
Mr. Motzny said the Planning Commission’s job is to grant or make a 
recommendation for preliminary approval, at which time the plan would be 
forwarded to City Council for its review and approval.  Mr. Motzny said the 
engineering aspects are matters that would be addressed in the future and are not 
matters directly before the Planning Commission at this time.   
 
Chair Strat asked what recourse residents would have should their concerns not get 
addressed or satisfied.   
 
Mr. Miller explained a preliminary site plan sets the parameters of a development.  
After preliminary approval, the specific design work and permit process begins.  Mr. 
Miller said any concerns of residents, such as drainage, would be handled by the 
Engineering Department during the engineering phase of a development.   
 
Mr. Littman addressed the comments of Ms. Randall.  He said there is an Oakland 
County conservancy and he could provide her with contact information.  Mr. Littman 
said a sale/purchase of the property would be a private transaction.  Mr. Littman 
said the residents have valid concerns, but the Planning Commission is limited in 
what it can do and bound by law to look at specific things.  Mr. Littman said some of 
the concerns brought forward, such as paving Willow Grove, are more politically 
inclined issues and maybe City Council would address them.   
 
Mr. Khan responded to the comments of Ms. Brubaker.  Mr. Khan told her the 
Engineering Department is the appropriate channel for any water problems.  He 
assured her the Engineering Department would respond quickly and get the 
developer or builder to take care of the problem.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Waller asked if it would be valid to see this plan again before final site plan 
approval.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said as a recommending body to City Council for preliminary and 
final approval, it would not be valid to request that the final site plan be brought back 
to this body.   
 
Mr. Schultz said the parcel is a difficult parcel to develop and it would be within the 
Planning Commission’s right to request the site plan to come back for review should 
there be significant changes to the plan as approved. 
 
Mr. Miller agreed that the parcel is difficult to develop.  He understands why the 
members would want the plan to come back for review should significant changes 
take place, such as removing lots, adding lots, moving retention basins, etc.   
 
Chair Strat stated that should the layout of the site plan change and there are 
problems, he thinks the plan should come back before the Planning Commission.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-029 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that the 
Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Oak Forest Site Condominium, including 76 units, 
located on the south side of Square Lake Road and west side of John R, Section 11, 
within the R-1C zoning district be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Submission of the landscaping information required by the Landscape Analyst in 

the Planning Department report dated March 3, 2005. 
 
2. The applicant must receive appropriate permits from the MDEQ prior to 

dredging, filling, or completing any other improvements within a State-regulated 
wetland. 

 
3. The applicant must receive appropriate permits from the Oakland County Drain 

Commissioner and the City of Troy prior to completing any improvements to the 
Fetterly Drain. 

 
4. Clarification of ownership of proposed open space that includes the proposed 

wetlands mitigation areas. 
 

5. Changing what is marked as the walking easement to a dedicated walkway.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Wright 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Wright said that as a former resident of the area, he has been familiar with the 
subject property for almost 30 years.  He thinks the City should have purchased the 
property a long time ago.  Mr. Wright said it would be a major mistake on the part of 
the City to allow it to be developed.  He said the property has always been a swamp 
and he believes that the addition of the significant amount of impervious surfaces 
that would be part of the development would exacerbate the existing flooding 
situation in the area.  Mr. Wright said the development would be detrimental to the 
health, safety and welfare of the existing neighbors as well as new residents.   
 
 

6. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Oak Forest South Site 
Condominium, 24 units/lots proposed, South of Square Lake Road, East side of 
Willow Grove, Section 11 – R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the Planning Department to 
approve the application with three conditions:  (1) submission of required landscape 
information; (2) appropriate MDEQ permits; (3) appropriate permits to complete 
Fetterly Drain improvements.  
 
Chair Strat confirmed that there was no one in the audience who wished to speak on 
this matter. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-030 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that the 
Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Oak Forest South Site Condominium, including 24 
units, located on the south side of Square Lake Road and east of Willow Grove, 
Section 11, within the R-1C zoning district be granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. Submission of the landscaping information required by the Landscape Analyst in 

the Planning Department report dated March 3, 2005. 
 
2. The applicant must receive appropriate permits from the MDEQ prior to 

dredging, filling, or completing any other improvements within a State-regulated 
wetland. 

 
3. The applicant must receive appropriate permits from the Oakland County Drain 

Commissioner and the City of Troy prior to completing any improvements to the 
Fetterly Drain. 

 
Mr. Schultz requested that the motion be conditioned also upon the site plan being 
brought back to the Planning Commission for review should there be significant 
changes because of permitting or wetland or any other water problem.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Mr. Chamberlain said he would not know how to put that condition in the motion to 
make it work because it is a recommendation to the City Council. 
 
Mr. Khan said the plan would automatically come back before the Planning 
Commission should there be any significant layout changes, and as a 
recommending body to the City Council, the members do not have a right to 
stipulate that condition.    
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Wright 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Wright said the comments expressed on the previous resolution apply to this 
resolution.  (Refer to Resolution #PC 2005-03-029) 
 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-A) – 
Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory Buildings 
Definitions and Provisions 
 
Mr. Miller reported that the Planning Department recommends postponement of this 
item to a future date.  City Council has scheduled a joint Planning Commission/City 
Council Special Meeting on March 28, 2005 to further discuss ZOTA 215-A and 
other related issues.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Lon Ullman of 5621 Willow Grove, Troy, was present.  Mr. Ullman encouraged the 
City to not place a handicap on builders by limiting the construction of garages to a 
specific size as a result of one person’s poor judgment.  He asked that an appeal 
process be in place should the City place a size limitation on garages.  Mr. Ullman 
said an appeal process would provide a means to regulate construction and design 
of accessory structures should they be in poor taste or an imposition to the 
neighbors.  
 
Dick Minnick of 28 Millstone, Troy, was present.  Mr. Minnick said he is very 
concerned with the roof height limit as discussed at the last Planning Commission 
meeting.  He said that all 51 homes in his subdivision (Westwood Park) would 
exceed the 14-foot average.  Mr. Minnick indicated that he provided Chair Strat with 
information and photographs for his review and distribution to the members.  Mr. 
Minnick said the builder of his subdivision has built homes throughout the City with 
similar blueprints, and the problem could very well be widespread.  Mr. Minnick 
reviewed a discussion he had with a subdivision attorney with respect to the matter; 
i.e., concerns with insurability, disclosure, rebuilding limitations, etc.  The attorney 
indicated that it is a general practice of municipalities to write ordinances wherein 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

new restrictions would apply only to new construction.  Mr. Minnick said Mr. Miller 
was quoted in one of the newspapers as saying that such a grandfather clause 
would be counter-productive because it essentially would allow the Alpine garage to 
remain.  Mr. Minnick said the City Council asked the Planning Commission to write 
a Zoning Ordinance that would prohibit the building of another monster garage, not 
to remedy the problem that exists on Alpine.  Mr. Minnick asked that other residents 
not be penalized because of one resident’s action.  He encouraged that existing 
buildings be grandfathered in and exempt from impending limitations.  Mr. Minnick 
suggested that a table be created to compare existing regulations and proposed 
regulations of both attached and detached structures with Sterling Heights and 
Rochester Hills, cities that are similar in age and style of subdivisions.   
 
Mr. Waller asked Mr. Minnick to provide the comments made by the subdivision 
attorney in writing for distribution to the members.  He also suggested that 
information be provided to the members of any specific cases wherein the sales of 
homes were affected by insurability or disclosures related to City ordinances similar 
to those revisions being discussed.   
 
Linda Thielfoldt of 646 E. Long Lake, Troy, was present.  Ms. Thielfoldt lives in the 
Covington Ridge subdivision located on the south side of Long Lake between 
Livernois and Rochester Road.  She shared her concerns and voiced her objection 
to the proposed 14-foot height limitation.  Ms. Thielfoldt said residents should not 
suffer for the sins of one resident, and asked that the members reconsider the 
height restriction.  Ms. Thielfoldt said that many of the 43 homes in her subdivision 
would become non-compliant should the proposed 14-foot height limitation be 
adopted, and noted that a good percentage of the homes have bedrooms over the 
garage.  She expressed concerns with respect to disclosure of non-compliance and 
insurance coverage.  Ms. Thielfoldt said her State Farm insurance agent confirmed 
that an increased premium could result should her garage become a non-
conforming structure.  She claimed it would be a discriminatory factor in the 
potential sale of her home.  Ms. Thielfoldt asked what the procedure would be 
should she decide in the future to finish the attic space of her home, as relates to 
non-conformance.  Ms. Thielfoldt also asked that consideration be given to market 
demands and the construction of current subdivisions with respect to garage height 
and maximizing square footage.  Ms. Thielfoldt said any gray areas as to what is 
being proposed should be clarified in the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Chair Strat confirmed that Ms. Thielfoldt understood the proposed 14-foot garage 
door height formula. 
 
Mr. Wright clarified that the 14-foot height restriction would be for homes that do not 
have habitable areas above the garage.  If there is habitable space or bedrooms 
above the garage, the garage height could parallel the height of the house.  Mr. 
Wright also said that Ms. Thielfoldt would most likely be able to build out her attic 
space with no negative impact.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Richard Hughes of 1321 Roger Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Hughes said the City 
has a good building code and the Mayor has said the City has good planning.  He 
questioned why the City would want to fix something if it is good.  Mr. Hughes 
addressed the “terms” currently used; i.e., an addition to a house is now termed 
garage, or family room, or accessory building, etc.  Mr. Hughes said there is no 
difference in building materials used for commercial or residential uses.   
 
Chair Strat announced the Public Hearing would remain open. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-031 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to 
Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions, be postponed to a future meeting 
after meeting with City Council later this month. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-C) – 
Article 43.00.00, Article 40.65,00, Article 40.66.00 and Article 44.00.00, pertaining to 
Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals 
 
Mr. Miller reported that the Planning Department recommends postponement of this 
item to a future date.  City Council has scheduled a joint Planning Commission/City 
Council Special Meeting on March 28, 2005 to further discuss ZOTA 215-C and 
other related issues.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Tom Krent of 3184 Alpine, Troy, was present.  Mr. Krent addressed the impact of 
commercial vehicles on a residential neighborhood.  He questioned if the City and 
residents would like to keep residential areas residential or would they rather have 
residential/business zones.  Mr. Krent said if one truly wants a residential district, 
keep it residential and not turn it into a quasi-commercial or business district.  He 
said the current Zoning Ordinance requirement that states nothing larger than a full-
size pickup truck or van can be stored outside should apply for inside storage also.   
 
Chair Strat announced the Public Hearing would remain open. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-03-032 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Article 43.00.00, Article 40.65.00, Article 40.66.00 and Article 
44.00.00, pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals, be postponed to a 
future meeting after meeting with City Council later this month.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 1) – Proposed 
Amendment to Woodside Bible Church / Northwyck Condominium PUD, East side 
of Rochester and South of South Blvd., Section 2 – PUD 1 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed amendment to PUD 1.  Mr. Savidant explained that the proposed Second 
Amendment relates to the size and location of the entry sign on Rochester Road.  
The proposed Third Amendment relates to the placement of unscreened 
mechanical equipment on the west side of the roof.  Mr. Savidant reported that the 
Planning Department has received two letters of opposition to the proposed 
amendments.  Slides of the entry sign and mechanical equipment on the roof were 
presented. 
 
Mr. Miller provided clarification on First Amendment to the PUD 1 with respect to the 
height of the berm along Rochester Road.  He addressed the landscaping in terms 
of the approved landscaping plan.  Mr. Miller reported that there was no sign 
package included in the City’s first PUD project, but noted it would be a requirement 
for all future PUD projects.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said a PUD is a contract and should the petitioner want to change 
the contract, the City should request something in return.  Mr. Chamberlain said a 
PUD project is held to a higher standard of development, and the petitioner is 
denigrating that standard to something less.   
 
Kevan Johnston, chairman of the building program for Woodside Bible Church, 
6600 Rochester Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Johnston said the initial PUD 
package was inclusive of signage to be determined at a later date.  Mr. Johnston 
addressed the berm with respect to safety concerns, elevation of the church and the 
visibility of the sign.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

Mr. Littman questioned the wording on the sign.   
 
Mr. Johnston said the wording is what is shown on the drawing.  It was noted that it 
is not an LED sign.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Discussion on the proposed Second Amendment relating to the sign 
 
Mr. Khan asked if there were any other signs along Rochester Road as big as this 
sign or placed as close to the sidewalk as this sign.  Mr. Khan said the sign is 176% 
larger than any sign that would be allowed on any property, and he sees no reason 
to allow such a big sign that close to the sidewalk.  He said an electronic sign with a 
changeable message would be a big distraction to the traffic.   
 
Mr. Miller said he could not provide information this evening on signs throughout the 
City because the Planning Department is not involved in the sign process; it is a 
function of the Building Department.  Mr. Miller stated the members have the ability 
to require a higher standard in terms of signage because it is a PUD.   
 
Mr. Vleck said the sign and unscreened roof are two mistakes that should have 
been accounted for initially.  He said the petitioner is not offering any additional 
benefit to the City in return for deviating from the standard.  Mr. Vleck said a 
comparison study of other signs throughout the City might be helpful in making a 
determination on the sign.   
 
Mr. Schultz said it appears the petitioner went forward with the construction of the 
sign without the approval and appropriate permitting from the City.  He said he is 
very concerned about the “marquee” sign that would be a distraction to traffic and 
placed too close to the road. 
 
Mr. Wright agreed with the members’ comments.  He sees no valid reason to allow 
the proposed amendments. 
 
Mr. Littman said it would be hard to miss the big church and questioned the need for 
a sign.  He addressed the wording on the sign and the potential danger in having 
the sign so close to the major road.   
 
Mr. Waller suggested placement of physical barriers to protect the sign.  Mr. Waller 
thinks the sign is okay, but the mechanical equipment should be screened.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said he does not think anything should be changed.  He said the 
PUD is a contract; the petitioner screwed up, they want us to bail them out and they 
have offered no consideration for their mistakes.   
 
Wayne Chubb of Hobbs & Black Architects was present.  Mr. Chubb provided a 
clarification of the size of the sign and the changeable message board.  He said the 
sign is not LED, but it is a changeable letter sign similar to signs currently situated 
throughout the City.  Mr. Chubb said the size and type of sign were thoroughly 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

discussed with the Building Department representative.  He said the letters on the 
sign are 10 inches high by 10 feet long, and combined with the 4 by 10-foot board 
below, the sign totals 100 square feet.  Mr. Chubb said the additional square 
footage referenced by the members is the aesthetic brick added to complement the 
sign and locational area.  Mr. Chubb said signs along Rochester Road vary in size 
and type.  He indicated that the contractor was present and could address the 
permit issue.  
 
Discussion on the proposed Third Amendment relating to screening of mechanical 
equipment.  
 
Mr. Johnston said the drawings for the mechanical equipment screening were 
submitted and went through the entire approval process of the City.  Mr. Johnston 
said the first indication they had that the screening had to be on all four sides 
occurred in the 17th month of the 18th month of the construction process.  One week 
prior to getting their certificate of occupancy, a building inspector informed them that 
the equipment must be screened on all four sides.   
 
Chair Strat said building inspectors have the prerogative to enforce the Zoning 
Ordinance at any time during the construction process.   He said we are not here to 
argue the accuracy of the drawings or the review process, but to address the sign 
and screen issues.   
 
Mr. Johnston said it is his understanding that additional metal boxes would be the 
means of screening material, at an expense of approximately $55,000.   
 
Mr. Miller again reminded the members that they have more discretion with a PUD 
project than a site plan.   
 
Mr. Vleck said he sees no reason to deviate from the requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance.  He thinks the mechanical equipment on the roof should be screened.   
 
Mr. Khan asked if it is possible to screen the roof in terms of the additional weight 
placed on the roof.  Mr. Khan agreed the roof should be screened.  He said if the 
petitioner could build that big of a building, they could afford to screen the 
equipment. 
 
Mr. Chubb said the roof could support the additional weight, but noted that portions 
of the church could not be utilized during the construction phase.   
 
Mr. Schultz said it is unacceptable to build such an attractive building and then allow 
mechanical equipment to be visible on the roof.  He said there is no doubt that 
nearby residents can also view the equipment and it is not fair to them.   
 
Mr. Wright said he totally agrees with all the comments made.  He said he is 
concerned about the sign’s placement at only 3 feet from the right of way.  Mr. 
Wright said he might consider a slightly larger sign than the 100 square feet, but the 
current sign is much larger.   
 
Mr. Waller said there is a definite problem with the sign as relates to the wording, 
style, trim, stone, etc.  He said that if the sign had been negotiated with the Building 
Department as attested to tonight, then the documentation provided to the members 
is severely short.  Mr. Waller said he has no problem with the sign, but the 
mechanical equipment on the roof should be screened.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

Mr. Chamberlain said the Planning Commission should impress upon the City 
Council members that the petitioner should be held to a higher standard should City 
Council choose to approve the proposed amendments. 
 
Chair Strat said the PUD is not a project of which he would be proud.  Chair Strat 
said one sees nothing but a big sea of asphalt, lots of cars, and a big monster 
church with no landscaping or appeal when driving by.  Chair Strat said he is not in 
favor of approving either one of the proposed amendments.  He suggested 
additional landscaping as an improvement and benefit to the area.   
 
Mr. Miller said an alternative solution to the approval process would be to postpone 
the item to allow time for the petitioner to address the concerns expressed by the 
members.  
 
Mr. Johnston said he would prefer to postpone the matter and work with the 
Planning Department on the two issues.  Mr. Johnston responded to the Chair’s 
comments on landscaping.  Mr. Johnston said the approved landscape plan for the 
development had been met, and there is landscaping on both sides of the berms 
and throughout the boulevards. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-033 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Second Amendment and Third Amendment to the Final Plan 
and Agreement for a Planned Unit Development, pursuant to Section 35.60.01 and 
Section 35.80.00, for the Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck Planned Unit 
Development, known as PUD 1, be tabled to the April 12, 2005 Regular Meeting to 
allow the petitioner and the Planning Department time to work out further 
possibilities and details 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, That when the matter comes back to the Planning 
Commission in April, any correspondence between the petitioner (Woodside Bible 
Church) and the Building Department representative relating to the sign, its size, its 
placement or any other aspect of the sign, be included. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 9:45 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:55 p.m. 
 

___________ 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 700) – Existing Clark Gas 
Station, Northeast corner of Livernois and Maple Road (1602 Livernois), Section 27 
– From B-1 to H-S 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant noted that the site plan indicated that the 
proposed development would require a number of non-use variances from the 
Board of Zoning Appeals prior to receiving Preliminary Site Plan Approval.  He said 
prudent site planning suggests that consolidation of adjacent properties would be 
desirable, but the Planning Department cannot require the applicant to do so.  Mr. 
Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the Planning Department to 
approve the rezoning application.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked how the City could vacate the alleyway to the east if the vacation 
places the building to the east in non-compliance because of the loss of parking. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the vacation would dedicate access to insure that the property to 
the east would have access to the parking area to the north of the building.  He 
noted there is no indication on the site plan that the petitioner intends to utilize any 
of the alleyway for the gas station operation. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that one of the conditions when City Council adopted an 
authorizing resolution to vacate the alleyway was that there would be an easement 
of access retained.   
 
The petitioner, Mike Kozlowski of Caeruleum Environmental Design, 5603 
Telegraph Road, Dearborn Heights, was present.  Mr. Kozlowski said the site is just 
above the minimum size for a service station, and it is recognized that a number of 
variances would be required as well as utility and cross access easement 
challenges.  Mr. Kozlowski said he is prepared to address those items with site plan 
approval. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-034 
 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the northeast corner of 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

Maple Road and Livernois Avenue, within Section 27, being approximately 15,800 
square feet in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

11. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 672-B) – Proposed Industrial Building Addition, West side 
of John R, North of Birchwood, Section 26, M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Schultz disclosed a business relationship with the owner of the subject property, 
Tepel Brothers Printing Company.  He said he would abstain consideration of this 
item should the members or the City Attorney believe there would be a conflict of 
interest on his part.   
 
There were no objections to allowing the consideration of Mr. Schultz on this matter. 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed industrial building addition.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the site plan as submitted 
with the conditions of (1) approval by the Landscape Analyst of the Preliminary 
Landscape Plan and (2) the applicant providing a deceleration lane as required by 
the City of Troy Development Standards.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said it appears the required deceleration lane might not be 
necessary because of an existing deceleration lane.   
 
Mr. Littman questioned the location of the trash enclosure.   
 
Mr. Savidant replied that it would be best for the petitioner to respond to the 
deceleration lane and trash enclosure concerns.   
 
Steve Lenderman, project architect from Mandell, Bilovus, Lenderman & 
Associates, 4085 John R, Troy, was present.  Mr. Lenderman introduced the 
property owner, Jim Tepel.  Mr. Tepel indicated that the deceleration lane required 
as a condition to site plan approval would be a deceleration lane off of an existing 
deceleration lane.  Mr. Lenderman explained that the existing deceleration lane is 
not shown on the survey because it is located far north of Wattles Road.  Mr. 
Lenderman addressed the 5-foot sidewalk that is shown on the plan on the north 
side of Birchwood.  He requested that they not be required to install the sidewalk 
because there are no existing sidewalks in that area, and there would be a sidewalk 
starting from nowhere and going to nowhere.  Mr. Lenderman said a building built to 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 18 - 
 

the west approximately 6 months ago was not required to put in a sidewalk on 
Birchwood.  Mr. Lenderman clarified that the survey does not show an existing 5-
foot concrete sidewalk connecting with the 8-foot sidewalk on John R. 
 
A brief discussion followed on the installation of the sidewalk.  Mr. Miller confirmed 
there is no requirement to install a sidewalk because it is within the M-1 zoning 
district.  He explained that this area is currently mixed with some residential but the 
area is future planned as M-1. 
 
Mr. Schultz referenced a building on Woodslee that was required to install a 5-foot 
sidewalk from property line to property line when it was built.  He questioned why 
one property would be required and another property not required to install a 
sidewalk. 
 
Mr. Littman questioned the trash enclosure location in terms of access for trash 
removal.   
 
Mr. Lenderman said the existing truck well would be enclosed with a trash 
compactor.  He said it would be more beneficial to the owner to use the trash 
compactor, and noted that the owner would prefer to keep the trash enclosure at its 
current location for future use should it become necessary.  Mr. Lenderman 
suggested that the location of the trash enclosure could be turned 90 degrees for 
easy access for trash removal, should the trash enclosure be used in the future.   
 
Chair Strat disclosed that he is familiar with Tepel Brothers Printing Company but 
that he has had no monetary relationship with them.  
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-035 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
Industrial Building Addition, located on the west side of John R and North of 
Birchwood, located in Section 26, within the M-1 zoning district, is hereby granted, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Approval by Landscape Analyst of the Preliminary Landscape Plan 
 
2. It is the Planning Commission’s recommendation that because there is already a 

right turn/deceleration lane in front of this property, that there should not be an 
additional deceleration lane required.  

 
3. That the sidewalk shown on the south edge of the property along Birchwood not 

be required because it is in the M-1 zoning district.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 19 - 
 

Yes: All present 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 

 
Mr. Schultz favorably commented on the City’s fast-track lighting system and personally 
thanked the Road Commission of Oakland County for utilizing the early morning hours to 
patch potholes on Maple Road.   
 
Mr. Miller reported that the interview process begins tomorrow for the Big Beaver Corridor 
Study.  Mr. Miller announced that City Management has worked out a system where the 
Planning Department reports on all Public Hearings at the City Council level would be 
available to the public on-line.  He indicated also that in the near future Planning 
Department reports for the regular meeting agendas would be available to the public on-
line.   
 
Chair Strat announced he would not be at the Joint City Council/Planning Commission 
Special Meeting because he would be in San Francisco attending the American Planning 
Association National Conference.  Mr. Schultz will be chairing the joint meeting.   
 
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\03-08-05 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



Kathy Czarnecki 

From: Don Edmunds [don@edmundsfamily.com]

Sent: Tuesday, March 08, 2005 6:47 PM

To: Mark F Miller; Paula P Bratto

Subject: Golf Trail Resident Concerns - Oak Forest South Site Condominiums

Page 1 of 2

3/18/2005

March 8, 2005 
  
Mr. Mark Miller, Planning Director 
Members of Troy Planning Commission 
  
RE:    Golf Trail Homeowners Association Objections - Oak Forest South Site Condominiums 
  
Dear Mr. Miller and Members of the Planning Commission, 
  
Golf Trail homeowners object to the the proposed 23-unit Oak Forest South Preliminary Site Condominium Plan 
Review for the following reasons: 

We share the concerns expressed by Mr. Ullmann and the residents of Willow Grove.  Some of the same 
concerns have been made by members of the Planning Commission.  We believe the development of this 
property is inappropriate due to the significant portion of wetlands and natural features.  Even though 
engineering and permits are addressed during the next phase, there are serious concerns as to whether 
even sanitary sewer hookup can be achieved since Golf Trail sanitary sewers are not large enough 
to accommodate Oak Forest South.  
We understand that the City or the Planning Commission cannot ask or require the developer to pave 
Willow Grove.  However, we did request that the developer, Mr. Dale Garrett pay to pave Willow Grove at a 
February 24 meeting at Troy Union Elementary.  Approximately 60 Golf Trail homeowners attended the 
meeting and nearly 15 additional homeowners sent emails in support of our request to the 
developer.  Even though Mr. Garrett said he would get back to us regarding our request, he has not yet 
done so.  
At the meeting we asked the developer why he had not chose to use the cluster option to develop the 
property.  His response was that it would not save more than ten percent (10%) of the wetlands.  Is this 
really the case?  We would appreciate an answer from the City to this question.   
Mr. Dale Garrett did say at the meeting that construction traffic would be contained to Willow Grove and we 
request that any approval granted include this specific restriction.  
Golf Trail residents are very concerned about the 184 additional vehicle trips per day that will be essentially 
borne by Golf Trail streets from Oak Forest South if Willow Grove is not paved.  We also believe that the 
Planning Commission has an obligation to protect the health safety and welfare of all the residents 
including Golf Trail.  The 23 new homes of Oak Forest South would directly benefit by the paving of Willow 
Grove.  
If Oak Forest South is approved by the Planning Commission, Golf Trail residents will submit petitions to 
the City Council for a temporary diagonal (NW to SE) street barricade at Trevino and Willow Grove.  Most 
of our homeowners have already signed the petitions.  The barricade would be removed whenever Willow 
Grove was paved and the two Oak Forest subs were connected.  We understand that only the City Council 
can approve the temporary barricade. 

Thank you for considering our comments and objections. 
  
Respectfully submitted, 
Don Edmunds, President 
Golf Trail Homeowners Association 
1304 Player Drive 
Troy, MI  48085 



Tel    248-879-8287 
Email    don@edmundsfamily.com 

Page 2 of 2

3/18/2005



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:30 p.m. on March 8, 2005, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-026 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Drake-Batts is excused from attendance at this meeting 
for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Mr. Vleck requested that the February 22, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes reflect 
in more detail the discussion on agenda item #5, ZOTA 215-A, relating to Accessory 
Buildings.   
 
There was discussion relating to the detail of minutes required for a study meeting, the 
archive system in place for meeting videotapes (CD/DVD), and whether meeting 
videotapes are or should be maintained as a permanent record.   
 
Mr. Miller informed the members there is no requirement to maintain a recording of the 
meeting after the minutes are approved.   

morrellca
Text Box
J-01o



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-03-027 
Moved by:  Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the February 22, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
published. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck voted no because he would like to see a proposal go forward to the City 
Council with respect to maintaining a videotape archive as part of the permanent 
record.   
 
Mr. Waller questioned why it should be an action by City Council as opposed to the 
Planning Commission.   
 
Mr. Miller said the City Clerk is responsible for keeping the official records.  He said 
the Planning Department maintains a library of Planning Commission meeting 
videotapes (CD/DVD) but the recordings are not considered official records.  
 
Mr. Schultz said the issue of whether videotapes of all Board and Commission 
meetings are maintained as a permanent record should be addressed by the City 
Clerk’s office, not by this body.   
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

TABLED ITEMS 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 695) – Proposed Becker Overflow 

Parking Area, South side of Henrietta, East of Rochester Road, Section 27 – From R-
1E to P-1 
 
Mr. Miller reported that a request was made by the petitioner to postpone the item to 
the April 12, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting.  He explained the 
petitioner is considering applying for a conditional rezoning of the property, and 
would like additional time to complete a corresponding site plan.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
Chair Strat announced the Public Hearing would remain open. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-028 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Public Hearing for the rezoning request for the Proposed 
Becker Overflow Parking Area, located on the south side of Henrietta and east of 
Rochester Road, Section 27, from R-1E to P-1, be tabled to the April 12, 2005 
Regular Meeting.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

5. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Oak Forest Site 
Condominium, 76 units/lots proposed, South side of Square Lake Road, West side 
of John R, Section 11 – R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
Oak Forest Condominium project.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation 
of the Planning Department to approve the application with five conditions:  (1) 
submission of required landscape information; (2) appropriate MDEQ permits; (3) 
appropriate permits to complete Fetterly Drain improvements; (4) clarification of 
ownership of proposed open space that includes the proposed wetlands mitigation 
areas; and (5) change the designation of the easement shown on the plan to a 
public walkway.  
 
There was a brief discussion on the stub streets.  Mr. Miller confirmed that there are 
3 stub streets, as discussed at previous study meetings.   
 
The petitioner, Dale Garrett of Ladd’s Inc., 5877 Livernois, Troy, was present.  Mr. 
Garrett confirmed that the revised plan shows the stub streets, as previously 
discussed, and the pathway.  He said he would be happy to answer any questions 
on the revised plan.   
 
Mr. Waller asked the petitioner if he received the interdepartmental review 
comments incorporated in the Planning Department report.   
 
Mr. Garrett responded in the affirmative.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Miller reviewed the comments made by the City Engineer in his memorandum 
dated January 20, 2005.  The memorandum outlined that, in his opinion, the 
preliminary plan is sufficient and feasible to be constructed and that the storm water 
detention basin is sufficient and would improve the drainage for the general area.  
The City Engineer’s memorandum indicated that many details of the project would 
be determined during the engineering design phase.  
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Lon Ullman of 5621 Willow Grove, Troy, was present.  Mr. Ullman submitted a letter 
from the Oakland County Drain Commission that cites in regard to the Fetterly Drain 
that any kind of improvements would need adjacent property owners’ permission to 
enclose the drain even if the drain is within the easement.  Difficulty could arise since 
the easement is an open channel and the requirements were that if the drain would be 
improved, it would have to be widened outside of the easement.  Mr. Ullman 
introduced documentation that relates to a floodplain application signed by the 
Engineering Department dated April 1998, and a letter from the MDEQ dated 2001.  
The documentation indicates that the floodplain map revisions by the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency may have bearing on the development of the area.   
 
Chair Strat asked Mr. Ullman to submit the documentation to the Planning 
Department, who in turn would provide it to the Engineering Department for review.  
Chair Strat indicated that tonight’s recommendation to City Council would be based on 
the information provided to the Commission to date.   
 
Mr. Ullman outlined a letter he prepared and submitted to the members.  The letter 
relates to the concern of water and its displacement onto neighboring properties and 
to the grading plan; specifically the amount of fill dirt, floodplain level, west side 
detention pond, culvert restrictions of the Fetterly Drain and sewers.  Mr. Ullman 
realizes the Engineering Department would review these items and asked that the 
review be conducted prior to the proposed plan going for final review.   
 
Pam Brubaker of 5775 John R, Troy, was present.  Ms. Brubaker said her property 
shares 500 feet of property line with the proposed development, and noted her 
driveway runs along the property line.  She said the former owner filled in a small 
portion of the lot behind the pole barn adjacent to her driveway.  Ms. Brubaker said 
that flooding has occurred ever since.  She cited flooding problems from the last 
snowmelt to June or July and said their driveway is almost completely under water in 
the spring and fall.  Ms. Brubaker expressed her concerns with the inability to use her 
driveway and the flooding as a result of a small fill-in.  She questioned the potential 
problems that could occur after development of a big project.  Ms. Brubaker 
referenced a recently constructed home on 4.5 acres on the other side of her property 
that apparently has water problems because they have pumped water out of their 
basement onto her property.  Again, she questioned what impact a larger 
development might have on the neighboring properties.  Ms. Brubaker asked the 
Planning Commission who is liable for the increased water run-off on adjacent 
properties.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Chair Strat replied that the members could not answer the question of liability.  He said 
staff or the Legal Department could answer the question.  
 
Mr. Chamberlain said the ordinances are written as such that there is to be no excess 
water coming off of this property.  If the development is done right, there should not be 
any water coming off of this property onto her property.   
 
Mr. Miller indicated that the Engineering Department would handle any water 
concerns.   
 
Don Edmunds, President of Golf Trail Homeowners Association, of 1304 Player Drive, 
Troy, was present.  Mr. Edmunds specifically addressed agenda item #6 relating to 
the proposed Oak Forest South Site Condominium, and read a communication 
prepared on behalf of the residents of Golf Trail subdivision.  A copy of the 
communication is attached and made a part of the minutes.   
 
Mr. Waller asked Mr. Edmunds if the Golf Trail Homeowners Association would be 
willing to share the expense of paving Willow Grove. 
 
Mr. Edmunds responded in the negative.   
 
Mr. Waller asked Mr. Edmunds if he felt it would be appropriate to restrict access to a 
public street, a street that is paid for by the citizens of the City for the benefit of the 
City.   
 
Mr. Edmunds responded that the residents are not objecting to interconnectivity.  He 
said the homeowners association has a long history of promoting interconnectivity, but 
there is an essential difference with this development.  Should Willow Grove not be 
paved, Golf Trail subdivision residents would bear the additional traffic.  Mr. Edmunds 
said it is understood that the City pays an additional 40% premium for maintaining 
gravel streets and all taxpayers pay for those additional costs.  Mr. Edmunds said the 
sooner Willow Grove is paved, the better for everyone.   
 
Mr. Waller asked Mr. Edmunds if there was any particular traffic improvement created 
to allow new residents of Golf Trail subdivision access into the subdivision when it was 
under development.   
 
Mr. Edmunds answered in the negative.  He noted that Hilmore has since been paved. 
 
Dorene Randall of 5348 Abington, Troy, was present.  Ms. Randall, a thirty-year 
resident of Troy, wanted to let the members know how much the subject property is 
used to educate the kids of Troy.  The property encompasses endangered plants, 
turtles and a herd of deer.  The kids go to the area to learn, do school reports, and 
write books.  Ms. Randall said the property is such a valuable piece of property for 
educational purposes.  She asked if there was any possibility of entering into a 
partnership with a land conservatory, or to buy out the developer.  Ms. Randall offered 
to collect money for the City of Troy.  She would like to see the property remain 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

undeveloped as a legacy to the City.  Ms. Randall said to call her if the members 
would like a citywide collection.   
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Chair Strat announced tonight’s recommendation would be based on the 
information provided to the members in their meeting packet.  He said any 
additional documentation submitted tonight would be collected by the Planning 
Department and reviewed by appropriate departments.   
 
Mr. Schultz reviewed some of the issues brought to their attention (i.e., final grade, 
elevation, floodplains, capacity of sewers, prior filling causing flooding, liability of 
run-off water) that would be appropriately handled by the Engineering Department.  
He asked for confirmation from a legal standpoint that the job of the Planning 
Commission is to review the site plan and move it forward to the MDEQ and final 
engineering should the plan meet all ordinance requirements.   
 
Mr. Motzny said the Planning Commission’s job is to grant or make a 
recommendation for preliminary approval, at which time the plan would be 
forwarded to City Council for its review and approval.  Mr. Motzny said the 
engineering aspects are matters that would be addressed in the future and are not 
matters directly before the Planning Commission at this time.   
 
Chair Strat asked what recourse residents would have should their concerns not get 
addressed or satisfied.   
 
Mr. Miller explained a preliminary site plan sets the parameters of a development.  
After preliminary approval, the specific design work and permit process begins.  Mr. 
Miller said any concerns of residents, such as drainage, would be handled by the 
Engineering Department during the engineering phase of a development.   
 
Mr. Littman addressed the comments of Ms. Randall.  He said there is an Oakland 
County conservancy and he could provide her with contact information.  Mr. Littman 
said a sale/purchase of the property would be a private transaction.  Mr. Littman 
said the residents have valid concerns, but the Planning Commission is limited in 
what it can do and bound by law to look at specific things.  Mr. Littman said some of 
the concerns brought forward, such as paving Willow Grove, are more politically 
inclined issues and maybe City Council would address them.   
 
Mr. Khan responded to the comments of Ms. Brubaker.  Mr. Khan told her the 
Engineering Department is the appropriate channel for any water problems.  He 
assured her the Engineering Department would respond quickly and get the 
developer or builder to take care of the problem.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Waller asked if it would be valid to see this plan again before final site plan 
approval.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said as a recommending body to City Council for preliminary and 
final approval, it would not be valid to request that the final site plan be brought back 
to this body.   
 
Mr. Schultz said the parcel is a difficult parcel to develop and it would be within the 
Planning Commission’s right to request the site plan to come back for review should 
there be significant changes to the plan as approved. 
 
Mr. Miller agreed that the parcel is difficult to develop.  He understands why the 
members would want the plan to come back for review should significant changes 
take place, such as removing lots, adding lots, moving retention basins, etc.   
 
Chair Strat stated that should the layout of the site plan change and there are 
problems, he thinks the plan should come back before the Planning Commission.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-029 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that the 
Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Oak Forest Site Condominium, including 76 units, 
located on the south side of Square Lake Road and west side of John R, Section 11, 
within the R-1C zoning district be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Submission of the landscaping information required by the Landscape Analyst in 

the Planning Department report dated March 3, 2005. 
 
2. The applicant must receive appropriate permits from the MDEQ prior to 

dredging, filling, or completing any other improvements within a State-regulated 
wetland. 

 
3. The applicant must receive appropriate permits from the Oakland County Drain 

Commissioner and the City of Troy prior to completing any improvements to the 
Fetterly Drain. 

 
4. Clarification of ownership of proposed open space that includes the proposed 

wetlands mitigation areas. 
 

5. Changing what is marked as the walking easement to a dedicated walkway.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Wright 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Wright said that as a former resident of the area, he has been familiar with the 
subject property for almost 30 years.  He thinks the City should have purchased the 
property a long time ago.  Mr. Wright said it would be a major mistake on the part of 
the City to allow it to be developed.  He said the property has always been a swamp 
and he believes that the addition of the significant amount of impervious surfaces 
that would be part of the development would exacerbate the existing flooding 
situation in the area.  Mr. Wright said the development would be detrimental to the 
health, safety and welfare of the existing neighbors as well as new residents.   
 
 

6. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Oak Forest South Site 
Condominium, 24 units/lots proposed, South of Square Lake Road, East side of 
Willow Grove, Section 11 – R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the Planning Department to 
approve the application with three conditions:  (1) submission of required landscape 
information; (2) appropriate MDEQ permits; (3) appropriate permits to complete 
Fetterly Drain improvements.  
 
Chair Strat confirmed that there was no one in the audience who wished to speak on 
this matter. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-030 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that the 
Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Oak Forest South Site Condominium, including 24 
units, located on the south side of Square Lake Road and east of Willow Grove, 
Section 11, within the R-1C zoning district be granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. Submission of the landscaping information required by the Landscape Analyst in 

the Planning Department report dated March 3, 2005. 
 
2. The applicant must receive appropriate permits from the MDEQ prior to 

dredging, filling, or completing any other improvements within a State-regulated 
wetland. 

 
3. The applicant must receive appropriate permits from the Oakland County Drain 

Commissioner and the City of Troy prior to completing any improvements to the 
Fetterly Drain. 

 
Mr. Schultz requested that the motion be conditioned also upon the site plan being 
brought back to the Planning Commission for review should there be significant 
changes because of permitting or wetland or any other water problem.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Mr. Chamberlain said he would not know how to put that condition in the motion to 
make it work because it is a recommendation to the City Council. 
 
Mr. Khan said the plan would automatically come back before the Planning 
Commission should there be any significant layout changes, and as a 
recommending body to the City Council, the members do not have a right to 
stipulate that condition.    
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Wright 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Wright said the comments expressed on the previous resolution apply to this 
resolution.  (Refer to Resolution #PC 2005-03-029) 
 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-A) – 
Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory Buildings 
Definitions and Provisions 
 
Mr. Miller reported that the Planning Department recommends postponement of this 
item to a future date.  City Council has scheduled a joint Planning Commission/City 
Council Special Meeting on March 28, 2005 to further discuss ZOTA 215-A and 
other related issues.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Lon Ullman of 5621 Willow Grove, Troy, was present.  Mr. Ullman encouraged the 
City to not place a handicap on builders by limiting the construction of garages to a 
specific size as a result of one person’s poor judgment.  He asked that an appeal 
process be in place should the City place a size limitation on garages.  Mr. Ullman 
said an appeal process would provide a means to regulate construction and design 
of accessory structures should they be in poor taste or an imposition to the 
neighbors.  
 
Dick Minnick of 28 Millstone, Troy, was present.  Mr. Minnick said he is very 
concerned with the roof height limit as discussed at the last Planning Commission 
meeting.  He said that all 51 homes in his subdivision (Westwood Park) would 
exceed the 14-foot average.  Mr. Minnick indicated that he provided Chair Strat with 
information and photographs for his review and distribution to the members.  Mr. 
Minnick said the builder of his subdivision has built homes throughout the City with 
similar blueprints, and the problem could very well be widespread.  Mr. Minnick 
reviewed a discussion he had with a subdivision attorney with respect to the matter; 
i.e., concerns with insurability, disclosure, rebuilding limitations, etc.  The attorney 
indicated that it is a general practice of municipalities to write ordinances wherein 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

new restrictions would apply only to new construction.  Mr. Minnick said Mr. Miller 
was quoted in one of the newspapers as saying that such a grandfather clause 
would be counter-productive because it essentially would allow the Alpine garage to 
remain.  Mr. Minnick said the City Council asked the Planning Commission to write 
a Zoning Ordinance that would prohibit the building of another monster garage, not 
to remedy the problem that exists on Alpine.  Mr. Minnick asked that other residents 
not be penalized because of one resident’s action.  He encouraged that existing 
buildings be grandfathered in and exempt from impending limitations.  Mr. Minnick 
suggested that a table be created to compare existing regulations and proposed 
regulations of both attached and detached structures with Sterling Heights and 
Rochester Hills, cities that are similar in age and style of subdivisions.   
 
Mr. Waller asked Mr. Minnick to provide the comments made by the subdivision 
attorney in writing for distribution to the members.  He also suggested that 
information be provided to the members of any specific cases wherein the sales of 
homes were affected by insurability or disclosures related to City ordinances similar 
to those revisions being discussed.   
 
Linda Thielfoldt of 646 E. Long Lake, Troy, was present.  Ms. Thielfoldt lives in the 
Covington Ridge subdivision located on the south side of Long Lake between 
Livernois and Rochester Road.  She shared her concerns and voiced her objection 
to the proposed 14-foot height limitation.  Ms. Thielfoldt said residents should not 
suffer for the sins of one resident, and asked that the members reconsider the 
height restriction.  Ms. Thielfoldt said that many of the 43 homes in her subdivision 
would become non-compliant should the proposed 14-foot height limitation be 
adopted, and noted that a good percentage of the homes have bedrooms over the 
garage.  She expressed concerns with respect to disclosure of non-compliance and 
insurance coverage.  Ms. Thielfoldt said her State Farm insurance agent confirmed 
that an increased premium could result should her garage become a non-
conforming structure.  She claimed it would be a discriminatory factor in the 
potential sale of her home.  Ms. Thielfoldt asked what the procedure would be 
should she decide in the future to finish the attic space of her home, as relates to 
non-conformance.  Ms. Thielfoldt also asked that consideration be given to market 
demands and the construction of current subdivisions with respect to garage height 
and maximizing square footage.  Ms. Thielfoldt said any gray areas as to what is 
being proposed should be clarified in the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Chair Strat confirmed that Ms. Thielfoldt understood the proposed 14-foot garage 
door height formula. 
 
Mr. Wright clarified that the 14-foot height restriction would be for homes that do not 
have habitable areas above the garage.  If there is habitable space or bedrooms 
above the garage, the garage height could parallel the height of the house.  Mr. 
Wright also said that Ms. Thielfoldt would most likely be able to build out her attic 
space with no negative impact.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Richard Hughes of 1321 Roger Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Hughes said the City 
has a good building code and the Mayor has said the City has good planning.  He 
questioned why the City would want to fix something if it is good.  Mr. Hughes 
addressed the “terms” currently used; i.e., an addition to a house is now termed 
garage, or family room, or accessory building, etc.  Mr. Hughes said there is no 
difference in building materials used for commercial or residential uses.   
 
Chair Strat announced the Public Hearing would remain open. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-031 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to 
Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions, be postponed to a future meeting 
after meeting with City Council later this month. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-C) – 
Article 43.00.00, Article 40.65,00, Article 40.66.00 and Article 44.00.00, pertaining to 
Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals 
 
Mr. Miller reported that the Planning Department recommends postponement of this 
item to a future date.  City Council has scheduled a joint Planning Commission/City 
Council Special Meeting on March 28, 2005 to further discuss ZOTA 215-C and 
other related issues.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Tom Krent of 3184 Alpine, Troy, was present.  Mr. Krent addressed the impact of 
commercial vehicles on a residential neighborhood.  He questioned if the City and 
residents would like to keep residential areas residential or would they rather have 
residential/business zones.  Mr. Krent said if one truly wants a residential district, 
keep it residential and not turn it into a quasi-commercial or business district.  He 
said the current Zoning Ordinance requirement that states nothing larger than a full-
size pickup truck or van can be stored outside should apply for inside storage also.   
 
Chair Strat announced the Public Hearing would remain open. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-03-032 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Article 43.00.00, Article 40.65.00, Article 40.66.00 and Article 
44.00.00, pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals, be postponed to a 
future meeting after meeting with City Council later this month.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 1) – Proposed 
Amendment to Woodside Bible Church / Northwyck Condominium PUD, East side 
of Rochester and South of South Blvd., Section 2 – PUD 1 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed amendment to PUD 1.  Mr. Savidant explained that the proposed Second 
Amendment relates to the size and location of the entry sign on Rochester Road.  
The proposed Third Amendment relates to the placement of unscreened 
mechanical equipment on the west side of the roof.  Mr. Savidant reported that the 
Planning Department has received two letters of opposition to the proposed 
amendments.  Slides of the entry sign and mechanical equipment on the roof were 
presented. 
 
Mr. Miller provided clarification on First Amendment to the PUD 1 with respect to the 
height of the berm along Rochester Road.  He addressed the landscaping in terms 
of the approved landscaping plan.  Mr. Miller reported that there was no sign 
package included in the City’s first PUD project, but noted it would be a requirement 
for all future PUD projects.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said a PUD is a contract and should the petitioner want to change 
the contract, the City should request something in return.  Mr. Chamberlain said a 
PUD project is held to a higher standard of development, and the petitioner is 
denigrating that standard to something less.   
 
Kevan Johnston, chairman of the building program for Woodside Bible Church, 
6600 Rochester Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Johnston said the initial PUD 
package was inclusive of signage to be determined at a later date.  Mr. Johnston 
addressed the berm with respect to safety concerns, elevation of the church and the 
visibility of the sign.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

Mr. Littman questioned the wording on the sign.   
 
Mr. Johnston said the wording is what is shown on the drawing.  It was noted that it 
is not an LED sign.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Discussion on the proposed Second Amendment relating to the sign 
 
Mr. Khan asked if there were any other signs along Rochester Road as big as this 
sign or placed as close to the sidewalk as this sign.  Mr. Khan said the sign is 176% 
larger than any sign that would be allowed on any property, and he sees no reason 
to allow such a big sign that close to the sidewalk.  He said an electronic sign with a 
changeable message would be a big distraction to the traffic.   
 
Mr. Miller said he could not provide information this evening on signs throughout the 
City because the Planning Department is not involved in the sign process; it is a 
function of the Building Department.  Mr. Miller stated the members have the ability 
to require a higher standard in terms of signage because it is a PUD.   
 
Mr. Vleck said the sign and unscreened roof are two mistakes that should have 
been accounted for initially.  He said the petitioner is not offering any additional 
benefit to the City in return for deviating from the standard.  Mr. Vleck said a 
comparison study of other signs throughout the City might be helpful in making a 
determination on the sign.   
 
Mr. Schultz said it appears the petitioner went forward with the construction of the 
sign without the approval and appropriate permitting from the City.  He said he is 
very concerned about the “marquee” sign that would be a distraction to traffic and 
placed too close to the road. 
 
Mr. Wright agreed with the members’ comments.  He sees no valid reason to allow 
the proposed amendments. 
 
Mr. Littman said it would be hard to miss the big church and questioned the need for 
a sign.  He addressed the wording on the sign and the potential danger in having 
the sign so close to the major road.   
 
Mr. Waller suggested placement of physical barriers to protect the sign.  Mr. Waller 
thinks the sign is okay, but the mechanical equipment should be screened.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said he does not think anything should be changed.  He said the 
PUD is a contract; the petitioner screwed up, they want us to bail them out and they 
have offered no consideration for their mistakes.   
 
Wayne Chubb of Hobbs & Black Architects was present.  Mr. Chubb provided a 
clarification of the size of the sign and the changeable message board.  He said the 
sign is not LED, but it is a changeable letter sign similar to signs currently situated 
throughout the City.  Mr. Chubb said the size and type of sign were thoroughly 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

discussed with the Building Department representative.  He said the letters on the 
sign are 10 inches high by 10 feet long, and combined with the 4 by 10-foot board 
below, the sign totals 100 square feet.  Mr. Chubb said the additional square 
footage referenced by the members is the aesthetic brick added to complement the 
sign and locational area.  Mr. Chubb said signs along Rochester Road vary in size 
and type.  He indicated that the contractor was present and could address the 
permit issue.  
 
Discussion on the proposed Third Amendment relating to screening of mechanical 
equipment.  
 
Mr. Johnston said the drawings for the mechanical equipment screening were 
submitted and went through the entire approval process of the City.  Mr. Johnston 
said the first indication they had that the screening had to be on all four sides 
occurred in the 17th month of the 18th month of the construction process.  One week 
prior to getting their certificate of occupancy, a building inspector informed them that 
the equipment must be screened on all four sides.   
 
Chair Strat said building inspectors have the prerogative to enforce the Zoning 
Ordinance at any time during the construction process.   He said we are not here to 
argue the accuracy of the drawings or the review process, but to address the sign 
and screen issues.   
 
Mr. Johnston said it is his understanding that additional metal boxes would be the 
means of screening material, at an expense of approximately $55,000.   
 
Mr. Miller again reminded the members that they have more discretion with a PUD 
project than a site plan.   
 
Mr. Vleck said he sees no reason to deviate from the requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance.  He thinks the mechanical equipment on the roof should be screened.   
 
Mr. Khan asked if it is possible to screen the roof in terms of the additional weight 
placed on the roof.  Mr. Khan agreed the roof should be screened.  He said if the 
petitioner could build that big of a building, they could afford to screen the 
equipment. 
 
Mr. Chubb said the roof could support the additional weight, but noted that portions 
of the church could not be utilized during the construction phase.   
 
Mr. Schultz said it is unacceptable to build such an attractive building and then allow 
mechanical equipment to be visible on the roof.  He said there is no doubt that 
nearby residents can also view the equipment and it is not fair to them.   
 
Mr. Wright said he totally agrees with all the comments made.  He said he is 
concerned about the sign’s placement at only 3 feet from the right of way.  Mr. 
Wright said he might consider a slightly larger sign than the 100 square feet, but the 
current sign is much larger.   
 
Mr. Waller said there is a definite problem with the sign as relates to the wording, 
style, trim, stone, etc.  He said that if the sign had been negotiated with the Building 
Department as attested to tonight, then the documentation provided to the members 
is severely short.  Mr. Waller said he has no problem with the sign, but the 
mechanical equipment on the roof should be screened.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

Mr. Chamberlain said the Planning Commission should impress upon the City 
Council members that the petitioner should be held to a higher standard should City 
Council choose to approve the proposed amendments. 
 
Chair Strat said the PUD is not a project of which he would be proud.  Chair Strat 
said one sees nothing but a big sea of asphalt, lots of cars, and a big monster 
church with no landscaping or appeal when driving by.  Chair Strat said he is not in 
favor of approving either one of the proposed amendments.  He suggested 
additional landscaping as an improvement and benefit to the area.   
 
Mr. Miller said an alternative solution to the approval process would be to postpone 
the item to allow time for the petitioner to address the concerns expressed by the 
members.  
 
Mr. Johnston said he would prefer to postpone the matter and work with the 
Planning Department on the two issues.  Mr. Johnston responded to the Chair’s 
comments on landscaping.  Mr. Johnston said the approved landscape plan for the 
development had been met, and there is landscaping on both sides of the berms 
and throughout the boulevards. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-033 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Second Amendment and Third Amendment to the Final Plan 
and Agreement for a Planned Unit Development, pursuant to Section 35.60.01 and 
Section 35.80.00, for the Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck Planned Unit 
Development, known as PUD 1, be tabled to the April 12, 2005 Regular Meeting to 
allow the petitioner and the Planning Department time to work out further 
possibilities and details 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, That when the matter comes back to the Planning 
Commission in April, any correspondence between the petitioner (Woodside Bible 
Church) and the Building Department representative relating to the sign, its size, its 
placement or any other aspect of the sign, be included. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 9:45 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:55 p.m. 
 

___________ 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 700) – Existing Clark Gas 
Station, Northeast corner of Livernois and Maple Road (1602 Livernois), Section 27 
– From B-1 to H-S 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant noted that the site plan indicated that the 
proposed development would require a number of non-use variances from the 
Board of Zoning Appeals prior to receiving Preliminary Site Plan Approval.  He said 
prudent site planning suggests that consolidation of adjacent properties would be 
desirable, but the Planning Department cannot require the applicant to do so.  Mr. 
Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the Planning Department to 
approve the rezoning application.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked how the City could vacate the alleyway to the east if the vacation 
places the building to the east in non-compliance because of the loss of parking. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the vacation would dedicate access to insure that the property to 
the east would have access to the parking area to the north of the building.  He 
noted there is no indication on the site plan that the petitioner intends to utilize any 
of the alleyway for the gas station operation. 
 
Mr. Miller stated that one of the conditions when City Council adopted an 
authorizing resolution to vacate the alleyway was that there would be an easement 
of access retained.   
 
The petitioner, Mike Kozlowski of Caeruleum Environmental Design, 5603 
Telegraph Road, Dearborn Heights, was present.  Mr. Kozlowski said the site is just 
above the minimum size for a service station, and it is recognized that a number of 
variances would be required as well as utility and cross access easement 
challenges.  Mr. Kozlowski said he is prepared to address those items with site plan 
approval. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-034 
 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the northeast corner of 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

Maple Road and Livernois Avenue, within Section 27, being approximately 15,800 
square feet in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

11. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 672-B) – Proposed Industrial Building Addition, West side 
of John R, North of Birchwood, Section 26, M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Schultz disclosed a business relationship with the owner of the subject property, 
Tepel Brothers Printing Company.  He said he would abstain consideration of this 
item should the members or the City Attorney believe there would be a conflict of 
interest on his part.   
 
There were no objections to allowing the consideration of Mr. Schultz on this matter. 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed industrial building addition.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the site plan as submitted 
with the conditions of (1) approval by the Landscape Analyst of the Preliminary 
Landscape Plan and (2) the applicant providing a deceleration lane as required by 
the City of Troy Development Standards.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said it appears the required deceleration lane might not be 
necessary because of an existing deceleration lane.   
 
Mr. Littman questioned the location of the trash enclosure.   
 
Mr. Savidant replied that it would be best for the petitioner to respond to the 
deceleration lane and trash enclosure concerns.   
 
Steve Lenderman, project architect from Mandell, Bilovus, Lenderman & 
Associates, 4085 John R, Troy, was present.  Mr. Lenderman introduced the 
property owner, Jim Tepel.  Mr. Tepel indicated that the deceleration lane required 
as a condition to site plan approval would be a deceleration lane off of an existing 
deceleration lane.  Mr. Lenderman explained that the existing deceleration lane is 
not shown on the survey because it is located far north of Wattles Road.  Mr. 
Lenderman addressed the 5-foot sidewalk that is shown on the plan on the north 
side of Birchwood.  He requested that they not be required to install the sidewalk 
because there are no existing sidewalks in that area, and there would be a sidewalk 
starting from nowhere and going to nowhere.  Mr. Lenderman said a building built to 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 18 - 
 

the west approximately 6 months ago was not required to put in a sidewalk on 
Birchwood.  Mr. Lenderman clarified that the survey does not show an existing 5-
foot concrete sidewalk connecting with the 8-foot sidewalk on John R. 
 
A brief discussion followed on the installation of the sidewalk.  Mr. Miller confirmed 
there is no requirement to install a sidewalk because it is within the M-1 zoning 
district.  He explained that this area is currently mixed with some residential but the 
area is future planned as M-1. 
 
Mr. Schultz referenced a building on Woodslee that was required to install a 5-foot 
sidewalk from property line to property line when it was built.  He questioned why 
one property would be required and another property not required to install a 
sidewalk. 
 
Mr. Littman questioned the trash enclosure location in terms of access for trash 
removal.   
 
Mr. Lenderman said the existing truck well would be enclosed with a trash 
compactor.  He said it would be more beneficial to the owner to use the trash 
compactor, and noted that the owner would prefer to keep the trash enclosure at its 
current location for future use should it become necessary.  Mr. Lenderman 
suggested that the location of the trash enclosure could be turned 90 degrees for 
easy access for trash removal, should the trash enclosure be used in the future.   
 
Chair Strat disclosed that he is familiar with Tepel Brothers Printing Company but 
that he has had no monetary relationship with them.  
 
Resolution # PC-2005-03-035 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
Industrial Building Addition, located on the west side of John R and North of 
Birchwood, located in Section 26, within the M-1 zoning district, is hereby granted, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Approval by Landscape Analyst of the Preliminary Landscape Plan 
 
2. It is the Planning Commission’s recommendation that because there is already a 

right turn/deceleration lane in front of this property, that there should not be an 
additional deceleration lane required.  

 
3. That the sidewalk shown on the south edge of the property along Birchwood not 

be required because it is in the M-1 zoning district.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL MARCH 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 19 - 
 

Yes: All present 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 

 
Mr. Schultz favorably commented on the City’s fast-track lighting system and personally 
thanked the Road Commission of Oakland County for utilizing the early morning hours to 
patch potholes on Maple Road.   
 
Mr. Miller reported that the interview process begins tomorrow for the Big Beaver Corridor 
Study.  Mr. Miller announced that City Management has worked out a system where the 
Planning Department reports on all Public Hearings at the City Council level would be 
available to the public on-line.  He indicated also that in the near future Planning 
Department reports for the regular meeting agendas would be available to the public on-
line.   
 
Chair Strat announced he would not be at the Joint City Council/Planning Commission 
Special Meeting because he would be in San Francisco attending the American Planning 
Association National Conference.  Mr. Schultz will be chairing the joint meeting.   
 
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\03-08-05 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 



Kathy Czarnecki 

From: Don Edmunds [don@edmundsfamily.com]

Sent: Tuesday, March 08, 2005 6:47 PM

To: Mark F Miller; Paula P Bratto

Subject: Golf Trail Resident Concerns - Oak Forest South Site Condominiums

Page 1 of 2

3/18/2005

March 8, 2005 
  
Mr. Mark Miller, Planning Director 
Members of Troy Planning Commission 
  
RE:    Golf Trail Homeowners Association Objections - Oak Forest South Site Condominiums 
  
Dear Mr. Miller and Members of the Planning Commission, 
  
Golf Trail homeowners object to the the proposed 23-unit Oak Forest South Preliminary Site Condominium Plan 
Review for the following reasons: 

We share the concerns expressed by Mr. Ullmann and the residents of Willow Grove.  Some of the same 
concerns have been made by members of the Planning Commission.  We believe the development of this 
property is inappropriate due to the significant portion of wetlands and natural features.  Even though 
engineering and permits are addressed during the next phase, there are serious concerns as to whether 
even sanitary sewer hookup can be achieved since Golf Trail sanitary sewers are not large enough 
to accommodate Oak Forest South.  
We understand that the City or the Planning Commission cannot ask or require the developer to pave 
Willow Grove.  However, we did request that the developer, Mr. Dale Garrett pay to pave Willow Grove at a 
February 24 meeting at Troy Union Elementary.  Approximately 60 Golf Trail homeowners attended the 
meeting and nearly 15 additional homeowners sent emails in support of our request to the 
developer.  Even though Mr. Garrett said he would get back to us regarding our request, he has not yet 
done so.  
At the meeting we asked the developer why he had not chose to use the cluster option to develop the 
property.  His response was that it would not save more than ten percent (10%) of the wetlands.  Is this 
really the case?  We would appreciate an answer from the City to this question.   
Mr. Dale Garrett did say at the meeting that construction traffic would be contained to Willow Grove and we 
request that any approval granted include this specific restriction.  
Golf Trail residents are very concerned about the 184 additional vehicle trips per day that will be essentially 
borne by Golf Trail streets from Oak Forest South if Willow Grove is not paved.  We also believe that the 
Planning Commission has an obligation to protect the health safety and welfare of all the residents 
including Golf Trail.  The 23 new homes of Oak Forest South would directly benefit by the paving of Willow 
Grove.  
If Oak Forest South is approved by the Planning Commission, Golf Trail residents will submit petitions to 
the City Council for a temporary diagonal (NW to SE) street barricade at Trevino and Willow Grove.  Most 
of our homeowners have already signed the petitions.  The barricade would be removed whenever Willow 
Grove was paved and the two Oak Forest subs were connected.  We understand that only the City Council 
can approve the temporary barricade. 

Thank you for considering our comments and objections. 
  
Respectfully submitted, 
Don Edmunds, President 
Golf Trail Homeowners Association 
1304 Player Drive 
Troy, MI  48085 



Tel    248-879-8287 
Email    don@edmundsfamily.com 

Page 2 of 2

3/18/2005



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, March 14, 
2005 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Chairman 
Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    James R. Peard 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Carolyn Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
   
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of February 14, 2005 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-004 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the February 14, 2005 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1.     MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL, INC. & WHP HOTEL OWNER-2A, L.L.C. (A 

DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY), formerly known as Mar-Ty, 
L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), licensees of a 2004 B-Hotel 
licensed business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, 8 Bars and Official Permit 
(food), located at 200 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan, Oakland County, 
requests to transfer all membership interest in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A 
Delaware Limited Liability Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A 

morrellca
Text Box
J-01p



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Delaware Limited Liability Company), wherein Marty-Mez, L.L.C. is dropped as 
sole member through the transfer of 100% of the General and Limited 
Partnership interests in PA Troy Hospitality Investors, L.P. to WHP Mezz 
Borrower 2, L.L.C., and the simultaneous dissolution of PA Troy Hospitality 
Invertors, L.P., and its wholly owner subsidiary Mar-Ty Mezz, L.L.C., thereby 
resulting in WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., being the sole member in WHP Hotel 
Owner-2A, L.L.C.   [MLCC REQ ID# 190498]  “Paper” change in ownership only 

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Brian Andrew, attorney for WHP 
Hotel Owner. 
 
Mr. Andrew stated that this paperwork transfer is to add Marriott International as a 
licensee of WHP Hotel Owner, a large hotel holding company.   
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-005 
Moved by Bennett 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that MARRIOTT INTERNATIONAL, INC. & WHP HOTEL OWNER-2A, 
L.L.C. (A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY), formerly known as Mar-Ty, 
L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), licensees of a 2004 B-Hotel licensed 
business with Dance-Entertainment Permit, 8 Bars and Official Permit (food), located at 
200 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan, Oakland County, be allowed to transfer all 
membership interest in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability 
Company), formerly known as Mar-Ty, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company), 
wherein Marty-Mez, L.L.C. is dropped as sole member through the transfer of 100% of 
the General and Limited Partnership interests in PA Troy Hospitality Investors, L.P. to 
WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., and the simultaneous dissolution of PA Troy Hospitality 
Invertors, L.P., and its wholly owner subsidiary Mar-Ty Mezz, L.L.C., thereby resulting in 
WHP Mezz Borrower 2, L.L.C., being the sole member in WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. 
[MLCC REQ ID# 190498].  
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2.   LUV SUN, INC., requests a new Specially Designated Distributor license, located 

at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, to be held in conjunction 
with proposed new Specially Designated Merchant license.   [MLCC REQ ID# 
276918]  Red Wagon Shoppe 

 
         LUV SUN, INC., requests a new Specially Designated Merchant license, located 

at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County.   [MLCC REQ ID# 276917]  



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

Page 3 of 3 

Present to answer questions from the Committee was Larry Farida.   
 
Before this agenda item was heard, Committee Chairperson, Max Ehlert, stated that he 
and Mr. Farida had a business relationship.  Thus, Mr. Ehlert elected to abstain from 
voting on this agenda item. 
 
Mr. Farida explained to the Committee that he owns the Wine Cellar in Clawson and 
intends to move his business across Maple Road into Troy (the former TCF Bank 
location).  He plans to request a variance to expand the building.  He will utilize the 
former bank vault as a temperature controlled room for his higher-priced wines. 
 
Sgt. Gordon stated that the City inspections had not yet been completed. 
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-006 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that LUV SUN, INC. be granted a new Specially Designated Distributor 
license, located at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, to be held in 
conjunction with proposed new Specially Designated Merchant license, subject to the 
approval of City inspections.  [MLCC REQ ID# 276918]. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Abstain: Ehlert 
Absent: None 
 
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-007 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Larry Farida. 
 
RESOLVED, that LUV SUN, INC. be granted a new Specially Designated Merchant 
license, located at 1613 Livernois, Troy MI, 48083, Oakland County, subject to the 
approval of City inspections.   [MLCC REQ ID# 276917]. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Abstain: Ehlert 
Absent: None 
 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

Page 4 of 4 

3. TENT RESTAURANT OPERATIONS, INC., requests to transfer ownership of a 
2004 Class C license business, with Official Permit (food), and Sunday Sales, 
located at 1965 W. Maple Rd., Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County, from 
Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc.   “Paper” change for Bailey’s Pub and Grille 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was John Carlin, attorney for Fox & 
Hound of Michigan. 
 
Mr. Carlin explained to the Committee that this request was merely a paper transfer of 
ownership shares.   There will no be change in name or management.  
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-008 
Moved by Godlewski 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that TENT RESTAURANT OPERATIONS, INC., be allowed to transfer 
ownership of a 2004 Class C license business, with Official Permit (food), and Sunday 
Sales, located at 1965 W. Maple Rd., Troy, Michigan 48084, in Oakland County, from 
Fox & Hound of Michigan, Inc.  
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
4. BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., requests to transfer ownership of 2004 12 Months 

Resort Class C licensed business, located at 5460 Corporate, Troy, Michigan 
48098, in Oakland County, from Cooker Restaurant Corporation, issued under 
MCL 436.1531(2): minimum seating: 100.   [MLCC REQ ID# 267215]  Result of 
bankruptcy of Cooker’s restaurant 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was John Carlin, attorney for 
Cooker’s. 
 
This transfer will put Cooker’s liquor license in escrow.  Bank of America will then be 
able to sell the license in Oakland County at any location other than 5460 Corporate 
Drive.   
 
Resolution #LC2005-03-009 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Peard 
 
RESOLVED, that BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., be allowed to transfer ownership of 2004 
12 Months Resort Class C licensed business, located at 5460 Corporate, Troy, 
Michigan 48098, in Oakland County, from Cooker Restaurant Corporation, issued under 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                        March 14, 2005 
 

Page 5 of 5 

MCL 436.1531(2): minimum seating: 100.   [MLCC REQ ID# 267215] 
 
Yes:  All - 7 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 

 
Sgt. Gordon stated that there were nine sale-to-minor violations on March 3 & 4, 2005.  
The following establishments received the violations: 
 

• Café Sushi   1933 West Maple Road 
• Champps Americana 301 West Big Beaver Road 
• Ashoka Indian Cuisine 3642 Rochester Road 
• Portabella Restaurant 2801 West Big Beaver Road 
• Mon Jin Lau   1515 East Maple Road 
• Maggiano’s   2089 West Big Beaver Road 
• Jumbo Buffet   1555 East Maple Road 
• Mayur Indian Cuisine 5113 Rochester Road 
• Corradi’s Sports Bar 1090 Rochester Road 
 

 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

The Chairman, Matthew Kovacs, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M., on Tuesday, March 15, 2005, in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Marcia Gies 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Lynn Drake-Batts 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 

Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
    
ABSENT:  Michael Hutson 
 
Motion by Fejes 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Hutson from this meeting as he is out of town. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. HUTSON CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF FEBRUARY 15, 2005 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of February 15, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Fejes, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Courtney 
Abstain: 1 – Drake-Batts 
Absent: 1 – Hutson 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 15, 2005 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – RENEWAL REQUEST.  K-MART, 100 E MAPLE, for renewal of relief which 
will allow for an outdoor display of plant material in front of K-Mart along the north side 
of the fenced area and a four-foot section of the sidewalk at the west end of the 
building, adjacent to the building. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of a variance granted by 
this Board on a yearly basis since 1978, which allows for an outdoor display of plant  

 1

morrellca
Text Box
J-01q



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
materials in front of K-Mart along the north side of the fenced area and four-foot section 
of the sidewalk adjacent to the building, at the west end of the building.  This display 
area is used for plants and flowers, and the variance is valid during the months of April 
through July.  This request has previously been subject to the petitioner providing a 
corral type fence to both enclose the area of the display and maintain a safe sidewalk at 
the same time.  This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of March 16, 
2004 and was granted a one-year renewal at that time.  Conditions remain the same 
and we have no complaints or objections on file. 
 
The petitioner was not present. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant K-Mart, 100 E. Maple, a one-year renewal of relief that will allow for 
an outdoor display of plant material in front of K-Mart along the north side of the fenced 
area and a four-foot section of the sidewalk at the west end of the building, adjacent to 
the building. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT RENEWAL OF VARIANCE FOR ONE-YEAR CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 –INTERPRETATION REQUEST.  GEORGE REED, BETTY REED & 
THOMAS KRENT, 3129 ALPINE, appealing the issuance of a building permit to 
construct a garage at 3129 Alpine. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are appealing the issuance of a building permit 
to construct a garage a 3129 Alpine.  In support of that appeal they are requesting 
interpretation of Sections 1.30.00, 2.30.00, 2.50.02, 4.20.01, 4.20.03, 4.20.65, 4.20.71, 
4.20.139, 10.10.00, 3.40.03 and 40.57.02 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance as they apply to 
that structure.  The permit for this structure was issued in 2003 because the structure 
was found to be in compliance with the requirements of the Troy Zoning Ordinance.  
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of February 15, 2005 and was 
postponed to allow City Staff to present a rebuttal to the petitioners’ objections to the 
construction of this building. 
 
The Building Department has received a written request from Howard & Howard 
Attorneys, representing the petitioners asking that this item be postponed until the 
meeting of April 19, 2005. 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he would like something in writing from the City Attorney’s 
Office indicating why this Board has the right to deal with this question of interpretation.  
Mr. Courtney further stated that he does not understand how this Board has the right to 
hear this item.  Mr. Courtney also said that if this Board is going to go back, after the 
fact, there are other buildings in Troy that he would like to act on.  Mr. Courtney believes 
this Board can only act on interpretation of uses for a building and not on the actual 
building itself. 
 
Mr. Motzny stated that this was something the Attorneys planned to give to this Board 
regarding interpretation. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to postpone this item until the meeting of April 19, 2005 as requested by the 
petitioner’s attorney. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if Mr. Stimac had the City’s rebuttal ready at this time.  Mr. Stimac 
said that at the last meeting City Staff had indicated that they would provide a written 
response to this Board once they had the opportunity to review the petitioner’s 
submittal.  The City has not received this submittal at this time and City Staff is still 
awaiting a copy of the presentation that was done at the last meeting, which will also 
provide a copy for the public record.  In addition several Board members had requested 
a summary of the petitioner’s case and this has not been submitted yet.  Mr. Kovacs 
asked if Mr. Stimac had any discussion with the petitioner’s attorney indicating why 
there was a delay in receiving these documents.   Mr. Motzny indicated that he had 
been informed that Mr. Kingsepp recently had surgery and this could account for part of 
the delay.   
 
Mr. Kovacs feels that there is no reason not to honor the request of the petitioner to 
postpone this item. 
 
Vote on the motion to postpone this item until April 19, 2005. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF APRIL 19, 2005 
CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  ROBERT KAGE, 718 ECKFORD, variance request 
for relief to maintain two (2) covered storage structures and a lean to attached to the 
existing pole building, constructed without first obtaining building permits. 
 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to maintain 
two (2) covered storage structures and a lean-to attached to the existing pole building.  
These structures were constructed without first obtaining building permits.  The site plan 
submitted indicates an existing 1,829 square foot pole building with a 337 square foot 
lean-to attached to the rear and two covered storage buildings that are 200 square feet 
and 320 square feet in area.  The total area of all accessory buildings on this site is 
2,686 square feet.  Section 40.57.04 limits the total area of all accessory buildings on a 
site to 600 square feet or one-half of the ground floor area of the main building 
whichever is greater.  The ground floor area of the main building is 3,782 square feet; 
therefore, the total area of accessory buildings cannot exceed 1,891 square feet. 
 
The site plan submitted further indicates that the lean-to structure constructed on the 
rear of the pole building results in a 3’ setback to the rear property line.  Section 
40.57.05 requires a 6’ minimum setback from an accessory structure to any property 
line. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the pole barn on the property was done properly.  Mr. Stimac stated 
that this pole barn did comply with the requirements of the Ordinance.  Mr. Kovacs also 
stated that the structures that are housing this wood are very tall and asked if there was 
any type of regulation regarding the stacking of wood.  Mr. Stimac said that the height of 
accessory structures is limited to 14’.   
 
Mr. Courtney clarified that all three of these structures were built without Building 
Permits.  Mr. Stimac said that the original storage building does comply with the 
Ordinance; these three (3) additional accessory structures do not comply. 
 
Mrs. Jackie Kage was present and said that they burn a lot of wood both in their home 
and camping.  A couple of years ago they were scrambling for wood and got the 
opportunity to get this wood from a tree cutting company.  If they had to take the roofs 
off of the bins that store the wood, the alternative would be tarps, which Mrs. Kage 
thinks would be very unsightly.  The roofs over these bins keep the wood dry so they 
are able to use it.  The lean-to structure in the back is to keep items under it and out of 
the weather and once again, if they have to take it down the alternative would be tarps. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how they get the stacks of wood up and down.  Mr. Kage stated 
that they have a forklift that they use.  Mr. Courtney said that this does not sound like a 
normal residential vehicle. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked if they would take the structures down when they use up all this wood.  
Mrs. Kage said that they plan on using wood all the time so they would remain full.  Mrs. 
Kage said that this company could keep bringing the wood.  Mr. Fejes asked what the 
wood was used for.  Mrs. Kage indicated that they burn the wood in their fireplace and 
also when camping.  Mr. Fejes then asked how they were built without first obtaining the  
 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
proper permits.  Mrs. Kage said that they did not believe these would be considered 
buildings, as they do not have sides.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if these structures could turn into another pole barn if a variance was 
granted.  Mr. Stimac said that the Zoning Ordinance identifies a building as a “roofed 
structure”.  Whether these structures have walls or not, does not impact the application 
of the Zoning Ordinance regarding the maximum allowable area.  Consideration of the 
request could place reasonable stipulations on the request.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if these structures were considered accessory buildings.  Mr. Stimac 
said that by definition of the Ordinance if they are used as an accessory to the main 
home, they are considered to be accessory structures.  Mr. Maxwell also said if the 
Board approved this, the variance for square footage of accessory structures would 
result in a variance of 795 square feet and a variance regarding the rear yard setback 
for the lean-to.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said that a restriction could be placed on the 795 square foot variance 
indicating that it could not have walls.  He also indicated that he thinks this site is over-
built and there are a lot of accessory structures on the property.  Mr. Kovacs asked what 
kind of reasonable restrictions could be placed on this request so that these structures 
were not turned into more garages.  Mr. Stimac said that whatever restrictions are 
placed on this request must be clear both for the petitioner and the record.  If you want 
to restrict that it does not have sides on it that would have to be part of the motion; as 
well as the fact that it is used only to store firewood.  Mr. Stimac said that if a restriction 
was placed on the request that these structures must remain in their present state, that 
is something that would be difficult to interpret and enforce. 
 
Mrs. Drake-Batts asked what the hardship was.  Mrs. Kage said that if these structures 
were taken down, the wood would have to moved into the wooded area of the property 
and covered with tarps.  Mrs. Drake-Batts said that she does not feel this is a hardship.  
Mrs. Kage said that their neighbors don’t want to see this wood sitting with tarps on it.  
Mrs. Drake-Batts informed Mrs. Kage that the neighbors objected to what is in the yard 
now.  Mrs. Kage said that she brought in a petition with 26 signatures indicating that 
they would rather look at what they have than woodpiles covered with tarps. Mrs. 
Drake-Batts said that Mr. & Mrs. Kage could use up the wood that is presently on the 
site and take these structures down.  Mrs. Kage indicated that they would like to 
continue receiving a supply of wood and last winter burned four (4) bins of wood. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that Mrs. Kage stated she went through four (4) bins of wood this 
winter and asked how many bins were on the property.  Mr. Kage said that there are 
about forty 40-bins of wood on the property.  Mr. Kage said that there are also large 
bins and small bins and stated that there are about 100 face chords of wood on the 
property.  Mr. Kage also said that he uses the bins to keep the wood separated and 
eventually the bins would empty but he hoped it wouldn’t be for the next 10 or 15 years.   

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kage also has about seventy (70) trees on his property that need to come down, so 
he does not believe these bins will ever empty.  Mr. Kovacs said that basically there is 
about a five-year supply of wood on the property and asked Mr. Kage if he thought that 
was reasonable.  Mr. Kage said he thought it was and said the only reason he bought 
the forklift was to move the wood around.  If he has to take the structures down, he is 
going to move the wood off of the cement and put it on the ground and cover it with 
tarps.  Mr. Kage also said that he felt a lot of the wood would rot & create a problem 
with animals living in it.   
 
Mr. Kovacs also said that when he looked at this site, he saw two (2) motor homes, 
some ski-doos and wondered why these vehicles could not be moved into the pole 
barn.  Mr. Kage said that he farms and has a lot of equipment that he stores in this pole 
barn and likes to bring tools home to work on them.  Mr. Kovacs asked why the farm 
equipment was not kept up north, on the farm.  Mr. Kage said that he does not own any 
land, he rents the property he farms on. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked what Mr. Kage would have done if he had come to the Building 
Department, before he constructed these structures and was told that he was limited to 
1829 square feet.  Mr. Kage said that he knew he was at the maximum square footage 
allowed and did not believe he needed a Building Permit for these structures because 
they do not have walls.  Mr. Fejes said that there are complaints against them and the 
neighbors are worried about de-valuing their property, and asked if these structures 
could be brought more in line without requiring a variance.  Mr. Kage said that without a 
variance he would only be allowed sixty square feet and he does not consider that 
helpful at all.  Mr. Fejes said that he is having a problem with this request as it is a very 
large variance request and he does not see a hardship with the land.  Mr. Kage said 
that the hardship would be all the people around them that would have to look at the 
woodpiles covered with tarps.  Mr. Kage also said that one of his neighbors could not 
see the structures at all.  Mr. Kage indicated that he would like to see if the neighbors 
that were complaining also signed Mr. & Mrs. Kage’s petition indicating approval of 
these structures.  Mr. Fejes said that he is the one that is having a problem with this 
variance request as the variance runs with the land.  Mrs. Kage said that she felt the 
size of their property should be taken into consideration as it is four (4) acres and not in 
a subdivision. 
 
Mr. Kage said that no one can see into the yard during the summer because of the 
number of trees on the property.  Mr. Kage also said that he would be willing to take one 
of the buildings out as it would be relatively easy to remove, the other building was built 
around the trees.  The lean-to has a fiberglass roof and Mr. Kage believes the people 
behind him would rather see that than wood with a tarp.  Mr. Kage said that the problem 
is that he would only be allowed an additional sixty square feet with a variance and that 
does not give him enough room. 
 
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked why the wood storage could not be reduced from five years to two 
years.  Mr. Kovacs said that right now there is a five-year capability of storing wood on 
the property and he understands that the neighbors would rather see structures than 
tarps all over the property, however, in his opinion he thinks the neighbors would also 
rather not see wood stored in bins all over the property.  The neighbor directly behind 
this property can see the lean-to and the barn.  Mr. Kovacs also said that there is an 
1829 square foot pole barn on the property that is larger than some peoples’ houses,  
and if he wants to have the wood and the farm equipment, he may have to choose 
between which he would like to store in the barn.  Mr. Kovacs said that he does not see 
a hardship that runs with the land.  Mr. Kage said that they were out of wood for several 
years and have now gotten the opportunity to get this wood and he would like to keep 
storing it in case they cannot get wood in the future.  Mr. Kage also said that there is a 
hedge row along the back of the property as well as a six (6’) high fence, and the only 
time the neighbor can see into the yard is when they go upstairs and have nothing 
better to do than to look out of their window.  Mr. Kage said that his hardship is that he 
is going to have a bunch of neighbors looking at piles of wood on the property and 
complaining about it. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that this wood is normally stored on cement and asked if these 
structures have to be removed, why the wood would not still be stored on the cement?  
Mr. Kage said that if he has to remove the structures, he is going to park a different 
trailer on the cement.  Mr. Courtney said that he feels they are choosing to create a 
problem.  Mrs. Kage said whether they get the variance or not they are going to 
maintain the firewood.  If necessary they will keep it covered with tarps.  Mrs. Kage said 
that they are going to keep the firewood and they are either going to keep the structures 
and have the wood under them, or they are going to store the firewood on the ground 
and keep it covered with tarps.  Mrs. Kage also said that they think it looks much better 
stored this way rather than on the ground.  Mr. Kage said that he cannot take the forklift 
on the dirt. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if what they were saying was that they were going to take the five 
years of wood out of the bins and dump it on the ground.  Mr. Kage said he would get 
rid of the bins as he would no longer have any use for them. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that if they stored that much wood on the ground, not in bins and not 
raised off the ground, they would be in violation of the Property Maintenance Code and 
would be cited.  Mr. Kage asked how much wood could be stored on the ground.  Mr. 
Stimac said that he can store as much wood as he wants as long as it does not become 
a nuisance.  100 face chords of wood stored on the ground would become a nuisance.  
Mr. Kage said that the way the wood is stored now is not a nuisance.  Mr. Stimac said 
that the buildings that cover the wood violate the Ordinance. 
 
 
 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked why they burn this wood.  Mr. Kage said that their house is over 3,000 
square feet and it does help with the heat bills and also that it adds a certain ambience 
to the house.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Winkleprins of 650 Eckford was present and his property is technically next door to 
718 Eckford as their backyards have the same depth.  Mr. Winkleprins said that they 
like to burn a lot wood too and they go through quite a bit every year as it adds 
ambience to the house and is a nice touch.  Mr. Winkleprins said that he always thought 
that in order for a structure to be considered a building, it  would have to have walls.  He 
considers the roof over these structures as canopies that are much more attractive than 
the tarps.  They are very thankful that the wood is consolidated the way it is rather than 
spread over a large area.  Mr. Winkleprins uses tarps to keep his wood dry, but thinks 
these structures are more appealing.  Mr. Winkleprins said that they cannot see the 
lean-to at all so he cannot comment on that, although he would much rather see what is 
there now instead of tarps.  He is in favor of granting this variance.  Mr. Kovacs asked if 
he had signed the petition brought in by Mr. & Mrs. Kage.  Mr. Winkleprins indicated that 
his wife had signed the petition. 
 
Mr. Roger Panella of 682 Eckford was present and stated that his house is to the north 
of this property.  The south side of his home faces these two (2) structures and does not 
find them to be an eyesore and is in favor of the variance, rather than the alternative of 
putting up tarps.  Mr. Kovacs asked if his name was also on the petition and Mr. Panella 
said that it was. 
 
Mr. Gary Blanck, 655 Thurber was present and said that his home is south of this 
property.  Mr. Blanck said that he does not have an objection to these structures and 
thinks it would be an eyesore if the wood was on the ground.   Mr. Blanck said that he 
would be concerned if the wood was on the ground with tarps as not only would it be an 
eyesore, but would also attract animals.  Mr. Blanck said that he had signed the petition 
and would like to see this variance request granted. 
 
Mr. John Hansen, 683 Thurber was present and said that his property backs up to Mr. 
Kage’s property and he is the most affected by these structures.  Mr. Hansen brought in 
pictures taken from his home and feels that the main eyesore is the lean-to attached to 
the pole barn.  Mr. Hansen said that he has lived there approximately seven years and 
always thought that Mr. & Mrs. Kage were living quite comfortably without all this wood 
on the property.  There is also a structure that has a tarp over it.  Mr. Hansen believes 
this structure will have an impact on the value of his property and sees this lean-to 
every day and thinks that Mr. Kage could get rid of some of the wood.  The buildings are 
approximately 14’  to 16’ high and there are several stacks of wood outside of these 
buildings also.  Mr. Hansen said that he wished he had come to him as he would have 
told him not to build a lean-to and also to stack the bins below six (6) feet, so they would 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
not be visible above the privacy fence line.  Mr. Hansen also said that he had to 
overcome this visual line of site to the lean-to and wondered if the Fire Department had 
any issues with this wood stacked up in this structure.  Mr. Kovacs asked if he had 
signed the approval petitioner.  Mr. Hansen said that when Mrs. Kage came by she 
asked the question as to whether the neighbors would rather see a wood cage or a tarp.  
Mr. Hansen indicated that the consensus of opinion was that they would much rather 
see a structure than a tarp, although he did not realize it would result in a lean-to and 
there are still tarps on the property covering wood.   If Mr. Hansen had known that these 
structures were going to be put on the property, he probably would not have bought this 
home.  Mr. Hansen said he does not want to create any animosity but he would rather 
not have the lean-to on the property.  Mr. Hansen also said that he does not believe Mr. 
Kage needs a five-year supply of wood stored on the property.  Mr. Kovacs asked Mr. 
Hansen about his signature on the petition and Mr. Hansen once again stated that his 
wife had signed the petition based on the fact that Mrs. Kage asked if they would rather 
have a wood structure than a tarp covering the wood. 
 
Mr. Nick Vitale, 641 Thurber was present and stated that his home is behind and to the 
south of this property.  Mr. Vitale said that he does not see the lean-to or the other 
structures on this property as his property is heavily wooded.  Mr. Vitale is in favor of 
this variance request and is concerned that the number of rodents would increase if the 
wood was stored on the ground.  Mr. Vitale also indicated that he had signed the 
petition. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written objections on file.  The Kages submitted a petition with twenty-
five (25) signatures indicating approval of the structures. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that it is his opinion that the best alternative is less wood.  Mr. 
Maxwell also said that he does not believe this much wood is reasonable in the City and 
the petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship that runs with the land and also feels that 
a lot of things that were brought up were a self-imposed hardship. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he did not see a hardship that runs with the land and would be 
inclined to make a motion to deny. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked if the approvals on the petition were for a variance for the square 
footage of accessory structures, or an approval for a structure versus a tarp.  Mr. 
Kovacs said that the wording on the petition indicated that it was “petition for allowing 
residents at 718 Eckford to retain two pavilions on property to cover firewood”.  Mr. 
Courtney said that the sales pitch was that it was indicated that the wood would be 
under tarps.  Mr. Kovacs thinks that there is too much wood on this property and 
believes that this is a self-imposed hardship.  Mr. Kovacs also said that he thinks this  
 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
much wood will bring down property values and thinks it is obtrusive to other residents 
in the area.   
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he feels the hardship is self-created. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Robert Kage, 718 Eckford, for relief to maintain two (2) 
covered storage structures and a lean-to attached to the existing pole building, resulting 
in 2,686 square feet of accessory buildings where 1,891 square feet is allowed. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship. 
• Amount of firewood proposed to be stored is more than what would be 

reasonable for a single family home. 
• Variance is obtrusive to surrounding neighbors. 
• Variance would have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO DENY VARIANCE REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  ROBERT KLEINSTIVER, 2877 DALEY, for relief to 
maintain an addition constructed without first obtaining a building permit that results with 
9.5’ rear yard setback where Section 30.20.09 of the Ordinance requires a minimum 20’ 
rear yard setback in M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to maintain 
an addition constructed without first obtaining a building permit.  The site plan submitted 
indicates that this 10.5’ x 25.9’ addition was constructed with 9.5’ rear yard setback.  
Section 30.20.09 of the Ordinance requires a minimum 20’ rear yard setback for 
buildings located in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District. 
  
Mr. Robert Kleinstiver and his Attorney, were present.  Mr. Kleinstiver’s Attorney stated 
that Mr. Kleinstiver had been a property owner in the City of Troy for many years.  
Approximately 20 years ago Mr. Kleinstiver hired a contractor and assumed that this 
contractor pulled the necessary permits and met the requirements of the City when he 
put up this structure.  During the process of trying to sell this building, it was found that 
the structure was put up without a Building Permit.  This structure is part and parcel of 
this building.  Mr. Kleinstiver would like to retire and is trying to sell this building.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the sale of this building would be affected if this storage building 
had to be removed.  Mr. Kleinstiver’s Attorney said that the buyer would not continue 
with the purchase of this property. 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if a Building Permit was required if this variance was granted.  Mr. 
Stimac said that it would be appropriate to issue a Building Permit, which would also 
create a record for this structure. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant Robert Kleinstiver, 2877 Daley, relief of the Ordinance to maintain an 
addition constructed with first obtaining a Building Permit that results with a 9.5’ rear 
yard setback where Section 30.20.09 of the Ordinance requires a minimum 20’ rear 
yard setback in M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would not have an effect to surrounding property. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  VITO MITCHELL HOMES, L.L.C., 996 ECKFORD 
(PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief to construct a house that will result in a proposed 
26.07’ front setback from the Rochester Road right of way where Section 30.10.04 
requires a 30’ minimum front yard setback in R-1C Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a single-family residence.  This lot located on the southeast corner of Eckford and 
Rochester is a double front corner lot.  As such, it has front setback requirements from both 
Eckford and Rochester Road.  Section 30.10.04 requires a 30’ minimum front setback in R-
1C Zoning Districts.  The site plan submitted indicates a proposed 26.07’ front setback from 
the Rochester Road right of way. 
 
Mr. Vito Mitchell was present and stated that they are looking to keep this home exactly 
like the rest of the homes on this street and will have the same square footage.  If they 
had to take off 4’ off the home would have the appearance of a “shotgun” type of house 
and would not look the same as the homes in the area. 
 
 
 

 11



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how taking off 4’ of the house would create a “shotgun” 
appearance.  Mr. Mitchell said that although 4’ does not seem like a lot it will bring the 
house in and the rooms would come in 2’ on each side of the home. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked to see the plan of the home and Mr. Mitchell gave the Board a plan to 
examine.  Mr. Kovacs asked if this was going to be a two-story home and Mr. Mitchell 
said it would be one-story ranch.  Mr. Kovacs then asked if they had to take 4’ off of the 
house what would happen to the footprint of the house.  Mr. Mitchell said that 
aesthetically it would look as though you were walking through narrow hallways to get to 
the bedrooms.  Mr. Mitchell also said that it would not fit in with the other homes in the 
area.  They are trying to make sure that this home looks like the surrounding homes, 
which will keep the property values up. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if there was any future expansion planned for Rochester Road.  Mr. 
Stimac said that this is the existing right of way along Rochester Road, which happens 
to be at the current ultimate right of way that is shown on the City’s Master 
Thoroughfare Plan.  This already does take into account any known future widening of 
Rochester Road. 
 
Mr. Mitchell also said that in order to keep the house secluded from Rochester Road, 
they are going to put in a berm with pine trees.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if a variance would be required if this was not a double front corner 
lot.  Mr. Stimac said that the lot is 85’ wide and if it was not a double front corner lot, he 
would need 10’ on each side and basically could build a 65’ wide house.  Mr. Kovacs 
asked if the house could be rotated to face Rochester.  Mr. Mitchell said that if the 
house was turned it would not meet the rear yard setbacks. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked why this was not considered at the time these lots were split.  Mr. 
Mitchell said that in this Zoning District the minimum lot width is 85 feet.  Mr. Mitchell 
also said in order to get the maximum number of lots from this parcel, this is the way it 
was split with 85’ frontage and 130’ deep.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if they had built all the homes in this area and Mr. Mitchell stated that 
they had built the homes on the south side of the street.  Mr. Kovacs asked if a Colonial 
style home would fit on this parcel and Mr. Mitchell stated that it would not fit on this lot.  
Mr. Mitchell also said that the proposed home would be comparable to the other homes 
in the area. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to speak and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file.    
 

 12



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that in his opinion this was a very small variance request and would not 
be obtrusive to other homes in the area.   
 
Mr. Courtney said that he thought this should have been taken into consideration when 
they were going to split the parcel.  Mr. Stimac said that the original property width was 
255’, the minimum lot width is 85’, and they could not have reduced the lot width on the 
adjoining lots without obtaining a variance. 
 
Motion by Fejes 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant Vito Mitchell Homes, L.L.C., 996 Eckford (proposed address), for relief 
to construct a house that will result in a proposed 26.07’ front setback from the 
Rochester Road right of way where Section 30.10.04 requires a 30’ minimum front yard 
setback in R-1C Zoning Districts. 
 

• Variance request in minimal. 
• Double front corner lot creates a hardship. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance does not create a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  RAM A. SHARMA, 2951 HOMEWOOD, for relief of 
the Ordinance to maintain a porch enclosure constructed without a permit on the east 
side of his home that results in a side setback of 5.6” where Section 30.10.01 requires a 
15’ setback in R-1A Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Zoning Ordinance to 
maintain a porch enclosure constructed without first obtaining a building permit on the 
east side of his home.  The site plan submitted indicates that this structure was built 
with a 5.6’ side setback.  Section 30.10.01 requires a 15’ minimum side yard setback in 
R-1A Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that an error was made in the write up of this petition.  This 
subdivision was originally developed utilizing the open space option and the lot sizes 
were reduced.  In the R-1A Zoning District, in open space option developments, side 
yard setbacks are only 10’ and not 15’ as published, therefore this is a lesser variance 
request.  After conferring with Mr. Motzny it was determined that the Board could act on 
this request because the variance request is now a lesser variance than the request in 
the published notice. 

 13



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Ram Sharma was present and stated that if there were any objections on file he 
would be willing to take down this porch enclosure.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said that we did have a written objection on file and asked Mr. Sharma what 
the purpose of this structure was.  Mr. Sharma said that it protects the door and keeps 
water from running down into the basement.  Mr. Sharma also said that he had signed a 
contract with someone, and found out later that he did not have a license.  Mr. Sharma 
had to take him to civil court and this contractor lost the case to Mr. Sharma.  Mr. 
Kovacs clarified that Mr. Sharma had indicated he would tear down the structure if there 
was an objection on file and Mr. Sharma said that he would.  Mr. Kovacs asked how this 
structure was attached to the house.  Mr. Sharma said that there were glass doors and 
a wood molding that makes up the frame. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the Board needs to find a hardship with this request.  Mr. Sharma 
said that that he does not have a hardship and if he knew it was a problem originally he 
probably would not have put it up. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. Sharma wanted to withdraw his petition and he said if the 
Board decides he can keep the structure he will and if the Board indicates that it needs 
to come down, he will remove it.   
 
Mr. Fejes asked why Mr. Sharma built this enclosure.  Mr. Sharma said that there was a 
door there and water was draining inside.  Mr. Fejes said that if he takes it down, he will 
have water leaking into the basement.  Mr. Fejes said that he did not see a hardship. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the petitioner would be allowed to building some sort of canopy that 
would act as a rain deflector over this door.  Mr. Stimac asked Mr. Sharma if the door 
was added as part of this project.  Mr. Sharma said that the door was there about two 
years.  Mr. Stimac then asked if he had a problem with water running in through the 
door before he added the enclosure.  Mr. Sharma said that he did not. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the Zoning Ordinance permits architectural features, one of which 
would include a small overhang that could encroach 2” per foot of setback.  In a 10’ 
setback you could have a 20” overhang that could cover the top of the door.  Mr. 
Kovacs said that right now it sits 11’ from the property line.  Mr. Stimac said that 
according to the mortgage survey, it is currently 11 ½’ and he can go 20” into the 
setback, which would take him to 8’-4” that would give him a 3’ overhang over the door.  
This overhang could not have walls.  Mr. Sharma said that without walls the water would 
go inside.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if there was something that protected the front and back doors.  Mr. 
Sharma indicated that a large porch covered the front door.   
 
 

 14



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that in his opinion a small architectural overhang would be more 
appropriate and does not think this enclosure fits in with the surrounding area. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he did not see a hardship with this request and also felt that if Mr. 
Sharma decided he needed something to cover the door, he could put up an overhang 
without walls. 
 
Mr. Courtney suggested that Mr. Sharma determine if anything would be required once 
the structure was removed. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Ram A. Sharma, 2951 Homewood for relief of the 
Ordinance to maintain a porch enclosure constructed without a permit on the east side 
of his home that results in a side setback of 5.6’ where Section 34.20.03 requires a 10’ 
setback in R-1A Zoning Districts utilizing the open space option. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship. 
• Structure does not fit in with surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 

 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  LARRY FRANDLE, 1142 BOYD, for relief of the 
Ordinance to reconstruct a fire damaged home.  Section 40.50.04 prohibits the 
reconstruction of a legal non-conforming structure destroyed by a means to an extent of 
more than 60% of its replacement cost unless the construction is in compliance with all 
provisions of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Zoning Ordinance to 
reconstruct a fire-damaged house.  This house is a legal non-conforming structure.  It 
has an existing 4.7’ side yard setback where 5’ is required and an existing 17.6’ front 
setback where 25’ is required in the R-1E Zoning District per Section 30.10.06.  A fire 
occurred on January 14, 2005 damaging this structure beyond 60% of its replacement 
cost.  Section 40.50.04 prohibits the reconstruction of a legal non-conforming structure 
destroyed by any means to an extent of more than 60% of its replacement cost unless 
the construction is in compliance with all provisions of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 15



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if there were any plans submitted to rebuild.  Mr. Stimac said that 
there were not any plans submitted, but Montgomery & Sons did submit specifications 
as to the scope of the work.  Mr. Stimac also verified with the City Assessor, that the 
house on this property is valued at $46,344.00 for tax purposes and the cost estimates 
to repair is $123,000.00. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the rebuilt structure would be two stories instead of one and one-
half.  Mr. Stimac said that there are two sets of numbers, one to rebuild the structure 
and put it back the way it was is the $123,000.00 figure and the other to expand the 
structure to a full second floor which will exceed the $123,000.00 figure.  Mr. Courtney 
asked if granting a variance to rebuild this home would remove the non-conformity 
status of the home and if it were to be destroyed again could they rebuild without a 
variance.  Mr. Stimac said that if a variance is granted, it would be made a conforming 
structure with the reduced setbacks and would not have to come back to them.  Mr. 
Courtney asked what would happen if it were built larger.  Mr. Stimac stated that if the 
home was rebuilt in a way that increases the non-conformity or continue the non-
conformity it would have to come back to the Board.  If a structure was put on to the 
back of this home that met the side yard setbacks, it would not have to come back to 
this Board. 
 
Mrs. Drake-Batts asked if they were planning to rebuild on the existing foundation and 
Mr. Stimac indicated that this was correct. 
 
Mr. Frandle was present and stated that basically all they want to do is repair the house.  
The footprint of the home will stay the same.  Cost of repairs is estimated to be 
$120,000.00 and it was explained to Mr. Frandle by AAA that the cost of repair is limited 
to his liability.  If Mr. Frandle has to tear down the house, rebuild, and move the 
foundation to make it conforming, it would be twice as much and that money would have 
to come out of his pocket.  Mr. Frandle said that they are a one-income family and 
without a variance this would create a hardship for them.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked about expanding a non-conforming structure.  Mr. Stimac said that 
they are not going to expand this non-conformance but only to rebuild it without having 
to comply with the requirements of the Ordinance.  Because the cost of repairs is more 
than 60% of the value of the home, the Ordinance dictates that it can only be rebuilt in 
conformance with the guidelines of the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if making this home 2 stories instead of 1-½ stories would increase 
the non-conformity.  Mr. Stimac said that even though it would be 2 stories the non-
conformity would not be increased because the sidewalls would not be moved and 
therefore the side yard setback would not change.   
 
Mr. Frandle said that he had used the upstairs for living space and he wanted to raise 
the knee walls 5’.   

 16



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs also said that he thought this would be an expansion of a non-conforming 
structure because it is going from 1-½ stories to 2 stories.  Mr. Stimac said that the 
Board could allow the structure to be rebuilt exactly the way it was or they could allow 
the second floor to be expanded to take up the full width of the house.   
 
A discussion ensued regarding whether or not this would be considered an expansion to 
a non-conforming structure and a new Public Hearing notice would be required.  Mr. 
Courtney said that he is adding to the non-conformity.  Mr. Fejes stated that he did not 
think this was an addition to the non-conformity.  Mr. Stimac stated that the Public 
Hearing notice states specifically that the home has to be repaired in the same location 
but does not indicate if that is the same structure or a different structure.  Mr. Kovacs 
said that he feels this is a technicality and does not feel it would be appropriate to make 
the petitioner wait another month for a ruling.  Mr. Courtney asked Mr. Motzny for a 
ruling on this issue. 
 
Mr. Motzny said that if the structure is rebuilt exactly the same it is not really an 
expansion.  The burden of the Board is to grant a variance allowing for the same 
setback variance that is presently on the property.  If they don’t know for sure what he is 
going to build and the new structure is larger it could be construed as an expansion to a 
non-conforming structure.  If the Board grants a variance and the petitioner decides to 
build something different at a later date he would have to come back before the Board.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked Mr. Frandle if he knew what he wanted to do at this point.  Mr. 
Frandle said he knows exactly what he wants to do and that is to repair his home and 
move his family back into it.  He would like to add additional living space by raising the 
knee walls.  The footprint of the house would not be changed at all. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if raising the walls by 5’ would increase the non-conformity.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked Mr. Frandle if he could start to rebuild exactly the same house now 
and then come back to the Board if he still wished to expand the second floor.  Mr. 
Frandle said he did not think the insurance company would go along with that type of 
situation. 
 
Mrs. Drake-Batts said that she did not have a problem with granting a variance and 
allowing Mr. Frandle to expand the second floor.   Mr. Courtney said that he did not 
have a problem granting this variance as long as the Public Hearing notice would cover 
this situation, as he does believe this is an expansion of a non-conforming structure. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked for an opinion regarding the non-conformity.  Mr. Maxwell said that he 
thinks the reason he is here is because essentially the non-conformity no longer exists 
and it is up to the Board to grant a variance that will allow for a new non-conformity.  If 
Mr. Frandle wants to ask for an addition to the height it could be part of the new non-
conformity.   

 17



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that if the Board is inclined to allow the petitioner to rebuild a structure 
damaged to this extent that is one issue and if part of that reconstruction includes 
raising the height of the roof on the second floor as part of that reconstruction, a 
resolution could be passed indicating that the variance is granted as long as he does 
not expand the walls outward.   
 
Mrs. Drake-Batts asked if someone were to build a new house they would not have to 
come before this Board.  Mrs. Drake-Batts said that all this Board is doing to giving him 
back his non-conforming status.  Mr. Kovacs said that in the past when you have 
additional square footage that is an increase to a non-conforming structure.  Mr. Stimac 
said that he believes what the petitioner is asking for is to take a 1 ½ story bungalow 
and alter it to become a full 2nd story home.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Frandle brought in several approval letters. 
 
John Lovell from Montgomery & Sons was present and said he is the contractor for this 
project.  Mr. Lovell explained that they were using the loft area as living space and the 
only reason they would raise the walls would be to meet the Residential Building Code.  
Basically this was a one-bedroom house.  His insurance policy will cover this area 
because he was using it as living space. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if the distance from the knee wall on the north side of house would 
remain the same as the distance from the knee wall on the south side of the house.  Mr. 
Lovell said that they were going to raise the knee walls 5’ and also move them out to be 
in line with the first floor walls. 
 
Steve Giordanno a neighbor of Mr. Frandle was present and stated that he is in favor of 
granting this variance and does not see how reconstruction could create a problem.   
 
Mr. Frandle’s daughter was present and stated that she is in support of this request and 
also feels that the extra space on the second floor would be beneficial to everyone. 
 
Mr. Murray of 1128 Boyd was present and said that he lives next door to the petitioner.  
Mr. Murray said that the petitioner is basically trying to rebuild what he has and thinks 
the Board should grant this variance. 
 
Paula Ellis, 1205 Boyd was present and stated that this neighborhood has always 
looked the same.  Ms. Ellis said that the neighbors do not care if there is an extra 5’ on 
the top of the house; they just want this family back in their home. 
 
 
 

 18



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                            MARCH 15, 2005 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Tim Wiggins, 1186 Boyd was present and stated that he lives about three houses from 
the petitioner.  Mr. Wiggins said that he is in support of this variance and the proposed 
construction would not be any type of eyesore. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are eleven (11) written approvals on file as well as the approvals brought in by 
Mr. Frandle.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said he personally did not see a problem with rebuilding the structure. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Larry Frandle, 1142 Boyd, relief of the Ordinance to reconstruct a fire 
damaged home. 
 

• Reconstruction includes the expansion of the 2nd floor. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked when elections were held for officers on the Board of Zoning 
Appeals.  Mr. Stimac said that these elections are held in May. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:46 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Matthew Kovacs, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 19



Dave Lambert 
1188 Player Dr. 
Troy, MI 48085 

 
 
 

March 17, 2005 
 

 
TO: Mayor, Council, City Manager, and City Attorney 
 
Thank you for providing me with the opportunity to attend the National League of Cities meeting 
held November 30 - December 4, 2004 in Indianapolis. 
 
Tuesday, November 30 
 
I attended the Leadership Training Institute (LTI) session entitled “Effective Parliamentary 
Procedure for Dynamic Council Meetings.”  Nancy Sylvester, a Certified Professional 
Parliamentarian and a retired university professor facilitated the session. Nancy is also the 
author of “Complete Idiot’s Guide to Robert’s Rules.” Ms. Sylvester provided some handy tools 
for understanding the way that different motions take precedence. 
 
For example, the list below is the precedence of motions under Robert’s Rules Newly Revised: 
 

Fix the Time to which to Adjourn 
Adjourn 
Take a Recess 
Raise a Question of Privilege 
Call for the Orders of the Day 
Lay on the Table 
Previous Question 
Limit or Extend Limits of Debate 
Postpone to a Certain Time 
Commit or Refer 
Amend an amendment 
Amend a motion 
Postpone Indefinitely  
A Main Motion 

 
If one of these motions is on the floor, then a motion above it in the list may be made. However, 
a motion below it may not be made. 
 
If you are interested, Nancy has a web site at  www.nancysylvester.com .  
 
Wednesday, December 1 
 
In the morning, I attended the LTI session “Leadership in a Diverse Community.” The session 
was “ok” but not what I expected. A better title for the session would be “The Impact of 

 1

morrellca
Text Box
J-02a



Perceptions!” The instructor was Claude Hurst, President, C. H. Hurst Associates, Inc., Miami, 
Florida. 
 
The session was intended to expand the awareness of factors that influence human perceptions 
and examine how those perceptions influence behavior and actions when interacting with 
people who are different.    
 
Mr. Hurst stated that we cannot control what others think. We can only control our own behavior 
and that behavior can and does influence others. In other words: values and biases lead to 
perceptions…perceptions lead to thoughts…thoughts influence one’s own behavior…one’s 
behavior influences other’s behavior. 
 
To establish “win-win” interdependent relationships with others, each person should conduct a 
self-examination that includes: 
 

What am I telling myself about the situation or person? 
What are my biases and how are they impacting me? 
What are my values and how are they influencing my perceptions? 
If there are differing perceptions, what is influencing the perceptions? 
What assumptions am I making about the situation or person? 
What type of prejudicial thoughts do I have? 
What type of behavior do I want back? 
What behavior, from me, is in my best interest? 

 
In the afternoon, I attended the LTI session, “Evaluating the City Manager,” The 
instructor/facilitator was Julia Novak, Vice-President, Management Partners, Inc., Cincinnati, 
Ohio. Ms. Novak has over sixteen years of local government management experience, and is 
also an experienced consultant, trainer and facilitator who has worked with numerous 
organizations and community groups. 
 
In Ms. Novak’s opinion, hiring and evaluating the City Manager is probably the most important 
role that an elected official must serve. The purpose of the evaluation is to discuss, assess, and 
summarize the results and performance of the City Manager. It is also a time to clarify 
expectations regarding the City Manager's performance, set objectives for the upcoming year, 
and identify actions which can be taken to maintain and/or increase the City Manager's 
effectiveness. 
 
The most helpful handouts at the session were sample performance evaluation forms. I’ve 
provided these materials to John Szerlag. 
 
Most of the evaluations look at the City Manager from the following job dimensions: 
 

Staff Effectiveness 
Policy Facilitation 
Service Delivery Management 
Strategic Leadership 
Democratic Responsiveness 
Organizational Planning and Management  
Communication 
Integrity 

 2



Interpersonal Characteristics and Skills 
Organizational Values 
Personal Development 
Self-Mastery 
Leadership 

 
Thursday, December 2 
 
I attended the conference session entitled “The Changing Role of Local Officials: Addressing the 
Needs of Children, Youth, and Families.” The panel included Bill Bogaard (Mayor, Pasadena, 
CA), Neil Albert (Deputy Mayor, Washington, DC), Pamela Clark (Director, Bartholomew County 
Youth Services, IN), and Robbyn Wahby (Education Advisor to the Mayor, St. Louis, MO).  
 
This session stressed that more city officials are finding their roles expanding beyond the 
traditional arenas of infrastructure, law enforcement, and economic development. In some cities, 
municipal leadership has worked to improve education and to redefine the role of parks and 
recreation programs. 
 
Pamela Clark (Bartholomew County Youth Services, IN) made a notable presentation on 
Community Youth Mapping. In this project, they hired seven teenagers to “map” the entire 
county to identify resources for youth. Those included opportunities for education and 
employment. The map also identified obstacles (e.g., transportation) to utilizing these resources. 
 
Friday, December 3 
 
The session, “Avoid Baby-Boom Doom: How to Support an Aging Population” was one of the 
best features of the conference. The panel included M. Scott Ball (Community Housing 
Resource Center, Atlanta, GA), Marcie Freeman (Multicultural Coalition on Aging, Boston, MA), 
Kathryn Lawler (Aging Atlanta, Atlanta, GA), and John Wren (Administration on Aging, 
Washington, DC). 
 
By the year 2030, 1 in 5 Americans will be termed “elderly” comprising 1/5 of the nation. These 
aging baby boomers will need specialized housing, transportation and services in their 
communities. This session discussed ways that city officials can prepare for these changes.  
 
All Councilmembers should have received copies of the handouts from this session. 
 
Saturday, December 4 
 
On Saturday, I attended the conference session, “Turning Trash into Treasures: Infill, Greyfield 
& Brownfields.” This was a panel discussion that included Michael Quinn (Clifton Gunderson 
LLP, Indianapolis, IN), Steve Burkholder (Mayor, Lakewood, CO), Ralph McCloud (Mayor Pro 
Tem, Fort Worth, TX), and Jan Mills (Mayor, West Lafayette, IN). 
 
The session featured information on cities that have experienced dying malls and blighted, 
vacant lots. In some cities, these facilities are being reincarnated into housing complexes, 
commercial establishments and recreation areas.  
 

 3



Mayor Burkholder presented one of the most interesting case studies.  The City of Lakewood 
partnered with the private sector to redevelop a mall into a mixed-use development.  I’ve passed 
the information from this session on to John Szerlag. 
 
Conclusion 
 
I have handouts from several of the sessions I attended.  I would be happy to loan out a 
handout if you are interested. 
 
Finally, I would also like to thank the taxpayers of the City of Troy for providing the revenue that 
allows their elected officials to attend these types of educational sessions. 
 
 

 4



morrellca
Text Box
J-02b



March 28, 2005 
 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
Subject:   Agenda Item – Annual Library Survey of Users 
 
 
The purpose of the survey is to annual gage the level of satisfaction that users 
have with the Library.  This year we had 990 participants during the week of 
March 13, 2005. 
 

• OVERALL IMPRESSION: 
o 99% were satisfied or highly satisfied, with 1% unsatisfied. 
o 79% said they were highly satisfied. 

 
• FACILITY:  Size of building, landscaping, location, parking 

o 95% were satisfied or highly satisfied, with 5% unsatisfied. 
o 63% said they were highly satisfied. 

 
• INFORMATION:  Ease of finding the information they need 

electronically   
o 98% were satisfied or highly satisfied, with 2% unsatisfied. 
o 63% said they were highly satisfied. 

 
• STAFF:  Helpful, interested, pleasant, considerate, welcoming, efficient 

o 99% were satisfied or highly satisfied, with 1% unsatisfied. 
o 78 % said they were highly satisfied. 

 
• PRINT, AV RESOURCES:  Availability, size of collections 

o 98% were satisfied or highly satisfied, with 2% unsatisfied. 
o 54% said they were highly satisfied. 

 
• EQUIPMENT:  Computers, printers, photocopiers, microfilm machines 

o 98% were satisfied or highly satisfied, with 2% unsatisfied. 
o 55% said they were highly satisfied. 

 
• PROGRAMS:  Storyhours, adult enrichment, computer instruction,     
      teen, cultural arts, book discussions 

o 99% were satisfied or highly satisfied, with 1% unsatisfied. 
o 60% said they were highly satisfied. 

morrellca
Text Box
J-02c



 
 
 
March 30, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – First Quarter 2005 Development Report  
 
 
In general, the Michigan economy is rebounding much slower than the rest of the 
nation. High vacancy rates in Troy persist in office and industrial buildings.  
However, both have seen improvements in this first quarter, although certain 
areas such as Robbins Technology Park and Northfield Parkway remain with 
relatively high vacancy rates.   One effort to attempt to assist with filling these 
vacancies has been the joint venture with the Chamber of Commerce, Cushman 
Wakefield and the Palm Restaurant to host Troy Showcase 2005, which will 
occur on April 7th.  This event will take place at Automation Alley’s new 
headquarters in Troy, hosting brokers and providing them an opportunity to 
interact with eleven of the major property owners, primarily of office properties in 
order to highlight the availability of space in Troy. 
 
Additional efforts to attack the vacancy rates is the Big Beaver Corridor study that 
has been commissioned by City Council and the Downtown Development 
Authority to provide a critical look at the long term viability of the Big Beaver 
Corridor and improve it to a world class status.  A second similar effort is under 
way in conjunction with the Chamber of Commerce and the Planning 
Commission to look at Maple corridor and provide some vision on how this 
corridor might change in the future to better attract private investment. 
 
While vacancy rates again improve very slowly, a review of the permits in 
January and February revealed about the same number of permits and same 
value with the exception of one large permit in February 2004 that skewed the 
value numbers.  So the level of economic activity in terms of permitting and 
companies actively seeking new locations appears to be generally moderate, but 
at an encouraging level of economic activity. 
 
Highlights of the first quarter includes the continued planning for the Monarch 
Project, which is the 22 story residential high-rise on Big Beaver between Alpine 
and McClure, the development plans by Heartland Health Care for a major facility 
on the southeast corner of South Boulevard and Livernois, and finally the ground 
breaking on a small site condominium project, Stone Haven Woods #2, south of 
Wattles and east of Crooks Road. 
 
Finally, no final decisions have been made by Kmart regarding the long-term 
future of their headquarter building, but it does appear that in the near future 
there should be some decisions regarding the headquarters building and the 
movement of people to Chicago now that Sears Holding Company has merged 
with Kmart. 

morrellca
Text Box
J-02d



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC/DS/Development Report 03-30-05 



DATE:        March 4, 2005 

TO:            John Szerlag, City Manager
FROM:       Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of February 2005

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 8 $204,400.00 $1,635.00

Sub Total 8 $204,400.00 $1,635.00

COMMERCIAL
New 1 $80,000.00 $510.00
Tenant Completion 4 $406,000.00 $2,470.00
Add/Alter 16 $861,500.00 $6,030.00

Sub Total 21 $1,347,500.00 $9,010.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 22 $4,436,029.00 $24,645.00
Add/Alter 23 $705,944.00 $5,550.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $50.00

Sub Total 46 $5,141,973.00 $30,245.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Add/Alter 1 $1,200.00 $40.00

Sub Total 1 $1,200.00 $40.00

MULTIPLE
Add/Alter 1 $6,682.00 $115.00
Sub Total 1 $6,682.00 $115.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 5 $1,885,000.00 $9,975.00

Sub Total 5 $1,885,000.00 $9,975.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 51 $0.00 $5,645.00

Sub Total 51 $0.00 $5,645.00

TOTAL 133 $8,586,755.00 $56,665.00

Page 1

morrellca
Text Box
J-02e



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY 2005
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 14 $140.00
Cert. of Occupancy 56 $2,243.00
Plan Review 153 $6,170.50
Microfilm 36 $378.00
Building Permits 133 $56,665.00
Electrical Permits 161 $14,567.00
Heating Permits 132 $7,785.00
Air Cond. Permits 48 $1,840.00
Plumbing Permits 72 $5,297.00
Storm Sewer Permits 34 $540.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 34 $1,218.00
Sewer Taps 26 $11,088.00

TOTAL 899 $107,931.50

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY 2005
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 33 $165.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 45 $675.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 5 $5.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 1 $50.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 4 $40.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 6 $90.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 10 $100.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 6 $90.00

TOTAL 110 $1,215.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2004 2004 2005 2005

JANUARY 100 $5,235,481.00 93 $6,617,765.00

FEBRUARY 130 $21,354,496.00 133 $8,586,755.00

MARCH 158 $9,372,242.00 0 $0.00

APRIL 178 $14,158,227.00 0 $0.00

MAY 232 $11,511,644.00 0 $0.00

JUNE 232 $16,224,865.00 0 $0.00

JULY 178 $19,788,711.00 0 $0.00

AUGUST 224 $11,179,780.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 198 $13,582,037.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 197 $11,540,976.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 161 $6,232,506.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 148 $7,316,487.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 2136 $147,497,452.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2005

3

22

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Mar 4, 2005 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY 2005Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter 428 W FOURTEEN MILE  175,000.00DEJAGER CONSTRUCTION INC
Commercial, Add/Alter 900 WILSHIRE 100  175,000.00PREMIER CONSTRUCTION COMPANY

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  350,000.00

Commercial, Tenant Completion 101 W BIG BEAVER 545  205,000.00KIRCO CONSTRUCTION LLC
Commercial, Tenant Completion 101 W BIG BEAVER 525  114,000.00KIRCO CONSTRUCTION LLC

Commercial, Tenant CompletionTotal  319,000.00

Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter 44201 DEQUINDRE 1ST FL  300,000.00SCOTT KREUTZER
Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter 44201 DEQUINDRE 1ST FL  1,400,000.00BARTON MALOW COMPANY

Inst./Hosp., Add/AlterTotal  1,700,000.00

Total Valuation:  2,369,000.00Records  7



 

morrellca
Text Box
J-03a



morrellca
Text Box
J-03b



morrellca
Text Box
J-03c



morrellca
Text Box
J-03d



morrellca
Text Box
J-03e



morrellca
Text Box
J-03f



morrellca
Text Box
J-04a









mccombca
Text Box
J-05







March 23, 2005 
 
 
 

TO:  John K. Abraham, Transportation Engineer 
Charles Craft, Police Chief 

  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Options/Ramifications for Proposed I-75/Crooks/Long Lake Interchange  

Improvement Project  
 
 
As a result of the ICMA citizen survey where it was indicated that 51 percent of the residents 
oppose the above-referenced project, I was asked to delineate options as well as 
ramifications thereof available to City Council so they could either reaffirm or change their 
directive on whether to proceed.  Given this, we’ll identify the ramifications which includes 
pros and cons for the following options: 
 
I. Proceed with environmental assessment in conjunction with property 

acquisitions. 
 

II. Proceed with environmental assessment. 
 
Once the assessment is complete, acquire property where applicable. 
 

III. Abandon the project before any further monies are expended on property 
purchases/environmental assessments. 
 

 
Please know that there is another option, and that is to perform an environmental 
assessment and then abandon the project.  However, this is not efficient nor effective and 
thus should not receive further consideration. 
 
In addition to the above, I’d like your best forecast as to when you believe FHWA funding 
could be available for this project.  Are we talking years or decades? 
 
Please complete this assignment so that I may share it with City Council as a report and 
communication for the May 2, 2005 agenda.  And as always, see me if you have any 
questions. 
 
JS/mr\Szerlag\2005\To Staff Re Ramifications of I-75 Project 
 
c: The Honorable Mayor and Council 
 Lori G. Bluhm, City Attorney 

John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

morrellca
Text Box
J-06



 
 
 
 
March 18, 2005 
 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Laura Fitzpatrick, Acting Assistant City Manager/Services 

Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item: Golf Inc. Article 
 
 
Attached please find a copy of an article published in the January 2005 issue of 
Golf Inc. pertaining to the development of Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.   
 
Golf Inc. is a publication for golf course operators published monthly.   
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: C. Anderson 

morrellca
Text Box
J-07







 
 
 
March 10, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:    Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
   Gary Mayer, Support Services Captain 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Report on Liquor Compliance Inspections 
 
The Troy Police Department Traffic Safety Unit recently conducted a series of compliance 
inspections of the liquor license establishments.  The inspections specifically targeted sales of 
alcoholic beverages to minors.  The licensees included on-premise Class C, Resort Class C, 
Club, B-Hotel, and off-premise SDD (Package Liquor) and SDM (Package Beer/Wine).  
Inspections were conducted using underage civilian “decoys” attempting to purchase alcoholic 
beverages. 
 
The establishments that failed the compliance inspections and sold alcohol to a minor are: 
 

1. Buscemi’s   3296 Rochester Rd.  SDD-SDM 
2. Café Sushi   1933 W. Maple Rd.  Class C 
3. Champps Americana 301 W. Big Beaver Rd. Class C 
4. Ashoka Indian Cuisine 3642 Rochester Rd.  Class C 
5. Portabella   2801 W. Big Beaver Rd. Class C 
6. Mon Jin Lau   1515 E. Maple Rd.  Class C 
7. Maggiano’s   2089 W. Big Beaver Rd. Class C 
8. Jumbo Buffet   1555 E. Maple Rd.  Class C 
9. Mayur Indian Cuisine 5113 Rochester Rd.  Class C 
10. Corradi’s Athletic Club 1090 Rochester Rd.  Class C 

 
Those licensees that successfully rejected our decoys’ attempts to purchase alcohol have 
been recognized and congratulated by letter. 
 
A handful of licensees were not inspected due to limited access; e.g., Clubs, Banquet Halls, 
and Guests Only.  
 
In January 2006, we will review these and any future violations with the Legal Department.  We 
will determine which licensees may have a real or potential problem with compliance, and 
make recommendations for show cause hearings before City Council.  These hearings are 
traditionally held in February or March. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by Sgt. Thomas Gordon 

morrellca
Text Box
J-08



 
DATE:  March 23, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Charles Craft, Police Chief 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Load Restrictions Report and Communication  

 
 
 
Clarification has been requested by City Council concerning vehicles allowed on 
special posted streets 6000 #/axle, 8500 #/tandem. This request is specific to Mr. 
Christopher Pratt and his F 250 pickup. 
 
His concern is that he cannot legally drive his pickup on special posted roads in 
the City of Troy because his pickup weighs a total of 6230 lbs.  The 6000 # 
posting addresses the weight of a single axle. Mr. Pratt’s vehicle has two axles 
and each axle can carry up to 6000 lbs. When Mr. Pratt had his pickup weighed 
the front axle weighed 3,690 lbs. and the rear axle weighed 2,540 lbs. Neither 
axle violated the loads on the special posted streets. 
 
As Mr. Pratt addressed City Council a question arose concerning the weight of 
any pickups purchased from a dealer’s lot and whether it would violate the loads 
on a special posted street. Attached you will find a sample specification sheet on 
a Ford 350. The F 350 is one of the largest pickups you can purchase off any lot 
regardless of the manufacturer.  
 
The Curb Weight  (5,260 lbs) is the weight of a vehicle as it comes to you from 
the manufacturer.  The Gross Vehicle Weight (11,200lbs.) is the weight of the 
vehicle, passengers, fuel and cargo.  The Gross Vehicle Weight capacity (11,200 
lbs.) for the sample vehicle is less then the 12,000 lbs allowed for the combined 
axles on this vehicle. 
 
The City of Troy Police Department is the enforcement agency on load restriction 
on all roads in the City of Troy.  They can and should be contacted for 
clarification about any issues concerning vehicle weight traveling on our roads. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director / AT 
 
 

morrellca
Text Box
J-09



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ford F350 XL Super Duty DRW Crew Cab 
4WD 4 Dr Extended Cab  

   
Specifications & Dimensions 

  
   

Manufacturer Code W33/620A 
Wheelbase 156.0" 
Overall Length 245.8" 
Curb Weight 5,260 lbs. 
Gross Vehicle Weight 11,200 lbs. 
Seating Capacity (Std/Max) 6/6 
Payload Capacity (Std/Max) 5,210/5,210 
Towing Capacity (Std/Max) 5,000/13,800 
Final Assembly Location Louisville, KY 

 
 



morrellca
Text Box
J-10













March 14, 2005  
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director  
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Report and Communication - State of Michigan Ash 

Tree Removal Contract 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
In late 2004 the State of Michigan developed a plan to address the concerns of 
private property owners and communities facing enormous costs of removing ash 
trees infested with the Emerald Ash Borer. The plan would use the State’s 
collective contracting system to establish a list of qualified tree removal vendors 
and standardized prices for ash tree removal, both on municipal property and on 
private property. 
 
To date, assistance in the form of State grants has been available only to 
municipalities. Homeowners have had to bear the cost of private ash tree 
removals themselves. The State of Michigan Ash Tree Removal Contract is the 
product of a desire on the part of the State to offer low cost ash removal to 
private homeowners and municipalities. 
 
Bids were received by the State and 26 tree removal contractors were approved 
to take part in the contract. Prices for tree removal were established and each of 
the 26 approved vendors are required to honor the established prices. The 
activities included in the State contract are cutting down ash trees in landscaped 
areas and hauling tree debris to approved marshalling yard for disposal. 
Removal of stumps, or other non-ash trees is not included. Resident would have 
to contract separately for those services.  
 
In order for a resident to take advantage of the program, the local municipality 
must voluntarily sign on as the State’s agent and administer the contract. For the 
municipality, this means designating one or more employees as municipal 
coordinator(s) to take calls from residents, verify quantities and sizes of trees via 
site visit, batch residential requests into groups large enough to make it worth 
while for vendor to bid upon, determine price for resident, collect payment from 
resident up front, coordinate removal work between vendor and resident, verify 
that the work was satisfactorily performed via site visit, release payment to 
vendor, and mediate any disputes between resident and vendor. The municipality 
would also have to set up a mechanism to deposit resident payments until work 
is performed and then release payment to vendor upon completion of work. 

morrellca
Text Box
J-11



 
Staff has many concerns with participating in the state’s program. First, Parks 
and Recreation staff estimates that administration of this contract would require 
an inordinate amount of time that currently is not available. Staff is already 
coordinating removal of the City’s municipal ash trees, as well as its other normal 
duties. Taking on the additional work of the State contract would require backing 
off on other duties, or hiring additional employees. Secondly, accepting payment 
from residents for work that might not be completed for weeks or months, 
depending on scheduling of the contractor, will require involvement of the 
Finance Department to set up accounts to hold the deposits and Treasurer’s 
Department to issue payment to the vendor upon completion of the work. 
 
Staff has made contact with the vendors on the approved list to find out if they 
would be able to honor the prices established through the State contract without 
the municipality becoming involved with the program. Most stated they would not, 
while a couple said if a large number of jobs could be batched together, they 
would consider it. One indicated his company would honor the State established 
prices only if they could be named the exclusive vendor in the City. 
 
To date, only 5 of the 90+ municipalities in the quarantine area eligible to 
participate in the State EAB program have elected to take part. The 
municipalities that are choosing not to participate have cited as their main reason 
the amount of staff time necessary to administer the program. They have 
indicated that they are already operating at near capacity and do not feel it 
possible to add such a time-consumptive program.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is the opinion of staff that this program is not manageable with current staffing 
level and workload of the Parks and Recreation Department. While recognizing 
the difficulty facing private landowners in dealing with the removal of ash trees on 
their property, staff recommends the City of Troy not participate in the State EAB 
contract. Rather, staff urges residents contact several tree companies on their 
own to obtain the best price for removal of dead ash trees on private property. 



Note to City Council: 
Unless advised otherwise, I will be implementing this cost-saving measure. 
 - John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
March 11, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager / Services 

Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
RE: Agenda Item - Report and Communication – DPW Recycling Center Closure 

 
DPW RECYCLING CENTER CLOSURE   
 
The DPW recycling center generated a loss for the 2004 fiscal year of over $33,700.00.  The 
hauling charges plus the loss of credits due to contamination with refuse items were the main 
contributing factors for this shortfall.  
 
It has continued to be very difficult to maintain a clean product at our unmanned drop off 
center. When trash is mixed with the recyclables, the entire load must be considered 
contaminated due to the cost and safety issues necessary to separate the materials by hand.  
As a result we have received no credit for many loads of recycling materials. This has been an 
ongoing problem.  
 
The most efficient and cost effective way for residents to recycle is to use the curbside 
recycling program. 
 
TROY residents have access to 2 additional recycling centers in our city. Tringali Sanitation on 
the East side and SOCRRA on the West side of Troy. 
 
                Tringali Sanitation 

33373 Dequindre, just north of 14 Mile Road on the West side of the street 
Monday – Friday 7AM – 5PM 248-585-9120 
Plastic jugs and bottles, Newspaper, Magazines, Cardboard and small metal items 
 
SOCRRA 
995 Coolidge, between 14 and 15 Mile Road 
Monday – Friday: 7AM – 5PM/Saturday: 7AM-1PM 248-288-5153 
All curbside items PLUS Auto Batteries, office paper, books 
By appointment: Hazardous Waste and Electronic Equipment 

 
We realize there is a reasonable likelihood that after closing our facility we will continue to 
receive additional waste at this location and therefore we will be keeping the gates locked to 
the area during the overnight hours. Compost and woodchips will still be available at the DPW 
site.   
 
Attachments: schedules and notifications for the DPW recycling center closure. 
 
Prepared by Vicki Richardson DPW Solid Waste Coordinator                           

_______________________________                        
Approved: John Szerlag, City Manager 

morrellca
Text Box
J-12



 
 
 

Schedule of Public Notice and Action Plan 
 
 
 
 
o 5/1/05 

o Post notification at entrance to recycling center. 
o Have weatherproof message center at the recycling center 

containing information concerning various options for 
recycling and disposal. 

o Distribute notices to all of our public buildings (Library, 
City Hall, Community Center etc.)  

o Coordinate with Community Affairs to: 
 Publish a notice in the local newspaper 
 Notification located on Cable TV 
 Post on Web Site 

o 6/1/05 
o Remove recycling containers and reconfigure the area 

for residents to pickup compost and woodchips.  
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment A 



NOTICE TO RESIDENTS: 
 
The decision to close our Drop Off Recycling Center located at 4693 Rochester Road was 
made following an extensive review of the facility’s operating expenses and safety issues. 
 
While recycling reduces the volume of waste disposed in the landfill, and correspondingly 
reduces disposal fees the DPW recycling center operational costs have not been offset by the 
revenues of the recyclables. It does not justify the ongoing tax dollar investment in maintaining 
the recycling center due to continuing high costs and concern for our resident’s personal 
safety. 
 
With the recent expansion of the curbside recycling program in Troy we believe it is easier 
than ever to recycle. While we prefer you to recycle at your curb, if that is not possible there 
are 2 other recycling centers in the City of Troy.                  

 
Tringali Sanitation 
33373 Dequindre, just north of 14 Mile Road on the West side of the street 
Monday – Friday 7AM – 5PM 248-585-9120 
Plastic jugs and bottles, Newspaper, Magazines, Cardboard and small metal items 
 
SOCRRA 
995 Coolidge, between 14 and 15 Mile Road 
Monday – Friday: 7AM – 5PM/Saturday: 7AM-1PM 248-288-5153 
All curbside items PLUS Auto Batteries, office paper, books 
By appointment: Hazardous Waste and Electronic Equipment  

 
The Coolidge location has the most extensive amount and type of materials accepted. 

   
For the disposal of motor oil please see the locations listed below. 
Speedy Auto Service, 3939 Rochester Road    248-689-2300 Free 
 
Auto-Lab Diagnostic & Tune-up Center, 2790 W Maple  248-643-7690 $2.00 
 
Uncle Ed’s, 2988 E Big Beaver     248-528-3550 Free  
Will dump residents’ container and return  
 
Uncle Ed’s, 3801 Rochester Rd     248-689-9250 Free 
Will dump resident’s container and return  
 
All Night Auto, 3872 Rochester Rd     248-619-9020 Free 
Between Big Beaver and Wattles – East side of street 
 
Somerset Automotive Service, 1705 Blaney    248-643-6363 Free 
Street runs north of Maple, west of Crooks 
 
SOCRRA, 995 Coolidge       by appointment    248-288-5153 Free 
 
COMPOST AND WOOD CHIPS 
Compost and woodchips will still be obtainable at the DPW site from April 1 thru November 30 
as long as materials are available   
 
Attachment B 
 
 



 
 
 

NOTICE TO NEWSPAPERS 
 
 
 
 
 
The City of Troy today announced plans to close the DPW recycling center at 4693 
Rochester Road on June 1, 2005.  
 
The decision was made following an extensive review of the facility’s operating 
expenses and safety issues. 
 
With the recent expansion of the curbside recycling program, it is easier than ever to 
recycle. The most cost effective way to recycle is to place your items at the curb, but if 
you can’t there are 2 other recycling centers in the City of Troy:  
 
Tringali Sanitation at 33373 Dequindre will take Plastic jugs and bottles, Newspaper, 
Magazines, cardboard and small metal items between the hours of 7 am and 5 pm, 
Monday through Friday.  
 
SOCRRA at 995 Coolidge will take all curbside items plus auto batteries, office paper, 
books, clothing, shoes, blankets and toys. No appointment is needed. Their hours are 
Monday – Friday 8 am – 4 pm and Saturday 8 am – Noon. 
 
The cost savings that will result from this action make it a necessary step in the 
process of controlling costs for the City of Troy.  For further information please call the 
Refuse and Recycling Department at 248-524-3399. 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment C 

 



NOTICE ON CABLE TV AND WEB SITE 
 
THE RECYCLING DROP OFF CENTER AT 4693 ROCHESTER ROAD WILL BE 
PERMANENTLY CLOSED ON JUNE 1, 2005. 
 
NOTICE TO RESIDENTS: 
 
The decision to close our Drop Off Recycling Center located at 4693 Rochester Road 
was made following an extensive review of the facility’s operating expenses and safety 
issues. 
 
While recycling reduces the volume of waste disposed in the landfill, and 
correspondingly reduces disposal fees the DPW recycling center operational costs 
have not been offset by the revenues of the recyclables. It does not justify the ongoing 
tax dollar investment in maintaining the recycling center due to continuing high costs 
and concern for our resident’s personal safety. 
 
With the recent expansion of the curbside recycling program in Troy we believe it is 
easier than ever to recycle. While we prefer you to recycle at your curb, if that is not 
possible there are 2 other recycling centers in the City of Troy.                  

 
Tringali Sanitation 
33373 Dequindre, just north of 14 Mile Road on the West side of the street 
Monday – Friday 7AM – 5PM 248-585-9120 
Plastic jugs and bottles, Newspaper, Magazines, Cardboard and small metal 
items 
 
SOCRRA 
995 Coolidge, between 14 and 15 Mile Road 
Monday – Friday: 7AM – 5PM/Saturday: 7AM-1PM 248-288-5153 
All curbside items PLUS Auto Batteries, office paper, books 
By appointment: Hazardous Waste and Electronic Equipment  

 
The Coolidge location has the most extensive amount and type of materials accepted. 

   
For the disposal of motor oil please see the locations listed below. 
 
Speedy Auto Service, 3939 Rochester Road   248-689-2300    Free 
 
Auto-Lab Diagnostic & Tune-up Center, 2790 W Maple 248-643-7690    $2.00 
 
Uncle Ed’s, 2988 E Big Beaver     248-528-3550    Free  
Will dump residents’ container and return  
 
Uncle Ed’s, 3801 Rochester Rd     248-689-9250    Free 
Will dump resident’s container and return  
 
All Night Auto, 3872 Rochester Rd    248-619-9020    Free 
Between Big Beaver and Wattles – East side of street 



 
Somerset Automotive Service, 1705 Blaney   248-643-6363    Free 
Street runs north of Maple, west of Crooks 
 
SOCRRA, 995 Coolidge       by appointment   248-288-5153    Free 
 
COMPOST AND WOOD CHIPS 
 
Compost and woodchips will still be obtainable at the DPW site from April 1 thru 
November 30 as long as materials are available   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      
 
Attachment D 
 
 
 
 



morrellca
Text Box
J-13





TO: MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL 
FROM: LORI GRIGG BLUHM, CITY ATTORNEY 

ALLAN T. MOTZNY, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
DATE: March 28, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: LAW DAY 2005 
 

 
 

As set forth in our mission statement, the City Attorney's Office endeavors to provide 
public education and information regarding legal issues. In the past few years, we 
pursued this objective by sponsoring Law Day activities.  These activities have included 
displays at city hall, the library, museum and our website.  Last year, Professor Robert 
Sedler made a presentation commemorating the 50th anniversary of Brown v. Board of 
Education.    
  
Law Day is an annual nation-wide event, which is observed for the purpose of raising 
public awareness of American law and justice, and their valuable impact on our lives. 
The origin of Law Day dates back to 1957, and was the vision of American 
Bar Association (ABA) President Charles S. Rhyne, who wanted a special day for 
celebrating our legal system.  In 1958, President Dwight D. Eisenhower established Law 
Day USA to strengthen our great heritage of liberty, justice and equality under the law.  
In 1961, Congress designated May 1 as the official day for celebrating Law 
Day.  However, the ABA encourages Law Day activities to continue all throughout the 
month of May on an annual basis.  
  
It is our objective to sponsor Law Day activities again this year during the month of May.  
This year's ABA designated theme is "The American Jury:  We the People in Action."  
The Community Affairs Department has agreed to assist us in creating an educational 
videotape presentation, where the invaluable jury system will be highlighted. The 
videotape will be shown for the first time at an informal reception in our office on 
Wednesday, May 4, 2005, from 8:00 am to 10:00 am.  We invite all of you, as well as 
board and committee members, City employees, and members of the public to attend 
the reception. The program will subsequently be cablecast on the Troy channel 
(WTRY).   
  
We are again preparing displays for the Troy Public Library, Troy Historical Museum, and 
our website.  A proposed Law Day proclamation will appear on the next regular meeting 
agenda as well.  If you have any suggestions, comments, or questions concerning the 
above, please let us know.  
  

 

morrellca
Text Box
J-14


	AGENDA:  April 4, 2005
	GOALS:
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Rezoning Application - Northeast Corner of Livernois and
	C-2 Street Vacation Application (SV-182) – A Section of Alle

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:
	a\) Cultural Diversity Month – April 9, �

	E-4  Act 51 Mileage Certification for 2004
	E-5  Resolution Authorizing Request for Reimbursement:  Oakl
	E-6  Traffic Committee Recommendations – February 16, 2005
	E-7 Traffic Committee Recommendations – March 16, 2005
	E-8  SBC Dedicated Internet Service
	E-9  Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Water Main Easeme
	E-10  Final Street Vacation Application (SV-173) – A Portion
	E-11 Application for New SDD and SDM Liquor Licenses for Red
	E-12  Application to Transfer Ownership of a B-Hotel Liquor 
	E-13  Application to Transfer Ownership of a Class C Liquor 
	E-14  Request for Acceptance of Two (2) Temporary Constructi
	E-15  Application to Transfer Class C Liquor License to Bank
	E-16  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder 
	E-17  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest A
	E-18  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders
	E-19  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Option to Renew – Au

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Brownfield Redevelopment Authority; Economic Development Corporation; b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory C
	F-2 Blood Draw Procedure – Beaumont Hospital and Alliance Mo
	F-3 2005 Magic of Fall - Troy Daze Festival Schedule - Fees
	F-4 Designation of Limited Public Forums

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1998 Kirkton – April 18, 2005
	Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1102 Boyd – April 18, 2005
	Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6771 Westaway – April 18, 2005

	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	Islamic Association of Michigan


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  Mayor Schilling’s Request for List of Churches in Troy 

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Troy Historic Commission/Final – October 26, 2004
	Troy Historic Study Committee/Final – November 4, 2004
	Troy Historic Study Committee/Final – November 30, 2004
	Troy Historic District Study Committee/Final – January 4, 20
	Troy Historic Commission/Final – January 25, 2005
	Troy Historic Study Committee/Final – February 1, 2005
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – February 14, 2005
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – February 15, 2005
	Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – February 15, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Draft – March 1, 2
	Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Final – March 1, 2
	Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – March 1, 2005
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – March 2, 2005
	Planning Commission Regular Meeting/Draft – March 8, 2005
	Planning Commission Regular Meeting/Final – March 8, 2005
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – March 14, 2005
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – March 15, 2005

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Council Member Dave Lambert’s Report on the National League 
	Councilmember Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report for N
	Annual Library Survey of Users
	First Quarter 2005 Development Report
	Permits Issued During the Month of February 2005

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter to Cindy Stewart from Mary Beth Halushka of the Troy 
	Letter Thanking Police Officer Milt Stansbury for a Recent R
	Letter Thanking Police Officer Patrick Dyjewski for Providin
	Letter Thanking Police Officer LaForest for Assisting in App
	Letter Thanking Police Officer Craig Fitzpatrick and Police 
	Letter From Brad Byarski Thanking Jennifer Lawson for Offeri

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	Resolution from the Oakland County Board of Commissioners in

	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Options/Ramifications for Proposed I-75/Crooks/Long Lak
	J-7  Golf, Inc. Article
	J-8  Report on Liquor Compliance Inspections
	J-9  Load Restrictions Report and Communication
	J-10  Report Regarding Feasibility of a Minor League Basebal
	J-11  State of Michigan Ash Tree Removal Contract
	J-12  DPW Recycling Center Closure
	J-13  Letter from Julie A. Wendt, Director, Licensing Divisi
	J-14 Law Day 2005

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1  No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT
	SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS:
	Monday, April 18, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, April 25, 2005: 6:30 PM Special/Study/Budget City Co
	Monday, April 25, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, May 02, 2005: 6:30 PM Special/Study/Budget City Coun
	Saturday, May 7, 2005: 9:00 AM Special/Study/Budget City Cou
	Monday, May 9, 2005 Regular City Council
	Tuesday, May 10, 2005: 7:30 PM Special/Study City Council
	Monday, May 16, 2005 Regular City Council
	Monday, May 23, 2005 Regular City Council


	05.04.04        Attachments.pdf
	05.04.04                        E Attachments.pdf
	MINUTES: March 21, 2005
	Vote on Resolution to Excuse Mayor Schilling and Council Mem

	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	a\) Presentation by Dr. Janet Jopke of T�


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1  No Public Hearings

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Proposed
	E-4  Standard Purchasing Resolution 9:  Approval to Expend F
	E-5  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award - Lowest B
	E-6  Acceptance of Four (4) Permanent Storm Drain/Sewer Ease
	E-7  Private Agreement for Northfield & Wattles Property Spl
	E-9  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest A
	E-10  Acceptance of One (1) Permanent Water Main Easement an
	E-11  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest 
	E-12  Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Assoc
	E-13  Troy Racquet Club Rates
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-8  Summer Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakl

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: None; b) City Council Appointments: None
	F-2 Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Optio
	F-3 Bid Waiver – Resale Merchandise for Sylvan Glen and Sanc
	F-4 Resolution Opposing Elimination of the Community Develop
	F-5 Bid Waiver – One-Year Requirements of Asphalt Paving Mat
	F-6 Approval of Purchase Agreement for Right-of-Way for Big 
	F-7 Increases to Building Permit Fees
	F-8 Appointment of a Temporary One-Time Voting Delegate - SE
	F-9 Approval of Purchase Agreement for Acquisition of Proper
	F-10 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Process A
	F-11 Labor Attorney Fees and Agreement
	F-12 Amendments to Addendum to Sanctuary Lake Agreement

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Northeast Corner of Livernois and Maple Road, Section 27 – B

	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	Designation of Limited Public Forums


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  Authorization for Mayor to Attend National League of Ci

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Traffic Committee/Final – November 17, 2004
	Parks & Recreation Advisory Board/Final – January 13, 2005
	Traffic Committee/Final – January 19, 2005
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – Feb
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Feb
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – February 3, 2
	Library Board/Final – February 4, 2005
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – Febru
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – February 15, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Draft – February 2
	Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting/Final – February 2
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – March 3, 2005
	Library Board/Draft – March 10, 2005
	Parks & Recreation Advisory Board/Draft – March 10, 2005

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Monthly Financial Report – February 28, 2005

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter from Terence B. Desmond to Sergeant James Clark Comme

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	Proposed Resolution from Royal Oak Re: Request for MDOT to C

	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  DDA Financing, Letter from the Department of Treasury t
	J-7  Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Action

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1  No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session

	05.04.04 - E-02 Special CC Minutes-Draft 05.03.28 7.00 PM.pdf
	ROLL CALL
	1. Consideration of the National Day of Prayer

	PUBLIC COMMENT

	05.04.04 - E-02 CC Minutes-Draft 05.03.28.pdf
	Minutes: March 28, 2005 7:30 Regular

	05.04.04                        E Attachments.pdf
	05.04.04 - E-07 SDD & SDM Liquor Licenses for Red Wagon Shoppe.pdf
	March 22, 2005
	TO:   Mr. John Szerlag, City Manager
	FROM: Charles Craft, Chief of Police
	SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Application for new SDD and SDM licens


	05.04.04 - E-12 Liquor License Transfer - B-Hotel - Marriott International.pdf
	March 24, 2005
	TO:   Mr. John Szerlag, City Manager
	Gary Mayer, Police Captain


	05.04.04 - E-13 Liquor License Transfer - Class C - TENT Restaurant Inc.pdf
	March 24, 2005
	TO:   Mr. John Szerlag, City Manager

	05.04.04 - E-14 Temp. Const. Permits for Troy Court Water Main Project.pdf
	Troy Court Water Main 03-21-05.pdf
	TROY COURT WATER MAIN


	05.04.04 - E-15 Liquor License Transfer - Class C - Bank of America.pdf
	March 24, 2005
	TO:   Mr. John Szerlag, City Manager
	FROM: Charles Craft, Chief of Police
	SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Application to transfer Class C liquor


	05.04.04 - E-19 SR 3 Option Letter AutoParts.pdf
	Agenda 04.04.05 - StdRsl 3 AutoParts SBP01-49.pdf
	aaa.pdf
	Page 2 of 3
	To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council
	EXPLANATION OF BIDS NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS
	PRODUCT LINE   VENDOR    DMS JUSTIFICATION
	Sterling Truck Heavy  Kirk’s Automotive   No catalog or pric





	05.04.04 - E-11 SDD & SDM Liquor Licenses for Red Wagon Shoppe.pdf
	March 22, 2005
	TO:   Mr. John Szerlag, City Manager
	FROM: Charles Craft, Chief of Police
	SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Application for new SDD and SDM licens


	05.04.04 - E-12 Liquor License Transfer - B-Hotel - Marriott International.pdf
	March 24, 2005
	TO:   Mr. John Szerlag, City Manager
	Gary Mayer, Police Captain


	05.04.04 - E-13 Liquor License Transfer - Class C - TENT Restaurant Inc.pdf
	March 24, 2005
	TO:   Mr. John Szerlag, City Manager

	05.04.04 - E-14 Temp. Const. Permits for Troy Court Water Main Project.pdf
	Troy Court Water Main 03-21-05.pdf
	TROY COURT WATER MAIN


	05.04.04 - E-15 Liquor License Transfer - Class C - Bank of America.pdf
	March 24, 2005
	TO:   Mr. John Szerlag, City Manager
	FROM: Charles Craft, Chief of Police
	SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Application to transfer Class C liquor


	05.04.04 - E-19 SR 3 Option Letter AutoParts.pdf
	Agenda 04.04.05 - StdRsl 3 AutoParts SBP01-49.pdf
	aaa.pdf
	Page 2 of 3
	To:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council
	EXPLANATION OF BIDS NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS
	PRODUCT LINE   VENDOR    DMS JUSTIFICATION
	Sterling Truck Heavy  Kirk’s Automotive   No catalog or pric





	05.04.04                        J Attachments.pdf
	05.04.04 - J-01q BZA Draft 05.03.15.pdf
	ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF FEBRUARY 15, 2005
	ITEM #4

	05.04.04 - J-02a - Council Member Dave Lambert's Report on the National League of Cities Conference.pdf
	Tuesday, November 30
	A Main Motion
	Wednesday, December 1
	Thursday, December 2
	Friday, December 3
	Saturday, December 4


	05.04.04 - J-02d First Quarter 2005 Development Report.pdf
	G:MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC/DS/Development Report 03-30-05

	05.04.04 - J-02e Permits Issued During February 2005.pdf
	February 2005 Report.pdf
	February

	2 Chart.pdf
	Bar Chart







